
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 3
CC 1.  Minutes of the March 22, 2016, Special Meeting.

Minutes 9
CC 2.  Payment of City demands.

City Demands 15
CC 3.  Payment of Agency demands.

Agency Demands 27
CC 4.  Second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 16-2054,
to prohibit the cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City.

Ordinance No. 16-2054 31
CC 5.  Participation in the 2015 Continuum of Care program
grant for the Transitional House in Fiscal Year 16-17.

Transitional House 39
CC 6.  Amendment to agreement with All City Management
Services, Inc. for school crossing guard services.

School Crossing Guard Services 51
CC 7.  Extension of Covina’s Parking Enforcement Service
contract with Inter-Con Security Inc.

Parking Enforcement Service Contract Extension 55
CC 8.  Agreement with Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. for Parking
Machine Maintenance at the Metrolink West Parking Structure
and Civic Center (Downtown) Parking Structure.

Parking Machine Maintenance Agreement 59
CC 9.  Acceptance of an easement on an existing alley
associated with development at 642 and 656 E. San Bernardino
Road.

Resolution No. 16-7469 127
CC 10.  Approval and recordation of Tract Map No. 73397 "Lark
Ellen Villas" at 501 Lark Ellen Avenue.

Resolution No. 16-7472 135
CC 11.  Amendment of the Fiscal Year 2015-16 Capital
Improvement Budget for Project P1502 Resurfacing of Grand
Avenue Project funded by CalRecycle.

Resolution No. 16-7473 151
CC 12.  Confirmation of Mayor’s appointments to
intergovernmental agencies and appointment of representative
and alternate to the City Selection Committee.

Appointments to Intergovernmental Agencies 155
PH 1.  Municipal Code amendment regarding violation of
provisions of Chapter 8.60 Fireworks, Pyrotechnics and
Production Effects.

Ordinance No. 16-2055 161
NB 1.  2015/2016 Core Strategies – Goals and Objectives
Update.

Goals and Objectives Update 165

1



NB 2.  Approval of Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016,
and Introduction of Ordinance No. 16-2056 Adding Chapter
10.68 of Title 10 (Vehicles and Traffic) of the Covina Municipal
Code Relating to Speed Limits.

Ordinance No. 16-2056 177
NB 3.  2015-16 Adopted Budget Mid-Year Review.

Budget Mid-Year Review 415
NB 4.  Report on Covina Park Option for Community and Senior
Center.

Covina Senior and Community Center Update 423

2



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 1  Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
125 E. College Street, Covina, California 

  Council Chamber of City Hall 
Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COVINA 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/COVINA PUBLIC FINANCING 

AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY 
JOINT MEETING—CLOSED SESSION 

6:30 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
Council/Agency/Authority Members Allen, Delach, King, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair Marquez, 
and Mayor/Chair Stapleton 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Public is invited to make comment on Closed Session items only at this time.  To address the 
Council/Agency/Authority please complete a yellow speaker request card located at the entrance and give 
it to the City Clerk.  Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak.  Individual speakers are 
limited to five minutes each. 
 
The City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Covina Public 
Financing Authority/Covina Housing Authority will adjourn to closed session for the 
following: 

CLOSED SESSION   
A. G.C. §54956.8 – CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

           Property:                       413 North Citrus Ave. (APN: 8431-028-026) 
                Agency negotiator:       Andrea Miller, City Manager 
                Negotiating parties:      Joe Oftelie, City Ventures  
                Under negotiation:       Negotiations to include both price and terms of payment 
 

B. G.C. §54957 – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  
   Title: City Manager 

3



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 2  Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

C.   G.C. §54957.6 – CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
  Agency Designed Representative: Mayor 
    Unrepresented Representative:        City Manager 
 
D.   G.C. § 54957.6 – CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency Designated Representatives: Peter Brown of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, Chief 
Labor Negotiator and Danielle Tellez, Human Resources Director 
Employee Organizations: American Federation of State, County and Municipal 
Employees (AFSCME); Police Association of Covina (PAC); Police Management 
Group (PMG); and Police Supervisors of Covina (PSC) 
 

E.   G.C. § 54957.6 – CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
      Agency Designated Representatives: Danielle Tellez, Human Resources Director 

    Unrepresented Employees: Mid-Management, Supervisory and Professional, and 
Confidential and Technical Employees; and Executive Employees (excluding the City 
Manager) 

 
RECESS 
 

CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COVINA 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/COVINA PUBLIC FINANCING 

AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY 
JOINT MEETING—OPEN SESSION 

7:30 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE AND CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
Council/Agency/Authority Members Allen, Delach, King, Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair Marquez, 
and Mayor/Chair Stapleton 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by Mayor Stapleton 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Given by Covina Police Chaplain Truax 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

Finch Clock 100th Birthday 
 
DMV/Donate Life California Month Proclamation 
 
Recognition of 2016 Covina Police Department Baker to Vegas Relay Team 
 
National Library Week 

4



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 3  Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
To address the Council/Agency/Authority please complete a yellow speaker request card located at the 
entrance and give it to the City Clerk/Agency/Authority Secretary.  Your name will be called when it is 
your turn to speak.  Those wishing to speak on a LISTED AGENDA ITEM will be heard when that item is 
addressed.  Those wishing to speak on an item NOT ON THE AGENDA will be heard at this time.  State 
Law prohibits the Council/Agency/Authority Members from taking action on any item not on the agenda.  
Individual speakers are limited to five minutes each. 
 
COUNCIL/AGENCY/AUTHORITY COMMENTS 
Council/Agency/Authority Members wishing to make any announcements of public interest or to request 
that specific items be added to future Council/Agency/Authority agendas may do so at this time. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under consent calendar are considered routine, and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council/Agency/Authority votes 
on them, unless a member of the Council/Agency/Authority requests a specific item be removed from the 
consent calendar for discussion. 
 
CC 1. Minutes of the March 22, 2016, Special Meeting of the City Council/Successor 

Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Covina Public Financing 
Authority/Housing Authority. 

Report:  Minutes 

CC 2. Payment of City demands in the amount of $3,428,545.71. 

Report:  City Demands 

CC 3. Payment of Agency demands in the amount of $16,626.80. 

Report:  Agency Demands 

CC 4. Second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 16-2054, amending Section 
17.04.414.5 of Chapter 17.04 to Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) to prohibit the 
cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City, including the cultivation by 
qualified patients, primary caregivers and persons with identification cards. 

 
Report:  Ordinance No. 16-2054 

CC 5. Authorization of participation in the 2015 Continuum of Care (CoC) Program 
grant, through the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority (LAHSA) for 
supportive services, operation and administration of the Transitional House in 
Fiscal Year 16-17. 

  
Report:  Transitional House 

CC 6. Amendment to the Agreement between All City Management Services, Inc. and 
the City of Covina for School Crossing Guard Services. 

 
Report:  School Crossing Guard Services 

5



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 4  Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

CC 7.  Extension of Covina’s Parking Enforcement Service contract with Inter-Con 
Security, Inc. 

 
Report:  Parking Enforcement Service Contract Extension 

CC 8. Agreement with Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. for Parking Machine Maintenance 
at the Metrolink West Parking Structure and at the Civic Center (Downtown) 
Parking Structure. 

 
Report:  Parking Machine Maintenance Agreement 

CC 9. Resolution No. 16-7469 accepting an easement on an existing alley for public street 
and highway purposes associated with development of property at 642 and 656 E. 
San Bernardino Road. 

 
Report:  Resolution No. 16-7469 

CC 10.  Resolution No. 16-7472 approving and recordation of Tract Map No. 73397 “Lark  
 Ellen Villas;” 501 Lark Allen Avenue. 

 
Report:  Resolution No. 16-7472 

CC 11. Resolution No. 16-7473 amending the Fiscal Year 2015-16 Capital Improvement 
Program Budget by $42,550 for Project P1502 Resurfacing of Grand Avenue 
Project between Arrow Highway and San Bernardino Road funded by State of 
California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). 

 
Report:  Resolution No. 16-7473 

CC 12. Mayor’s appointments to Intergovernmental agencies and adoption of Resolution 
No. 16-7474 of the City Council appointing the City’s representative and 
alternate on the City Selection Committee. 

  
Report:  Appointments to Intergovernmental Agencies 

PUBLIC HEARING 

PH 1. Code Amendment re: Section 8.60.070 of Chapter 8.60 (Fireworks, Pyrotechnics 
and Production Effects) of the Covina Municipal Code regarding violation of 
provisions of Chapter 8.60. 

 
Report:  Ordinance No. 16-2055 

Staff Recommendation: 
1. Open the public hearing and receive public testimony; 
2. Close the public hearing; and 
3. Introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 16-2055 amending Section 8.60.070 

of Chapter 8.60 (Fireworks, Pyrotechnics and Production Effects) of the Covina Municipal 
Code regarding a violation of provisions of Chapter 8.60. 

 

6



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 5  Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

CONTINUED BUSINESS – NONE 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

NB 1. 2015/2016 Core Strategies – Goals and Objectives Update. 
 
Report:  Goals and Objectives Update 

Staff Recommendation: 
Receive and file. 
 
NB 2.  Approval of Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the City of Covina 

and  Introduction of Ordinance No. 16-2056 Adding Chapter 10.68 of Title 10 
(Vehicles and Traffic) of the Covina Municipal Code Relating to Speed Limits. 

 
Report:  Ordinance No. 16-2056 

Staff Recommendation: 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 16-7470 approving the Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for 

the City of Covina (E&TS) and the prima facie speed limits recommended to be established on 
the highway segments included in the E&TS; 

2. Waive full reading, read by title only, and introduce for first reading Ordinance No. 16-2056 
adding Chapter 10.68 to Title 10 (Vehicles and Traffic) of the Covina Municipal Code relating to 
speed limits; 

3. Authorize the Department of Public Works to schedule the second reading of Ordinance No. 16-
2056 at the next City Council meeting on April 19, 2016;  

4. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Amendment to the Agreement with Willdan 
Engineering for the completion of two additional radar speed surveys requested by the City 
Traffic Engineer in an amount not to exceed $270; and 

5. Adopt Resolution No. 16-7471 appropriating $270 in available Proposition C Fund balance  to 
the fiscal year 2015-16 budget and allocating the funds to the Citywide Engineering and Traffic 
Survey – Project T-1501 (account no. 2405-2100-51005-T1501). 

 
NB 3. 2015-16 Adopted Budget Mid-Year Review. 
 
Report:  Budget Mid-Year Review 

Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the Revenue and Expenditure adjustments listed on Attachment C of the Agenda 
Report. 
 
NB 4. Covina Senior and Community Center Update – Consider refinement of possible 

site location alternatives. 
 
Report:  Covina Senior and Community Center Update 

Staff Recommendation: 
1. Review and discuss the Community Workshops held to date and verbal and written input 

received regarding the Covina Senior and Community Center. 

7



 

City Council/CSA/CPFA/CHA Agenda 6  Tuesday, April 05, 2016 

2. Review and discuss the site location alternatives being evaluated by City staff and give 
direction regarding the possible location for the placement of the Covina Senior and 
Community Center. 

3. Direct City staff to continue the systematic assessment of multiple sites as the possible 
location for the placement of the Covina Senior and Community Center, continue to solicit 
community input on the possible sites, and present the results of the site location assessment 
and community input to the City Council as soon as practicable. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
The Covina City Council/Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/Covina 
Public Financing Authority/Covina Housing Authority will adjourn to its next regular meeting of 
the Council/Agency/Authority scheduled for Tuesday, April 19, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. for study 
session in the Covina Library Community Room at 234 N. Second Avenue, Covina, California, 
91723; and at 6:30 p.m. for closed session and 7:30 p.m. for open session inside the Council 
Chamber, 125 East College Street, Covina, California, 91723. 

 

Any member of the public may address the Council/Agency/Authority during both the public comment period and on any 
scheduled item on the agenda.  Comments are limited to a maximum of five minutes per speaker unless, for good cause, the 
Mayor/Chairperson amends the time limit.  Anyone wishing to speak is requested to submit a yellow Speaker Request Card to the 
City Clerk; cards are located near the agendas or at the City Clerk’s desk. 

MEETING ASSISTANCE INFORMATION: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (626) 384-5430.  Notification 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

If you challenge in court any discussion or action taken concerning an item on this agenda, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised during the meeting or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the 
City’s consideration of the item at the meeting. 

The Covina City Clerk’s Office does hereby declare that, in accordance with California Government Code Section 54954.2(a), 
the agenda for the Tuesday, April 05, 2016, meeting was posted on March 31, 2016, on the City’s website and near the front 
entrances of: 1) Covina City Hall, 125 East College Street, Covina; and 2) the Covina Public Library, 234 N. Second Avenue, 
Covina. 

MATERIALS RELATED TO AN ITEM ON THIS AGENDA, AND SUBMITTED TO THE CITY COUNCIL AFTER 
PUBLICATION OF THE AGENDA, ARE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC IN THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT 125 E. 
COLLEGE STREET, COVINA.   

 

 

8



ITEM NO. CC 1

OF COL

MINUTES OF MARCH 22, 2016

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COVINA CITY COUNCIL/ SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO
THE COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY/COVINA PUBLIC FINANCING
AUTHORITY/COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY HELD IN THE COUNCIL

CHAMBER OF CITY HALL, 125 EAST COLLEGE STREET, COVINA, CALIFORNIA

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor King called the Council/Agency/Authority meeting to order at 7: 30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Councilmembers Present:      Walter Allen III, Peggy A. Delach, Jorge Marquez, Mayor Pro
Tem/ Vice-Chair Kevin Stapleton, and Mayor/Chair John C. King.
Councilmembers Absent:      None.

Elected Members Present:     City Treasurer Geoffrey Cobbett and City Clerk Mary Lou
Walczak.

Staff Members Present: City Manager Andrea M. Miller, City Attorney Candice K. Lee,
Interim Police Chief Kim Raney,  Public Works Director Siobhan Foster,  Community
Development Director Brian Lee, Parks and Recreation/ Library Director Amy Hall-McGrade,
Human Resources Director Danielle Tellez, Interim Finance Director Dennis Swink, Acting
Assistant Fire Chief Jim Enriquez, Assistant to the City Manager Angel Carrillo, GIS Technician
James Knox, and Chief Deputy City Clerk Sharon F. Clark.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor King led the Pledge of Allegiance.

INVOCATION

Police Chaplain Dave Truax gave the invocation.

CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATION

Election ofMayor

City Clerk Walczak declared the positions of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tempore vacant and opened
nominations for Mayor. Councilmember Allen nominated Councilmember Stapleton.  Hearing
no other nominations,  City Clerk Walczak closed the nomination period and declared
Councilmember Stapleton as Mayor of the Covina City Council by acclamation.
COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 1 of 6 March 22, 2016

9



City Clerk Walczak congratulated Mayor Stapleton and turned the meeting over to him to
conduct the remainder of the meeting and the election of a Mayor Pro Tempore. Mayor Stapleton
assumed the Mayor' s seat.

Election ofMayor Pro Tempore

Mayor Stapleton called for nominations for the position of Mayor Pro Tempore. Councilmember

Allen nominated Councilmember Marquez for the position of Mayor Pro Tempore. Hearing no
other nominations, Mayor Stapleton closed the nomination period and declared Councilmember

Marquez as Mayor Pro Tempore of the Covina City Council by acclamation.

PRESENTATIONS

Recognition ofOutgoing Mayor John King

a)       Presentation by City Council in honor of Mayor' s Service

Mayor Stapleton presented outgoing Mayor John King with a plaque and scrapbook on behalf of
the City with thanks for a job well-done; and along with Chief Raney, presented Mayor King
with a framed photo of Mayor King with the members of the Covina Police Department.

Outgoing Mayor King expressed his thanks to his Council colleagues for their collaboration in
working through the challenges over the last year, and to City Manager Miller, the department
directors, and Acting Assistant Fire Chief Enriquez for their hard work. In closing, he thanked
his family, friends, and all those in attendance for their support during his tenure as mayor.

b)       Presentations by Local Officials

The following officials presented Mayor King with certificates of appreciation for his service as
Mayor over the past year:  Kathryn Barger-Leibrich,  Chief Deputy,  Supervisor Michael
Antonovich' s Office;  Laura Jimenez,  Senior Field Representative,  Senator Ed Hernandez' s

Office; Licett Figueroa, Field Representative/ Scheduler, Congresswoman Grace F. Napolitano' s
Office;  Ashley Rozatti,  Field Representative,  Assemblymember Roger Hernandez' s Office;

Kaitlin King, Representative, Charter Oak Unified School District; and Acting Assistant Fire
Chief Jim Enriquez of Los Angeles County Fire Department.

Presentation to the Covina Historical Society

Mayor Stapleton shared some highlights of Covina history as the City is approaching the 130th
anniversary of its founding in 1886; invited Dr. Barbara Hall and board members of the Covina
Valley Historical Society to come forward and presented them each with flowers in appreciation
for preserving Covina' s rich history; recognized Dr. Hall for providing the vintage photographs
located in the halls of City Hall; and announced that the City' s birthday celebration would be
continued at the April 5, 2016, City Council meeting at which time historical information would
be provided regarding the

100th

birthday of the clock located on Citrus Avenue in Downtown
Covina. Covina Valley Historical Society Board Member Fred Feldheim added that an event
recognizing the occasion would be held on April 8, 2016, at 12: 00 p.m. at the clock, and invited
the community to attend and bring a bell to ring at the event.

COUNCIL/CSA/ CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 2 of 6 March 22, 2016

10



PUBLIC COMMENTS

George Wharf, a resident of San Dimas, inquired about options for re- zoning of property in the
City. Mayor Stapleton directed the speaker to contact City Manager Miller for the information he
was requesting.

Lisa Mayo, a resident of West Covina, invited the Council and community to an event of her
organization They Will Know to be held on September 17, 2016, at 7: 00 p.m., at the Covina

Center for the Performing Arts.

COUNCIL/AGENCY/AUTHORITY COMMENTS

Councilmember King thanked everyone for the recognition of his year as mayor.

Councilmember Allen thanked Councilmember King for a job well-done as mayor over the last
year; announced that Interim Police Chief Raney had been honored by the California Police
Chief' s Association this past week with the top award given for police chiefs; wished all a Happy
Easter; and congratulated Mayor Stapleton on being elected Mayor.

Councilmember Delach congratulated Councilmember King on his leadership as mayor over a
successful year, incoming Mayor Stapleton and Mayor Pro Tem Marquez on their new positions,
and Interim Police Chief Raney on his award; announced that California Parks and Recreation
Society ( CPRS) District 13 had awarded the Volunteer Service Award to the Covina Christmas
Parade Executive Committee and the Parks and Facilities Design Award to the City for Cougar
Park; and asked Interim Police Chief Raney to comment on a press release from the Independent
Cities Association ( ICA) regarding AB 109 updates. Interim Police Chief Raney explained that
cities in California have seen a dramatic increase in crime rates due to legislation passed in 2011

and since, and that legislators need to be educated by constituents as to the negative impact on
local communities;  after which Councilmember Delach gave statistics on offenders under

probation versus parole supervision.

In response to an inquiry from Councilmember Delach as to how Metro' s recently-released draft
budget will impact the City, City Manager Miller responded that Metro is evaluating a potential
sales- tax measure extension that would provide additional transportation funding,  and it is
important to ensure that the extension provides that funds are available for the maintenance of

City streets as much has been diverted to other large regional transportation projects.

In relationship to funding a new Community and Senior Center,  Councilmember Delach

requested that City Manager Miller review an article entitled, " New Economic Development

Tools Provide Opportunities for Creativity" in the March 2016 issue of Western City magazine
on enhanced infrastructure financing districts,  community revitalization and investment
authority, and annexation development plans.

Mayor Pro Tern Marquez congratulated Councilmember King for his guidance as mayor in the
City' s accomplishments over the last year, including new parks and over 200 new businesses;
congratulated Mayor Stapleton on his new position as mayor; thanked his Council colleagues for

electing him as mayor pro tem; and requested that the meeting be adjourned in memory of
Tabatha Neal.

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 3 of 6 March 22, 2016

11



Councilmembers King and Delach requested the meeting be adjourned also in memory of Helen
McMeekin Provinse and Freda Nassar.

Mayor Stapleton requested that the meeting be adjourned also in memory of Janice Louise
Eckert; and commented that there was an article in the March 20, 2016, issue of the San Gabriel
Valley Tribune about Interim Police Chief Raney' s award and that he is a legend in law
enforcement who brings prestige to this community. Mayor Stapleton announced Covina Library
events: Makerspace Kids Creative Corner on March 24, 2016, at 4:30 p.m., and ongoing Second
Start Literacy adult basic education program; Parks and Recreation events: Leaders- in-Training
and Junior Lifeguard programs with an application deadline of April 7, 2016; Spring Camp
Covina from March 28 — April 1, 2016, at Cougar Park; and Youth Sports starting the week of
April 4, 2016; and recognized the honors received by the Covina Christmas Parade Executive
Committee and by the City for Cougar Park. He requested that a re- visiting of the January 19,
2016, resolution to make a statement to the community, with Council' s consent, that Covina Park
is no longer being considered as a site for the new community and senior center, be agendized
for a future meeting. Councilmember Delach seconded the request. In closing, Mayor Stapleton
thanked his Council colleagues for their confidence in electing him mayor, commented that last
year was a year of upheaval and that the coming year will be a year of building and reaching out
to the community to work together,  and encouraged community members to contact

Councilmembers or City employees about what they like or don' t like, and to volunteer for the
community.

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS

City Manager Miller congratulated Mayor Stapleton and Mayor Pro Tem Marquez, and thanked
Councilmember King for his leadership over the past year.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion made by Councilmember King, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Marquez, the City
Council approved Consent Calendar items CC 1 — 8 as presented.

Motion approved the Consent Calendar items CC 1 — 8 asfollows:

AYES:     ALLEN, DELACH, KING, MARQUEZ, STAPLETON

NOES:     NONE

ABSTAIN:     NONE

ABSENT:     NONE

CC 1.    City Council approved the Minutes of the March 1, 2016, Special Study Session and
Regular meetings of the City Council/ Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment
Agency/Covina Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority.

CC 2.     City Council approved the payment of City demands in the amount of$ 1, 551, 737. 55.

CC 3.     Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency approved the payment of Agency
demands in the amount of$58, 448. 05.

CC 4.     City Council/ Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency:  1) Adopted

Resolution No. 16- 7467 approving the execution and delivery of a non-housing bonds

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/ CHA MINUTES Page 4 of 6 March 22, 2016

12



proceeds funding agreement with the Successor Agency; 2) Adopted Successor Agency
Resolution No. 16- 001 approving the execution and delivery of a non-housing bonds
proceeds funding agreement with the City of Covina; and 3) Approved the Non-

Housing Bonds Funding Agreement and authorized the Executive Director of the
Successor Agency and the Mayor of the City of Covina to execute the Agreement on
behalf of the respective agencies.

CC 5.     Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency/ Covina Housing Authority: 1)
Adopted Resolution No.   16- 002 of the Successor Agency to the Covina

Redevelopment Agency approving the execution and delivery of a housing bonds
proceeds funding agreement with the Covina Housing Authority; 2) Adopted Covina
Housing Authority Resolution No. 16- 001 approving the execution and delivery of a
housing bonds proceeds funding agreement with the Successor Agency to the Covina
Redevelopment Agency; and 3) Approved the Housing Bonds Funding Agreement and
authorized the Executive Director of the Successor Agency and Chair of the Covina
Housing Authority to execute the Agreement on behalf of the respective agencies.

CC 6.     City Council approved the First Amendment to the Facility Use Agreement for a
Farmers' and Street Market in the City of Covina and authorized the City Manager or
her designee to execute the Amendment on behalf of the City.

CC 7.     City Council:  1)  Awarded the contract for Emergency Drainage Improvements at
Wingate Park; Project No. D- 1203; Federal Emergency Management Agency ( FEMA)
PW#309( 1) to FS Contractors Incorporated for an amount not to exceed $ 62,260.00 and
authorized the City Manager to execute the contract; and 2) Adopted Resolution No.
16- 7466 appropriating $22, 912.25 in available Parks and Recreation CIP Fund balance
to the fiscal year 2015- 16 budget and allocating the funds to the Emergency Drainage
Improvements at Wingate Park, Project No. D- 1203 ( account no. 4600-PF06- 55320-

D1203) and increasing Parks and Recreation CIP Fund revenue by $22,912.25 ( account
no. 4600- PF06-42070- D 1203).

CC 8.     City Council:   1)  Determined that note terms,  agreement terms,  and program

requirements are satisfied for Golden State Care Packages,  Inc.,  a Community
Development Block Grant ( CDBG) Economic Development Program participant; 2)
Authorized removal of the loan/grant restrictions upon approval of program compliance
by Los Angeles County Community Development Commission; and 3) Authorized the
City Manager or her designee to execute related documents.

PUBLIC HEARING—NONE

CONTINUED BUSINESS—NONE

NEW BUSINESS

NB 1.     2015 Accomplishments.

City Manager Miller presented the staff report and commented that though the list of
accomplishments in the agenda packet highlights the major accomplishments,  it is not an

exhaustive list; and staff will continue to identify ways to reduce overall costs and provide higher

COUNCIL/CSA/CPFA/ CHA MINUTES Page 5 of 6 March 22, 2016

13



quality services to the community, and will continue to invest in infrastructure. In closing, she
announced that the 2015 Accomplishments may be viewed on the City' s website at
www.covinaca.gov.

Mayor Stapleton requested that a paper copy of the 2015 Accomplishments be made available in
the Library for those without computer access.

A motion was made by Councilmember Delach, seconded by Councilmember King, to receive
and file the report.

Councilmember King commented that the list of accomplishments speaks volumes to a
remarkable year, and expressed thanks from Council to staff for the progress made over the last
year.

Mayor Stapleton encouraged the community to read the list of accomplishments; recognized
Interim Police Chief Raney' s wife, Stacey Raney, and Mayor Stapleton' s wife, Victoria, and
daughter, Kathrine, for their support; and reaffirmed that adjournment would be in memory of
Janice Louise Ackert, Freda Nassar, Tabatha Neal, and Helen McMeekin Provinse.

Motion approved New Business item NB 1 asfollows:
AYES:     ALLEN, DELACH, KING, MARQUEZ, STAPLETON
NOES:     NONE

ABSTAIN:     NONE

ABSENT:     NONE

ADJOURNMENT

At 8: 42 p.m.,  the Covina City Council/ Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment
Agency/Covina Public Financing Authority/Covina Housing Authority was adjourned in
memory of Janice Louise Ackert, Freda Nassar, Tabatha Neal, and Helen McMeekin Provinse to
its next regular meeting of the Council/Agency/Authority scheduled for Tuesday, April 5, 2016,
at 6: 30 p.m. for closed session and 7: 30 p.m. for open session inside the Council Chamber, 125
East College Street, Covina, California, 91723.

Respectfully submitted:

Sharon F. Clark, CMC

Chief Deputy City Clerk

Approved this
5th

day ofApril, 2016:

Kevin Stapleton, Mayor/Chair

COUNCIL/CSA/ CPFA/CHA MINUTES Page 6 of 6 March 22, 2016

14



ITEM NO. CC 2

1

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Payment of Demands

PRESENTED BY:      Dennis Swink, Interim Finance Director

RECOMMENDATION:      Approve Payment of Demands in the amount of$3, 428, 545. 71

BACKGROUND:

Attached is a list of warrants and demands which are being presented for approval and are
summarized as follows:

DATE OF DEMANDS DEMAND NUMBERS AMOUNT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS

Feb. 26- Mar. 17, 2016 Wires/EFTs 5082- 5088 671, 057.44

Checks 78701- 79056 2, 168,991. 78

PAYROLL

3/ 10/ 16 525, 286.68

VOIDS Checks 78657 4,334.00)

WORKERS COMPENSATION

2/ 29/ 16 345.20

3/ 1/ 16 26,692. 18

3/ 2/ 16 6, 123. 43

3/ 3/ 16 882. 73

3/ 4/ 16 1, 070.96

3/ 7/ 16 1, 543. 50

3/ 8/ 16 485. 25

3/ 9/ 16 17,494.97

3/ 10/ 16 4, 542. 76

3/ 11/ 16 2, 611. 72

3/ 14/ 16 23. 75

3/ 15/ 16 11. 00

3/ 16/ 16 3, 914.55

3/ 17/ 16 1, 801. 81

GRAND TOTAL:   3,428,545.71

DISCUSSION:

15



FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funding is available and the related costs are included in the Fiscal Year 15/ 16 Adopted Budget.

CEQA( CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

Respectfully submitted,

Dennis Swink

Interim Finance Director

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Check Register

16



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26- MAR. 17, 2016

Check#    Check Date Vendor Name Amount

5082 03/ 14/ 16 4160 ICMA 80. 00

5083 03/ 14/ 16 1405 ICMA RETIREMENT 5, 053.47

5084 03/ 14/ 16 4003 MidAmerica 2, 098.00

5085 03/ 14/ 16 2033 NATIONWIDE RETI 6, 000.00

5086 03/ 14/ 16 4223 ZUMWALT, KRISTI 886.00

5087 03/ 17/ 16 279 BANK OF NEW YOR 304,828. 13

5088 03/ 17/ 16 2955 US BANK 352, 111.84

subtotal EFT/ wires 671, 057.44

78701 03/ 02/ 16 3 12 MILES OUT.CO 1, 200.00

78702 03/ 02/ 16 23 ABORTA BUG INC 150.00

78703 03/ 02/ 16 26 ABSOLUTE SECURI 7, 548.96

78704 03/ 02/ 16 4374 ADMINSURE 5, 600.00

78705 03/ 02/ 16 51 ADVANCED BATTER 486.69

78706 03/ 02/ 16 63 AEG SOLUTIONS 78.69

78707 03/ 02/ 16 69 AFSCME 40.00

78708 03/ 02/ 16 4099 AHA CONSULTING 4,800.00

78709 03/ 02/ 16 91 ALAS, NINA 290.07

78710 03/ 02/ 16 113 ALL CITY MANAGE 11, 583. 15

78711 03/ 02/ 16 151 AMERICAN LIBRAR 500.00

78712 03/ 02/ 16 160 AMERICAN WEST C 50.00

78713 03/ 02/ 16 4117 ARTISTIC RECONS 218.75

78714 03/ 02/ 16 219 AT& T 29.03

78715 03/ 02/ 16 220 AT& T LONG DISTA 33. 43

78716 03/ 02/ 16 254 AZUSA LIGHT& W 227.27

78717 03/ 02/ 16 255 AZUSA PLUMBING 255.65

78718 03/ 02/ 16 269 BAKER AND TAYLO 628.95

78719 03/ 02/ 16 3981 BARBER, CHARLES 67. 20

78720 03/ 02/ 16 3771 BLACK& WHITE E 429.83

78721 03/ 02/ 16 4353 BREA, CITY OF 33,415.00

78722 03/ 02/ 16 423 BRUNSWICK COVIN 181. 06

78723 03/ 02/ 16 437 BURRO CANYON EN 150.00

78724 03/ 02/ 16 475 CALIBER POOL AN 2, 771. 51

78725 03/ 02/ 16 487 CaIPERS 6, 361.48

78726 03/ 02/ 16 568 CAT SPECIALTIES 1, 193. 81

78727 03/ 02/ 16 589 CELAYA, VERA FL 97. 60

78728 03/ 02/ 16 600 CERTIFIED UNDER 159. 61

78729 03/ 02/ 16 4320 CHALLENGER SPOR 178.50

78730 03/ 02/ 16 617 CHARTER OAK GYM 3, 245. 35

78731 03/ 02/ 16 618 CHARTER OAK HAR 34.84

78732 03/ 02/ 16 4303 CHRISTOF MUNOZ 1, 470.00

78733 03/ 02/ 16 649 CINTAS CORP# 69 497.75

78734 03/ 02/ 16 653 CITRUS AUTO UPH 304.45

78735 03/ 02/ 16 654 CITRUS CAR WASH 95. 20

78736 03/ 02/ 16 3546 COLUMBIA MEMORI 25.00

Attachment A Page 1 of 9

17



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26- MAR. 17, 2016

78737 03/ 02/ 16 710 COMMUNICATIONS 721.00

78738 03/ 02/ 16 3235 COOK, SHAWNA 963. 76

78739 03/ 02/ 16 749 COUNSELING TEAM 1, 200.00

78740 03/ 02/ 16 762 COVINA CHAMBER 15.00

78741 03/ 02/ 16 783 COVINA WATER 525.45

78742 03/ 02/ 16 791 CPCA 625.00

78743 03/ 02/ 16 807 CRITERION PICTU 795.00

78744 03/ 02/ 16 3982 CUGNO, CAROL A 253. 57

78745 03/ 02/ 16 849 DAPEER ROSENBLI 3, 069. 54

78746 03/ 02/ 16 4072 DE LEON, JUAN C 260.75

78747 03/ 02/ 16 878 DELTA DENTAL OF 122. 02

78748 03/ 02/ 16 3701 DEPARTMENT OF J 339.00

78749 03/ 02/ 16 896 DH MAINTENANCE 6, 696.64

78750 03/ 02/ 16 914 DISCOVERY SCIEN 150.00

78751 03/ 02/ 16 947 DUNN EDWARDS CO 296.25

78752 03/ 02/ 16 970 EDISON CO 8, 278.60

78753 03/ 02/ 16 3911 FACTORY MOTOR P 233. 38

78754 03/ 02/ 16 1055 FEDEX 29.99

78755 03/ 02/ 16 1092 FORENSIC NURSE 690.00

78756 03/ 02/ 16 1156 GAS COMPANY, TH 159. 52

78757 03/ 02/ 16 1180 GIAMMARCO, ANTH 466.90

78758 03/ 02/ 16 1235 GRAINGER 254.56

78759 03/ 02/ 16 1241 GRAND PRINTING 114. 23

78760 03/ 02/ 16 1312 HAWK INDUSTRY P 120.00

78761 03/ 02/ 16 1363 HOLLYWOOD BOWL 511.00

78762 03/ 02/ 16 3988 HYDRO CONNECTIO 15. 73

78763 03/ 02/ 16 1428 INGRAM DIST GRO 15. 82

78764 03/ 02/ 16 1429 INLAND EMPIRE S 886.75

78765 03/ 02/ 16 1463 J. G. TUCKER AND 40.71

78766 03/ 02/ 16 3749 JCL BARRICADE C 2, 713.91

78767 03/ 02/ 16 3654 JEREMIAH DONOVA 289.61

78768 03/ 02/ 16 1531 JW LOCK CO INC 43.33

78769 03/ 02/ 16 1571 KING BOLT CO 77. 90

78770 03/ 02/ 16 4220 KJ SERVICES ENV 720.00

78771 03/ 02/ 16 1578 KLYMKIW, MARIE 1, 343.00

78772 03/ 02/ 16 3721 KRIZIA N VIRBIA 157. 50

78773 03/ 02/ 16 3987 KYOCERA DOCUMEN 2, 080.34

78774 03/ 02/ 16 1609 LA CNTY COUNTY 9, 742.65

78775 03/ 02/ 16 1613 LA CNTY DISTRIC 131. 71

78776 03/ 02/ 16 1615 LA CNTY MTA 542. 50

78777 03/ 02/ 16 4341 Landcare 8, 772.49

78778 03/ 02/ 16 1663 LAW ENFORCEMENT 165.00

78779 03/ 02/ 16 3190 LAYNE, JONATHAN 448.01

78780 03/ 02/ 16 3209 LAYNE, SHARON 70.00

78781 03/ 02/ 16 1691 LEVEL 3 COMMUNI 1, 170.73

Attachment A Page 2 of 9

18



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26 - MAR. 17, 2016

78782 03/ 02/ 16 1694 LEWIS ENGRAVING 76. 30

78783 03/ 02/ 16 1707 LIEBERT CASSIDY 19,088.45

78784 03/ 02/ 16 4212 MALETZ, CHRISTI 265. 55

78785 03/ 02/ 16 1790 MANGIAPANE, JAM 157. 22

78786 03/ 02/ 16 3932 MAR, ARLENE D.   272. 30

78787 03/ 02/ 16 4089 MEASOM, DEVIN T 237. 55

78788 03/ 02/ 16 1933 MISSION LINEN S 143. 06

78789 03/ 02/ 16 1995 MSA- LA& OA CHAPT 465.00

78790 03/ 02/ 16 4302 MYRNA RODRIGUEZ 189. 46

78791 03/ 02/ 16 3718 NADENE VALDEZ 223. 10

78792 03/ 02/ 16 2091 0 REILLY AUTO P 320.22

78793 03/ 02/ 16 2100 OCLA- INDEPENDEN 559.28

78794 03/ 02/ 16 2104 OFFICE DEPOT 41. 38

78795 03/ 02/ 16 2104 OFFICE DEPOT 404.30

78796 03/ 02/ 16 4201 OFFICE TEAM 400.32

78797 03/ 02/ 16 99999 BOBBY SANTOS 10.52

78798 03/ 02/ 16 99999 DANIEL BARRAGAN 202.00

78799 03/ 02/ 16 99999 MARY ANN ZAMEL 35. 00

78800 03/ 02/ 16 2178 PALMA, DANNY 119. 50

78801 03/ 02/ 16 2183 PALOS SPORTS 202.37

78802 03/ 02/ 16 2189 PARADA, MIGUEL 425.21

78803 03/ 02/ 16 2238 PEST OPTIONS IN 95. 00

78804 03/ 02/ 16 2299 PRESENTA PLAQUE 241.72

78805 03/ 02/ 16 4213 PRISK, JOSHUA 224.00

78806 03/ 02/ 16 50 PROGREEN BLDG M 1, 543. 10

78807 03/ 02/ 16 2345 QUILL 61.46

78808 03/ 02/ 16 4101 RANCHO JAN ITORI 217.85

78809 03/ 02/ 16 2415 REPUBLIC MASTER 1, 027. 39

78810 03/ 02/ 16 2422 REXWAY ROOFING 537. 30

78811 03/ 02/ 16 2426 REYNOLDS BUICK 298.88

78812 03/ 02/ 16 3796 RICHARD, WATSON 4,030.96

78813 03/ 02/ 16 3655 ROBERT WONG 287. 86

78814 03/ 02/ 16 2542 SAN GAB VALLEY 25. 00

78815 03/ 02/ 16 2557 SANTA ANITA FAM 385.00

78816 03/ 02/ 16 3653 SARAH HSU 84.00

78817 03/ 02/ 16 2571 SBSD- EVOC TRAIN 400.00

78818 03/ 02/ 16 4106 SCHNEIDER, TINA 45. 50

78819 03/ 02/ 16 2607 SERESINGHE, Au 1, 170.75

78820 03/ 02/ 16 2612 SEVOLD, CHERYL 147. 00

78821 03/ 02/ 16 2660 SIMPLEX GRINNEL 1, 157.45

78822 03/ 02/ 16 2714 SOUTHERN CA GAS 575.00

78823 03/ 02/ 16 2719 SPARKLETTS 20. 12

78824 03/ 02/ 16 2744 STATE DISBURSEM 366.00

78825 03/ 02/ 16 3950 STERICYCLE, INC 295. 33

78826 03/ 02/ 16 3729 SUNBELT RENTALS 914.25

Attachment A Page 3 of 9

19



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26 - MAR. 17, 2016

78827 03/ 02/ 16 2787 SUTMAN, WILLIAM 30.80

78828 03/ 02/ 16 2804 TAG AMS INC 175.00

78829 03/ 02/ 16 2818 TAVANNA 264.60

78830 03/ 02/ 16 2846 THOMAS, TERRI 543.48

78831 03/ 02/ 16 2853 THYSSENKRUPP EL 1, 578.78

78832 03/ 02/ 16 2901 TRIFYTT SPORTS 247.50

78833 03/ 02/ 16 2935 UNDERGROUND SER 60. 00

78834 03/ 02/ 16 4247 UNITED WATER WO 979.71

78835 03/ 02/ 16 2966 V& V MANUFACTU 48. 94

78836 03/ 02/ 16 3234 VELARDE- KUBANIK 308.00

78837 03/ 02/ 16 2999 VERIZON CALIFOR 644.76

78838 03/ 02/ 16 3004 VICTORY EXTERMI 50.00

78839 03/ 02/ 16 3187 WAGONER, PAMELA 465.85

78840 03/ 02/ 16 3043 WARREN DISTRIBU 190.42

78841 03/ 02/ 16 3077 WEST LITE SUPPL 298. 50

78842 03/ 02/ 16 3102 WILLDAN FINANCI 2, 325.00

78843 03/ 02/ 16 3117 WONDRIES FLEET 60, 257.44

78844 03/ 02/ 16 3134 XEROX CORPORATI 816.73

78845 03/ 02/ 16 3152 YWCA 448.97

78846 03/ 09/ 16 32 ACE- 1 AUTO SERV 310.65

78847 03/ 09/ 16 44 ADAMSON INDUSTR 333. 54

78848 03/ 09/ 16 4209 ADLERHORST INTE 158.34

78849 03/ 09/ 16 3755 AIR RESOURCE BO 670.00

78850 03/ 09/ 16 4413 ALAMEDA PARK ST 4,000.00

78851 03/ 09/ 16 134 ALLSTATE POLICE 42. 48

78852 03/ 09/ 16 158 AMERICAN TRAFFI 15, 759. 19

78853 03/ 09/ 16 173 ANDY'S WELDING 70.00

78854 03/ 09/ 16 254 AZUSA LIGHT& W 145. 56

78855 03/ 09/ 16 255 AZUSA PLUMBING 165. 23

78856 03/ 09/ 16 346 BICKMORE 2, 250.00

78857 03/ 09/ 16 3771 BLACK& WHITE E 9, 992.42

78858 03/ 09/ 16 4279 BOSS JANITORIAL 6, 678. 10

78859 03/ 09/ 16 4353 BREA, CITY OF 28,755.00

78860 03/ 09/ 16 4307 BROADSPEC INC 30,000.00

78861 03/ 09/ 16 458 CA PUBLIC PARKI 135. 00

78862 03/ 09/ 16 470 CAL POLY POMONA 2, 625.00

78863 03/ 09/ 16 487 CaIPERS 27, 340.00

78864 03/ 09/ 16 4357 CASTELLANOS 162. 75

78865 03/ 09/ 16 568 CAT SPECIALTIES 141. 72

78866 03/ 09/ 16 580 CCAC 185.00

78867 03/ 09/ 16 649 CINTAS CORP# 69 989.77

78868 03/ 09/ 16 682 CLINICAL LAB OF 420.00

78869 03/ 09/ 16 692 CODE PUBLISHING 350.00

78870 03/ 09/ 16 710 COMMUNICATIONS 671. 59

78871 03/ 09/ 16 749 COUNSELING TEAM 1, 960.00

Attachment A Page 4 of 9

20



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26- MAR. 17, 2016

78872 03/ 09/ 16 762 COVINA CHAMBER 45. 00

78873 03/ 09/ 16 771 COVINA IRRIGATI 154,583. 55

78874 03/ 09/ 16 896 DH MAINTENANCE 5, 885.64

78875 03/ 09/ 16 4292 DUDEK 724.44

78876 03/ 09/ 16 947 DUNN EDWARDS CO 33. 96

78877 03/ 09/ 16 962 EAST DISTRICT S 235. 20

78878 03/ 09/ 16 962 EAST DISTRICT S 4,850.00

78879 03/ 09/ 16 970 EDISON CO 22, 203. 82

78880 03/ 09/ 16 4436 EDWARD A. QUESA 1, 588.34

78881 03/ 09/ 16 1025 EVANS, LISA 250.00

78882 03/ 09/ 16 1055 FEDEX 32.40

78883 03/ 09/ 16 1198 GLOBALSTAR LLC 53. 38

78884 03/ 09/ 16 4338 GOKOO, ROBERT 3, 658.00

78885 03/ 09/ 16 1204 GOLDEN STATE WA 228.64

78886 03/ 09/ 16 4434 GOVERNMENTJOBS.  19,980.00

78887 03/ 09/ 16 1232 GPSit INC 239.40

78888 03/ 09/ 16 1235 GRAINGER 1, 046.97

78889 03/ 09/ 16 1241 GRAND PRINTING 434.47

78890 03/ 09/ 16 3934 HF& H CONSULTA 1, 382. 50

78891 03/ 09/ 16 1361 HOLLIDAY ROCK C 1, 402. 86

78892 03/ 09/ 16 1387 HUNTER, JOHN L.       2, 241.25

78893 03/ 09/ 16 4349 Intelli-Tech 29, 270.22

78894 03/ 09/ 16 1437 INTER- CON SECUR 10,286.88

78895 03/ 09/ 16 1441 INTERSTATE BATT 501.29

78896 03/ 09/ 16 4433 JAIME YAMASHITA 12, 336.00

78897 03/ 09/ 16 3659 JMDIAZ 9, 626. 17

78898 03/ 09/ 16 3731 JUNIOR LIBRARY 96. 74

78899 03/ 09/ 16 1605 LA CNTY AUDITOR 26. 00

78900 03/ 09/ 16 1609 LA CNTY COUNTY 7, 107.41

78901 03/ 09/ 16 1612 LA CNTY DEPT OF 6, 579.60

78902 03/ 09/ 16 1614 LA CNTY FIRE DE 117, 968.00

78903 03/ 09/ 16 1615 LA CNTY MTA 20. 00

78904 03/ 09/ 16 1619 LA CNTY SHERIFF 1, 284.33

78905 03/ 09/ 16 1646 LANGUAGE LINE S 71.44

78906 03/ 09/ 16 1694 LEWIS ENGRAVING 20.44

78907 03/ 09/ 16 1707 LIEBERT CASSIDY 9, 062.00

78908 03/ 09/ 16 1754 LOWE' S COMPANIE 33. 05

78909 03/ 09/ 16 4424 MANFREDI, NICK 600.00

78910 03/ 09/ 16 1792 MANNING & MARDE 8, 321.46

78911 03/ 09/ 16 1829 MAUREEN KANE &     1, 516.00

78912 03/ 09/ 16 1867 MEDINA, FRANK 101. 34

78913 03/ 09/ 16 1924 MILLERS& ISHAM 481. 71

78914 03/ 09/ 16 1933 MISSION LINEN S 94.44

78915 03/ 09/ 16 1961 MOORE & ASSOCIA 685.00

78916 03/ 09/ 16 2027 NAPA AUTO PARTS 19.87

Attachment A Page 5 of 9

21



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26 - MAR. 17, 2016

78917 03/ 09/ 16 2091 O REILLY AUTO P 419. 30

78918 03/ 09/ 16 2104 OFFICE DEPOT 39. 20

78919 03/ 09/ 16 2104 OFFICE DEPOT 219.08

78920 03/ 09/ 16 4201 OFFICE TEAM 1, 768.08

78921 03/ 09/ 16 3913 OGS TECHNOLOGIE 62. 79

78922 03/ 09/ 16 99999 ANDREA MILLER 50.00

78923 03/ 09/ 16 99999 ANKA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 345.00

78924 03/ 09/ 16 99999 DAWN ZIROLI 58. 74

78925 03/ 09/ 16 99999 HUGO GUERRERO 319.00

78926 03/ 09/ 16 2163 PACIFIC PARKING 12, 939.21

78927 03/ 09/ 16 3614 PAPER RECYCLING 610.00

78928 03/ 09/ 16 4238 PETCO ANIMAL SU 143. 61

78929 03/ 09/ 16 2277 POLLARDWATER DO 56.03

78930 03/ 09/ 16 4429 PRO FORCE TEM POR 4,500.81

78931 03/ 09/ 16 2388 RC FIRE PROTECT 310.00

78932 03/ 09/ 16 2407 REGIONAL TAP SE 576. 18

78933 03/ 09/ 16 2415 REPUBLIC MASTER 669. 88

78934 03/ 09/ 16 2464 RODRIGUEZ, ADRI 105. 00

78935 03/ 09/ 16 2542 SAN GAB VALLEY 50.00

78936 03/ 09/ 16 2583 SCHWAAB INC 79. 30

78937 03/ 09/ 16 2614 SGV CITY MANAGE 30.00

78938 03/ 09/ 16 2619 SGV EXAMINER 495.00

78939 03/ 09/ 16 2660 SIMPLEX GRINNEL 786.00

78940 03/ 09/ 16 3852 SO CAL JUNGLE R 235.00

78941 03/ 09/ 16 2711 SOUTHEAST CONST 27. 14

78942 03/ 09/ 16 2737 STAPLES INC 1, 831.81

78943 03/ 09/ 16 3729 SUNBELT RENTALS 485.97

78944 03/ 09/ 16 2852 THREE VALLEY MU 9, 273. 30

78945 03/ 09/ 16 3185 TOSHIBA FINANCI 2, 065. 13

78946 03/ 09/ 16 4247 UNITED WATER WO 3, 215.97

78947 03/ 09/ 16 2954 URBAN GRAFFITI 3, 930.31

78948 03/ 09/ 16 2980 VARGAS, MONICA 32. 68

78949 03/ 09/ 16 2995 VENTEK INTERNAT 495.00

78950 03/ 09/ 16 2999 VERIZON CALIFOR 859.84

78951 03/ 09/ 16 3001 VERIZON WIRELES 810.86

78952 03/ 09/ 16 3004 VICTORY EXTERMI 25.00

78953 03/ 09/ 16 3014 VISION SERVICE 9. 53

78954 03/ 09/ 16 3043 WARREN DISTRIBU 1, 172. 70

78955 03/ 09/ 16 3070 WEST COAST ARBO 6, 958.00

78956 03/ 09/ 16 3077 WEST LITE SUPPL 154.20

78957 03/ 09/ 16 3078 WEST PAYMENT CE 295. 35

78958 03/ 09/ 16 4133 WESTERN A/ V 240.00

78959 03/ 09/ 16 3102 WILLDAN FINANCI 4,500.00

78960 03/ 09/ 16 4417 WILLIAM AVERY A 1, 184.66

78961 03/ 09/ 16 3132 WRIGHT DESIGNS 549.91

Attachment A Page 6 of 9

22



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26- MAR. 17, 2016

78962 03/ 09/ 16 3134 XEROX CORPORATI 499.09

78963 03/ 14/ 16 68 AFLAC 4,294.58

78964 03/ 14/ 16 69 AFSCME 780.00

78965 03/ 14/ 16 487 CaIPERS 65, 364.30

78966 03/ 14/ 16 3846 CLEA 490.00

78967 03/ 14/ 16 3846 CLEA 110.25

78968 03/ 14/ 16 775 COVINA POLICE A 2, 750.00

78969 03/ 14/ 16 789 COVINA- FSA, CIT 1, 070.02

78970 03/ 14/ 16 878 DELTA DENTAL OF 7, 870.29

78971 03/ 14/ 16 1247 GREAT WEST LIFE 4,245. 10

78972 03/ 14/ 16 3795 LEGAL SHIELD 252. 65

78973 03/ 14/ 16 2234 PERS 140,096.47

78974 03/ 14/ 16 2235 PERS LONG TERM 136.57

78975 03/ 14/ 16 2946 UNITED WAY OF G 17. 50

78976 03/ 14/ 16 3014 VISION SERVICE 792. 33

78977 03/ 14/ 16 4255 VOYA FINANCIAL 4,397.96

78978 03/ 14/ 16 3045 WASHINGTON NATI 76. 17

78979 03/ 16/ 16 11 A& B ELECTRIC 14,216.89

78980 03/ 16/ 16 26 ABSOLUTE SECURI 3, 693.24

78981 03/ 16/ 16 32 ACE- 1 AUTO SERV 259.39

78982 03/ 16/ 16 82 AIR- BREE HEATIN 1, 298. 10

78983 03/ 16/ 16 113 ALL CITY MANAGE 5, 507. 19

78984 03/ 16/ 16 159 AMERICAN WATER 255.00

78985 03/ 16/ 16 219 AT& T 29. 12

78986 03/ 16/ 16 219 AT& T 17. 32

78987 03/ 16/ 16 219 AT& T 17. 32

78988 03/ 16/ 16 219 AT& T 1, 872. 88

78989 03/ 16/ 16 238 AUTOMOTIVE TRAI 398.00

78990 03/ 16/ 16 269 BAKER AND TAYLO 24. 52

78991 03/ 16/ 16 283 BANK OF THE WES 7, 819. 34

78992 03/ 16/ 16 4279 BOSS JANITORIAL 3, 786.00

78993 03/ 16/ 16 437 BURRO CANYON EN 130.00

78994 03/ 16/ 16 492 CALIFORNIA WATE 164.00

78995 03/ 16/ 16 487 CaIPERS 1, 310.56

78996 03/ 16/ 16 543 Carter, Alan 33. 33

78997 03/ 16/ 16 572 CATHOLIC CHARIT 7, 532. 00

78998 03/ 16/ 16 634 CHEVRON PRODUCT 348.48

78999 03/ 16/ 16 649 CINTAS CORP# 69 168.62

79000 03/ 16/ 16 720 COMPUTER SERVIC 10,474.81

79001 03/ 16/ 16 815 CRRA 200.00

79002 03/ 16/ 16 4431 CURT PRINGLE&      20,000.00

79003 03/ 16/ 16 878 DELTA DENTAL OF 122. 02

79004 03/ 16/ 16 878 DELTA DENTAL OF 122. 02

79005 03/ 16/ 16 878 DELTA DENTAL OF 366.06

79006 03/ 16/ 16 880 DEMCO INC 129. 37

Attachment A Page 7 of 9

23



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26- MAR. 17, 2016

79007 03/ 16/ 16 970 EDISON CO 43, 113. 06

79008 03/ 16/ 16 4332 ERIC ARROYO 1, 350.00

79009 03/ 16/ 16 1075 FLEET SERVICES 110.24

79010 03/ 16/ 16 4393 FOREST LAWN MEM 4,041.85

79011 03/ 16/ 16 1156 GAS COMPANY, TH 2, 151.48

79012 03/ 16/ 16 1197 GLOBAL WATER MA 55, 858. 15

79013 03/ 16/ 16 1241 GRAND PRINTING 1, 543. 37

79014 03/ 16/ 16 1255 GRISWOLD INDUST 327. 22

79015 03/ 16/ 16 4367 HICKCOX, JOHN P 1, 700.00

79016 03/ 16/ 16 1361 HOLLIDAY ROCK C 1, 661.75

79017 03/ 16/ 16 1427 INGLEWOOD, CITY 3, 971. 31

79018 03/ 16/ 16 4077 INTERWEST CONSU 8, 202. 50

79019 03/ 16/ 16 1561 KEYSTONE UNIFOR 1, 117.64

79020 03/ 16/ 16 1614 LA CNTY FIRE DE 741, 702.45

79021 03/ 16/ 16 1663 LAW ENFORCEMENT 330.00

79022 03/ 16/ 16 1691 LEVEL 3 COMMUNI 1, 170.73

79023 03/ 16/ 16 1751 LOU' S GLASS HOU 490.50

79024 03/ 16/ 16 1895 MERRIMAC ENERGY 16, 203. 88

79025 03/ 16/ 16 1933 MISSION LINEN S 18.72

79026 03/ 16/ 16 4362 O' NEIL VENTURES 1, 625.00

79027 03/ 16/ 16 99999 DIANA SANDOVAL 24.75

79028 03/ 16/ 16 99999 ELVA ORTIZ 50.00

79029 03/ 16/ 16 99999 INGRID IBARRA 50.00

79030 03/ 16/ 16 99999 IRINA MILLER 14.89

79031 03/ 16/ 16 99999 JOSE ALFREDO CASTILLO 15.95

79032 03/ 16/ 16 99999 JUDITH ANN THIESS 25. 00

79033 03/ 16/ 16 99999 LORNA LO 70. 00

79034 03/ 16/ 16 99999 TINA LOUISE GUERRERO 21. 65

79035 03/ 16/ 16 4177 PETTY CASH 359.37

79036 03/ 16/ 16 2257 PHYSICIANS DESK 59. 95

79037 03/ 16/ 16 2309 PROFESSIONAL AC 538.00

79038 03/ 16/ 16 4416 R. A. REED ELECT 6, 801.99

79039 03/ 16/ 16 4228 RICHARD' S CUSTO 600.31

79040 03/ 16/ 16 3796 RICHARD, WATSON 25, 277. 74

79041 03/ 16/ 16 4350 RKA Consulting 29, 826.25

79042 03/ 16/ 16 2620 SGV NEWSPAPER G 1, 057.76

79043 03/ 16/ 16 2646 SHOWCASES 436.40

79044 03/ 16/ 16 2676 SMART AND FINAL 485. 10

79045 03/ 16/ 16 2711 SOUTHEAST CONST 51. 18

79046 03/ 16/ 16 4192 SOUTHERN CALIF 120.00

79047 03/ 16/ 16 2729 SPRINT 60.00

79048 03/ 16/ 16 2855 TIME WARNER CAB 557. 51

79049 03/ 16/ 16 2914 TUCKER TIRE 88.60

79050 03/ 16/ 16 2954 URBAN GRAFFITI 6, 000.00

79051 03/ 16/ 16 2999 VERIZON CALIFOR 591.40

Attachment A Page 8 of 9

24



CITY OF COVINA

Check Register

FEB. 26- MAR. 17, 2016

79052 03/ 16/ 16 3001 VERIZON WIRELES 2, 470.43

79053 03/ 16/ 16 3023 VULCAN MATERIAL 1, 124.04

79054 03/ 16/ 16 3085 WESTLAND CARPET 2, 097. 60

79055 03/ 16/ 16 3102 WILLDAN FINANCI 1, 998. 15

79056 03/ 16/ 16 3135 XO COMMUNICATIO 4,942. 76

subtotal checks 2,168,991. 78

subtotal payroll 525,286.68

subtotal voids 4,334.00)

subtotal workers' compensation 67,543.81

TOTAL checks/ EFTs 3, 428,545. 71

Attachment A Page 9 of 9

25



STATE OF CALFORNIA

ss:

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES   )

I, Dennis Swink, being first duly sworn, declare that I am the Interim Finance Director of

the City of Covina and have read the attached Register(s) of Audited Demands for the

City of Covina Accounts Payable for 2/ 26 — 3/ 17/ 16; payroll for 3/ 10/ 16; workers'

compensation and voids for 2/ 26 — 3/ 17/ 16;  know the contents thereof, and do certify as

to the accuracy of the attached demands and the availability of funds for their payment

pursuant to the Government Code Section 37202.

L

Dennis Swink

Interim Finance Director

26



ITEM NO. CC 3

01

r     `/>      SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
E

COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Payment of Demands

PRESENTED BY:      Dennis Swink, Interim Finance Director

RECOMMENDATION:      Approve Payment of Demands in the amount of$ 16, 626.80

BACKGROUND:  Attached is a list of warrants and demands which are being presented for
approval and are summarized as follows:

DATE OF DEMANDS DEMAND NUMBERS AMOUNT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS

Feb. 26- Mar. 17, 2016 Checks 1292- 1301 5, 582. 87

PAYROLL

Mar. 10, 2016 11, 043. 93

GRAND TOTAL:    16, 626. 80

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funding is available and the related costs are included in the Fiscal Year 15/ 16 Adopted Budget.

CEQA( CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

Respectfully submitte

Dennis Swink

Interim Finance Director

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Check Register

27



SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE

COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Check Register

Feb. 26 - Mar. 17, 2016

Check#      Check Date Vendor Name Amount

1292 03/ 02/ 16 254 AZUSA LIGHT& W 58.48

1293 03/ 02/ 16 970 EDISON CO 125.41

1294 03/ 09/ 16 766 COVINA DISPOSAL 81. 15

1295 03/ 09/ 16 1156 GAS COMPANY, TH 73. 34

1296 03/ 09/ 16 3796 RICHARD, WATSON 1, 482. 77

1297 03/ 16/ 16 572 CATHOLIC CHARIT 1, 500.00

1298 03/ 16/ 16 896 DH MAINTENANCE 95.00

1299 03/ 16/ 16 3796 RICHARD, WATSON 1, 897. 55

1300 03/ 16/ 16 2999 VERIZON CALIFOR 84. 51

1301 03/ 16/ 16 3135 XO COMMUNICATIO 184.66

subtotal checks 5,582.87

subtotal payroll 11, 043.93

TOTAL CHECKS/ EFT' s 16, 626.80

Attachment A Page 1 of 1

28



STATE OF CALFORNIA

ss:

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES    )

I, Dennis Swink, first duly sworn, declare that I am the Interim Finance Director of the

City of Covina and have read the attached Register( s) of Audited Demands for the

Covina Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency Accounts Payable for

2/ 26— 3/ 17/ 16 and payroll for 3/ 10/ 16; know the contents thereof, and do certify as to the

accuracy of the attached demands and the availability of funds for their payment pursuant

to the Government Code Section 37202.

Dennis Swink

Interim Finance Director

29



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

30



ITEM NO. CC 4

CITY OF COVINA

wok\ AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 16- 2054 amending
Section 17. 04.414.5 of Chapter 17. 04 to Title 17  ( Zoning
Ordinance)  of the Covina Municipal Code to prohibit the

cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City,  including the
cultivation by qualified patients, primary caregivers and persons
with identification cards.

PRESENTED BY:      Brian K. Lee, AICP, Director of Community Development

RECOMMENDATION:      Conduct second reading and adopt Ordinance No.  16- 2054,

amending Section 17. 04.414. 5 of Chapter 17. 04 to Title 17
Zoning Ordinance) of the Covina Municipal Code to prohibit the

cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City, including the
cultivation by qualified patients, primary caregivers and persons
with identification cards.

BACKGROUND:

On March 1, 2016, the City Council held a public hearing to consider the proposed Zoning Code
Amendment for prohibiting the cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City, including the
cultivation by qualified patients, primary caregivers and persons with identification cards.  There
was one comment from a member of the public who stated that the amendment to prohibit

medical marijuana dispensaries in the city is overly restrictive and that there are patients who are
bedridden and legitimately need the delivery of medical marijuana.  After the close of public

hearing, the City Council unanimously voted ( 5- 0- 0) to adopt Ordinance No. 16- 2054 approving
the Zoning Code amendment. Attachment B is the March 1, 2016, Agenda Report for Council
reference.

DISCUSSION:

The current definition of a medical marijuana dispensary ( CMC Section 17.04.414.5.) is as

follows:

A ` medical marijuana dispensary' means any facility, structure, vehicle, residence or
location, including any clinic, cooperative, club, store, business or group, which is used
in full or in part to dispense, sell, provide,  store, cultivate, trade,  exchange, barter,

transport,  deliver,  or in any way make available or arrange the dispensation,  sale,

provision, storage, cultivation, trade, exchange, barter, transport or delivery, of medical
marijuana to any person, firm, business, corporation, association, club, society, or other
organization or any owner, manager, proprietor, employee, volunteer, or salesperson
thereof,  whether such facility,  location or delivery service is independent from or

31



affiliated with any fixed facility or location in the city, where medical marijuana is made
available to, distributed by, sold or supplied to one or more of the following: ( 1) more

than a single qualified patient, (2) more than a single person with an identification card,

or (3) more than a single primary caregiver."

The exemptions shown in italics above are to be removed from the definition of " medical

marijuana dispensary" as shown in Ordinance No. 16- 2054.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

A second reading of the Ordinance is exempt from CEQA.

Respectfully su. mitted,

r   :e,B ANN'', t ireqs2r-of Community Development

ATTACHMENTS:

A.    Ordinance No. 16- 2054

B.    March 1, 2016 Agenda report, Item PH2 (without attachments)

32



ORDINANCE NO. 16- 2054

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA,     AMENDING SECTION 17.04.414.5     ( MEDICAL

MARIJUANA DISPENSARY) OF CHAPTER 17.04 ( DEFINITIONS) OF

TITLE 17  ( ZONING)   OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE TO

PROHIBIT THE CULTIVATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA BY ALL

PERSONS IN ALL ZONES IN THE CITY, INCLUDING CULTIVATION

BY QUALIFIED PATIENTS, PRIMARY CAREGIVERS AND PERSONS

WITH IDENTIFICATION CARDS, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION

OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS

FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City has initiated an amendment to the Covina Municipal Code to
remove the exemptions for individual users who cultivate marijuana for personal use in all zones

in the City (" Code Amendment").   Since 2013, the City has prohibited medical marijuana
dispensaries from operating in the City.  The City' s municipal code currently prohibits medical
marijuana cultivation, but exempts individual users who cultivate for personal use.   The City
now wishes to remove these exemptions and expressly prohibit medical marijuana cultivation

anywhere in the City.

SECTION 2. On February 9, 2016, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed
public hearing regarding the proposed Code Amendment, and following the receipt of public
testimony, closed the hearing and adopted Resolution No. 16- 004 PC, recommending that the
City Council adopt the proposed Code Amendment prohibiting marijuana cultivation in all zones
in the City.

SECTION 3.  The proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment is not subject to the
California Environmental Quality Act (" CEQA") because a) pursuant to Section 15060( c)( 2) of

the CEQA Guidelines ( California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3), the activity, which

involves amending the City' s regulations to remove the exceptions in the medical marijuana
dispensary definition, will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical
change in the environment; b) pursuant to Guidelines Section 15060( c)( 3), the activity is not a
project; and c) as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, it would not have a

potential for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.

SECTION 4.  Section 17. 04.414.5  ( Medical Marijuana Dispensary) of Chapter 17. 04
Definitions and Standards) of Title 17 ( Zoning) of the Covina Municipal Code is hereby

amended to read as follows:

A.     A  "medical marijuana dispensary"  means any means any facility,  structure,

vehicle, residence or location, including any clinic, cooperative, club, store, business or group,
which is used in full or in part to dispense, sell, provide, store, cultivate, trade, exchange, barter,

transport, deliver, or in any way make available or arrange the dispensation, sale, provision,
storage, cultivation, trade, exchange, barter, transport or delivery, of medical marijuana to any
person,  firm, business,  corporation, association,  club,  society,  or other organization or any

Attachment A

33



owner, manager, proprietor, employee, volunteer, or salesperson thereof, whether such facility,
location or delivery service is independent from or affiliated with any fixed facility or location in
the city, where medical marijuana is made available to, distributed by, sold or supplied.

B.       All terms used in this definition of medical marijuana dispensary, including but
not limited to " medical marijuana" shall be as defined in California Health and Safety Code
Section 11362. 5 et seq. and Business and Professions Code Section 19300. 5."

SECTION 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion
of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, the remaining portions of this Ordinance shall nonetheless remain in full force and
effect.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted each section, subsection,
sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions of this Ordinance be declared

invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 6.  Savings Clause.  Neither the adoption of this Ordinance nor the repeal or

amendment by this Ordinance of any ordinance or part or portion of any ordinance previously in
effect in the City or within the territory comprising the City, shall in any manner affect the
prosecution for the violation of any ordinance, which violation was committed prior to the
effective date of this Ordinance, nor be construed as a waiver of any license, fee or penalty or the
penal provisions applicable to any violation of such ordinances.

SECTION 7. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force and

effect at 12: 01 a.m. on the
31st

day after its passage.

SECTION 8. Certification.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of
this Ordinance and shall cause this Ordinance to be published within 15 days after its passage, in

accordance with Section 36933 of the Government Code.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this
5th

day of April, 2016.

City Council of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

Ordinance No. 16- 2054 Page 2 of 3

34



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Ordinance No. 16 - 2054 was introduced for first reading at a REGULAR meeting on the

1St

day
of March, 2016.  Thereafter, said Ordinance was duly approved and adopted at a REGULAR
meeting of said City Council on the

5th

day of April, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:      COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

Ordinance No. 16- 2054 Page 3 of 3

35



CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA REPORT ITEM NO. PH 2

MEETING DATE:     March 1, 2016

TITLE:    Public Hearing to Consider Zoning Code Amendment ( ZCA) 16-
001. a request to amend Section 17. 04. 414. 5 of Chapter 17. 04 to

Title 17 ( Zoning Ordinance) of the Covina Municipal Code to
prohibit the cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City.

including the cultivation by qualified patients, primary caregivers
and persons with identification cards.

PRESENTED BY:     Brian K. Lee, AICP, Director ofCommunity Development

RECOMMENDATION:      1.  Open the public hearing, receive public testimony and close the
public hearing; and

2.  Introduce for first reading Ordinance No. 16- 2054, amending
Section 17.04.414. 5 of Chapter 17. 04 to Title 17  ( Zoning
Ordinance) of the Covina Municipal Code to prohibit the

cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City, including the
cultivation by qualified patients,  primary caregivers and

persons with identification cards, and waive further reading.

BACKGROUND

Governor Brown recently signed into law the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act
MMRSA") which is comprised of three related bills: AB 243, AB 266, and SB 643 effective

January 1, 2016. One component of the MMRSA allows the State Department of Food and
Agriculture to be the sole licensing authority for medical marijuana cultivation applications
effective March 1, 2016, if a city does not have a land use regulation in place regulating or
prohibiting the cultivation of marijuana, either expressly or otherwise under the principles of
permissive zoning, or if a city chooses not to administer a conditional use permit program.

The deadline of March 1, 2016, does not give the city sufficient time to go through the regular
code amendment process to establish land use control regulating or prohibiting the cultivation of
marijuana without any exemptions.  As such, the City Council on January 19. 2016, adopted
Urgency Ordinance No. 16- 2053 ( Attachment No. A), prohibiting the cultivation of marijuana in
all zones in the city, including the cultivation by qualified patients, primary caregivers and
persons with identification cards. The Urgency Ordinance took effective immediately on January
19, 2016. Thereafter, on February 3. 2016. Governor Brown signed into law AB 21, where it
eliminates the requirement that cities have marijuana cultivation ordinances in effect by March 1.
2016, or face State pre-emption. This new law also states that a city is not limited or prevented
from exercising its police power authority. Because it is an Urgency Ordinance, AB 21 becomes
effective immediately, which eliminates the March 1. 2016 deadline.

ATWHMENT B

36



To follow through with the City Council- adopted Urgency Ordinance No. 16- 2053, staff initiated
the process for the Zoning Code Amendment ZCA 16- 001.  On February 9, 2016, the Planning
Commission conducted a public hearing to consider the proposed Zoning Code Amendment.
There were no written or verbal comments received before or at the hearing regarding the
proposed code amendment.   After the close of the public hearing, the Planning Commission
unanimously voted ( 5- 0- 0) to recommend approval of the Zoning Code amendment to the City
Council.  Attached for City Council reference is the February 9, 2016, Planning Commission
staff report as Attachment B.

DISCUSSION

In 2013, the City prohibited medical marijuana dispensaries from operating in the City.   In

August 2015, the City amended the definition of" medical marijuana dispensary" to clarify that
cultivation of marijuana"  is prohibited.    The current definition of a medical marijuana

dispensary( CMC Section 17. 04. 414. 5.) is as follows:

A ` medical marijuana dispensary' means any facility, structure, vehicle, residence or
location, including any clinic, cooperative, club, store, business or group, which is used
in full or in part to dispense, sell, provide, store, cultivate, trade, exchange, barter,

transport, deliver,  or in any way make available or arrange the dispensation,  sale,
provision, storage, cultivation, trade, exchange, barter, transport or delivery, of medical
marijuana to any person, firm, business, corporation, association, club, society, or other
organization or any owner, manager, proprietor, employee, volunteer, or salesperson

thereof,  whether such facility,  location or delivery service is independent from or
affiliated with any fixed facility or location in the city, where medical marijuana is made
available to, distributed by, sold or supplied to one or more of the following: ( 1) more

than a single qualified patient, ( 2) more than a single person with an identification card,

or (3) more than a single primary caregiver."

The current definition exempts from the prohibition individual users who cultivate for personal
use, as indicted in italics above.  Although the new law, AB 21 eliminated the March 1, 2016,

deadline, staff believes there is a need to amend CMC Section 17. 04.414. 5 to remove the

exemptions and expressly prohibit medical marijuana cultivation anywhere in the City by any
person. The exemptions shown in italics above are proposed to be removed from the definition of
medical marijuana dispensary" and as shown in Attachment D, Proposed Ordinance No. 16-

2054.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION

The proposed Zoning Code Amendment is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA") because a) pursuant to Section 15060( c)( 2) of the CEQA Guidelines ( California Code of

Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3), the activity, which involves amending the City' s regulations to remove
exceptions listed in the medical marijuana dispensary definition, will not result in a direct or reasonably
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; b) pursuant to Guidelines Section 15060( c)( 3),

the activity is not a project; and c) as defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed
Zoning Code Amendment is not a" project" for purposes of CEQA because it would not have a potential
for resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.

166

37



Respectfully submi ed,

1110.--...15011111111110

B e, ;. I  •, Di ector of Community Development

ATTACHMENTS:

A.    Urgency Ordinance No. 16- 2053
B.    February 9, 2016 Planning Commission Staff Report and Minutes
C.    Planning Commission Resolution No. 16- 004 PC recommending approval to City Council
D.    Assembly Bill 21
E.    Ordinance No. 16- 2054

167

38



ITEM NO. CC 5

it t°

CITY OF COVINA/
44 COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY/

ate:       
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE

COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:   April 5, 2016

TITLE:   Authorization of participation in the 2015 Continuum of Care ( CoC)

Program grant,  through the Los Angeles Homeless Services

Authority   ( LAHSA)   for supportive services,   operation and

administration of the Transitional House in Fiscal Year 16- 17.

PRESENTED BY:    Brian K. Lee, Director of Community Development
Nuala Gasser, Sr. Housing& CDBG Economic Development Manager

RECOMMENDATION:   a.   Adopt City Resolution 16- 7468 of the City of Covina

authorizing participation in the 2015 Continuum of Care ( CoC)
Program grant through the Los Angeles Homeless Services

Authority.
b.  Adopt Successor Agency Resolution 16- 003 supporting the City' s

participation in the 2015 Continuum of Care Program grant through

the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority.
c.   Adopt Authority Resolution 16- 002 of the Covina Housing

Authority supporting the City' s participation in the 2015

Continuum of Care Program grant through the Los Angeles

Homeless Services Authority.

BACKGROUND:

Since 2006, LAHSA has provided federal Supportive Housing Program ( SHP) grant funds for
supportive,  operating,  and administrative services at the Transitional House,  which was

purchased with Covina Redevelopment Agency Low and Moderate- Income Housing funds to
provide transitional housing for income qualified families.    With the dissolution of the

redevelopment agency in 2012, all housing rights, powers, assets, duties and obligations were
transferred to the Covina Housing Authority, the housing successor agency of the redevelopment
agency.

The City contracts with Catholic Charities of Los Angeles, Inc., to provide case management

services at the Transitional House.

The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 ( HEARTH
Act) amendea the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.  Among other changes, the

1

39



HEARTH Act consolidated the three separate McKinney-Vento homeless assistance programs
Supportive Housing program,   Shelter Plus Care program,   and Section 8 Moderate

Rehabilitation/ Single Room Occupancy program) into a single grant program known as the CoC
Program.   The Department of Housing and Urban Development expects that the change will
streamline administration of the programs, thereby increasing the efficiency and effectiveness
with which clients are housed and receive services.  The program is operating under an Interim
Rule until the Department of Housing and Urban Development finalizes the Rule.

DISCUSSION:

For fiscal year 2016- 2017, the 2015 SuperNOFA application will include proposed funding for a
one-year grant of $96,091.   Funds would provide supportive,  operating, and administrative
services for the Transitional House.  The grant and the matching funds must be expended over a
one- year period.  The grant requires that 25 percent of the funds expended be matched by the
applicant.  This cash match will be met by Successor Agency Housing Bond funds, as approved
through the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, and general funds for costs that are not
payable through Bond funds.  Five percent of the seven percent administrative budget will cover
some of the contractor administrative services; the remainder of the administrative budget will
cover a small portion of City staff costs.

LAHSA requires leverage for renewal programs.   Leverage includes all funds, resources, and

services that the applicant can secure on behalf of the client being served by the proposed
project.   It is intended that this requirement will be met through a combination of leverage
provided by the Housing Authority, Successor Agency, and City, as well as Catholic Charities of
Los Angeles, Inc.  City and Successor Agency leverage will include at least $ 30,000 for project
administration and City accounting department overview and IT services; $ 28, 800 in housing
subsidy is provided for residents and the resident attendant by the Housing Authority.

LAHSA processes the application for the Los Angeles region through the SuperNOFA.  As a

Continuum, LAHSA is now moving towards a performance-based approach to evaluating CoC
Program renewal projects as required by the CoC Program Interim Rule.  At a meeting of the
LAHSA Commission held July 24, 2015, the ranking criteria for the 2015 SuperNOFA were
approved. Applicants for transitional housing renewal projects are scored on:

HMIS participation

Bed utilization

Grant spend-down, and

Performance, as measured by exits to permanent housing, median length of stay, and
increased income from employment and other sources.

With an evaluation score of 100 percent, the McGill Transitional House is ranked 155 out of 213
in Tier 1.   Transitional housing is a Priority 3 ( out of 4) use.   Projects are prioritized in the

following order:

1.  Continuum-wide activities ( HMIS, Coordinated Assessment) and projects exempt from
evaluation

2.  Permanent housing renewal projects
3.  Transitional housing renewal projects
4.  New permanent housing projects

2

40



On March 11, 2016, LAHSA advised the City that conditional funding in the amount of$96,091
has been awarded.  See Attachment D.

Resolutions authorizing application for funds are attached as Attachments A, B, and C.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Matching funds will be provided through the Successor Agency Housing Bond Fund and non-
housing funds.   Approximately $ 28,600 in required matching funds will be expended in FY
2015- 2016.   $ 22, 000 will be appropriated from account S0554700- 53741, and $ 6,600 will be
appropriated from the general fund and will be available in account 10107400- 53741.  In-kind

funds will be provided through SADM4400- 50010.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

This activity will not result in a reasonably foreseeable change to the physical environment; it is
exempt from CEQA under State CEQA Guidelines 15061 ( b) ( 2) and ( 3) and does not constitute
a project.

Respectfully submitted,

4111
111111111k 1PIW

Bra,  
ee

r of Community Development

ATTACHMENTS:

A.    City Resolution
B.    Successor Agency Resolution
C.    Authority Resolution
D.    2016 Conditional Funding Notice

3

41



Attachment A
RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7468

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COVINA
AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE 2015

CONTINUUM OF CARE PROGRAM GRANT THROUGH
THE LOS ANGELES HOMELESS SERVICES AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority ( LAHSA) has prepared the
Los Angeles Continuum of Care 2015 SuperNOFA application, which includes funding for the
2016-2017 Continuum of Care ( CoC) Program, and

WHEREAS, the Transitional House Project is a project which provides transitional
housing with appropriate supportive services and is eligible for consideration under the grant,
and

WHEREAS, the City of Covina has been awarded conditional funding through the
NOFA conditional awards, and

WHEREAS, if awarded a grant, the City of Covina will enter into an agreement with
LAHSA for completion of the project, and

WHEREAS, the grant requires that 25 percent of the expended funds be matched, which

match will be provided mostly through housing bond funds, and

WHEREAS, the balance of the grant funds will be provided through general funds, and

WHEREAS, the City of Covina wishes to assist in the provision of affordable housing
opportunities by providing required funding as required under the CoC Program grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City of Covina is authorized to participate in the 2015 Continuum of
Care Grant under the 2015 SuperNOFA, to fund supportive, operating, and administrative
services at the Transitional House.

SECTION 2. The City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized and empowered to
execute all necessary applications, contracts, agreements, amendments, and payment requests

hereto for the purposes of securing grant funds, and to implement and carry out the purposes
specified in the grant application, including authorization of disbursement of matching funds.

SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

ATTACHMENT A Page 1 of 2

42



APPROVED and PASSED this 5th day of April, 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7468 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the 5th day of April, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

ATTACHMENT A Page 2 of 2

43



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 16-003

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE

COVINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR THE CITY

OF COVINA SUPPORTING CITY' S PARTICIPATION IN

THE 2015 CONTINUUM OF CARE PROGRAM GRANT

THROUGH THE LOS ANGELES HOMELESS SERVICES
AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority ( LAHSA) has prepared the
Los Angeles Continuum of Care 2015 SuperNOFA application, which includes funding for the
2016-2017 Continuum of Care (CoC) Program, and

WHEREAS, the Transitional House Project is a project which provides transitional

housing with appropriate supportive services and is eligible for consideration under the grant,
and

WHEREAS, the grant requires that 25 percent of the expended funds be matched, and

WHEREAS, the City of Covina has been awarded conditional funding through the
NOFA conditional awards, and

WHEREAS, if awarded a grant, the City of Covina will enter into an agreement with
LAHSA for completion of the project, and

WHEREAS, the budget for the Successor Agency (" Agency") for the Fiscal Year

commencing July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, will be considered for approval in June
2016, and

WHEREAS, the approved budget will be in accordance with all applicable ordinances of

the City and all applicable statues of the State, and

WHEREAS, funding for the period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, will be
requested on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 16- 17, and

WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to assist in the provision of affordable housing
opportunities by providing funding as required under the CoC Program grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COVINA

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Agency approves the City of Covina's participation in the 2015
Continuum of Care Grant under the 2015 SuperNOFA to fund supportive, operating, and
administrative services at the Transitional House.

ATTACHMENT B Page 1 of 2

44



SECTION 2. The Executive Director or her designee is hereby authorized and
empowered to implement and carry out the purposes specified in the grant application, including
authorization of disbursement of matching and in-kind funds.

SECTION 3.  The Secretary shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

APPROVED and PASSED this 5th day of April, 2016.

Successor Agency to the Covina
Redevelopment Agency of Covina,
California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Chair

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Agency Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, Successor Agency Counsel

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Secretary of the Successor Agency to the Covina Redevelopment Agency, do
hereby certify that Resolution No.  16- 003 was duly adopted by the Successor Agency to the
Covina Redevelopment Agency at a regular meeting held on the 5th day of April, 2016, by the
following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Agency Secretary

ATTACHMENT B Page 2 of 2

45



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 16- 002

A RESOLUTION OF THE COVINA HOUSING
AUTHORITY SUPPORTING CITY' S PARTICIPATION IN

THE 2015 CONTINUUM OF CARE PROGRAM GRANT
THROUGH THE LOS ANGELES HOMELESS SERVICES

AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority ( LAHSA) has prepared the
Los Angeles Continuum of Care 2015 SuperNOFA application, which includes funding for the
2016-2017 Continuum of Care ( CoC) Program, and

WHEREAS, the Transitional House Project is a project which provides transitional
housing with appropriate supportive services and is eligible for consideration under the grant,
and

WHEREAS, the grant requires that 25 percent of the expended funds be matched, and

WHEREAS, the City of Covina has been awarded conditional funding through the
NOFA conditional awards, and

WHEREAS, if awarded a grant, the City of Covina will enter into an agreement with
LAHSA for completion of the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COVINA HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The Authority approves the City of Covina's participation in the 2015
Continuum of Care Grant under the 2015 SuperNOFA to fund supportive, operating, and
administrative services at the Transitional House.

SECTION 2. The Executive Director or her designee is hereby authorized and
empowered to implement and carry out the purposes specified in the grant application.

SECTION 3. The Secretary shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and the same shall be effective upon its adoption.

SECTION 4.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

ATTACHMENT C Page 1 of 2

46



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of April, 2016.

Covina Housing Authority of Covina,

California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Chair

ATTEST:

ANDREA M. MILLER, Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, Authority Counsel

CERTIFICATION

I,  Andrea M.  Miller,  Secretary of the Covina Housing Authority,  do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 002 was duly adopted by the Covina Housing Authority at a regular meeting
held on the 5th day of April, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

ANDREA M. MILLER

Secretary of the Covina Housing Authority

ATTACHMENT C Page 2 of 2

47



111 00 11 March 2016

Ms. Andrea Miller

LAHSAA l i c p City Manager
JI

City of Covina
LOS ANGELES

125 E. College Street
HOMELESS

Covina, CA, 91723
SERVICES

AUTHORITY
Dear Ms. Miller,

On March 8, 2016, The US Department of Housing and Urban Development  ( HUD)

Peter Lynn announced the Fiscal Year 2015 Continuum of Care Program  ( CoC)  NOFA conditional
Executive Director

awards. We are pleased to inform you that the Transitional Housing project titled " Mcgill
Transitional House" has been awarded conditional funding in the amount of $96,091. You

Board of Commissioners can see the full award list for all California CoCs here (Scroll to CA- 600 to see the list of Los
Angeles CoC Awards).

Mike Neely
Chair

LAHSA' s Contracts Unit will be in touch with you shortly regarding your grant agreement
Shane Goldsmith

and subsequent contract with LAHSA. Rene Miyasato will be your Contract Specialist. Their
Vice Chair

phone number is ( 213) 225- 3349 and their email is rmiyasato@lahsa. org. If HUD has raised
any issues and conditions with your conditional award, your contracts specialist or another

Larry Adamson

LAHSA representative may be in touch with you regarding modifications that need to be
Sarah Dusseault made.

Noah Farkas

Please be advised that the deadline to submit your match documentation to LAHSA' s Fiscal
WendyGreuel Department is May 16, 2016 regardless of the start date of your project. Match letters must

Kerry Morrison be dated between March 8th and May 6th. If your award amount has increased, your match

requirement will also increase. The following links should help you in the process of
Owen Newcomer

submitting match documentation:
Booker Pearson

1. Match Documentation Requirement— Detailed description of the match requirement
Kelvin Sauls

from HUD.

2. Funder In- Kind MOU — Sample In- Kind match letter with annotated instructions

3. Funder Cash Match Certification —Sample Cash Match Funder Letter with annotated

Administrative Office
instructions.

4. Self-Certification Template  — Sample Cash Match Self Certification Letter with
811 Wilshire Blvd.

s" Floor
annotated instructions.

Los Angeles, CA 90017

Additionally, the regulations governing the HUD Continuum of Care ( CoC) grants ( formerly
known as the Supportive Housing Program  ( SHP)) require that subrecipients have an

213 683. 3333- PH

approved Cost Allocation Plan ( CAP) that describes the methodology by which your agency213 892. 0093- FX

will allocate common or shared costs across different programs operated by your agency.213 553. 8488- TY

www.lahsa. org

ATTACHMENT D Page 1 of 2

48



Section 3. B- Conditions Precedent of your CoC subrecipient contract requires the submission and
approval of your CAP prior to the execution of the contract.

In December of 2014 the Office of Management and Budget ( OMB) published new regulations in the
federal register known as the Uniform Administrative Requirements,  Cost Principles,  and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards.  The new regulations are codified at 2 CFR Part 200 and are also
known as the Uniform Guidance.   These regulations supersede and replace prior OMB circulars

governing grants to nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher learning.

Please be advised that you must submit a revised ( updated) Cost Allocation Plan ( CAP) for your 2015
CoC renewal grant( the renewal period that begins in 2016).

In order to assist you in correctly revising your Cost Allocation Plan, LAHSA has provided guidance for

your use in reviewing your CAP and correctly revising it to meet the standards in the new uniform
guidance.

Cost Allocation Plan Checklist

Please use this tool as a checklist to ensure that you have completed all the steps necessary to correctly
revise your CAP before submitting it to LAHSA.

Revised CAPs should be submitted via email directly to the following LAHSA finance staff:

Rhonda Wilson, Senior Subrecipient Finance Manager for the CoC Program

Email: rwilson@lahsa. org
Phone: ( 213) 225- 6539

With a copy to:

Yesica Leiva, Subrecipient Accountant

Email: yleiva@lahsa. org
Phone: ( 213) 683- 3344

Thank you for your continued commitment to ending homelessness in the Los Angeles Continuum of
Care.

Sincerely,

The LAHSA NOFA Team

ATTACHMENT D Page 2 of 2

49



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

50



ITEM NO. CC 6

C" ( O/

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Amendment to the Agreement between All City Management
Services, Inc. and the City of Covina for School Crossing Guard
Services.

PRESENTED BY:      Kim J. Raney, Interim Chief of Police
John Curley, Police Captain

RECOMMENDATION:      Approve the amendment to the current agreement between All

City Management Services, Inc. and the City of Covina for school
crossing guard services for the fiscal year 2016- 2017;  and

authorize the City Manager to execute the amended agreement.
This amendment continues the term of the initial agreement for
one year and reflects an increase in the hourly rate for crossing
guard services.

BACKGROUND:

On July 6, 2004, the Covina City Council approved contracting for school crossing guard
services with All City Management Services, Inc.   Since that time, All City Management
Services Inc. ( ACMS) has continued to provide uninterrupted school crossing guard services for
multiple schools of two different school districts in the City of Covina.  When searching for a

crossing guard provider, we looked for companies that exclusively specialize in that service.
ACMS was founded in 1985 and is the only private corporation specifically and exclusively

providing school crossing guard services in the nation. ACMS is currently the largest employer
of school crossing guards, with over 3, 000 Crossing Guards serving over 150 cities, counties and
school districts. Staff at the Police Department has found them to be a reliable and responsive

company that meets the needs of our City.

DISCUSSION:

After careful review and evaluation of the crossing guard industry, ACMS continues to emerge
as the only company that is appropriate for our needs. Some of the agencies they currently
contract with around Covina include El Monte, Walnut, Arcadia, Glendora, Rowland Heights,
Azusa, Los Angeles County (which covers all the surrounding unincorporated areas), La Puente,

Diamond Bar and Baldwin Park. ACMS has been providing excellent crossing guard service to
the City of Covina since 2004.

FISCAL IMPACT:

All City Management Services, Inc. has notified us that there will be an hourly price increase from
15. 69 per hour to $ 16.89 per hour for crossing guard services.

If approved, the expenditure for these services will be included in the Police Department' s 2016-
2017 annual budget under the account number 10101200 51430 in the amount of$ 118, 568.

51



CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):
None.

Respectfully submitted,

Kim Raney
Interim Chief of Police

ATTACHMENTS:

A.   Amendment to Agreement between All City Management Services, Inc. and the City of
Covina for providing School Crossing Guard Services.

52



ATTACHMENT A

lialZ ML CITY AflJNIC CERVICIE5

Amendment to Agreement between

All City Management Services, Inc. and the City of Covina
for providing School Crossing Guard Services

The City of Covina hereinafter referred to as the  " City",  and All City
Management Services, Inc., located at 10440 Pioneer Blvd., Suite 5, Santa Fe

Springs, CA 90670, hereinafter referred to as the " Contractor", mutually agree to

amend the existing Agreement as follows:

1.   The City and the Contractor agree to extend the term of this
Agreement for the 2016-2017 fiscal year beginning July 1,
2016 through June 30, 2017.

2.       Item # 13 The City agrees to pay Contractor for the services rendered
pursuant to the Agreement the sum of Sixteen Dollars and

Eighty- Nine Cents  ($ 16. 89)  per hour of Crossing Guard
services provided.   It is understood and agreed that

contractor's compensation shall not exceed One Hundred
Eighteen Thousand,    Five Hundred and Sixty-Eight
118,568.00) Dollars.

Except as provided for in Item # 13, all other terms and conditions of the original
Agreement and Amendments thereto between the City and the Contractor
remain in effect.

City of Covina All City Management Services, Inc.

By 4/By k

Signature Demetra '- rwell Corporate Secretary

Print Name and Title

Date Date March 7, 2016

53



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

54



ITEM NO. CC 7

1 < O '

1',,,  -     CITY OF COVINA

l`*..      ,
l     ,`  AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Extension of Covina' s Parking Enforcement Service contract with
Inter-Con Security Inc.

PRESENTED BY:      Kim J. Raney, Interim Chief of Police
John Curley, Police Captain

RECOMMENDATION:      Approve a one-year extension of the City' s Parking Enforcement
Service contract.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Covina entered into a one ( 1) year agreement with Inter-Con Security Systems Inc.
on July 1, 2012, with three ( 3) one-year options to extend.  The last extension will expire on

June 30, 2016. The current contract provides the Covina Police Department with one ( 1) full-

time parking enforcement officer working Mondays through Fridays from 8: 30 am to 5: 30 pm
and one ( 1) part-time parking enforcement officer working weekends from 8: 30 am to 5: 30 pm
for a total of 56 hours per week at a rate of$ 22. 17 per hour. It is important to note that overnight

parking enforcement is still performed by personnel employed by the Covina Police Department
and is not included in the current contract.

DISCUSSION:

The current contract with Inter-Con expires on June 30, 2016.  The Police Department would

need additional time to properly evaluate the effectiveness of the parking enforcement service;
specifically, to determine if parking enforcement activities are comparable with surrounding
cities in terms of staffing, number of citations, overnight parking deployment and fines collected
It is therefore staff' s recommendation to extend the existing contract with Inter-Con for a period
of one ( 1) year with no changes to the contract and authorize the city manager or her designee to
sign the extension contract. This would provide staff the opportunity to further review and
analyze the service in greater detail with the benefit of an overall service assessment. If the
service is determined to be beneficial and effective in providing parking enforcement to the city,
then staff may recommend that Inter-Con expand its service to also include parking enforcement
staffing for overnight parking as well in lieu of in-house staff.

If the above recommendation is not approved, then the contract would end on June 30, 2016,

leaving a void in the City' s parking enforcement efforts.  It would shift the burden of parking
enforcement to patrol/traffic staff who would be issuing parking citations in addition to handling
high priority calls for service.  This scenario would divert resources and be cost- inefficient.

55



FISCAL IMPACT:

The current contract with Inter-Con is approximately $ 60,000 per year.  If the parking enforcement
assessment determines the need to add overnight parking enforcement from Inter-Con, then a
proposal will be presented in a future agenda report with the appropriate cost analysis and

justification.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

None.

Respectfully submitted,

Kim Raney
Interim Chief of Police

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A:   Amendment No. 4 to Agreement with Inter-Con Security Systems, Inc. for Parking
Enforcement Services

56



ATTACHMENT A

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO AGREEMENT FOR PARKING

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN THE

CITY OF COVINA AND INTER-CON SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC.

This Amendment No. 4 is hereby entered into by and between the City of Covina,
a municipal corporation ( hereinafter referred to as  " CITY")  and Inter-Con Security
Systems, Inc. ( hereinafter referred to as " Inter-Con"), a California Corporation, with

respect to that certain Agreement for parking enforcement services between the parties
dated June 19, 2012 (" Agreement").

The parties agree as follows:

1.  Section 9 of the Agreement( Time) is hereby amended as follows:

The term of the contract will be extended for a one- year period, beginning July 1,
2016 through June 30, 2017.

2.  All the remaining terms and provisions of the Agreement are hereby reaffirmed.

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Amendment No.4 on the date
set forth below.

CITY OF COVINA INTER-CON SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC

By: By:
Andrea M. Miller, City Manager Neil Martau,   Chief Administrative

Officer

Dated: 2016

ATTEST:

Sharon F. Clark

Chief Deputy City Clerk

57



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

58



ITEM NO. CC 8

z'     CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Agreement with Pacific Parking Systems,  Inc.  for Parking
Machine Maintenance at the Metrolink West Parking Structure
and at the Civic Center( Downtown) Parking Structure

PRESENTED BY:       Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

RECOMMENDATION:      Authorize City Manager to execute the attached Agreement with
Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. for parking machine maintenance
services for a one-year term in an amount not-to- exceed $ 3, 750.

BACKGROUND:

On February 15, 2011, the City Council approved the purchase of four pay-and-display parking
meters for the Metrolink West Parking Structure from Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. (PPSI). The

decision to purchase the parking meters was based on operational difficulties associated with the
existing pay-by- space parking meters,  experienced by Covina Police Department Parking
Enforcement personnel, Public Works Department Transportation Section staff, and Metrolink
commuters.  PPSI was identified and selected by staff after evaluating proposals submitted by
respondents in response to a request for proposals ( RFP) distributed on November 18, 2010 for

pay-and-display parking meters.

On March 9, 2011, four pay-and-display parking meters manufactured by VenTek International
were purchased from PPSI for an amount of$37,616.77.  At the time of the initial procurement,

an extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement was included with each of the
parking meters for a one- year term, effective between March 11, 2011 and March 10, 2012.  The
extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement provided coverage for replacement
of faulty components and field service calls at no charge, quarterly preventative maintenance,
machine programming changes, and technical phone support for each of the parking meters.
Due to an exclusive agreement between PPSI and VenTek International, PPSI is the sole
provider of preventative maintenance services for parking meters using the VenTek system in
the Southern California region.

On January 4, 2012, a notice was provided to the City of Covina from PPSI offering to renew
the extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for a one- year term upon
expiration on March 11, 2012.  Transportation Section staff accepted the contract renewal and

payment was approved for an invoice dated January 17, 2012.  The renewed contract term was

effective between March 11, 2012 and March 10, 2013 at a unit price of$ 750 per parking meter,

totaling $3, 000 for four parking meters.

On January 2, 2013, a notice was provided to the City of Covina from PPSI offering to renew
the extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for a one- year term upon

59



expiration on March 11,  2013.    On February 19,  2013,  the City Manager authorized an
Agreement to be entered between the City of Covina and PPSI to renew the extended warranty
and preventative maintenance services for the four parking meters at the Metrolink West Parking
Structure, effective between March 12, 2013 and March 12, 2014 at a unit price of $750 per

parking meter, totaling $3, 000 for four parking meters.

On December 30, 2013, a notice was provided to the City of Covina from PPSI offering to
renew the extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for a one-year term upon
expiration on March 11, 2014.  Transportation Section staff accepted the contract renewal and

payment was approved for an invoice dated January 3, 2014.  The renewed contract term was

effective between March 11, 2014 and March 10, 2015 at a unit price of$750 per parking meter,

totaling $3, 000 for four parking meters.

On July 24, 2014, a notice was provided to the City of Covina from PPSI indicating the
extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for one parking meter at the
Downtown Parking Structure had expired.    The parking meter at the Downtown Parking
Structure was purchased on March 2, 2009 from PPSI prior to the purchase of the parking

meters at the Metrolink West Parking Structure and had not been added to the previous extended
warranty and preventative maintenance agreements.    PPSI offered to renew the extended

warranty and preventative maintenance agreement, but prorated for seven months, to coincide
with the contract expiration date of the four meters located at the Metrolink West Parking
Structure set for March 11, 2015.  Transportation Section staff accepted the contract renewal and

payment was approved for an invoice dated August 5, 2014.  The contract term was set to be

effective between August 5, 2014 and March 10, 2015 at a unit price of$750 per parking meter,

prorated seven months, totaling $437.50 for one meter.

On January 5, 2015, a notice was provided to the City of Covina from PPSI offering to renew
the extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for a one- year term upon
expiration on March 11, 2015 for the four parking meters at the Metrolink West Parking
Structure and the one parking meter at the Downtown Parking Structure.  Transportation Section
staff accepted the contract renewal and payment was approved for an invoice dated January 8,
2015.  The renewed contract term was effective between March 11, 2015 and March 10, 2016 at
a unit price of$ 750 per parking meter, totaling $3, 750 for five meters.

DISCUSSION:

On January 4, 2016, a notice was provided to the City of Covina from PPSI offering to renew
the extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for a one-year term upon
expiration on March 11, 2016 for the four parking meters at the Metrolink West Parking
Structure and the one parking meter at the Downtown Parking Structure.   Since the parking

meters are the City' s only method of payment collection and to issue permits for non-monthly
permit holders, it is important that the parking meters are always in good operating condition.
Renewal of the extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement ensures the parking
meters are fully functional and provides the City with the necessary support in the event of a
malfunction.

Upon authorization of the agreement, PPSI will extend the warranty and provide preventative
maintenance services for a term of one- year, commencing on April 5, 2016 and expiring on
April 6, 2017 at a unit price of$750 per parking meter, totaling $3, 750 for five meters.

60



FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact associated with the agreement with PPSI for parking machine maintenance services is
3, 750.   The parking meters at the Metrolink West Parking Structure are eligible to be funded by

Proposition A funds from the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority ( Metro) and
sufficient funding has been budgeted under the Department of Public Works budget ( account nos. 2400-
TO01- 52480 and 2400-TO01- 52422) to fund four meters at a cost of$ 3, 000.  The parking meter at the
Downtown Parking Structure is ineligible for Proposition A funds since it does not directly support public
transit use, whereas the Metrolink West Parking Structure does, for Metrolink commuters.   However,

sufficient funding has been budgeted under the General Fund for Parking Control Maintenance ( account
no. 1010- 1300- 52490) to fund one meter at a cost of$750.

CEQA( CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

The project has been reviewed for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA) and is exempt per Section 15061 ( b) ( 3).  The project is covered by the General Rule

that CEQA applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in
question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.

Respect ly?

Amid,
Alt

Siobhan Foster

Director of Public Works

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Purchase Agreement with PPSI for Parking Meter at Downtown Parking
Structure, dated February 27, 2009
Attachment B: Request for Proposals for Pay and Display Parking Meters, dated November 18,
2010

Attachment C: Agenda Item Commentary for Purchase of Four Parking Meters, Approved by
City Council on February 15, 2011
Attachment D: Purchase Agreement with PPSI for Four Parking Meters at Metrolink West
Parking Structure, dated March 9, 2010
Attachment E: Notice and Agreement with PPSI, dated January 4, 2012
Attachment F: Professional Services Agreement with PPSI, Approved by City Manager on
February 19, 2013
Attachment G: Notice and Agreement with PPSI, dated December 30, 2013

Attachment H: Notice and Agreement with PPSI, dated July 24, 2014
Attachment I: Notice and Agreement with PPSI, dated January 5, 2015
Attachment J: Professional Services Agreement with PPSI

61



ORDER ACCEPTANCE/NOTICE TO PROCEED

TO: PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.       DATE:   02127/2009

216 C Technology Drive
Irvine, CA 92618
949) 453-9898 ( 949) 453-9695 Fax

SHIP TO:   ESTIMATED DELIVERY

City of Covina From receipt

Alex Gonzalez, Management Analyst of order.    1- 2 Weeks

Transportation Division

125 East College Street TERMS:     N30

Covina CA 91723
A P.O.B.    SHIP VIA I    RENCE:

Glenn Mosemen Destination Surface Freight

QTY FART NO. DESCRIPTION PRUNIT AMOUNT

1 VG004 NEW 2009 Model-400 Fiat Rate Pay& Display Permit 8,550 00 8,550 00

Machine w/Stacking BILI Acceptor, Coin Acceptor, Thermal
Printer Windows Based Software Platform 110 VAC.

1 7062 Pedestal Base 425 00 425 00

3 00-000 Roll Thermal Pa And Display Paper 0 00 0 00

1 LABOR Mount Pay Station To Pedestal Base And Place Into 0 00 0 00

Service

Sub-Total 8,975 00

8.25% Sales Tax 740 43

Freight 0 00

Total 9,718 43

TRAINING All On-Site Training On Operation, Maintenance, Auditing,
Etc. Is Included At No Additional Charge.

WARRANTY One-Year Field& Shop Labor, One-Year Parts

ACCEPTED PER ABOVE/NOTICE TO PROCEED:

SIGNATURE;    3 eAp
BY:      AN 6011k Z.
DATE:  3/,Z/ 09

Attachment A , 1 Page

62



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

PAY AND DISPLAY PARKING METERS

PROJECT T- 1014

City of Covina Public Works Department
Covina, California

November 18, 2010

A. PURPOSE

The City of Covina Public Works Department is seeking proposals for furnishing all materials and
equipment for four( 4) pay and display, cash only, stand alone parking meters to be installed at the City of
Covina Metrolink West Parking Structure at 559 N. Citrus Avenue in the City of Covina.

If your company is interested in submitting a proposal with company qualifications, please submit it to:

Alex Gonzalez, Senior Management Analyst

City of Covina Public Works Department
do City ofCovina, City Clerk
125 E. College Street

Covina, CA 91723

The proposal/qualifications must be submitted before 3: 00PM on December 16. 2010.

While price will be a consideration in the selection of the vendor, it will not be the only consideration.
The City of Covina Public Works Department will select the vendor that it feels is best qualified overall
to provide the materials and equipment requested.  Vendors should detail warranty provisions and discuss
their service and maintenance programs in the proposal.  It is the intent of the City of Covina Public
Works Department to award a contract to the most qualified vendor provided the proposal has been

submitted in accordance with the requirements of the solicitation documents, is judged to be reasonable,

and does not exceed the funds available.

The City of Covina may waive informalities and irregularities in a proposal received and accept a
proposal if, in the City' s judgment, it is in the City' s best interests.  Any protest of award must be filed
with the City within seven( 7) calendar days of the notice of intent to award, pursuant to CMC 3. 04.

The complete RFP may be found at the City of Covina website www.covinaca. gov under the following
subheadings:   Departments — Public Works — Transportation — Programs and Resources; or may be
ordered by contacting Alex Gonzalez,  Senior Management Analyst,  at  ( 626)  384- 5519 or

agonzalezna,covinaca.gov.   The City of Covina is open Monday through Thursday from 7: 00AM to
6: 00PM PST.

ALL ENVELOPES MUST BE SEALED AND PLAINLY MARKED ON THE OUTSIDE
SHOWING THE DATE, NAME OF THE VENDOR, AND THE PROJECT NUMBER ( T- 1014)

PURCHASE OF PAY AND DISPLAY PARKING METERS"  REPRESENTED BY THE

ENCLOSED MATERIAL

Attachnnent B, 1 Page

63



X   '+'
roaOti vote

oAdopled Resolution No.

olntmducedlAdopted Ordnance No.

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA ITEM COMMENTARY

MEETING DATE:   February 15, 2011 ITEM NO.:   CC 10

4,\,STAFF SOURCE:    Steve Henley, Public Works Director
Alex Gonzalez, Senior Management Analyst

ITEM TITLE: Approve Purchase of Four Pay-by-Space Parking Meters for Metrolink
West Parking Structure

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve purchase of four pay-by-space parking meters for Metrolink West Parking Structure
from Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. using$ 36,600 of Proposition A funds.

FISCAL IMPACT

The project was included in the FY 2010-2011 budget with  $45,000 in Proposition A

transportation funds dedicated, therefore there is no General Fund impact.

BACKGROUND

History of Current Pay-by-Space Parking System

In August 2007, a meeting with Covina Police Department Parking Enforcement staff and
Transportation Section staff noted operational difficulties with the existing pay-by-space parking
permit system that included:   input errors from Metrolink commuters that created situations

where commuters purchased incorrect parking spaces and system errors and malfunctions that
complicated parking enforcement activities and resulted in a high number of parking citation
appeals.  Transportation Section staff began to track customer service issues with the pay-by-
space parking system in September 2007 after the Parking Enforcement and the Information
Technology staff noted their operational issues with the existing parking system. The following
customer service issues were identified over time through site observation and conversations
with Metrolink commuters:

Metrolink commuters were often in a rush to walk across the street to catch their train,

and commuters resented having to input their parking space number into the system on
a daily basis.  Commuters that purchased a monthly permit through the pay-by-space
system stated repeatedly that they felt that requiring the input of their parking space
into the system daily was a tactic that the City employed to increase citation revenue.
Commuters felt that the purchase of a monthly parking permit should exempt them
from entering their parking space into the system daily. However, that option is not
available with a pay-by-space parking system.

Attachment C, 6 Pages

64



Metrolink commuters arrive in groups timed to the train departure schedule.  Lines

were common at the pay-by- space machines since all commuters had to pay and/or
enter their parking space when parking.  Citations were regularly issued to commuters
that had to face the choice of entering their parking space or missing their train.  Once

again, commuters regularly complained that the City installed a parking system that
was intended to increase citation revenue.

The current system does not visually report to the customer when a credit card is
declined, resulting in commuters believing that they have paid for a parking space
when they have not.

Over time,  some commuters learned that they could avoid paying for parking by
entering their space number and stepping away from the machine without completing
the transaction, the next person would inadvertently pay for their space if they did not
cancel the transaction before entering payment.

As a result of these initial investigations, a pay-and-display monthly permit was introduced at the
Metrolink West structure in November of 2007 to allow monthly parking permit purchasers the
ability to bypass the pay-by-space system.   By February of 2008, three-quarters of Metrolink
West monthly parking permit purchasers had transitioned to the pay-and-display monthly permit.
However, commuters continued to report that they were unhappy that they had lost the ability to
auto-debit payment onto a credit card as the pay-by- space system allowed.  This concern was
addressed with the introduction of ParkCovina.com in 2009, which allowed commuters to
purchase a pay-and-display permit online using credit card auto debit in a secure environment.

In the Fiscal Year 2008- 2009 budget, the Transportation Section received funding authorization
for the removal of the pay-by-space parking system at the Metrolink West Parking Structure and
replacement with a staffed parking attendant and gate control.  However, in investigating the
project costs and vehicle parking volumes, it was found that it was not appropriate to introduce
staffed gate control arms at the parking structure until the surrounding properties were developed
and parking demand necessitated the installation of a gate control system.

In 2010, it was found that the current pay-by-space system did not meet PCI SSC ( Payment Card
Industry Security Standards Council) compliant standards for credit card processing, placing
commuter credit card information at risk of identity theft.  The cost of making the current system
PCI compliant is prohibitive in comparison to the purchase of new machines, and as a result all
remaining Metrolink monthly parking permit purchases that remained in the existing pay-by-
space system were transitioned to the secure interne environment of ParkCovina.com.

RFP Process and Decision to Install a Pay-and Display System

A request for proposals ( RFP) for pay-and-display parking meters was developed and distributed
on November 18, 2010.  After the RFP was released, the Covina Police Department noted their
desire for the purchase of parking meters that will: 1) eliminate cash collection in the field and 2)
also have the ability to share data across future parking enforcement technology platforms.

65



All of the companies that responded to the RFP have the ability to install a parking meter that
does not collect cash, and the Transportation Section defers to the Police Department on the
purchase of parking meters that will eliminate the collection of cash in the field by Police
Department staff.

Regarding parking meter integration with future parking enforcement technology platforms; pay-
and-display parking meters do not have the ability to integrate with parking enforcement
handhelds. In a pay-and-display system a parking permit is purchased at the machine and then
displayed on the dash of the vehicle.   There is no identifying information that the purchaser
inputs into the parking system( such as a parking space number) upon the purchase of the permit,
and a visual inspection of the vehicle by a parking enforcement officer is necessary to determine
if the vehicle has purchased a valid permit. In comparison, an advanced pay-by-space system can
provide parking enforcement officers the ability to receive real- time notifications of expiring
parking meters or invalid parking permits on their handheld devices.

Based on the history of the location and the customer feedback that has been received over the
years on the existing pay-by-space system, the Transportation Section does not recommend the
purchase of another pay- by-space system.  In addition, a pay-by-space system is not appropriate
for the existing parking patterns at the location.

The current users of the Metrolink West Parking Structure park their vehicles on a long-term
basis while they are at work, eliminating the need for parking enforcement officers to receive
real-time information on expiring parking spaces to guide their parking citation activities. A pay-
by-space system that integrates with parking enforcement handhelds is appropriate for a high-
turnover parking area such as a busy retail district, where the technology would allow the parking
enforcement officer to focus their citation activities on the electronically transmitted expiration
times of parking spaces instead of repeatedly touring the area and applying chalk to vehicle tires.
The additional cost of investing in a pay-by- space system with these capabilities is not
appropriate at Metrolink West. An appropriate future parking system upgrade at the location
would be gate control arms if the adjacent properties were developed.

Customer Feedback on Parking Systems

In order to make decisions that improve customer service, a survey was distributed to 579
Metrolink commuters ( 181 responses / 31% response rate) that are current parking permit
customers as of January 26, 2011.

Regarding the use of a pay-by- space system, the survey reported that 81. 3% of respondents were

opposed to a parking system that requires a customer to enter a parking space.  This result is not

surprising considering the history of the existing pay- by-space parking system at Metrolink West.

Regarding the importance of the use of cash as payment at a parking machine, results were
mixed;  with 51. 4% reporting that the use of cash was either not important or somewhat
important, and 48.7% reporting that the use of cash was either important or very important.

66



Currently, an average of 103 daily transactions occur at the Metrolink West parking structure
with 65% of those transactions paid in cash.  The vast majority of sales at Metrolink West occur
as monthly parking permits sold online, not daily parking transactions on site, and staff considers
it appropriate to eliminate the small number of daily cash transactions to protect the safety of
Parking Enforcement personnel that currently collect cash in the field.  The elimination of cash

collections would also simplify parking meter operations leading to reduced service calls and
would eliminate the need to stock machines with change funds.

RFP Results

Four responses were received to the Request for Proposals from:  Digital Payment Technologies

of Burnaby, British Columbia, Canada for the LUKE pay-and-display station that is constructed
in Canada; Duncan Solutions of Milwaukee, Wisconsin for the MX pay-and- display station that
is constructed in Australia;  Pacific Parking Systems of Irvine, California for the VenTek Model
400 constructed in Petaluma, California; and Secom International of Los Angeles, California for
a pay-and-display station constructed in Los Angeles.

The proposals were evaluated in four key areas: PCI compliance, ease of customer use, extended
warranty terms,  full service proposed by a local service provider,  cost of machine and
installation, cost of full service maintenance program and client references on machine reliability
and service response.  The RFP stated that while price would be a.consideration in the selection,
it would not be the only selection.

Transportation Section staff entered the RFP process with four primary objectives for the
procurement:  PCI compliance, Pay-and-Display, clear warranty provisions, and a local service
provider that would be able to repair machines within 24 hours without drawing on the City' s
Information Technology resources.  The Police Department added a requirement that the system
eliminate cash collection in the field by Police Department staff.

All four machines were found to meet the following standards:  PCI compliant with certifications
by independent testing agencies and Pay-and- Display technology.

Three of the four machines were used in the field by Transportation Staff:   Digital Payment

Technology' s LUKE system on Brand Avenue in Glendale, Pacific Parking' s VenTek systems at
West Covina City Hall, the Covina Police Department and the Covina Downtown Parking
Structure, and Secom' s system in the South College Parking Lot in Covina.   The nearest

available Duncan Solutions MX system was noted in Duncan' s proposal in Las Vegas, Nevada;
so Transportation staff tested Duncan Solutions VM system on Sunset Avenue in Los Angeles. It
was noted that all four systems had similar capabilities and system use was not an issue if the
posted directions were followed.

Warranty provisions for the Pacific Parking and Secom proposals were clear and concise.
Warranty provisions for the Digital Payment Technology and Duncan Solutions proposals
contained legal provisions and limitations that required additional clarification.

67



Machine service and maintenance with the use of a local service provider required further
clarification from Digital Payment Technologies and Duncan Solutions,  whose proposals
recommended City staff repair the machines and ship faulty parts out of state for repairs.  When

the City' s desire to have a local service provider repair the machine within 24 hours was clarified
with Digital Payment Technologies and Duncan Solutions, both stated that arrangements could
be made to contract with a local service provider, but only Digital Payment Technologies
submitted costs and details for such a proposal as a response to the City' s inquiry.

Both Secom and Pacific Parking are locally based in Southern California with service technicians
than can reply within 24 hours, according to the proposals.  Based on previous experience with
both companies, since the City of Covina has direct experience with the service quality of both
vendors, Pacific Parking has provided the City consistent service with same- day service response
times ofjust a few hours.  Secom also provides local service to the City, but service has required
multiple calls on a number of instances to properly repair an issue.  Secom service technicians
generally respond within 48 hours to service calls and do not provide same-day service.  Pacific

Parking has a significant service presence in the area, with three local service technicians in the
field and service contracts with the following San Gabriel Valley cities: Alhambra, Arcadia,
Covina, Pasadena, San Gabriel, South Pasadena, Temple City and West Covina.

Cost breakdowns for the four proposals are included in Exhibit A.

Staff recommends the award of procurement to Pacific Parking Systems, based on the history of
service provided by local service technicians to the City of Covina, the local service resources
that the City has at its disposal, and the clear service and warranty sections included in the
proposal.

EXHIBITS

A. Procurement Summary

REVIEW TEAM ONLY

City Attorney:    Finance Director:      D/
City Manager:    Other:

68



Exhibit A:

Procurement Summary
Pay- and-Display Parking Meters

DIGITAL PAYMENT PACIFIC PARKING DUNCAN
SECOM TECHNOLOGIES SYSTEMS SOLUTIONS

Initial Cost      $ 6, 800.00 x 4  =       7,537.84 x 4  = 9, 150.00 x 4= 8,320.00 x 4  =
of Unit 27,200.00 30, 151. 36 40, 168. 00 33, 328.00

4 machines  =
Cost of 4 machines  =     6,217.00+$ 1, 100 Installation included 4 machines  =
Installation 780.00 shipping in unit price 5, 500.00

Total Cost 27,980.00 37,468.00 40, 168.00 38,780.00
Total

Cost/ Unit 6,995 9,367_       10,042 9,695

6,480/year 163 per hour+ parts No maintenance costs
Maintenance plus parts _   $ 4,400 year parts warranty 2,200.00/year detailed

EXHIBIT A- 1 OF 1

69



I: II Y or t,; vvINA4 14928
PURCHASE ORDER

All invoices and
W'

delivery slips' must
bear this Order No.

Vendor: 
Pacific Parking Systems Inc.     Date 03/ 09/ 10

216 C Technology Drive
Irvine, CA 92618

Dept'       
Public Works

Div.
949) 453- 9898 Transportation Div.

949) 453- 9595 fax Vendor No.

VENDOR FED. I. D. NO.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

Ship To: Alex Gonzalez, Sr. Mgnt. Analyst
Invoices must be made in duplicate to

CITY OF COVINA
City ofCovina— Public Works

and forwarded to the Finance Department,
125 E. College St.    125 E. College Street
Covina, CA 91723 Covina, California 91723

626) 384- 5519 ALL FREIGHT CHARGES

MUST BE PREPAID

QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION OF ITEM ITEM NO. PRICE DISC.    AMOUNT

Attached 11- Page Quote dated 03/ 07/ 2011.

Parking Permit Machine 37,616. 77

Requested By: 
TOTAL

Alex Gonzalez

ACCOUNT DISTRIBUTION

ORDERING DEPT. ASSIGNS:    FINANCE DEPT. APPROVES:

ACCOUNT NO.      AMOUNT ACCOUNT FUNDS BUDGETED

APPROVED BY:

f/PO,  

Attachment D, 12 Pages

70



RESPONSE: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
PAY AND DISPLAY PARKING METERS- PROJECT T- 1014

PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC. 
DATE:   03/07/2011

216 C Technology Drive
Irvine, CA 92618
949) 453- 9898 ( 949) 453-9595 Fax

TO: Alex Gonzalez, Senior Management Analyst ESTIMATED DELIVERY

City of Covina Public Works Dept. From receipt

C/O City of Covina, City Clerk of order:    2 Weeks ARO
125 East College Street
Covina, CA 91723 TERMS:     N30

SALESMAN F.O.B.    SHIP VIA FOLLOW UP DATE

Glenn Mossman Destination Surface Freight

QTY I -  PART NO.   I DESCRIPTION I TRICE UNIT AMOUNT

4 VG004 NEW 2011 VenTek Model-400 Flat Rate Pay& Display 7,550 00 30,200 00

Permit Machine Credit Card Only, PCI- PA- DSS Level 1
Certified Compliant, Thermal Printer, Modem For Online

Connection- Hardwired, Wi-Fi Or Cellular Wireless*,

Windows Based Software Platform, 110 VAC.

4 04-370-05 Pedestal Base-Surface Mount Walk-Up With Mounting 600 00 2,400 00

Bolts& M400 Plate

4 00-000 Roll, Thermal Pay And Display Paper 0 00 0 00

4 LABOR Mount Pay Station To& Place Pedestal Base And Put Into 0 00 0 00

Service

1 MERCHANT Merchant Account Setup-Online, PCI- PA-DSS Level 1 1, 295 00 1, 295 00

Certified Compliant.

1 venVUE Annual venVUE License-Online Host Software.   495 00 495 00

Sub-Total 34, 390 00

9.75% Sales Tax 3,226 77

Freight 0 00

Total 37,616 77

4 EXT On- Site Annual Extended Maintenance And Repair Service 550 00 2,200 00

Agreement. Includes On- Site Service And Quarterly PM.

TRAINING All On- Site Training On Operation, Maintenance, Auditing,
Etc. Is Included At No Additional Charge.

WARRANTY Two Years Shop Labor, Two-Years Parts

Price Does Not Include Cellular Wireless Or Factory Server

Monthly Connectivity Hosting As Applicable.

PRICES VALID FOR 30 DAYS FROM DATE OF QUOTE

SIGNATURE:     GLENN L. MOSSMAN, SALES MANAGER

71



PAY & DISPLAY MULTI SPACE PARKING EQUIPMENT

SITE:      CITY OF COVINA

DESCRIPTION: Metrolink West Parking Structure

RATE:,     Flat Daily Rate

CURRENT SYSTEM: N/A

SYSTEM: 2011 Model 400 Pay& Display Machine

Bill Stacker Capable of Stacking 1000 Bills
Coin Acceptance - . 05, . 10, . 25 & $ 1. 00 Susan B. Anthony
Optional Credit Card/ Debit Card Available and Can Be Added
At Any Time.
Complete Audit trail - All Money and Time Transactions Are
Recorded/ Reported

Wireless Remote Communication Available
Windows Based Software Platform

PCI- DSS Level 1 Certified
rr ,,„     Wireless Real- Time Communication Capable

POWER REOUIREMENT:   Recommended Solar or 110Vac

FUNCTION:   The Model 400 Pay& Display Machine Utilizes The Advantages of Issuing A New
Permit To Each System User. The Permit That Is Issued Would Be Displayed On
The Vehicle Dashboard. The Permit Will Provide The Date And Time Of Purchase,
Date And Time Of Expiration, Amount Paid, Which Machine Permit Was Issued
From, And Identify The Issuing Institution.

ENFORCEMENT:   Enforcement Personnel Need Only Visually Inspect Each Vehicle Occupying A
Stall. Based On The Printed Information Shown, Enforcement Personnel Will Be
Able To Determine Which Vehicles Are In Expired Stalls Or Failed To Purchase A
Permit.

REVENUEAFFECT: Positive: Increase Expected Due To The Following
Factors:

New Revenue With Each Vehicle

Wider Variety Of Pay Options For Patron
Less Maintenance And Collection Time Required

Future Upgrade Flexibility
Ease of Use For Patrons

INSTALLATION SITE:      As Required- Walk-Up Or Drive- Up Available.

WARRANTY:   Two-Years Shop Labor, Two-Years Parts.

72



TRAINING:  On- Site, Operation, Maintenance, and Any Troubleshooting Training
Included With Purchase Price. Maintenance Personnel With mechanical Aptitude And
Responsibility, Enforcement Personnel, And Finance Representatives To Each Be

Training On Specifics In Regard To Each Area, As Affected, In A One- Day Training
Session. In- Shop Training Is Also Included If Desired, For in- Depth Maintenance
Service Training.

ANNUAL COST:     Thermal Receipt Paper$ 55. 00 Per Roll, Est. 5, 000 Receipts Per
Roll.

VANDALISM/ ABUSE:
High Security- Medeco Lock Multiple Latching Points
Case Construction 9 Gauge Steel w/ 1/ 4" Steel Reinforcement

SIGNAGE:     Proper Signage Informing All Visitors Of Permit Machine Use Is Crucial To An
Efficient Operation

FALSE COMPLAINT

PROTECTION/ VERIFICATION:

Paper Receipt/ Internal Transaction Log restricts Patron Abuse
Or Manipulation. I. E. Detail Of Receipt Reports:

A) Machine Numbers

B) Transaction Number
C) Amount Paid

D) Date And Time Of Purchase
E) Date And Time Of Expiration

System Does Not Allow For Manipulation Of Amounts Paid,
When Paid, When Expires, By Patrons

PARTS/ SERVICE SUPPORT:     Factory Representatives:

Pacific Parking Systems, Inc.
216 C Technology Drive
Irvine, CA 92618

800) 663- 7008 Toll Free

949) 453- 9898

949) 453- 9595 Fax

techsupport(c pacpark.net email

REFUNDS:    Refund Receipts/Tickets Are Available From Model® XC/ M400 Machines Or The

Permit Issued May Be Used As Such, For Any Type Of Validation Or Refund
System, If So Desired.

73



MACHINE COMPARISONS:

FEATURES
SVI Model venSTATION

400

Model Year 2011 2011 2011

P,  u I 1 .  , ,:

Coin Acceptance S S

Coln Acceptance(. 05,. 10,. 25,$ I)      S S S

Bill Acceptance($ 1,$ 2,$ 5,$ 10,$20 dollar bills) S 0 t)

Bill Acceptance($ 1- SO Dollar Bills)     S 0 t)

Credit Card( Off-line)    0 0 0

Credit Card( On-line)   0 0 0

ATM Visa/MC Debit Cards 0) O

Self Replenishing Change Bank S N/ A ti%k

I or. 25 Coin Hopper 0)       N/A 1

Escrows Change S N/A S

Private label debit cards 0 0

Smart Card 0 O

Security& Safety

High Security Multi-Point Locking System S S S

Help/Emergency Call Button O 0

High Security Reinforced 9 Gauge Cabinet SS S

Alarm System ti S s

Ouality Features

Daily, Weekly, Monthly, Yearly, Audit S S S

Re., rtin:

Adjustable Printer Contrast S S S

Issue Permits for On- Street Parking S S S

Complete Audit Trail s S S

Two Level Password Protection S S S

Customizable Receipt/ Permit for Cash/ Credit S S ti

PBS/ PD
Low Maintenance, Fast, Thermal Printer S S S

Windows Based Reporting Software S S S

Shelter for Machines 0 0 0

Proven in All Climates S S S

interface Options

Pay& Display S S S

Pay by Space S S S

Customizable Display Font Size S S S

Flat Rate s S S

Variable Rate or Multiple Rate S S S

Windows Based Operating System S S s

Graphical Display S S

IIIIIIPPRPIMIII
AC Power w/ battery backup S S ti

DC Power( battery)      S S S

Solar 0 0 t)

Other Options

Gate Control S S 0

Tough Polymer External Coating S S S

74



Standard Pedestal s S ti

Multi-compartmental Lockable Pedestal 0
Remote Communications( modem)      0 0

Remote Communications( wireless)      0) O 0

Networking 0 0 O

Intrusion Detection O 0 O

PDA Communication 0 0 O

S Standard Equipment
0 Optional Upgrade

Standard SV/& Model 400 Colors Are Blue Or Yellow
Standard OS Colors Are Blue Or Green

Optional Colors Are Available
Wireless Option Required

75



MODEL 400

SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARD FEATURES

2011 Model 400 PAY& DISPLAY/PAY BY SPACE MACHINES:

General Operation:    System is capable of accepting $ 1, 5, 10, & 20- dollar bills, nickels,

Dimes, quarters, both U. S. versions, dollar coins, with optional credit
cards and smart cards towards the purchase of time.  Utilizes a paper audit trail

supported by a nonvolatile electronic record of all transactions.  Systems are
capable of functioning as a single unit or operate in a networked environment of up
to 64 units on a network. Supported by a PC, IBM compatible, and Windows
based software package, allowing user manipulation of rate structure and system
configuration from a local or remote site. Each system is capable of utilizing a solar
power supply. Battery backup is added in the event of a loss of the system power
source.

General Specifications:

Case:

1.  Case constructed of 9-gauge steel.
pIPORNI t IS' 2.  Case design is such that it is large enough to allow easy removal of

internal components, bill acceptor, coin acceptor, printer, etc.
r"      •    3.  Case color to: High gloss yellow& white.

ma a Er  ',      4.  Case includes a locking system that utilizes four locking points and
requires two keys to open.

5.  Case designed to bolt to a steel pedestal 8" x 8" square.
la,     6.  Case dimensions:  16" W x 22" H x 18" D with an approximate weight

of 150 lbs., with internal components installed.
s

fx 7.  Case locks are a Medeco Lock, keyed with a proprietary combination
4 exclusively for new installations.

8.  All components, including machine front, are on a slide-drawer, to
allow entire drawer to pull out from the case.

Front Display:

1.  The system utilizes a front display, 4 lines by 40 characters.
2.  The display is a liquid crystal type.
3.  The display is housed in a stainless steel case 26"x 19"
4.  The display is recessed behind a clear 1/ 4" thick lexan cover.
5.  The display is backlit for visibility during periods of low/no light.
6.  Character sizes are easily changed/ modified as desired, with the capability of

custom graphics, I. E., arrows, etc.

Buttons:( Pay By Space)

1.  ( 6) Six sealed pressure sensitive buttons, with one of the buttons clearly
marked" cancel" and one clearly marked " help"

2.  Buttons are coated for anti-static resistance.

Keypad:  1.  3x4 Numeric Keypad mounted to exterior or interior for pay by space

76



or auditor/programming functions.

Coin/ Ticket Cup:

1.  Constructed of stainless steel.

2.  Mounted to the front door.

3.  Ticket cup includes a clear lexan door, stainless steel covers coin return.
4.  Separate compartments for receipts and coin return.

Bill Acceptor:

1.  Bill acceptor has a lockable bill vault.
2.  Easily removed for servicing, no tools are required for removal.
3.  Utilizes 34 VDC © 2. 5 amps.

4.  Capable of accepting $ 1, 5, 10, 20, dollar bills.

5.  Bill denomination acceptance is set utilizing eight switches.
6.  Bills are stacked in a vertical position.

7.  Bill acceptor is capable of stacking up to 1000 bills.
8.  Bill acceptor is capable of being configured to accept bills in any possible

directions.

9.  Bill acceptor is able to have credit pulses configured with DIP switches.
10. Capable of communication based on bill inserted and allows for system to

calculate and dispense change due.

11. Capable of verifying bill, transmitting information to controller, and holding
bill in a non-stacked, escrowed position, pending approval to stack the bill,
from the system controller.

12. Bill acceptor will be capable of accepting new version U. S. bills through
simple software updates as they are issued.

13. Bill acceptor will accept all new version U. S. currency.
14. Bill acceptor utilizes optical reading sensors.

Coin Acceptor.

1.  Manufactured by a U. S. based company.
2.  Accepts U. S. nickels, dimes, quarters and dollar coins.
3.  Easily removed for serviceability, no tools are required to remove coin

acceptor.

4.  Utilizes 34 VDC © 2. 5amps.

Coin Bag:

1.  Utilizes a locking system to prevent unauthorized entry.
2.  Capable of holding a minimum of$ 600.00 in coins.

3.  Includes a locking system which, when removed, and is padlocked, will not
allow access to the coins nor allow the bag to be re- inserted until the padlock
is opened, and the locking mechanism within the coin box is reset.

4.  Activates a micro-switch, which when removed, automatically prompts the
system to issue current cash box ticket.

5.  Box receptacle to have large access mouth for ease of emptying.

Thermal Printer

77



1.  Printer utilizes thermal printing technology.
2.  Printer stores the dot pattern structure in an EPROM & FONT prom.

3.  Utilizes 24 VDC© 2. 5amps.
o

4.  Printer is easily removed for servicing, no tools required.
T! 1,17

5.  Printer paper roll is capable of dispensing a minimum of 4,500 receipts per
roll.

6.  Printer utilizes thermal paper capable of not turning black up to 140° F
7.  Receipt length is adjustable with a standard width of 2 3/8".
8.  Thermal paper used includes empty roll warning indicator, sequential

numbering on receipt back and red notification to place other side up to be
valid.

Transaction Storage:

1.  Transactions are stored in a Windows .dat file format.
2.  The processor maintains a separate database for all credit card transactions and cash

transactions.

3.  Credit card transactions are stored in a format compatible with credit card payment
systems.

4.  Transactions are tracked in a sequentially numbered series. Data can be
tracked/ identified via the sequential number issued to a specific transaction.

5.  Separate data areas are set aside for storage of security access exceptions and
internal diagnostic data.

6.  Stored in nonvolatile memory that cannot be manipulated with system software. Data
stored is held within systems protected transaction storage. System power loss or
controller removal will not cause the loss of transaction history.

7.  Transaction data is held in excess of 10,000 transactions.
8.  Transactions history can be pulled from system giving individual, hourly, daily and

monthly transactional history reports.

Transaction Processing:

1.  The system utilizes a minimum of three transaction-processing modes, on- line,
networked, and off-line.

2.  During off-line conditions, terminals continue to function in an off-line configuration.

Processor Software:

1.       The processor software provides the following functions:
a)       Network access

b)       Customer interface

c)       Enforcement user interface
d)       Currency handling
e)       Credit/ smart card processing
f) Printer interface

g)       Power management

h)       Terminal diagnostics

i) Local database management

2.       The processor utilizes a network interface consisting of three layers; physical
layer, data link layer, and message layer.

3.       Terminal maintenance, audit reports, and stall information is accessible from the

display/keyboard.

Power Management Unit:

78



1.  Battery Back-up is provided in the event of a power loss.
2.  With solar applications, batteries are utilized for storage of power during

periods of little to no daylight.
3.  Solar power application will run exclusively on solar power with supplied

batteries.

In-Ground Mount Pedestals

General Specifications:

1.  13" x 10" x 48" ( in- ground) square tubular steel, 1/ 4" plate with a hollow center for

pulling power/communication lines through to pedestal top.
2.  Color to be: Flat black.

3.  Surface mount dimensions:  13" x 10" x 30"

Card Option;

General Specifications:

1.  Card option can be supplied with any MODEL 400 and can be mounted by two
screws directly to the MODEL400 faceplate.

2.  Card reader is capable of accepting ISO 7816- 3 Smart Cards and ISO 7810
financial cards.

P.C. Software

General Specifications:

System Host Software:

1.  Is Windows compatible, capable of single, variable, 8 multi- rate programming.
2.  Allows user to select options at the end of a rate period to include; allow/not allow

purchase of time exceeding the shift/ rate maximum, allow/not allow purchase of time
past the end of a rate/shift period, allow/not allow user to purchase time through a
specified shift down time at no charge, allow/not allow purchase of time through a

closed day at no charge.
3.  Allows the user to select the rate for each individual day and have the ability to

designate a day closed, or free parking day.
4.  Allows user to configure a secondary daily rate structure to be activated by a specified

day.
5.  Allows time to be purchased in 15-minute blocks or by the minute.
6.  Includes at least 6 rate tables for editing.
7.  Includes a minimum of 3 shifts per rate table.

8.  Rate tables allow user to select from the following options; select the time of day that
each individual shift will begin, set the maximum amount of money that will be
accepted in a given shift, set the expire time of a given shift, allow the purchase of

multiple days, allow multiple day purchases to be either 24 hrs. From purchase date or
24 hrs. From expire time of a shift, allow for a period of time during a shift that the
system will shut down, able to set a per minute rate, able to select the number of 15

minute blocks per hour and the rate to be charged for the 15 minute blocks, and is

able to automatically print a receipt.
9.  Allows rates to be edited by the hour.
10. Allows user to assign a three character, alpha numeric, designation for each machine.
11. Allows a minimum time purchase to be set.

79



12. Able to edit the length of time the audible alarm will sound.

13. Able to set the start of a day.
14. Allows for an option to print/not print receipts.

15. Able to set a maximum number of tickets to be sold in a day.
16. Able to set an amount, that no bills above that amount will be accepted.

17. Able to set the maximum amount of money that will be accepted.
18. Able to set the maximum change to be given.
19. Able to use a token in place of the U. S. dollar coin and set the value of that token.

20. Able to select what to do during a printer error.
21. Has at least four change options to include; change only, no refund tickets, refund

tickets only, no change, change first, then refund tickets, reject bills over max change
when lit.

22. Able to set/modify credit card parameters to include; enable/not enable credit cards,
accept/not accept American Express, MasterCard and Visa, accept/not accept a credit
card when off-line, set minimum/ maximum credit amounts and set a default amount.

23. Able to accommodate a minimum of 9000 spaces.

24. Able to vary rates by stall range, with a minimum of 5 changes.
25. Able to set an expiration window to show expired/going to expire stalls, on

enforcement reports.

26. Able to set an enforcement access code.

27. Able to set an inactivity time-out for the backlight on the display.
28. Able to select, allow/not allow customer to extend time.

29. Able to modify the top line of printed receipts with 25 characters.
30. Able to modify 3 lines, 21 characters per line, on a refund ticket.
31. Able to set an " out of service" phone number.

32. Able to preset 97 days per year, to charge a special rate.
33. Does not allow for user manipulation of audit historical data.

Remote Processina Software

General Specifications:

Communications Software:

1.  Communications software includes the following options, dial modem, hang- up
modem, and wait for call, receive/send audit commands and lot functions.

2.  Accesses to vital communications areas are password protected.

3.  Password protected.
4.  All system phone numbers are held in a phone directory for ease of accessing phone

numbers.

5.  Has the ability to hang up the modem via the communications software.
6.  Able to set software to wait for an incoming call from a remote site.
7.  Able to receive the following items, Transactions: current, all read only, and backup,

exception log, Diagnostics.
8.  Transactions can be retrieved in the following manners; Current:  all transactions since

the last audit, 6,1L all transactions stored in the circular queue, Read Only: reads all
transactions but does not put down an end of collection and backup- reads
transactions from the SPT source.

9.  Records security information to include; - Door open/door closed, Cash bag in, cash
bag out. Date, time and machine number are recorded with each entry.

10. Keeps a log of all transactional events. The log information includes; individual
purchases, receipt numbers generated, power outages, system restarts.

11. Communications software is able to receive processor configuration tables.
12. Communications software is able to send configuration tables, diagnostic levels and

bad card files.

80



13. Communications software is able to set the diagnostic level to none, error, warning or
information.

14. Communications software is able to send a bad credit card file to update credit cards
that are to be rejected.

15. Communications software is able to set the date and time.
16. Communications software is able to add time to a selected stall.
17. Communications software is able to check the status of a selected stall.
18. Communications software is able to view network status and indicate which terminals

are currently on-line or off-line.

19. Communications software is able to remotely monitor the following areas, status, cash
box, audit, power, and version.

20. Communications software is able to view the amount of change available and the
amount of money currently in the coin bag and bill vault.

21. Communications software is able to view the current audit totals and current grand
totals to include; cash, credit, cash card, refunds and overpayment.

22. Communications software is able to view the current status of the following items; Bill
Acceptor: disabled, jammed/ not jammed, Bill Stacker: full/not full, Coin Acceptor:
enabled/disabled and jammed/not jammed, Card Reader: present/not present, Cash
Bag: installed/not installed, Door: open/closed, Lock: open/closed, Peripheral Power:
on/ off, Watchdoa Timer: enabled/disabled and Change light: on/off.

23. Communications software is able to view current power management status for a
specified partyline number.

24. Communications software is able to view information concerning the current software
version being utilized.

25. Communications software is unable to modify passwords required to initiate
entrance to communications software and access and log on to remote systems.

MINIMUM WARRANTY:

1.  Two-years shop labor.

2.  Two-years parts

81



PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
Total Parking Solutions

January 4, 2012

City of Covina
Metro Link)

Attn.: Alex

Our records indicate that your warranty on your( 4) M400 machines is due to
expire on March 11, 2012

Attached you will find a copy of an Extended Warranty Contract offered by
Pacific Parking Systems, Inc.  To avoid any interruption of service, please
contact our office at your earliest convenience or send your purchase order prior
to the expiration date.

We have appreciated working with you this past year and look forward to another
productive year working together.

Thank you.

Attachment E, 3 Pages

82



The following is an extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for the
Model 400.  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc., upon acceptance of this agreement will
provide the following services at machine locations.

L Thermal Printer:

A.  Clean all debris from any parts.

B.  Field test ticket issuance

C.  Confirm ticket alignment

II.    Bill Acceptor:

A.  Clean all belts, sensors, and drive wheels with alcohol.

B.  Field test bill acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings

lll.  Coin Acceptor:

A. Clean sensors and coin track.

B.  Field test coin acceptance.

C.  Confirm all switch settings.

IV.   12V Battery:

Batteries are a consumable item. The battery is the responsibility of the
customer.  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. will still check the following items:

A.       Check and record battery level.

B.       Check all electrical connections.

C.       Confirm programming is correct.

V.    Lubricate door hinges and lock assemblies.

VI.   Check and tighten as needed, all frame bolts and screws.

VII.  Steps I-VI to be performed( 4) times annually for preventative
maintenance.

83



VIII. Replacement of any component necessary to put back in operation or
prevent foreseen failure due to faulty component at "No charge."

IX.   Any field serv/ce call required to comply with item# VIII is at "No charge."

X.  Progam changes—( 1) one program change per year covered under
contract, any additional changes will be chargable.  This includes rate
changes, wording changes, ticket changes, etc.

XI. Technical phone support Monday—Friday 7:30am to 5pm PST
@( 800) 663- 7008

XII.  Items Not Covered By This Agreement:

A.       Vandalism or misuse.

B.       Obsolete parts by the manufacturers

C.       Upgrades

D.       Pedestal and case.

E.       Revenues lost due to" down" machine.

F.       Consumable items.

G.      Parts used in machine, which are not made or supplied by Pacific Parking
Systems, Inc

H.      After hours phone support, Monday( Friday, 5pm to 7:30am) —Additional
charge

I. Weekend & Holiday phone support— Additional charge

J.       This contract covers hardware only and only hardware that is resident to
the pay station cabinet.

XIII.    Service to be conducted weekdays during normal business hours.
Same day response will be made when possible.

XIV.  Rates and Terms:

A.  $ 750.00 per machine annually, for an extended total cost of$ 3, 000.00

B. Contract covers a period of one year from date of initial service.

C.  Payment for contract to be made in full within 30 days from start-up date.

84



CITY OF COVINA

PARKING MACHINE MAINTENANCE

AT 559 N. CITRUS AND 124 E. COLLEGE

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 19th day of February, 2013, by and between the
CITY OF COVINA, a California municipal corporation ( hereinafter referred to as " CITY") and

PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC., a California CORPORATION (hereinafter referred to as
CONTRACTOR").

The parties do agree as follows:

SECTION 1.  RECITALS.

This Agreement is made and entered into with respect to the following facts:

a)     CITY requires the services of a qualified contractor to perform those parking
machine maintenance services (" Services") at the Metrolink West and Civic

Center Parking Structures, located at 559 N. Citrus Avenues and 124 E. College
Street, as more particularly described in Attachment " A", which is incorporated

by reference herein.
b)    CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that it is qualified to perform such

elevator maintenance Services and has agreed to do so pursuant to this

Agreement; and

d)     CITY desires to contract with CONTRACTOR on the basis of the following
terms and conditions.

SECTION 2.  EMPLOYMENT.

CITY hereby employs CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR hereby accepts such
employment, to perform the Services under this Agreement.

SECTION 3.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

The parties hereby acknowledge that CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and
shall not be considered to be an employee of CITY.  CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages,
salaries, and other amounts due to its personnel in connection with their performance of Services

under this Agreement and as required by law.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all

reports and obligations respecting such personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers'
compensation insurance.

Attachment F, 11 Pages

85



SECTION 4.  PRINCIPAL REPRESENTATIVES

Alex Gonzalez  —  Assistant Director of Public Works,  shall be the principal

representative of CITY for purposes of this Agreement.  Glen Mossman, Owner, shall be the

principal representative of CONTRACTOR for purposes of this Agreement.

SECTION 5.  CONTRACTOR NOT AGENT OF CITY.

A.      CONTRACTOR shall have no authority, expressed or implied, to act on behalf of
CITY in any capacity whatsoever as an agent.

B.      CONTRACTOR shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind CITY to any obligation whatsoever.

SECTION 6.  STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.

CONTRACTOR shall diligently perform all Services required pursuant to this
Agreement in a professional and workmanlike manner, in strict compliance with the provisions

of this Agreement,  and in compliance with all applicable Federal,  State and local laws.

CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment and services necessary to
perform the Services in a manner satisfactory to CITY during the Term of this Agreement.

SECTION 7.  TIME.

A.      CONTRACTOR shall devote such time to the performance of the Services

pursuant to the Agreement as may be reasonably necessary for satisfactory performance of
CONTRACTOR's obligations pursuant to this Agreement.

B.      Neither party shall be considered in default of this Agreement to the extent
performance is prevented or delayed by any cause, present or future, which is beyond the
reasonable control of the party.

SECTION 8.  QUALIFICATIONS.

A.      CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to CITY that it has all necessary
professional licenses and/ or certificates to legally perform the Services under this Agreement.

B.      CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to CITY that CONTRACTOR shall, at

CONTRACTOR' s sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the Term of
this Agreement all necessary licenses and certificates required ofCONTRACTOR to perform the
Services.

SECTION 9.  TERM.

The Term of this Agreement shall be the period commencing on March 12, 2013, and
shall terminate upon March 12, 2014, unless extended by mutual agreement of the Parties.

86



SECTION 10. COMPENSATION.

A.      CONTRACTOR will perform the Services in accordance with the terms and

provisions of this Agreement for a total contract price not to exceed Three Thousand Dollars

3, 000).

B.      CONTRACTOR shall be paid the compensation at the rate of Seven Hundred and

Fifty Dollars ($ 750) per machine, as more particularly set forth in the Payment Schedule
Section 11).

C.      CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to reimbursement of any expenses in
performing the Services, including travel time, beyond those sums paid as compensation as set
forth in subsection A above, unless authorized in writing by CITY.

SECTION 11. PAYMENT SCHEDULE.

A.      CONTRACTOR shall submit to CITY an invoice which indicates Services

completed.  Provided the Services have been rendered satisfactorily to CITY and in accordance
with this Agreement, CITY shall tender payment to CONTRACTOR not later than thirty ( 30)
working days following CITY' s receipt of an invoice.

B.      CITY shall make no payment for any extra, further, or additional services not
expressly set forth in this Agreement unless such extra service and the price thereof is agreed to
in writing and executed by CITY prior to the time that such extra service is rendered.

SECTION 12. COMPENSATION WITHHELD.

A.      When the CITY shall have reasonable grounds for believing that CONTRACTOR
will be unable to perform this Agreement fully and satisfactorily within the time fixed for
performance; or a meritorious claim exists or will exist against CONTRACTOR or CITY arising
out of the negligence of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR' s breach of any provision of this
Agreement, then the CITY may withhold payment of any amount otherwise due and payable to
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.

B.      Any amount so withheld may be retained by CITY for that period as it may deem
advisable to protect CITY against any loss and may, after written notice to CONTRACTOR, be
applied in satisfaction of any claim described here.

C.      This provision is intended solely for the benefit of CITY and no person shall have
any right against the CITY or claim against CITY by reason of the CITY' s failure or refusal to
withhold monies.

D.      No interest shall be payable by CITY on any amounts withheld under this
provision.

E.      This provision is not intended to limit or in any way prejudice any other right of
CITY.

87



SECTION 13. RIGHT TO AUDIT AND INSPECT.

CITY shall have the right to audit and inspect all books and records kept by
CONTRACTOR in connection with the Services performed under this Agreement.

SECTION 14. RIGHT OF TERMINATION.

A.      This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause, upon
ten( 10) working days written notice to the other party.

B.      All Services shall cease at the conclusion of the notice period and

CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all Services satisfactorily provided prior to termination in
accordance with the rates as provided in this Agreement.

SECTION 15. INDEMNITY.

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to and does indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY,
and any and all of their respective officers, employees and representatives from any and all
claims, liability and expenses, including attorney fees and costs, that arise out of or are related to
CONTRACTOR's negligent performance of this Agreement.

In the event that CONTRACTOR or any employee,  agent,  or subcontractor of

CONTRACTOR providing Services under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees Retirement System ( PERS) to be

eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of CITY, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employee and/or employer contributions
for PERS benefits on behalf of CONTRACTOR or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as

well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility ofCITY.

SECTION 16. CONTRACTOR' S LIABILITY FOR PUBLIC LIABILITY
AND PROPERTY DAMAGE.

CONTRACTOR shall assume all responsibility for damages to property or injuries to
persons,  including accidental death, which may be caused by CONTRACTOR' s negligent
performance of this Agreement, whether such performance be by themselves, or their agents, or
whether such damage shall accrue or be discovered before or after termination of this
Agreement.

SECTION 17. LIABILITIES.

A.      CONTRACTOR shall not assert any claim arising out of any act or omission by
any officer, agent, or employee of CITY in the execution or performance of this Agreement
against that officer, agent or employee.

B.      Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any person other than CITY
and CONTRACTOR any legal or equitable rights, remedy or claim under this Agreement.

88



SECTION 18. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

A.      CONTRACTOR covenants that neither it nor any officer of the corporation, or
partnership, as the case may be, has any interest, nor shall they acquire any interest, directly or
indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of CONTRACTOR' s
services under this Agreement.

B.      CONTRACTOR further agrees that in the performance of this Agreement, no

person having an interest of the above nature shall be employed by him or her.
C.      No person who contracts with CITY, either for the rendition of personal services

shall make any contribution to a CITY official or candidate for CITY office.

SECTION 19. NOTICES.

A.      Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by personal service or by
deposit of the same in the custody ofthe United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed
as follows:

TO CITY:       City of Covina
125 E. College Street

Covina, CA 91723

Attn: Public Works Director

TO CONTRACTOR:  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc.
216 C Technology
Irvine, CA, 92618

Attn: Glenn Mossman

B.      Notices shall be deemed to be given as of the date of personal service, or two ( 2)

days following the deposit of the same by first class mail in the course of transmission of the
United States Postal Service.

SECTION 20. BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors in interest.

SECTION 21. ASSIGNMENT.

A.      CONTRACTOR shall not assign, transfer, convey, pledge or otherwise dispose of
its rights or obligations hereunder, except the payment of funds from CITY, without prior written

consent of CITY.

B.      The consent of CITY to an assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld, but
prior to approving any assignment involving the performance of any obligations pursuant to this
Agreement, CITY shall be satisfied by competent evidence that the assignee is financially able
and technically qualified to perform those services proposed to be assigned.

89



C.      In the event of such assignment, CITY may condition the same so as to ensure
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.

D.      CITY' S consent to one assignment shall not be deemed to constitute consent to

future assignments.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges that CITY' S written consent must be first

obtained prior to each assignment, transfer, conveyance, pledge or other disposition.

SECTION 22. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable laws in performing its obligations
under this Agreement.

SECTION 23. INSURANCE.

A.      CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain at its expense, during the term of this
Agreement, all necessary insurance for its employees engaged in the performance of this
Agreement, including, but not limited to workers' compensation insurance.

B.      CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain at its expense, during the Term of this
Agreement, comprehensive general liability insurance with coverage of not less than One
Million Dollars ($ 1, 000,000.00) combined single limit per occurrence ( and not " claims made")

for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  CONTRACTOR shall cause CITY, its

officers, employees, and agents, to be named as an additional insured on said policy and shall
obtain a waiver of the insurer's right of subrogation against CITY.

C.      CONTRACTOR shall provide CITY with written proof of the existence of such

insurance and the commitment of the insurance carrier ( either by policy endorsement or similar
agreement) to notify CITY in writing 30 days before any reduction in coverage or the
cancellation of such insurance.  All insurance coverage required herein shall apply on a primary
non-contributing basis in relation to any insurance or self-insurance available or applicable to
CITY.

SECTION 24. DISCRIMINATION.

A.      CONTRACTOR agrees that no person shall be excluded from employment in the

performance of this Agreement on grounds of race, creed, color, sex, age, handicap or marital
status, place of national origin or any other basis prohibited by local, State or Federal law.

B.      CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all local, State and Federal laws relating
to equal employment opportunity rights.

SECTION 25. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of CITY and CONTRACTOR with

respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other agreement, statement, or promise made by any
party, or to any employee, officer, or agent of any party, which is not contained in this
Agreement shall be binding or valid.

90



SECTION 26. ATTORNEYS FEES.

In the event that any action or proceeding is instituted for the breach of this Agreement,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys fees.

SECTION 27. CONSISTENCY WITH CURRENT LAW.

A.      It is the intent and understanding of the parties to this Agreement that every
provision of law required to be inserted in this Agreement is inserted here.

B.      If through mistakes or otherwise, any of those provisions are not inserted in
correct form, then this Agreement shall upon application of either party, be amended by insertion
so as to comply strictly with the law and without prejudice to the rights of either party.

C.      if this Agreement contains any unlawful provisions, not an essential part of the
Agreement and which appear not to have been a controlling or material inducement to the
making of this Agreement, those provisions shall be deemed of no effect, and shall upon
application of either party be stricken from the Agreement without affecting the binding force of
the Agreement as it shall remain after omitting those provisions.

SECTION 28. VENUE.

In the event that suit shall be brought by either party to this contract, the parties agree that
venue shall be exclusively vested in the State courts of the County of Los Angeles or where
appropriate, in the United States District Court, Central District of California, Los Angeles,
California.

SECTION 29. INTERNAL INCONSISTENCIES.

If this Agreement contains any errors, inconsistencies, ambiguities, or discrepancies,
including typographical errors, CONTRACTOR shall request a clarification of those items by
writing to the City Manager whose decision shall be binding upon the parties.

SECTION 30. CAPTIONS AND HEADNOTES.

The captions and headnotes or sections of this Agreement, and marginal notes are

intended for convenience and reference purposes only and in no way define, limit or describe the
scope or intent of this Agreement.

91



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement for Maintenance services has been duly
authorized and executed by the parties hereto on the day and year first herein above
written.

CITY"

City of Covina

By.
Daryl Parrish, City Manager

NTRAC

C__

ar-A,      raa

a California      ,-   ,,>„..,

By:  r'

92



ATTACHMENT A

TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Scope of Services)

PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
Total Parking Solutions

January 2, 2012

City of Covina
Metro Link)

Attn.: Alex

Our records indicate that your yearly extended warranty and preventative
maintenance contract is due to expire on March 11, 2013

Attached you will find a copy of the 13'- 14' contract, to avoid any interruption of
service, please contact our office at your earliest convenience or send your

renewal purchase order prior to the expiration date.

We have appreciated working with you this past year and look forward to another
productive year working together.

Thank you.

93



The following is en extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for the
Model 400 Pacific Parking Systems, Inc., upon acceptance of this agreement will
provide the following services at machine locations.

I.    Thermal Printer:

A_ Clean all debris from any parts.

B. Field test ticket issuance

C. Confirm ticket alignment

l.   Bill Acceptor:

A. Clean all belts, sensors, and drive wheels with alcohol.

B. Field test bill acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings

M.  Coin Acceptor:

A. Clean sensors and coin track.

B. Field test coin acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings.

IV.   12V Battery:

Batteries are a consumable item. The battery is the responsibility of the
customer. Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. will still check the following items:

A.     Check and record battery level.

B.     Check all electrical connections.

C.     Confirm programming is correct.

V.   Lubricate door hinges and lock assemblies.

VI.  Check and tighten as needed, all frame bolts and screws.

VII.  Steps 1- Vi to be performed( 4) times annually for preventative
maintenance.

94



VIII. Replacement of any component necessary to put back in operation or
prevent foreseen failure due to faulty component at" No charge."

IX.  Any field service call required to comply with Item* VIM Is at" No charge.'

X. Progam changes—( 1) one program change per year covered under

contract, any additional changes will be chargable. This includes rate
changes, wording changes, ticket changes, etc.

XL Technical phone support Monday—Friday 7:30am to 5pm PST
a(800) 683-7008

XII. items Not Covered By This Agreement:

A.     Vandalism or misuse_

B.     Obsolete parts by the manufacturers

C.     Upgrades

D.     Pedestal and case.

E.      Revenues lost due to" down" machine.

F.      Consumable items.

G.     Parts used in machine, which are not made or supplied by Pacific Parking
Systems, Inc

H.     After hours phone support, Monday( Fnday, 5pm to 7: 30am)— Additional

charge

I.      Weekend& Holiday phone support— Additional charge

J.      This contract covers hardware only and only hardware that is resident to
the pay station cabinet.

Xlll.   Service to be conducted weekdays during normal business hours.
Same day response will be made when possible.

XIV.  Rates and Terms:

A. $ 750.00 per machine annually, for an extended total cost of$ 3, 000.00

B. Contract covers a period of one year from date of initial service.

C. Payment for contract to be made in full within 30 days from start-up date.

95



PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
Total Parking Solutions

December 30, 2013

City of Covina
Metro Link)

Attn.: Alex

Our records indicate that your yearly extended warranty and preventative
maintenance contract is due to expire on March 11, 2014

Attached you will find a copy of the 14' - 15' contract, to avoid any interruption of
service, please contact our office at your earliest convenience or send your
renewal purchase order prior to the expiration date.

We have appreciated working with you this past year and look forward to another
productive year working together.

Thank you.

Attachment G, 3 Pages

96



The following is an extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for the
Model 400.  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc., upon acceptance of this agreement will
provide the following services at machine locations.

L Thermal Printer:

A. Clean all debris from any parts.

B.  Field test ticket issuance

C. Confirm ticket alignment

Il.    Bill Acceptor:

A. Clean all belts, sensors, and drive wheels with alcohol.

B.  Field test bill acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings

M.  Coin Acceptor:

A. Clean sensors and coin track.

B.  Field test coin acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings.

IV.   12V Battery:

Batteries are a consumable item. The battery is the responsibility of the
customer. Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. will still check the following items:

A.       Check and record battery level.

B.      Check all electrical connections.

C.      Confirm programming is correct.

V.    Lubricate door hinges and lock assemblies.

W.   Check and tighten as needed, all frame bolts and screws.

VII.  Steps 1- VI to be performed( 4) times annually for preventative
maintenance.

97



VIII. Replacement of any component necessary to put back in operation or
prevent foreseen failure due to faulty component at "No charge."

IX.   Any field service call required to comply with item# Vlll is at "No charge."

X.  Progam changes-( 1) one program change per year covered under

contract, any additional changes will be chargable.  This includes rate
changes, wording changes, ticket changes, etc.

Xl. Technical phone support Monday- Friday 7:30am to 5pm PST
800) 663-7008

XII.  Items Not Covered By This Agreement:

A.      Vandalism or misuse.

B.      Obsolete parts by the manufacturers

C.      Upgrades

D.      Pedestal and case.

E.      Revenues lost due to "down" machine.

F.       Consumable items.

G.      Parts used in machine, which are not made or supplied by Pacific Parking
Systems, Inc

H.      After hours phone support, Monday( Friday, 5pm to 7:30am)- Additional

charge

Weekend& Holiday phone support- Additional charge

J.       This contract covers hardware only and only hardware that is resident to
the pay station cabinet.

XIII.    Service to be conducted weekdays during normal business hours.
Same day response will be made when possible.

XIV.  Rates and Terms:

A.  $ 750.00 per machine annually, for an extended total cost of$ 3,000.00

B.  Contract covers a period of one year from date of initial service.

C.  Payment for contract to be made in full within 30 days from start-up date.

D. Accepted By: Chert S€root

PacificLjç
Parking S tems, Inc.

E.  Accepted By:       (
City of Covina

98



PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
Toth Panting Solutions

July 24, 2014

City of Covina
Downtown Structure)

Attn.: Anne

Our records indicate that the warranty has expired on your( 1) M400 located at
the Downtown Structure

Attached you will find a copy of the 14' - 15' contract, to avoid any interruption of
service, please contact our office at your earliest convenience or send your
renewal purchase order prior to the expiration date.

We have appreciated working with you this past year and look forward to another
productive year working together.

Thank you.

Attac rent H, 3 Pages

99



The following is an extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for the
Model 400.  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc., upon acceptance of this agreement will
provide the following services at machine locations.

I.     Thermal Printer:

A. Clean all debris from any parts.

B. Field test ticket issuance

C. Confirm ticket alignment

II.    Bill Acceptor:

A. Clean all belts, sensors, and drive wheels with alcohol.

B. Field test bill acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings

III.  Coin Acceptor:

A. Clean sensors and coin track.

B. Field test coin acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings.

IV.   12V Battery:

Batteries are a consumable item. The battery is the responsibility of the
customer. Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. will still check the following items:

A.      Check and record battery level.

B.       Check all electrical connections.

C.      Confirm programming is correct.

V.    Lubricate door hinges and lock assemblies.

VI.   Check and tighten as needed, all frame bolts and screws.

VII.  Steps I-Vi to be performed( 4) times annually for preventative
maintenance.

100



VIII. Replacement of any component necessary to put back in operation or
prevent foreseen failure due to faulty component at "No charm."

IX.   Any field service call required to comply with item# VIII is at "No charm."

X.  Progam changes—( 1) one program change per year covered under
contract, any additional changes will be chargeable.  This Includes rate
changes, wording changes, ticket changes, etc.

XL Technical phone support Monday—Friday 7:30am to 5pm PST
@( 800) 863-7008

XII.  items Not Covered By This Agreement:

A.       Vandalism or misuse.

B.       Obsolete parts by the manufacturers

C.       Upgrades

D.      Pedestal and case.

E.       Revenues lost due to" down" machine.

F.       Consumable items.

G.      Parts used in machine, which are not made or supplied by Pacific Parking
Systems, Inc

H.      After hours phone support, Monday( Friday, 5pm to 7:30am) —Additional
charge

I. Weekend& Holiday phone support—Additional charge

J.       This contract covers hardware only and only hardware that is resident to
the pay station cabinet.

XIII.    Service to be conducted weekdays during normal business hours.
Same day response will be made when possible.

XIV.  Rates and Terms:

A.  Prorated for( 7) seven months to expire with the Metro Link machines in
March- $ 437.50 for( 7) seven months

B.  Contract covers a period of one year from date of initial service.

C.  Payment for contract to be made in full within 30 days from start-up date.

D.  Accepted By: Cheri BGrgew

Pacif Parking ms Inc.

E.  Accepted By:
ity of Covina

101



PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
Total Parking Solutions

January 5, 2015

City of Covina
Metro Link)

Attn.: Alex

Our records indicate that your yearly extended warranty and preventative
maintenance contract is due to expire on March 11, 2015

Attached you will find a copy of the 15' - 16' contract, to avoid any interruption of
service, please contact our office at your earliest convenience or send your
renewal purchase order prior to the expiration date.

We have appreciated working with you this past year and look forward to another
productive year working together.

Thank you.

Attachment I, 3 Pages

102



The following is an extended warranty and preventative maintenance agreement for the
Model 400.  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc., upon acceptance of this agreement will
provide the following services at machine locations.

I.     Thermal Printer:

A.  Clean all debris from any parts.

B.  Field test ticket issuance

C. Confirm ticket alignment

II.    Bill Acceptor:

A.  Clean all belts, sensors, and drive wheels with alcohol.

B.  Field test bill acceptance.

C. Confirm all switch settings

N.  Coin Acceptor:

A.  Clean sensors and coin track.

B.  Field test coin acceptance.

C.  Confirm all switch settings.

IV.   12V Battery:

Batteries are a consumable item. The battery is the responsibility of the
customer.  Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. will still check the following items:

A.       Check and record battery level.

B.       Check all electrical connections.

C.       Confirm programming is correct.

V.    Lubricate door hinges and lock assemblies.

VI.   Check and tighten as needed, all frame bolts and screws.

VII.  Steps I-VI to be performed( 4) times annually for preventative
maintenance.

103



VIII. Replacement of any component necessary to put back in operation or
prevent foreseen failure due to faulty component at 'Wo charoe."

IX.   Any field service call required to comply with item# Vlll is at "No charge."

X.  Progam changes—(1) one program change per year covered under
contract, any additional changes will be chargable.  This includes rate
changes, wording changes, ticket changes, etc.

XI. Technical phone support Monday—Friday 7:30am to 5pm PST
800) 663- 7008

XII.  items Not Covered By This Agreement:

A.       Vandalism or misuse.

B.       Obsolete parts by the manufacturers

C.       Upgrades

D.       Pedestal and case.

E.       Revenues lost due to" down" machine.

F.       Consumable items.

G.       Parts used in machine, which are not made or supplied by Pacific Parking
Systems, Inc

H.       After hours phone support, Monday (Friday, 5pm to 7:30am) —Additional
charge

I. Weekend & Holiday phone support—Additional charge

J.       This contract covers hardware only and only hardware that is resident to
the pay station cabinet.

XIII.    Service to be conducted weekdays during normal business hours.
Same day response will be made when possible.

XIV.  Rates and Terms:

A.  $ 750.00 per machine annually, for an extended total cost of$ 3,750.00

B.  Contract covers a period of one year from date of initial service.

C.  Payment for contract to be made in full within 30 days from start-up date.

D.  Accepted By: Cheri $err€ v
Pacific P rking S ems, Inc.

E.  Accepted By:    00-elt°
City of Covina

104



CITY OF COVINA

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

I. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this FIFTH day of APRIL, 2016 by and
between the City of Covina, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of
California with its principal place of business at 125 East College Street, Covina, California
91723 (" City") and PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC., a California corporation, with its
principal place of business at 216 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE,  UNIT C,  IRVINE, CA 92718

Consultant").   City and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as " Party" and

collectively as " Parties" in this Agreement.

2.       RECITALS.

2. 1 Consultant.

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.   Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing PARKING MACHINE
MAINTENANCE services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is familiar
with the plans of City.

2. 2 Project

City desires to engage Consultant to render parking machine maintenance services at the
Metrolink West Parking Structure located at 559 N. Citrus Avenue and at the Civic Center
Parking Structure located at 124 E. College Street ( collectively referred to as the " Project") as set

forth in this Agreement.

3.       TERMS.

3. 1 Scope of Services and Term.

3. 1. 1 General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to
the City all labor, materials,  tools, equipment, services,  and incidental and customary work
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional PARKING MACHINE
MAINTENANCE consulting services necessary for the Project  (" Services").  The Services are

more particularly described in Exhibit " A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
All Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, the exhibits
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal
laws, rules, and regulations.

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4

Attachment J, 22 Pages

105



3. 1. 2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from MARCH 12, 2016 to
MARCH 12, 2017, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Consultant shall complete the

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and
deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if
necessary to complete the Services.

3. 2 Responsibilities of Consultant.

3. 2. 1 Control and Payment of Subordinates;  Independent Contractor.  The
Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine

the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this
Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.
Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of
this Agreement.   Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under
Consultant' s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other
amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this
Agreement and as required by law.    Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and

obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security
taxes,  income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance,  and workers'
compensation insurance.

3. 2. 2 Schedule of Services. Consultant shall perform the Services expeditiously,
within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in
Exhibit " B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Consultant represents that it
has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance
with such conditions.   In order to facilitate Consultant' s conformance with the Schedule, City
shall respond to Consultant' s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Consultant
shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of
Services.

3. 2. 3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.   All work prepared by
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City.

3. 2. 4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to City that
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should

one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of
at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this
Agreement for cause.   As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the
Services in a manner acceptable to the City,  or who are determined by the City to be
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the
Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are
as follows: GLEN MOSSMAN.

09820 00000v8I 72285. i 2-

106



3. 2. 5 City' s Representative. The City hereby designates ANDREA MILLER,
CITY MANAGER, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this
Agreement (" City' s Representative").   City' s Representative shall have the power to act on
behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not accept direction or

orders from any person other than the City' s Representative or his or her designee.

3. 2. 6 Consultant' s Representative.   Consultant hereby designates GLEN

MOSSMAN, or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this
Agreement  (" Consultant' s Representative").     Consultant' s Representative shall have full
authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.

The Consultant' s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and
attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures

and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement.

3. 2. 7 Coordination of Services. Consultant agrees to work closely with City
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City' s staff, consultants and other
staff at all reasonable times.

3. 2. 8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees. Consultant shall perform all

Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of
California.   Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling
necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and subconsultants
shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.   Finally,
Consultant represents that it,  its employees and subconsultants have all licenses,  permits,

qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services,
including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained
throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this

Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement

from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the
Consultant' s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of
the Consultant or its sub- consultants who is determined by the City to be uncooperative,
incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of
persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner
acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall
not be re- employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project.

3. 2. 9 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall perform

and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 3. 1. 2 above
Performance Time"). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict accordance with any

completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits " A" or " B" attached hereto, or

which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant (" Performance

Milestones").  Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned

Performance Time and/or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to
provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer
damage.

09820 00000\ 8172285. 4 3-

107



3. 2. 10 Laws and Regulations;  Employee/ Labor Certifications.  Consultant shall

keep itself fully informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and
regulations in any manner affecting the performance of the Project or the Services, including all
Cal/ OSHA requirements, and shall give all notices required by law.  Consultant shall be liable
for all violations of such laws and regulations in connection with Services.   If the Consultant

performs any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without
giving written notice to the City, Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising
therefrom.   Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers,
employees, and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this

Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply
with such laws, rules or regulations.

3. 2. 10. 1 Employment Eligibility;   Consultant.    By executing this

Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements and restrictions of
state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, including, but not
limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended from time to
time.   Such requirements and restrictions include,  but are not limited to,  examination and

retention of documentation confirming the identity and immigration status of each employee of
the Consultant.  Consultant also verifies that it has not committed a violation of any such law
within the five ( 5) years immediately preceding the date of execution of this Agreement, and
shall not violate any such law at any time during the term of the Agreement.  Consultant shall

avoid any violation of any such law during the term of this Agreement by participating in an
electronic verification of work authorization program operated by the United States Department
of Homeland Security, by participating in an equivalent federal work authorization program
operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly
hired employees, or by some other legally acceptable method.  Consultant shall maintain records

of each such verification, and shall make them available to the City or its representatives for
inspection and copy at any time during normal business hours.  The City shall not be responsible
for any costs or expenses related to Consultant' s compliance with the requirements provided for
in Section 3. 2. 10 or any of its sub- sections.

3. 2. 10.2 Employment Eligibility;   Subcontractors,   Consultants,   Sub-

subcontractors and Subconsultants.  To the same extent and under the same conditions as

Consultant, Consultant shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, sub- subcontractors and

subconsultants performing any work relating to the Project or this Agreement to make the same
verifications and comply with all requirements and restrictions provided for in Section 3. 2. 10. 1.

3. 2. 10. 3 Employment Eligibility;   Failure to Comply.   Each person

executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant verifies that they are a duly authorized officer
of Consultant,  and understands that any of the following shall be grounds for the City to
terminate the Agreement for cause: ( 1) failure of Consultant or its subcontractors, consultants,

sub- subcontractors or subconsultants to meet any of the requirements provided for in Sections
3. 2. 10. 1 or 3. 2. 10. 2; ( 2) any misrepresentation or material omission concerning compliance with
such requirements ( including in those verifications provided to the Consultant under Section
3. 2. 10. 2); or ( 3) failure to immediately remove from the Project any person found not to be in
compliance with such requirements.

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4 4-

108



3. 2. 10. 4 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder,  Consultant

certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which
require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake
self- insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services.

3. 2. 10. 5 Equal Opportunity Employment. Consultant represents that it is
an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee
or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry,
sex or age.  Such non- discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination.   Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City' s Minority
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines
currently in effect or hereinafter enacted.

3. 2. 10. 6 Air Quality.  To the extent applicable, Consultant must fully
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in furnishing or using equipment and/ or
providing services, including, but not limited to, emissions limits and permitting requirements
imposed by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) and/ or California Air
Resources Board ( CARB).  Although the SCAQMD and CARB limits and requirements are
more broad, Consultant shall specifically be aware of their application to " portable equipment",
which definition is considered by SCAQMD and CARB to include any item of equipment with a
fuel- powered engine.  Consultant shall indemnify City against any fines or penalties imposed by
SCAQMD, CARB, or any other governmental or regulatory agency for violations of applicable
laws, rules and/or regulations by Consultant, its subconsultants, or others for whom Consultant is
responsible under its indemnity obligations provided for in this Agreement.

3. 2. 11 Insurance.

3. 2. 11. 1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence Services

under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all
insurance required under this Section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any subconsultant
to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that
the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this Section.

3. 2. 11. 2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall,  at its expense,

procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the Agreement by the Consultant,  its agents,  representatives,  employees or subconsultants.

Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance
for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum
levels of coverage:

A.       Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as
broad as the latest version of the following: ( 1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability coverage ( occurrence form CG 0001); ( 2) Automobile Liability:
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 ( any auto);

09820. 00000\ 8172285. 4 5-

109



and ( 3) Workers' Compensation and Employer' s Liability: Workers' Compensation insurance as
required by the State of California and Employer' s Liability Insurance.   The policy shall not
contain any exclusion contrary to the Agreement, including but not limited to endorsements or
provisions limiting coverage for ( 1) contractual liability (including but not limited to ISO CG 24
26 or 21 29); or( 2) cross liability for claims or suits by one insured against another.

B.       Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain
limits no less than: ( 1) General Liability:  $ 1, 000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage.   If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/ location or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $ 1, 000,000 per accident
for bodily injury and property damage;  and  ( 3)  Workers'  Compensation and Employer' s
Liability:  Workers'  Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California.  Employer' s Liability limits of$ 1, 000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
Defense costs shall be paid in addition to the limits.

C.       Notices; Cancellation or Reduction of Coverage.  At least

fifteen ( 15) days prior to the expiration of any such policy, evidence showing that such insurance
coverage has been renewed or extended shall be filed with the City.   If such coverage is
cancelled or materially reduced, Consultant shall, within ten ( 10) days after receipt of written
notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage, file with the City evidence of insurance
showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or has been provided through another
insurance company or companies.   In the event any policy of insurance required under this
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, the City
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid
by the City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or the City may withhold amounts
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments.  In the alternative, the City may suspend or
terminate this Agreement.

3. 2. 11. 3 Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain
the following provisions,  or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies:

A.       General Liability. The general liability policy shall include
or be endorsed  ( amended)  to state that:    ( 1)  using ISO CG forms 20 10 and 20 37,  or

endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the City of Covina, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to

the Services or ongoing and completed operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant,
including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work; and ( 2) using
ISO form 20 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the City,  its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the
Consultant' s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any excess insurance shall contain a provision that
such coverage shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis for the benefit of the City,
before the City' s own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a
named insured.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials,

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4 6-

110



officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant' s insurance and
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.  Notwithstanding the minimum limits
set forth in Section 3. 2. 11. 2( B), any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of coverage shall be available to the parties required to be named as additional
insureds pursuant to this Section 3. 2. 11. 4( A).

B.       Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall
include or be endorsed ( amended) to state that:   ( 1) the City, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the
ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and ( 2) the insurance
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City,  its directors,  officials,  officers,

employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage
excess of the Consultant' s scheduled underlying coverage.   Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall
be excess of the Consultant' s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any
way.   Notwithstanding the minimum limits set forth in Section 3. 2. 11. 2( B),  any available

insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of coverage shall be available to
the parties required to be named as additional insureds pursuant to this Section 3. 2. 11. 4( B).

C.       Workers'    Compensation and Employer' s Liability

Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the
insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant.

D.       All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  ( A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced
or canceled except after thirty ( 30) days ( 10 days for nonpayment of premium) prior written

notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City; and ( B) any failure
to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties,
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers.   Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies
including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officials,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or any other additional insureds.

3. 2. 11. 4 Separation of Insureds;  No Special Limitations;  Waiver of

Subrogation. All insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds
provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of
protection afforded to the City,  its directors,  officials,  officers,  employees,  agents,  and

volunteers.  All policies shall waive any right of subrogation of the insurer against the City, its
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any other additional insureds, or shall
specifically allow Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these
specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss.  Consultant hereby waives its own
right of recovery against City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any
other additional insureds, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses
from each of its subconsultants.

09820 000( 0\ 8172285. 4 7-

111



3. 2. 11. 5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any deductibles or
self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant shall guarantee

that, at the option of the City, either:  ( 1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or

self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers; or ( 2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and
related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

3. 2. 11. 6 Subconsultant Insurance Requirements.  Consultant shall not

allow any subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract relating to the work under the
Agreement until they have provided evidence satisfactory to the City that they have secured all
insurance required under this Section.    If requested by Consultant,  the City may approve
different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subconsultants.  The Consultant

and the City shall be named as additional insureds on all subconsultants' policies of Commercial
General Liability using ISO form 20 38, or coverage at least as broad.

3. 2. 11. 7 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A.M. Best' s rating no less than A: VIII, licensed to do business in California, and
satisfactory to the City.

3. 2. 11. 8 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish City with
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this
Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.   The certificates and endorsements for each

insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf,  and shall be on forms provided by the. City if requested.    All certificates and

endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any
time.

3. 2. 11. 9 Reporting of Claims.  Consultant shall report to the City,  in
addition to Consultant' s insurer,  any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in
connection with the Services under this Agreement.

3. 2. 12 Safety.  Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations,

and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  ( A) adequate life protection and life saving
equipment and procedures;  ( B)  instructions in accident prevention for all employees and

subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks,
confined space procedures,  trenching and shoring,  equipment and other safety devices,
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or
injuries; and ( C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety
measures.

3. 2. 13 Accounting Records.  Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate
records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such records

09820.00000\8 172285. 4 8-

112



shall be clearly identifiable.   Consultant shall allow a representative of City during normal
business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other
documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work,
data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three ( 3)
years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

3. 2. 14 Storm Water Management.

3. 2. 14. 1 Generally.   Storm, surface, nuisance, or other waters may be
encountered at various times during the Services.  Consultant hereby acknowledges that it has
investigated the risk arising from such waters, and assumes any and all risks and liabilities
arising therefrom.

3. 2. 14. 2 Compliance with Water Quality Laws,   Ordinances and

Regulations.   Consultant shall keep itself and all subcontractors, staff, and employees fully
informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations that
may impact, or be implicated by the performance of the Services including, without limitation,
all applicable provisions of the City' s ordinances regulating water quality and storm water; the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act ( 33 U.S. C. § 1251 et seq); the California Porter-Cologne
Water Quality Control Act (Water Code § 13000 et seq.); and any and all regulations, policies, or
permits issued pursuant to any such authority.   Consultant shall additionally comply with the
lawful requirements of the City, and any other municipality, drainage district, or other local
agency with jurisdiction over the location where the Services are to be conducted, regulating
water quality and storm water discharges.

3. 2. 14. 3 Standard of Care.  Consultant warrants that all employees and
subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them
without impacting water quality in violation of the laws, regulations and policies described in
Sections 3. 2. 14 of this Agreement.   Consultant further warrants that it,  its employees and

subcontractors have or will receive adequate training, as determined by the City, regarding these
requirements as they may relate to the Services, and will provide the City with documentation of
training acceptable to the City on request.

3. 2. 14. 4 Liability for Non-compliance.

A)     Indemnity:   Failure to comply with laws, regulations, and
ordinances listed in Section 3. 2. 14 of this Agreement is a violation of federal and state law.

Notwithstanding any other indemnity contained in this Agreement,  Consultant agrees to

indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees and authorized
volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, losses or liabilities of any kind or
nature which the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees and authorized volunteers may
sustain or incur for noncompliance with the laws, regulations, and ordinances listed above,

arising out of or in connection with the Services, except for liability resulting from the sole
established negligence, willful misconduct or active negligence of the City, its officials, officers,
agents, employees or authorized volunteers.

09820.00000\ 8172285 4 9-

113



B)      Defense:  City reserves the right to defend any enforcement
action or civil action brought against the City for Consultant' s failure to comply with any
applicable water quality law, regulation, or policy.  Consultant hereby agrees to be bound by, and
to reimburse the City for the costs associated with, any settlement reached between the City and
the relevant enforcement entity.

C)      Damages:   City may seek damages from Consultant for
delay in completing the Services caused by Consultant' s failure to comply with the laws,
regulations and policies described in Section 3. 2. 14 of this Agreement, or any other relevant
water quality law, regulation, or policy.

3. 3 Fees and Payments.

3. 3. 1 Compensation.   Consultant shall receive compensation,   including
authorized reimbursements,  for all Services rendered under this Agreement.    The total

compensation shall not exceed THREE THOUSAND, SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS

3, 750) without written approval of the CITY MANAGER.  Extra Work may be authorized, as
described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this

Agreement.

3. 3. 2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to City a statement for
the services.  City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review the statement and
pay all approved charges thereon.

3. 3. 3 Reimbursement for Expenses. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any
expenses unless authorized in writing by City.

3. 3. 4 Extra Work. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may
request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, " Extra Work" means any work

which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which
the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.
Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization

from City' s Representative.

3. 3. 5 Prevailing Wages. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California
Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations,

Title 8,  Section 16000,  et seq.,  (" Prevailing Wage Laws"),  which require the payment of

prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on  " public works"  and

maintenance" projects.   If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable " public

works" or " maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and IF the total
compensation is $ 1, 000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage
Laws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in
effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing
rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the

Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant' s

principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold

09820.00000\ 8I 72285. 4 10-

114



the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

3. 3. 6 Registration. Effective March 1, 2015, if the Services are being performed
as part of an applicable " public works" or " maintenance" project, then pursuant to Labor Code

Sections 1725. 5 and 1771. 1, the Consultant and all subconsultants performing such Services
must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations.   Consultant shall maintain

registration for the duration of the Project and require the same of any subconsultants,  as
applicable.  This Project may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the
Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant' s sole responsibility to comply with
all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements.

3. 4 Termination of Agreement.

3. 4. 1 Grounds for Termination.  City may,  by written notice to Consultant,
terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving
written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at
least seven ( 7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant

shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and
Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.   Consultant may not terminate this
Agreement except for cause.

3. 4. 2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein,

City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and other
information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of Services
under this Agreement.    Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other
information within fifteen ( 15) days of the request.

3. 4. 3 Additional Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated in whole or

in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may
determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated.

3. 5 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality.

3. 5. 1 Documents & Data: Licensing of Intellectual Property. This Agreement
creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or sublicense
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications,
studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible
medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically or
otherwise recorded on computer diskettes,  which are prepared or caused to be prepared by
Consultant under this Agreement (" Documents & Data").  All Documents & Data shall be and

remain the property of City, and shall not be used in whole or in substantial part by Consultant
on other projects without the City' s express written permission.    Within thirty  ( 30)  days

following the completion,  suspension,  abandonment or termination of this Agreement,

Consultant shall provide to City reproducible copies of all Documents & Data, in a form and
amount required by City.  City reserves the right to select the method of document reproduction

00000\ 81722857228 . 4 1 1-

115



and to establish where the reproduction will be accomplished.  The reproduction expense shall be
borne by City at the actual cost of duplication.  In the event of a dispute regarding the amount of
compensation to which the Consultant is entitled under the termination provisions of this
Agreement,  Consultant shall provide all Documents &  Data to City upon payment of the
undisputed amount.  Consultant shall have no right to retain or fail to provide to City any such
documents pending resolution of the dispute.  In addition, Consultant shall retain copies of all
Documents & Data on file for a minimum of fifteen ( 15) years following completion of the
Project,  and shall make copies available to City upon the payment of actual reasonable
duplication costs.   Before destroying the Documents & Data following this retention period,
Consultant shall make a reasonable effort to notify City and provide City with the opportunity to
obtain the documents.

3. 5. 2 Subconsultants.  Consultant shall require all subconsultants to agree in
writing that City is granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for any Documents & Data the
subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.     Consultant represents and warrants that
Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data.  Consultant makes no
such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data which were prepared by design
professionals other than Consultant or its subconsultants, or those provided to Consultant by the
City.

3. 5. 3 Right to Use. City shall not be limited in any way in its use or reuse of the
Documents and Data or any part of them at any time for purposes of this Project or another
project, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement or on a
project other than this Project without employing the services of Consultant shall be at City' s
sole risk. If City uses or reuses the Documents & Data on any project other than this Project, it
shall remove the Consultant' s seal from the Documents & Data and indemnify and hold harmless
Consultant and its officers, directors, agents and employees from claims arising out of the
negligent use or re- use of the Documents & Data on such other project.   Consultant shall be
responsible and liable for its Documents & Data, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, only
with respect to the condition of the Documents & Data at the time they are provided to the City
upon completion, suspension, abandonment or termination.  Consultant shall not be responsible
or liable for any revisions to the Documents & Data made by any party other than Consultant, a
party for whom the Consultant is legally responsible or liable, or anyone approved by the
Consultant.

3. 5. 4 Indemnification. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the
indemnification provisions of this Agreement,  for any alleged infringement of any patent,
copyright, trade secret, trade name, trademark, or any other proprietary right of any person or
entity in consequence of the use on the Project by City of the Documents & Data, including any
method, process, product, or concept specified or depicted.

3. 5. 5 Confidentiality. All Documents & Data, either created by or provided to
Consultant in connection with the performance of this Agreement, shall be held confidential by
Consultant.  All Documents & Data shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used
or reproduced by Consultant for any purposes other than the performance of the Services.
Consultant shall not disclose, cause or facilitate the disclosure of the Documents & Data to any

09820.00000\ 81 7225i 4 12-

116



person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.   Nothing
furnished to Consultant that is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has
become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.   Consultant shall not use

City' s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other
similar medium without the prior written consent of City.

3. 6 General Provisions.

3. 6. 1 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this

Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

Consultant:

PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.

216 Technology Drive, Unit C
Irvine, CA 92618

Attn: Glenn Mossman

City:
City of Covina
125 E. College St.

Covina, CA 91723

Attn:  Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty- eight
48) hours after deposit in the U. S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice
occurred, regardless of the method of service.

3. 6.2 Indemnification.

3. 6. 2. 1 Scope of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action,
costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or
persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any
alleged acts, errors or omissions of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors,
consultants or agents in connection with the performance of the Consultant' s Services,  the
Project or this Agreement,  including without limitation the payment of all consequential
damages,  expert witness fees and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Consultant' s Services are subject to Civil Code
Section 2782. 8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code
Section 2782. 8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of the Consultant.

09820 00000\ 8I 72285. 4 13-

117



3. 6. 2. 2 Additional Indemnity Obligations. Consultant shall defend, with
Counsel of City' s choosing and at Consultant' s own cost, expense and risk, any and all claims,
suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by Section 3. 6. 2. 1 that may be brought
or instituted against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents.
Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against
City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such
claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Consultant shall also reimburse City for the cost of any
settlement paid by City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers as part
of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Such reimbursement shall include payment

for City' s attorney' s fees and costs, including expert witness fees.  Consultant shall reimburse

City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/ or volunteers, for any and all
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the
indemnity herein provided.   Consultant' s obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received
by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

3. 6. 3 Governing Law; Government Code Claim Compliance. This Agreement
shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue shall be in Los Angeles County.
In addition to any and all contract requirements pertaining to notices of and requests for
compensation or payment for extra work, disputed work, claims and/ or changed conditions,

Consultant must comply with the claim procedures set forth in Government Code sections 900 et
seq.  prior to filing any lawsuit against the City.   Such Government Code claims and any
subsequent lawsuit based upon the Government Code claims shall be limited to those matters

that remain unresolved after all procedures pertaining to extra work, disputed work, claims,
and/ or changed conditions have been followed by Consultant.   If no such Government Code

claim is submitted, or if any prerequisite contractual requirements are not otherwise satisfied as
specified herein,  Consultant shall be barred from bringing and maintaining a valid lawsuit
against the City.

3. 6.4 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision of
this Agreement.

3. 6. 5 City' s Right to Employ Other Consultants. City reserves right to employ
other consultants in connection with this Project.

3. 6. 6 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the
successors and assigns of the parties.

3. 6. 7 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign,  hypothecate,  or

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the
prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees,
hypothecatees or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted
assignment, hypothecation or transfer.

3. 6. 8 Construction; References; Captions. Since the Parties or their agents have

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4 14-

118



term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not
work days.    All references to Consultant include all personnel,  employees,  agents,  and

subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to

City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise
specified in this Agreement.   The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope,
content or intent of this Agreement.

3. 6.9 Amendment; Modification. No supplement, modification or amendment of

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties.

3. 6. 10 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.   No waiver, benefit,

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise.

3. 6. 11 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except to the extent expressly provided for
in Section 3. 6.7, there are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed
by the Parties.

3. 6. 12 Invalidity;  Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

3. 6. 13 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic

Interest with the City' s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the
Services.   For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this
Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of

City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.

3. 6. 14 Cooperation;  Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary,
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

3. 6. 15 Attorney' s Fees.  If either party commences an action against the other
party,  either legal,  administrative or otherwise,  arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the
losing party reasonable attorney' s fees and all other costs of such action.

3. 6. 16 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4 15-

119



warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party.

3. 6. 17 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original.

3. 6. 18 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof,  and supersedes all prior negotiations,
understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by
both parties.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE

09820.00000\ 8172285, 4 16-

120



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINA

AND PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the FIFTH
day of APRIL, 2016.

City:     Contractor:

City of Covina,       PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.,
a California municipal corporation a California corporation

By:
Name: Andrea M. Miller Name„,o ff G. t45/4s-- i

Title: City Manager Title:  Chairman e-'President
o Vice President

Attest:

By:  000.
1111)

By:     Name:
Name: Sharon F. Clark Title: & Secretary  Asst. Secreta'
Title: Chief Deputy City Clerk Chief Finance Officer o Asst. Treasurer

Approved as to Form:      Two signatures required for corporations pursuant to
California Corporations Code Section 313,  unless

corporate documents authorize only one person to sign
this Agreement on behalf of the corporation.]

By:
Name: Candice K. Lee

Title: City Attorney

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4 17-

121



EXHIBIT " A"

SCOPE OF SERVICES

PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
tib _   Total Parking Solutions

January 4, 2016

City of Covina
Metro Link& Downtown Structure)

Attn.: Anne

Our records indicate that youryearty extended warranty and preventative
maintenance contract is due to expire an March 11, 2016

Attached you wit find a copy of the 16'- 17' contract, to avoid any interruption of
service, please contact our office at your earliest convenience or send your

renewal purchase order prior to the expiration date.

We have appreciated working with you this past year and look forward to another
productive year working together.

Thank you.

09820.00000\ 8I 72285. 4 18-

122



PACIFIC PARKING SYSTEMS, INC.
Total Parking Solutions

The following is an Extended Warranty and Preventative Maintenance Agreement for the
M400Pay Stadans. Pacific Parking Systems, Inc., upon acceptance of this agreement
will provide the following services at machine locations.

L Thermal Printer.

A.     Clean all debris from any parts.
B.      Feld test tidet issuance

C Confirm ticket akgrvnent

II.     MR Acceptor:

A.     dean al belts, sensors, and drive wheels with alcohol

B.      Feld test bill acceptance

C Cnnfrm all dip switch settings

III.    Coin Acceptor:

A.     deal sensors and con track

B.      Reid test coin acceptance

C fbnfrm al switch settings

IV.    Credit Card Reader( Ifapplicable):
A.     dean reader pathway
B.      Reid test card acceptance

V.     Battery/ Solar.
Batteries are a consumable item. The battery is the responsibility of the
customer. Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. will check for the following:

A.     Chedc and record battery level.
B.     Check all electrical corrections

C.     Verify solar witages

VZ Display:
A.      Inspect display contrast, adjust if needed
B.     Inspect and confirm backlight

C.     Check to insure display is functioning properly

VII.   Keypad/ Buttons:

A Inspect keypad functionality, insure buttons working prey

VIII.  Lubricate dra rer slides and lock assemblies

09820.00000\ 8172285. 4 19-

123



IX Check and tighten as needed, all frame bolts and screws

X.       Steps I-IX to be performed( 4) times annually for preventative
maintenance.

XI.     Replacement ofany components necessary to put back in operation or
prevent foreseen failure due to faulty component at "No Charge".

XII.    Any field service call required to comply with items XI is at2.61g
Charge"

XIII.  Program changes-( 1) one program change per year covered under

contract, any additional changes will be chargeable.  This includes rate

changes, wording changes, tickets, changes, etc.

XIV.    Technical phone support Monday- Friday 7:30am to 5pm PST Ca)( 800)

663-7008

XV.     Items not covered by this agreement:

A.       Vandalism or misuse.

B.       Obsolete parts by the manufacturers
C.       Upgrades

D.       Pedestal and case.

E.       Revenues lost due to "down" machine.

F.       Consumable items.

G.       Parts used in machine, which are not made or supplied by Pacific Parking
Systems, Inc

H.       After hours phone support, Monday ( Friday, 5pm to 7: 30am) - Additional

charge

I. Weekend & Holiday phone support- Additional charge

J. This contract covers hardware only and only hardware that is resident to
the pay station cabinet

09820.00000\ 8172285 4 20-

124



EXHIBIT " B"

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

XVI.   Service to be conducted weekdays during normal business hours( Monday
through Friday 8 a.m. to 5p.m.).  Same day response will be made when
possible.

09820.00000\ 8I 72281. 4 2 1-

125



N
PACIF-7 OP ID: SN

ACORODATE(MWODIYYYY)

ki.,----, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 02/23/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the      •
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).    i

PRODUCER CONTACTCOSandy Schiobohm
BOSWELL INSURANCE AGENCY PHONE849. 855. 0430

FAX

Agents& Brokers Inc( 0A98080)  ac No. Fan 949- 855- 0430 No 949-582-2983
26461 Crown Valle' Pkwy# 200 akiADDRESSI sandy@boswellinsurance.com
Mission Viejo CA 92891
Joe A. Boswell

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIL If

INSURER A: Ohio Security Insurance Co 24074

INSURED Pacific Parking Systems Inc INSURER a: American Fire& Casualty 24068

Glenn Mossman
INSURER C: State Compensation Ins. Fund 35076

216 Technology, Unit C
Irvine, CA 92718

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F1

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:   REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSjt
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL SUER'       POUCY EFF POUCY EXP

LIMITSLTffccWSD WVD POLICY NUMBER MWDDNYYYI ( MWDDIYYYY)

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE S 1, 000,000

n BKS56370496 02/20/2016 02120/ 2017
OAMAGETORENTI:b 600,000

CLAIMS- MADE I I OCCUR PREMISEStEaoeeurrence)   S

MED EXP( Anyone person)   S 15,000

PERSONAL S/ WV INJURY S 1, 000,000

GENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:     
GENERAL AGGREGATE S 2,000,000

POLICY n jE&  E LOC PRODUCTS• COMP/OP AGO 3 2,000, 000

OTHER.
S

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S 1. 000,000Es accidenll

B X ANY AUTO BAS56370496 0212012016 02/20/ 2017 BODILY INJURY( Per person)  S

ALL OWNED X SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accident) S

X
AUTOS       — 

NONOWNED PROPERTYDAMAGE S
HIRED AUTOS  _ AUTOS

Per sodden!)     

S

UMBRELLA UAB X OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE       $ 1, 000,000

B X EXCESS UAB I CLAIMS-MADE ESA56370496 02120/2016 02120/ 2017 AGGREGATE 1, 000, 00_0

OED RETENTIONS
S

WORKERS COMPENSATION X I STATUTE Pr
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY

C ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE
Y

NIA
9132648 09/01/ 2015 09/01/ 2016 E. L. EACH ACCIDENT S 1, 000,000

Mandatory

In
ERNH)

EXCLUDED? 1E.L DISEASE• EA EMPLOYEE 5 1, 000,000
In NN}

II yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT 5 1, 000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I VEHICLES( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If mare space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

COVIN- 3
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Covina
Finance Department

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Attn: Records Supervisor
125 E. College btunc t J

la. 0-“,u'!VO'  14-.-
ICovina, CA 91723

1988.2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2014/ 01)     The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

126



ITEM NO. CC 9

CITY OF COVINA

kA.       AGENDA REPORT
MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Resolution No. 16- 7469 Accepting an Easement on an Existing
Alley for Public Street and Highway Purposes Associated with
Development of Property at 642 & 656 E. San Bernardino Road

PRESENTED BY:       Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

RECOMMENDATION:      Adopt Resolution No.  16- 7469 accepting an easement on an
existing alley for public street and highway purposes associated
with the development of property at 642 & 656 E. San Bernardino
Road.

BACKGROUND:

On October 1, 2015, the Community Development Department administratively approved Site
Plan Review Case ( SPR) 15- 011 to permit the development of a 2, 496 square- foot religious
center and associated parking on a 0.68 acre property located at 642 & 656 E. San Bernardino
Road.   The property is located in the " C- 5 Commercial — Specified Highway" zone ( APNs:
8429-012- 029, 8429- 012- 030).  Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 17. 46.030 of the Covina
Municipal Code ( C- 5 Zone), churches are a permitted use.   Therefore, the religious center

project did not require a discretionary approval and was subject to only staff-level administrative
review( Site Plan Review).

DISCUSSION:

As part of the approval, the proposed development was conditioned to dedicate the southerly
two and one- half (2- 1/ 2) feet of the subject property along the existing alley to the City of
Covina for alley widening purposes, as depicted on the site map contained in Exhibit A of the
Easement Deed  ( Attachment B).    The property owner and developer have submitted the
executed street dedication documents to the City for formal acceptance.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is nominal fiscal impact to the City associated with the acceptance of the street
dedication.  The approved plans for the development call for the applicant to remove and replace
full reconstruction) the north half of the alley within the limits of the development, including the

additional 2 %2 feet of new dedication.  While the City will be responsible for future on-going
maintenance of the 2 1/ 2 feet of pavement, the costs will be nominal given the alley pavement will
be fully reconstructed as part of the project.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

During the review process in 2015, the Planning Division determined that the proposed project
qualified for a Categorical Exemption from environmental review under Section 15303, Class
3( c) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.

127



Respect lly sub  '  ed,

Siobhan Foste

Director of Public Works

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Location Map
Attachment B: 642 & 656 E. San Bernardino Road Easement Deed

Attachment C: Resolution No. 16- 7469

128



I'.. 1' e
j

a
4 a

ji..

a

1
I

ryT.     1It 4 aCI

CZ

re5.      
O

m uQFYy1 0
L'1    tY 9'((

ems': ' 1.,     A O
U kir Jeri"  C F a

iw 7 n, hFiNg t
I.   Q

1 re

0 ,..,      a,. 
t I

2

4yZyy I-   

CO

LLJ V)
SI_.      •

fit
i I

0r,`.      N

i

S
i.   a  ).   

f      !    
l^

I wl

LIe

41

Ili   `
n 3:.  

J`      
Q ao

e

r

ruv cr

1'     

o

v..      '   

1     ,   

N

ift

ul

N

A..

4', -

4, ( 71h  ..       ani p o adsad a)
m

1 r
o

11 , 40:14-i,  
I

L 4,. 11,:-. 1•'''.,- 1• 01•,' ',''    
my_ LAY' ,

lia
7:

12.
4

K  .      s
ice Ar

u

NMIMIIIIMMII

Attat A, 1 Page

129



Recording requested by:
City of Covina
When recorded mall to:

City Clerk
City of Covina
125 E. College Street
Covina, CA 91723. 2199

Recording Fee: Exempt
Government Code- Section 6103)

Space above this line for Recorder' s use)

EASEMENT

Assessor's Parcel Number: 8429-012-029 p All
x] Portion

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

TRUE BUDDHADHARMA CENTER, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION

hereby GRANTS to the CITY OF COVINA, a municipal corporation an easement for Public Street and
Highway purposes and all other uses appurtenant thereto, in, over, under, along, and across the real
property located in the City of Covina, County of Los Angeles, State of California described in the
following:

THE SOUTHERLY 2. 50 FEET OF PARCEL 2 OF PARCEL MAP NO. 509, AS PER MAP FILED IN
BOOK 15, PAGE 99 OF PARCEL MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID
COUNTY,

TO BE KNOWN AS ALLEY.

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND OTHER MATTERS OF RECORDS, IF ANY.

and shown on Exhibit" A" which exhibits are made a part of this document.

Dated:     1/ 2--0( 6 The above legal description was prepared

By me or under my directions.

a L LAND 6,,Or-

4tjAcKG- EE
Kuo-H ing Wu o
True Buddha- Dharma Center, A California Corporation aEXp6= t0

NO 9407
g-

CITY ACCEPTANCE STATEMENT E of cA"

This is to certify that the interest in the real property conveyed by the within instrument to the City of
Covina, California, a municipal corporation, is hereby accepted by order of the City Council, and
grantee consents to the recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer.

CITY OF COVINA

By:
City Clerk Date

Attachment B, 3 Pages

130



NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE
VERIFIES ONLY THE IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE
DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED,  AND NOT THE
TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, OR VALIDITY OF THAT DOCUMENT.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA       }
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES }       

ON ,6 I
i,6 B FORE ME 40 t'  1/ 046 Nei         G

PER$ ONALL RED

BEFORE
GA- 

WHO PROVED TO ME ON TH BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE

PERSON(    WHOSE NAME(S' C' -    SUTACRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT,

KNAND ACKNOWLEDGED TaO   '     THATISH EXECUTED T SAME A_
f HEFj ME"1R AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(' AND THAT BY CP E     - MR
STGNATURE(( ON THE INSTRUMENT T PERSON(' OR THE NTITY UPON

BEHALF OF WHICH THE PERSONACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.

I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL

SEAL74/    w"   LINO 601 VUONG
COMM. # 1995345

et
o r ' b.,

Notary Public. California
SIGNATUREjoavita_e___

sir_ 
z    _    y Los Angeles County

c

r/    

it,,,  M Comm. Ex Nov. 22, 2016

NAME L/ 40 v dei

131



EXHIBIT  ' A'

EASEMENT PLAT i
W z
Iw>

Q ROAD

SAN
BERNARDINO

401. 60'

N8534'36" E

IN
igo

SCALE 1' = 20'

1S
OWNER:

90.26'     
True Buddha- Dharma Center

656 E. San Bernardino Road
N6534' 36•E Covina. California

626- 457- 9157

i,f

tow

DEDICATION NOTES:

INDICATES EASEMENT TO
CRY OF covwu

PARCEL 2

PM NO.  509

PMB 15/ 99 NOTE:

THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED

APN:  8429- 012- 029
FROM RECORD DATA PER
PM NO. 509, PMB 15/ 99.

Fi
N LAND

Lu
8.     JACK C. LEE i

t EXP. 6- 30- 2016

N0. 8407

7/// ///// 7// 

J?

4TfOF CALF\

N89•46•431 90.00'
0

N

ALLEY 0

I

CAL LAND ENGINEERING,  INC.

dba QUARTECH CONSULTANTS C  ZGC. e."      EASEMENT

576 E. LAMBERT ROAD
BREA, CA 92821 Jock C. Lee PLS 8407 642 & 656 E. San Bernardino Road

714)671- 105DJuly 14, 2015
Covina, California

714)671- 1090 FAX

132



RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7469

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COVINA,  CALIFORNIA,  ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT ON AN

ALLEY FOR STREET AND HIGHWAY PURPOSES ASSOCIATED
WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY AT 642 & 656 E. SAN

BERNARDINO ROAD

WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California(" City"); and

WHEREAS, an application was submitted to the City of Covina in order to develop a
2,496 square- foot temple building and associated parking on a 0.68 acre property; and

WHEREAS, Site Plan Review( SPR) 15- 011, a 2,496 square- foot temple building and
associated parking on a 0. 68 acre property was principally approved administratively by the
Community Development Department on October 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, it has been found that SPR 15- 011 conforms to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS, SPR 15- 011 was conditioned to dedicate the southerly two and one-half( 2-
1/ 2) feet of the subject property along the existing alley to the City of Covina for alley widening
purposes; and

WHEREAS, the property owner and developer have submitted the executed easement
dedication documents to the City for formal acceptance; and

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council does hereby find that SPR 15- 011 conforms to CEQA.

SECTION 2. The City Council does hereby approve and accept the dedication of an
easement for public street and highway purposes for the southerly two and one-half( 2- 1/ 2) feet
of the subject property along the existing alley to the City of Covina for alley widening purposes
located at 642 & 656 E. San Bernardino Road.

SECTION 3. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution.

APPROVED AND PASSED this
5th

day of April 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

Attathment C, 2 Pages

133



ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7469 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the day of 20_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

134



ITEM NO. CC 10

CITY OF COVINA
r.

AGENDA REPORT
MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Resolution No. 16- 7472 Approving and Recordation of Tract Map
No. 73397 " Lark Ellen Villas"; 501 Lark Ellen Avenue

PRESENTED BY:       Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

RECOMMENDATION:      Adopt Resolution No. 16- 7472 approving the recordation of Tract
Map No. 73397 " Lark Ellen Villas"; 501 Lark Ellen Avenue

BACKGROUND:

The applicant, Grovelands 2002 LLC, submitted a Tentative Tract Map ( TTM) 73397 to the City
of Covina in 2015.  The proposed project named " Lark Ellen Villas" consists of a 1. 1 acre site
located at 501 Lark Ellen Avenue that is fully developed with 23 residential units in five
separate buildings with associated drive aisles, parking stalls, and landscaped areas.  The City
Council approved the Tentative Tract Map on August 18, 2015 to convert the existing 23
residential units to for-sale condominium units.

DISCUSSION:

The City Engineer has reviewed the Tract Map and has determined that all conditions for the
approval of Tract Map No. 73397 have been met.  As required by Section 16. 12. 040 ( Tenant
provisions) the Covina Municipal Code, the applicant has provided the various noticing to the
City and existing tenants within the complex and as shown in Attachment C.  Approval of the

Tract Map by the City Council will allow recordation of the map by Los Angeles County;
completing the subdivision process.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City associated with the approval of Tract Map No. 73397.

CEQA( CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

During the review process in 2015, the City Council found that the proposed project does not
meet the definition of a " project" as defined in California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA)
Guidelines Section 15378.  Further, the City Council determined that the proposed project would
be Categorically Exempt in accordance with Section 15301( k), Class 1 of the CEQA Guidelines.

Respectful submi d,

Siobhan Foster

Director of Public Works

135



ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Location Map
Attachment B:  Tract Map No. 73397
Attachment C: Resolution No. 16- 7472

Attachment D: Condominium Conversion Notices to Tenants

136



Location Map
501 N. Lark Ellen Avenue

N P
4

e

ft

IIT

r

W

i. w

li;
J

Y

L 4

w

iY
144.

SAN BERNARDINO RD

W r

y  ii   
r ur     - p

145.77 Feet
Citrus

ypl,Ci
ldd e

S Cavu a
r 5 t

P• e
n

so, i3M

Attachment A, 1 Page

137



SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS
1 LOT TRACT NO.  73397
46,107 SQ. FT.

IN THE CITY OF COVINA

i COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF LOT 3
OF FRACTIONAL SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH,
RANGE 10 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN.

FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES

JACK C. LEE, LS 8407 DECEMBER, 2014

OWNER' S STATEMENT:

K HOMY STATE THAT K AK TIC NMER6 W OR ARE NIDRiTWD N TE LAWNS INO1DD
MN TIC WANISION SDN1 ON TNS MAP N11W 11E INS NC1M ENDO UO, AND K
CONSENT TO me PRDARA1IO MD/ I1140 OF SAD MAP AND S NPASIC 1

OOVOANDS Iona LLA. A CAUMMA LED UNITY COPANY( OMEN)     
SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT:

MS MAP WAS PREMED BY K CO UDEN MY OIIKC110N AND IS NASD UPON A FIELD C.M1eY M
CCIOINIANCE WIN TIC REOUIROINTS OF THE SOIMSNNI MAP ACT AND LOCAL ORDINANCE AT
TE MUM OF ANN K661 ON 0EOOCEN 2a 2014. I HN1® Y STATE THAT AM. TC MOSI1011N

JOHN NM( MAMAOo! ARID IOMSER)   
AN Cf NE CHARACTER MO CCOPY ME POSITIONS ROCKS) WI NAT THEY TILL BE ET IN
HOSE PORTIONS MIN TIORY- FOUR-/OLIN MO/DK SROM M UMBO DATE Cr THC MAP. AND THAT
TC MOIRIOTS ARE OR NIL IL SUMMIT 10 ENABLE 1NE SRVEY TO K RETRACED. AND

FIAP Y COSMO TO TM
ATM
M E

TENTATIVEAPPROVED:      THIS
STATE THAT IS= X COMPLETE

SELLS FARO INC. N. A. AS SEEMS Mt TE KCNOID HOLDERS OF IRDS SIM FUST
NEON IMMIX= Ann COM. comma Kama PASS- TNORN CERIWCATE; us

INES 2005- 04, OOOIOARY UNDER A D® OF' MUST RECORDED MAY 2, 2006. AS DO0R01T
N0. 06- 0I61542 0 OFFICIAL RECORDS.  

SEE--- AdC166

PANT NAIL
re. 9.. 10- 014

Ess
TTE TITLE IM. NN

ACK C. III LS NW r<

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: SINN 6- 30- 205
l'

A NOTARY PICUC OR 071401 01110*COIMIEINO TK CDR1ICAlE( CICS OILY TC IDENTITY
OF TIE IO D SINE TINUAL MSE DOCUMENT TO NM TM COMICA1E K KATTACHED, ANOT CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT:
IN TRITIUNISS, ACCURACY. O VAUNT W TUT DOCUMENT.

I MN/ STATE THAT I HAVE DIMS O The MAP TUT TC SUMMON AS 81411* E
SRSTANIIALLY THE INC AS IT APPEARED OI TIE IENTATW MAP AND ANY APPROVED

STATE OF CALAOOIA   ) ALM MONS T40001; TUT AU. MONNNIE OF TE SIIDINION MAP ACT MD OF MY LOCAL
COUNTY OF LOS MIMES ) MONSOON CEINAINES CO TE COY OF OEM APPUCABLE AT TC 1110 OF APPROVAL OF

TE TDTAIIIC MAP HAYS INN CONED NM AND TUT I AM UNPIN TUT SNS MAP R
ON WWI
LE0•17716-      . ND PROM TO Ik 0011 1 e BASIS OF

TECHNICALLY CORRECT.

IATTKKACIORY MOM 10 IE TE PERSONS) NOW

MNAYE( 
IS/ ARE SIBIORMD TO TE i

1511* NSTTNICIIT AND NONE= 10 IC TUT 000T1D TC SAYE N
M6/ NOVNIN AMINO= CAPACITIES). AN TUT BY N5AER/ TO! SIGNATURES) CO 6Z'     ). AVD a KSoOBOM. CITY DOWER

I TleTlTIN

RTIC
I'      O t TIC ENTITY UPON BOWE OF M N TIE PERSONS)   LS/ 011 0610*06- 30- 2017yTHE

OR   « T

I CERTIFY UDM PENALTY OF PENURY UDEN THE U.K OF THE STATE OF CAUFONA NAT Er MMA

IC 70E00115 PARA* APH C TRUE ND CORKCT.

MESS MY HAND AID O CIAL NAL
CITY CLERK' S CERTIFICATE:

I HEREBY COMFY TUT TC CITY OOUIICA. OP TC OTT OF COMNA OI
COIA1TRE APPROVE NM YAP.

MY PRNOPAL PLACE OF MAW IS N LW ANON COUNTY.

MY COMMMII0 UPON

its-     MARY LOU WALCZAK- CITY CEEB
A NOTARY PMOL OR OTOS MISR CO* LENO THIS CERIBOATE MUSES OLY TE OMIT(
OF NE IDINNIAL NO SEED THE DOCUMENT TO 15601 165 M0110A1E IS ATTACKED. AND NOT
NE 1RU14ULNON ACCURACY. O VAIDOY OF THAT DOCUMENT. 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT STATEMENT:

S TATE OF CMIORMIA   ) I HONE STATE THAT ALL SPECIAL All LEND UDEN THE ARIOK: 1O1 OF THE OTT
NMI OF LOS ANGELES ) OF CDW1A 10 WOW IN LAID MOND N TE M1N SRDIIMSOI ON AMY PART TEKO C

BWAICT. AND 15401 MAY K PAD M RRL HAW DIM PAD N ML.
ONPOINNALLYK ONOT

ND MEWDTo ME OI TC
BAMS OF MTIIACTORY NODE TO K TC PENES NM MARE(6) IS/ AK
OUNCE= 10 TC MINI II1* UNN NO ACKNOMDMT TO YE THAT HE/SNE/THEY
OEU11D TC SNC N HIMER/ TOI AUTHORED CAPACITIES). ND TUT BY I  -      MARY LOU WALWAK- OTT am(

LEMmwom
aimmulum at aa INSTRUMENT lle PERSONS). atON OF NIMH TC PO1501(5) ACTED. NECUID TC INSTRUMENT. TE MIT UPON

I COMFY WON PENALTY OF PENN UDEN TIC LAK OF THE STATE OF CMIONA THAT CONDOMINIUM NOTE:
Tc mama PMA* ARI C TISK AND OMECT.

IMAM MY INC ND OFPIWL SEN.  NIM SUEOMSON IS APPROVED AS A CO OMESI S PROJECT FOR 23 UNITS SEEM TE
ONES Of TE INN OFF AR SPACE SILL HOLD AN UNDIVIDED WENN N TC COMMON

IONATUK AREAS THAT CU. Al 1U/ 6 PRONE THE NECESSARY ACCESS AND MUTT EAOIDIIS FOR

MY PINLiAL PLACE OF MIME M N LOS NINES COUNTY.

MY COMICS MOVIES:
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

SIGNATURE OMISSION NOTES:      THE KARNE BION IONS ARE CUD ON NE SUMO NODSOot OF M COMMUNE 01
LAMA MEN AVON AS SIGN 01 MAP OF REND OF SUNNY MUM SI NOOK 135, PADS 27

TE ISDATSE(S) OF TE PARTES NEED HOONMIO AS CODS OF THE NIGKST SET CF ROOM Cr NNWY. KCODS CF TK COUNTY OF LOS A1101111

FORTH HAW MN OEM UNDER PROVISION OF KCTOE 61436( s).TA( I- K) OF THE
15.   104 MAP ACT, TER 1110*1 C SUOI TUT IT CAN NOT 1556104 INTO A FEE 1111E
ND NAD WOIATRL(S) AK NOT WOOED BY TC LOCAL AODCY.

ARRA MOANS COMPANY. A MOOR1SIOL SUCCESSOR OR ASCINEE, NORM Of AN
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL CERTIFICATES HAVE BEN FLED AND DEPOSES HAVE BEEN

NCR N6 POR 4057, PPE 4.5 AND RWTBAND SIN 1010 PAVE 2 3. IL OF WE
W

MAK THAT ME REQUIRED UNDO THE PROVISOES O' SEMIS 66402 NO 66403 OF
RECORDS OF 114E

caIN
mp(BOOK LRCS

P AID W BOO( 1060 PAID[ 1173. ALL WEN
TE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT.

SAID EASEMENT IS RIKIENI LATE N NATURE.
EKEOUINE OFFICER. BOARD OF S1PERVIRORS

SOUTHERN CN/ OMA= ON COMPANY. A CORPORATION. HOLDER OF AN EASOCNT FOR OF NE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STAT: OF CALIFORNIA
P.0*0 UTIITY IROS PURPOSES. IT DENS RECEDED OCTOSES K. 1153. AS INSTRUMENT
NO5346 AND MAY 6. 2006 AS NSIRIRENT NO06- 1051714 BOTH OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.
RECORDS OF SNE COUNTY O LOS MOLES.      BY DATE

C UNARMS) O THE PARIS NAMEDNEMNAFI0 TC MERESTMEM Cf S T ODEPUTYT
FORE HAVE WEN 011TRD UDEN PROYMONI OF SEWN 66436( a)( 3)(C) Cr TC
S NPASO 1 MM ACT. TOR NRKST IS SUCH TUT IT CAN NOT 1 . 4 INTO A PEE TTL
ND SAD IKNATRE(S) AK NOT 5500*or TC LOCAL AKNCY.

MAW ROWS AND MANIKTW0 NC., A DELAWARE CORPORATE. SUCCESSOR OR ASSUME.
MAIM Cr OR. GAS NO. MORALS 001111, BY DED IN:CONED JULY 23. ISIS AS I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SECURITY N TE AMOUNT OF= HAS
IgKAOIT NO. 16- 1266527, OF ORIOAL MOWN. RECORDS OF LOS MINCES QTY•  BEEN ITLED 15114 THE CCOUTW OFFICER, BOARD OF SU COUNTY OF

LOS ANGELES AS! ENVY FOR TE PATIENT OF TAILS AND SPECIAL ASSIESSANTS
COLLECTED AS TARES ON THE LAND S ION ON MAP OF TRACT NO. 73307 AS
REQUIRED BY LAW.

ERECUTW OFFICER. BOARD OF SUEIRMSORS
OF THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES. STATE OF CAUF'ONA

BY DAT:

DEPUTY

Attachment B, 2 Pages

138



SCALE: 1"= 30'   
TQ d NO.  73397

SHEET 2 OF 2 SHEETS

l'    
I

IN/"

TH7ECCITYT
O,F1COVINA

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES

MPNLEGEND
r

JACK C. LEE, LS 8407 DECEMBER, 2014 INDICATES INC BOUNDARY OF NE LAND
I

BEND SUSDIUDED BY THIS MAP.

IIIIINKJESIL

y
taa ar---  

Rh MOM DATA ret N 133/ 27KAT
7 ij--- 01

I NO MOND DATA rel DDC I WO NAY 17, KW

I
M: NMR.Ra 116-/ 131400. D.R. mama D®)

i{

1N DATA

1),  [.... 2,---../
4

Keir,......\  I WY 3 ID Ll mTN i L
4 C NOR 1431. PO 511

L      / 
DETAL A

JNOT TD SCALE

J--  1 1
comma onaalcoom or

MDR.SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAILROAD RIGHT OF WAY ( SPRR)       
KINN-gwrack+ON Me LAIN

u{
o

5

iT
I

141011 O1[ C aRI41& PT PI t lAOLA
PUS

1144311..
PO 5111 f I eC CONI 07 NANO 11.11111011• NLLY OWN OP 1141 D® KOPKN Ara 1.

AOC LOT NAROND AND INC 1347. AS NIT. N5 1413 M NON/ 14344 PAN
KINK NTMNNI w NNW°       310. DJ. OD MNINq ISM w R30b yDATA ret C 133/ 27 mum(, 141.14.) my PIDII 141 OMR N If

1 1 IN MEN a ACM LOT. KR N 133/ 37

11` x-    CVL'111

MIN

01 0 N) NLY CONDI N MOD 10
KM270.14. 0+ 3 0)       

Seta N M ID) Jtfyllf' IN
p

SOM[i/Tp 17

W mNI/MNI rt nal Pet
I D Ra 133/[ 7

I 40'

I NI/ MIrL -`
f'.0 Q

110111111111f NO=   II
4--

110111111111f x((11-NOT A PART OF
N IaT, TAMC IR 4311. PDI C
RAM

III
0 Lay TANK LS SW WS 1. K. THIS SUBDIVISION I, n'     1

POW wan AU= roomy ua

rRaOTUNK TO
1 TO Mt KT

IV

Nr g`      I   ,
Y

F

6+QQs
FAaNPNT Mows 7., 4 E 8/

ir rm.L

Damoon
fA OOA

IMIor
SOUTHERN NIO KY IR[ O/ 141 WD DLOMCN M D® Rompmany PUIPOIN PN ono ammo      ®  i

AM R. IN; N D00RN1T Na 1 14ro
i

mN
Iomen 2B 1343 N INCRI NR N0. 53411•   IN g PN NO MN PITS 141 NNW rR2S1DIdIK

ND1ie[ 3N CC l3' ace, NINNY 0 KUMIN I
20%Y       _

CN/ 0NA BISON= PANY. A CONNIKOPL  _ BBE t.  4/117
PN KIM UIUIY PUNKIN PN ORD

t3•.44.NOUN MAY a 305 AS armor Na L905- tonna O.*( R+1rN)      FW    .
11RIPF. 

11•   I
Cpll AKE OF r NO. MAW O IOUINM 401[ 41+ 7 ND 1

CAL/ 131111A KKK COIPANY. A 00001K11013
t

a I

r'.., I A41 LANK
pt PINK 3471717, 111034, rpt D®       p\ PNO ORAL A  _       _————    —      IKIM= MAY a. 3006 N OOIRINOR NO.      at, I 34.34'

00- 10, 1714 OR.([ Ri BO C NICXin
e      •

F1
lit PLOW

NWSW
UN

OA    +
DUD     >

r It 5
011Dm MAY 4

N
N

41 LOS
lr NO

Lr iiiiiexam
05- 10111711,(

SOR.
CCMDt a IA[ MA=     500' 1

exam( 1 41 p)       

Kvim1* ar is Not. wow 417 wpmCAVMNA[ 401011 OOrAMY. A COIrORAl10N,    -{     

IlDN PINKNNUTY3005PORKIES5ASPN D®  g

71mama or/

RCN= WY aµ[   
OF LOS *

0INDINKT
13 b   i03U111Y.( 111111

CALICIDIA KMMI C NPAY.  
7CI

A

CLUORAT"
1DN.    S.  

I II
i

MONK NAY

NMAY
A   " uoa"'

sN[
Mai°Rwo® Na r I 46,107 SQ. FT. ill

I?
05171    ) R[ OMW O LOSANNIECOUNT/.(5110 I

I
J

CM NI[
O/ 111FNNL. UMW N +

TUI,
soma' WCAL/ COPIA KKK« MANY. A COOPONA1D1A I _...

41101)
PMI PUBIC U1[ 11Y05 AS I PN DL111
DDII

CD110ON= aYO.

Ra.
COMDNa a ANOp[ 3

ONamulawr NO.

1.1.;-.....CMRITT.( ERIr p)   1

IQ
u (
73147J

01

1
40'   I 40'

M
Am N ® RNA'0

I

R I YMM1 15 41. 34,• 04041 03441/1 PAN

S0 MICK CCO DIL= CODS 40.10#
R#

I
a Napo CMRm. 1

r

NSW

111131111:01011 OF 0N1UI1 or 5111 INS/      L7

I aUNACMD ROAD MO LLT IK 0'
The

NIOOb•1
0®= MON Ant[ 1 140.

N DIST. Na 1403 II IOMU MO
PAN 314 0R, PD N01NIa NTN.  I ow COO DIRNIN( 251.0) rim A

t SLY UN P LOT].
mom D IIaNRorr ma A 133/ 37 -_-.    I..       K. at 010. 740

a• 0)    comma 341343400040 ON

I assy-
ODIUM w 4 N

IS 1 Pa LA Da RDD 1431.mlr

f[  
ROAD PO 111 PM• DWI

NsAN
BERNARDINO

g
MAIN u 00 NA 1431- 140.

IN NA PONT ON TK
comma NCL/ W1/ 1 rN OAD/ I.     

534 •:,: v l> t lNf.

1. 11::: a-: r.'-1 It[,:N

1, 411V11 ME.•.11i1Ni1A:AM lL a: G' A.IIiL•.111
1Y1, A111 • 1: INi:.l•:AZi 11 111 a. C' aKW..•1

i 3[ 41". 4t:ilkaa/MI Ll= Ell a: 41... 11 I.A
1, 211.,,, filli • 1• 1• 1111O  . MI 111,.- a I.• N. rl.••f

j

139



RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7472

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TRACT MAP NO. 73397

WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California(" City"); and

WHEREAS, the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Covina is embodied within Title
16 of the Covina Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, an application was submitted to the City of Covina in order to convert an
existing 23 unit residential development to for-sale condominium units on a 1. 1 acre property;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 16.08 of the Covina Municipal Code,

the City Council approved the Tentative Tract Map on August 18, 2015; and

WHEREAS, it has been found that the proposed project does not meet the definition of a

project" as defined in California Environmental Quality Act( CEQA) Guidelines Section 15378.
Further, the City Council determined that the proposed project would be Categorically Exempt in
accordance with Section 15301( k), Class 1 of the CEQA Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 16. 14 of
the Covina Municipal Code, has determined that the applicant has met all of the required

conditions of approval for the approval and recordation of the Final Map.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council does hereby find that Tract No. 73397 conforms to
CEQA.

SECTION 2. The City Council does hereby approve and accept the final subdivision of
Tract No. 73397.

SECTION 3. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to sign page one of said Tract Map
and to transmit the same for recordation.

SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

Attach nt C, 2 Pages

140



APPROVED AND PASSED this
5th

day of April 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE,  City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I,  Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7472 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the day of 20_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

141



ATTACHMENT C

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonito Ave Suite# 201

San Dimas Ca 91773

909)592-3900

March 9, 2016

City of Covina

Y s Planning Division

125 East College Street

Covina Ca 91723

Re:     TTM 73397— 501 North Lark Ellen Ave Plan Check Comments as of Feb 9, 2016

To Whom it May Concern:

Per the request of The City of Covina, The Grovelands 2002 LLC has notified each tenant
residing at 501, 511 and 521 North Lark Ellen Ave of the following:

a.   10 days prior to filing an application with the DRE, provide tenants notice of such
filing and include in the notice that the report shall be available upon request.
Notice (attached) was sent out on February 12, 2016.

b.  Not less than 90 days before the date of issuance of the subdivision public report,
offer the tenants the right to purchase the unit. Notice (attached) was sent out on
February 17, 2016.

c.   

Provide an affidavit stating that each tenant of the proposed conversion project has
received written notification of intention to convert not less than 180 days prior to
termination of tenancy due to the conversion or proposed conversion. Notice
attached) was sent out on December 17, 2015.

d.  

Submit a counseling assistance plan to provide relocation counseling and assistance
to non-purchasing tenants, to aid such tenants in finding and relocating to
equivalent housing. Notice (attached) was sent out on December 28, 2015.

Attachment D, 9 Pages

142



e.  Provide a warranty against common area defects. Notice attached and not sent to

tenants. Warranty is for buyers only.

Each unit located at The Lark Ellen Villas was inspected and approved by the City of Covina' s

Building and Safety Division between December 2015 and March 2016. All corrections were
made and approved.

All of the above items ia) through (e) will be made available to home buyers of The Lark Ellen

Villas.

Please let me know if you have aby questions.

Sincerely,

t

Kristy Bath

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

4 3

kJ

9

pppp

gr
143



The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonita Ave Suite# 201

San Dimas CA 91773

909) 592-3900

February 12, 2016

To all residents at The Lark Ellen Villas

501- 521 N. Lark Ellen Ave

Covina Ca 91722

To the occupants of 501- 521 North Lark Ellen Ave, Covina Ca 91723:

The owner of these buildings, at 501- 521 North Lark Ellen Ave, has filed an
application with the Department of Real Estate Board and the report is available
upon request.

Further, each tenant has the opportunity for a " First Right of Refusal" This means
a notice will be given to you that offers you the right to decide if you wish to
purchase your unit on the same terms and conditions that are offered to the
general public.

f
i o

John Begin, Owner Date

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

144



The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonita Ave# 201

San Dimas CA 91773

909)592-3900

February 17, 2016

To all residents at The Lark Ellen Villas

501- 521 North Lark Ellen Ave

Covina Ca 91722

To the occupants of 501- 521 North Lark Ellen Ave, Covina CA 91723:

pE

The owner of these buildings located at 501- 521 North Lark Ellen is hereby offering you an
exclusive right to contract for the purchase of your unit upon the same terms and conditions
that the unit will be initially offered to the general public or terms more favorable to you
pursuant to Section 66452. 20. Please contact our office as soon as possible if it is your intent to
purchase the unit you are currently renting.

tt

Sincerely,
7

John Begin Owner

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

4
fw

r

rt'<

145



The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonito Ave Suite# 201

San Dimas Ca 91773

909) 592-3900

180- DAY TERMINATION OF TENANCY

To the occupants of The Lark Ellen Villas located at 501, 511, and 521 North Lark Ellen Ave,
Covina:

Per state law, you are hereby given 180- day notice of termination of tenancy due to the
conversion of the buildings. All tenants have already received notice on May 21, 2015, that the
owner has filed a tentative map with the City of Covina. If you are on a month to month lease
agreement, you will receive a 30- day notice to move out, If your unit is sold. If you are still
under contract with your lease agreement, we will not terminate your lease early.

During this 180-day period the following will occur:

9 1.   No eviction will occur as a result of this conversion.

2.  A " First Right of Refusal" notice will be delivered that offers you the right for 90 days
54 to decide if you wish to purchase your unit on the same terms and conditions that

are offered to the general public.

3 if you decide not purchase your unit you must vacate 30- days after receiving your
30-day notice tcymove-out if your unit is sold.

Date: 1 L.if

Subdivider' s signature)

By:      Date: Unit No:

Tenant' s signature if interested in purchasing unit)

I do not wish to receive the above- referenced report.

By:      Date: Unit No:

Tenant' s signature if not interested in purchasing unit)

146



The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonita Ave# 201

San Dimas Ca 91773

909) 592-3900

The Lark Ellen Villas Counseling Assistance Plan

This letter is to provide relocation counseling and assistance to non- purchasing tenants, to aid
such tenants in finding and relocating to equivalent housing. Below is a list of apartments
available in the area that are 1- 4 bedroom, 2+ bath and in the$ 1195 to 51950/ month price

range.

1.  Fairvalley Villa located at 18645 East Arrow Hwy, Covina. Priced from $ 1350 to
1950/ month with 2- 4 bedrooms. Contact number is 626-465-7705.

2.  The Verandas located at 200 North Grand Ave, West Covina.  Priced from$ 1420 to

1910/ month with 1- 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 626-967-4206.

3.  California Villages in West Covina located at 2847 East Valley Road, West Covina.
Priced from$ 1887/ month with 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 626- 965- 4530.

4.  Walnut Heights Apartments located at 20700 San Jose Hills Road, Walnut. Priced

from$ 1488 to$ 1813 with 2- 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 866-977-0605.

5.  Citrus Park Apartment Homes located at 320 South Citrus Street, West Covina.

Priced from$ 1245 to$ 1810/ month with 1- 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 626-331-
8015.

6.  The Medici at South Hills located at 111 South Barranca Street, West Covina.  Priced

from$ 1195 to$ 1975/ month with 1- 3 bedrooms, Contact number is 626-967- 5291.

7.  Covina Grand Apartments located at 1160 N Conwell Ave, Covina.  Priced from

1830-$ 1855/ month with 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 844- 348- 1365.

8.  Villa Christina Apartments located at 19550 E Cienega Ave, Covina. Priced from

1695-$ 1775/ month with 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 626- 332- 3003.

9.  Roybal Properties located at 4040 Badillo Circle, Baldwin Park. Priced

from $1650/ month with 3 bedrooms. Contact number is 626-338-4410.

i

147



I

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonita Ave Suite# 201

i Son Dimas CA 91773

909) 592-3900

4

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

1
i

Per California Civil Code Section 1134

1
I Dear prospective Buyer,

This Condominium Conversion project is over 10 years old and therefore does not come with or

require any type of" Warranty" per California state law. These units use to be apartments with

Tenants. They have since been converted to Condominiums and are now being sold on a " AS IS"
basis, which means it is the BUYERS RESPONSIBILITY to either hire a home inspection company
or perform their own inspection similar to purchasing any other 10-year-old non new home.

Everything inside or outside of this Condominium unit is in working order at the time of sale but
there is no guarantee as to how long anything inside or outside this unit will last. If you are

Xt concerned with this condition of sale, we suggest that you purchase a " Home Warranty" with
the coverage that you feel comfortable with.

t The Seller of this Condominium unit is disclaiming any knowledge of any substantial defects or
malfunctions per California Civil Code Section 11.34

4

i

01
Accepted Buyer:      Date:      Accepted Buyer:      Date:

1
i

i
4

qy

148



The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonita Ave Suite #201

San Dimas Ca 91773

909)592-3900

March 9, 2016

City of Covina

Planning Division

125 East College Street

Covina Ca 91723

Re:     TTM 73397— 501 North Lark Ellen Ave Plan Check Comments as of Feb 9, 2016

To Whom it May Concern:

The Grovelands 2002 LLC will notify each tenant residing at 501, 511 and 521 North Lark Ellen

Ave the date of the Final Map approval by City Council within 10 days of City map approval. An
affidavit of the required notice to tenants will be submitted to the City for record not less than

10 days from the date of Final Map approval. Please see the attached letter that will be sent to
the tenants hopefully by April 15, 2016.

O17.       Sincerely,

rt

Kristy Baur  .

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

149



The Grovelands 2002 LLC

133 East Bonita Ave Suite# 201

Son Dimas CA 91773

To all residents at The Lark Ellen Villas

501- 521 N. Lark Ellen Ave

Covina Ca 91722

To the tenants of 501-521 North Lark Ellen Ave, Covina Ca 91722:

The unit you rent has been approved for sale to the public as a condominium

project. The rental unit may be sold to the public, and, if it is offered for sale,
your lease may be terminated. You will be notified at least 90 days prior to any
offering to sell.  If you still lawfully reside in the unit, you will be given a right of
first refusal to purchase the unit. This means a notice will be given to you that

offers you the right to decide if you wish to purchase your unit on the same

terms and conditions that are offered to the general public.

John Begin, Owner Date

The Grovelands 2002 LLC

150



ITEM NO. CC 11

CITY OF COVINA

AGENDA REPORT
MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Resolution No.  16- 7473 Amending the Fiscal Year 2015- 16
Capital Improvement Program Budget by  $42,550 for Project

P1502 Resurfacing of Grand Avenue Project between Arrow
Highway and San Bernardino Road funded by State of California
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery ( CalRecycle)

PRESENTED BY:       Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

RECOMMENDATION:      Adopt Resolution No. 16- 7473 amending the fiscal year 2015- 16
Capital Improvement Program Budget by  $42, 550 for Project
P1502 Resurfacing of Grand Avenue Project between Arrow
Highway and San Bernardino Road funded by CalRecycle.

BACKGROUND:

The CalRecycle Rubberized Pavement Grant Program promotes markets for Rubberized Asphalt
Concrete ( RAC) products with crumb rubber derived from California-generated waste tires.  The
program is designed to encourage first-time or limited users of rubberized pavement in two
project types— RAC Hot-Mix and Rubberized Chip Seal.

On December 10,  2015,  the City submitted a 6th Cycle  ( TRP6)  – Fiscal Year 2015- 16

CalRecycle Rubberized Pavement Grant Program application for the Resurfacing of Grand
Avenue Project between Arrow Highway and San Bernardino Road, the City' s highest priority
paving project.  As this project would use RAC Hot-Mix, the project is eligible for $42,550 in
grant funding based on a base rate of$ 10 per ton of RAC Hot-Mix.  The number of previous

CalRecycle RAC/Pavement grants received is also a determining factor in grant funding.

On January 5, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No.  16- 7440 authorizing the City
Manager to submit application( s) to CalRecycle for all CalRecycle Grants for which the City of
Covina is eligible for a period of five years from the date of the adoption of the resolution.
Adoption of this resolution was necessary to finalize the City' s grant application for the TRP6–
Fiscal Year 2015- 16 grant funds.

DISCUSSION:

On March 3, 2016, CalRecycle approved funding for the Grand Avenue Project between Arrow
Highway and San Bernardino Road in the amount of$42,550.  As this funding is not included in the
City' s approved fiscal year 2015- 16 budget, a budget adjustment is necessary at this time.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The estimated cost of the Resurfacing of Grand Avenue Project between Arrow Highway and San
Bernardino Road, which will be a joint project with Los Angeles County, is being determined at this

151



time and is expected to cost more than $ 2. 5 million.  The jurisdictional shares of this project are
anticipated to be approximately 72% City and 28% County.   The $ 42,550 in TRP6 CalRecycle

Rubberized Pavement Grant Program funds will be used to fund a portion of the City' s share of the
project costs.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

The project has been reviewed for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA) and is exempt per Section 15061 ( b) ( 3).  The project is covered by the General Rule

that CEQA applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment.  The adoption of Resolution No. 16- 7473 will not result in any significant effect
on the environment.

Respect ly submitted,

Siobhan os er

Director of Public Works

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Resolution No. 16- 7473

152



RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7473

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,
CALIFORNIA, TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2015- 2016 CITY OF
COVINA CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM BUDGET BY $42,550

FOR PROJECT P1502 RESURFACING OF GRAND AVENUE PROJECT
BETWEEN ARROW HIGHWAY AND SAN BERNARDINO ROAD

FUNDED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES RECYCLING AND
RECOVERY (CALRECYCLE)

WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California(" City"); and

WHEREAS, the budget of the City of Covina for fiscal year commencing July 1, 2015
and ending June 30, 2016 was approved on June 23, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the approved budget is in accordance with all applicable ordinances of the
City and all applicable statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, the reallocation of the appropriations between departmental activities may
be made by the City Manager and amendments ( increases/ decreases) to the adopted budget shall
be by approval and Resolution of the City Council; and

WHEREAS, on December 10, 2015, the City submitted an application for the 6th Cycle
TRP6) — Fiscal Year 2015- 16 State of California Department of Resources Recycling and

Recovery ( CalRecycle) Rubberized Pavement Grant Program for the Resurfacing of Grand
Avenue Project between Arrow Highway and San Bernardino Road,  which is eligible for

42,550 in grant funding based on a base rate of$ 10 per ton of RAC Hot-Mix; and

WHEREAS, on January 5, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No.  16- 7440

authorizing the City Manager to submit application(s) to the State of California Department of
Resources Recycling and Recovery ( CalRecycle) for all CalRecycle Grants for which the City of
Covina is eligible for a period of five years from the date of the adoption of this resolution; and

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2016, CalRecycle approved funding for the Grand Avenue
Project between Arrow Highway and San Bernardino Road in the amount of$42, 550.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Amend the fiscal year 2015- 2016 Capital Improvement Program budget as
follows:  $42,550 from CalRecycle Rubberized Pavement Grant Funds to account no. (no. 4300-

2200- 55310-P1502) for the Resurfacing of Grand Avenue Project between Arrow Highway and
San Bernardino Road; and

Attachment A, 2 Pages

153



SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

APPROVED AND PASSED this
5th

day of April, 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7473 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the day of 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

154



ITEM NO. CC 12

CITY OF COVINA

1,,   ,-      AGENDA REPORT
MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Mayor' s Appointments to Intergovernmental agencies and

Adoption of a Resolution of the City Council appointing the City' s
Representative and Alternate on the City Selection Committee.

PRESENTED BY:      Andrea M. Miller, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:      1)  Approve the Mayor' s designation of delegates and alternates to
Intergovernmental agencies;
2)   Appoint the City' s Representative and Alternate to act on
behalf of the City at meetings of the City Selection Committee;
3)  Approve Resolution No.   16- 7474 appointing the City' s
Representative and Alternate to the City Selection Committee; and
4) Authorize the Chief Deputy City Clerk to fill in the appointed
names on Resolution No. 16- 7474.

BACKGROUND:

With each election and/or reorganization of the City Council, appointments are made by the
Mayor of City representatives ( Councilmembers) to various organizations in which the City has
membership or participates as a liaison.

DISCUSSION:

Following is the list of organizations to which the Mayor has assigned participation by Council
representatives:

County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County
L. A. Works

Foothill Transit Zone

Independent Cities Association( ICA)

League of California Cities*

San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments ( COG)
San Gabriel Valley Mosquito and Vector Control District
San Gabriel Valley Water Association
Southern California Association of Governments ( SCAG)

City Selection Committee*

Historically, the delegate and alternate of these organizations are the same as the meetings are
held concurrently.

The City Selection Committee meets on as- needed basis with the meetings called in conjunction
with the monthly League of California Cities meeting.  Each city designates a Council delegate
and a Council alternate to vote for local-city representation on County boards and commissions,

155



such as the Local Agency Formation Commission ( LFACO); the Metropolitan Transportation
Authority ( MTA);  and the South Coast Air Quality Management District,  Eastern Region
SCAQMD).

As these meetings are held concurrently with League meetings, the League has requested that the
delegate and alternate appointed as the League voting delegate( s) also be approved by Council as
the voting delegate( s) for the City Selection Committee.  Historically, the Mayor and Mayor Pro
Tem have served in this capacity.

In addition to the intergovernmental agency appointments, Council members serve as liaisons to
Boards, Commissions and Committees.

Committee Liaisons:

Community Recognition Committee
Finance Advisory
Historic Preservation

Library Board
Parking Place
Planning Commission
Traffic Advisory
Youth Accountability Board

City Auditors Committee
Covina Chamber of Commerce
Covina Concert Band

Policy development assignments may occur throughout the year as needed.

Council Committee -- Policy Development Assignments
Planning
Code Enforcement

Parks & Recreation

Public Library
Seniors

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):
None.

Res ctfully submitt   ,

d
i

it '

Y I 16 jlltk
Andrea M. Miller

City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: 2016 Mayor' s Appointment List
Attachment B: Resolution No. 16- 7474

156



CITY OF COVINA

MAYOR'S APPOINTMENTS TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES
April 5, 2016

AGENCY DELEGATE ALTERNATE MEETING DAYS AND TIMES
Sanitation Districts of (must be Mayor/    Stapleton Marquez 4th Wednesday each month at
Los Angeles County Mayor ProTem)    King Stapleton 1: 30 p.m., District Offices
1955 Workman Mill Road Kimberly S. Compton, Sec. to Brd
Whittier, CA 90607  ( 562) 908-4288

L. A. Works Stapleton Allen 3rd Thursday each month at
4: 00 p. m., L.A. Works offices
Tom Mauk, Acting Exec. Director
Suziev.laworks@gmail. com

Foothill Transit Zone Delach King 1st Wednesday Annually in May at
100 S. Vincent Ave., Suite 200 5: 30 p.m.
West Covina, CA 91790 Doran Barnes, Executive Director
626) 931- 7300 ext. 0

Independent Cities Association Stapleton Allen Quarterly/when called at
1600 Rosecrans Ave.,

4th

Fl.      6: 30 p.m.
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 Trish Pietrzak, President
310) 995- 9800

trish(aiplatinumprsolutions. com

League of California Cities( must be Stapleton Marquez 1st Thursday each month at
L. A. County Division Mayor/ Mayor King Stapleton 6: 30 p. m.( various locations)
P.O. Box 1444 Pro Tem) Walt is currently serving as the League' s Jennifer Quan, Executive Director
Monrovia, CA 91017 ( 626) 786- 5142 Chair of its public safety committee
iquanacacities.org

San Gabriel Valley Council Stapleton Marquez 3rd Thursday each month at
of Governments( COG) transportation committee Stapleton 6: 00 p.m.( Edison Center/ Irwindale)
1000 S. Fremont Ave, Unit# 42 1-10 210 Corridor- Stapleton 6080 Irwindale Ave.)
Alhambra, CA 91803 Solid Waste- Stapleton Fran Delach, Exec. Dir.
626) 457- 1800

San Gabriel Valley Mosquito and Henry Morgan 2nd Friday each month at 7: 00 a.m.
Vector Control District Serves until 12/ 31/ 19) Mr. Kenn Fujioka,
1145 North Azusa Canyon Rd. appointed Dec. 1, 2015 for four years)      District Manager

West Covina, CA 91790 ( 626) 814- 9466

SGV Water Assn.( Watermaster)     King Stapleton 2nd Wednesday, quarterly at 6: 30 pm
725 N. Azusa Ave. Kelly Gardner, Admin Mgr.
Azusa, CA 91702 ( 626) 815- 1300 kelly@watermaster. org
www.sgvwa.org www.watermaster.org

Southern California Association Stapleton Marquez Annual/when called
of Governments( SCAG)     Marquez King Hasam Ikhrata, Exec. Director

818 West Seventh Street, 12th Fl.

Los Angeles, CA 90017- 3435

213) 236- 1858

City Selection Committee& LAFCO Stapleton Allen When Called( Held in conjunction w/
L.A. County Commission Services King League meetings)

Hall of Admin., 500 W. Temple St. Room B50 ( Mayor must be Delegate, may assign Mr. Patrick Ogawa, Exec. Officer
Los Angeles, CA 90012 ( 213) 974- 1411 ANY Councilmember as alternate)    Ms. Bolaji Famuyiwa

BFamuyiwa@,bos. lacounty.gov

157



CITY OF COVINA

MAYOR'S APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES
April 5, 2016

COUNCIL LIAISON TO BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES

Community Recognition Committee Stapleton/ King
King/Allen

Finance Advisory Committee– Delach/ King

Historic Preservation– Stapleton/ Marquez

Library Board of Trustees– Stapleton/ Delach

Library Community Room- 6: 00 pm/2nd Tuesday each month)

Parking Place– Marquez/

Planning Commission– Delach/ King
Council Chamber @ 7: 30 p. m.

2nd& 4th

Tuesday each month)

Traffic Advisory– Stapleton/ Marquez

Youth Accountability Board– Marquez/King
Quarterly-- check agenda for time and location)

Cultural Arts Advisory Commission Marquez/Allen– SUSPENDED
e   --   : 1! ..  .  6'

Wednesday after 7

City Auditors Committee– Stapleton/ Allen

Meets twice a year with the City Auditors)

Covina Chamber of Commerce– Stapleton/ Delach

Covina Concert Band– Allen/ Marquez
Recreation Hall at Covina Park @ 9: 00 a.m. on the

3rd

Saturday of odd months, Jan. March, May, July, Sept., Nov.)

Council Committee-- Policy Development Assignments
Policy development assignments may occur throughout the year as needed)

Code Enforcement– Stapleton/ Allen

Parks& Recreation– King/Marquez
Planning– Delach/King

Public Library– Stapleton/ Delach

Seniors– Stapleton/ Marquez

158



ATTACHMENT B

RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7474

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,
CALIFORNIA,  APPOINTING THE CITY' S REPRESENTATIVE AND
ALTERNATE ON THE CITY SELECTION COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, with each election and/or reorganization of the City Council, appointments
are made by the Mayor of City representatives ( Councilmembers) to various organizations in
which the City has membership or participates as a liaison.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.      shall be the City of Covina representative to the City
Selection Committee and as such is entitled to participate in all meetings of that Committee on
behalf of the City.

SECTION 2.     shall be the City of Covina alternate representative to
the City Selection Committee and as such is entitled to participate in all meetings of that
Committee in the absence of the City's representative.

SECTION 3.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

SECTION 4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to forward a copy of this resolution to the
County of Los Angeles, Board Operations, Commission Services; and the League of California
Cities, Los Angeles County Division.

APPROVED and PASSED this
5th

day of April, 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

159



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7474 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the

5th

day of April, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN:   COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT:     COUNCILMEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

Resolution No. 16- 7474
Page 2 of 2

160



ITEM NO. PH 1

4'*    m   \'-    

CITY OF COVINA
r

f`      

AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Code Amendment re: Section 8. 60.070 of Chapter 8. 60 (Fireworks,
Pyrotechnics and Production Effects)  of the Covina Municipal

Code regarding violation of provisions of Chapter 8. 60

PRESENTED BY:      Andrea M. Miller, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:      1)       Open the public hearing and receive public testimony;

2)       Close the public hearing; and

3)       Introduce and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 16-
2055 ( included herein as Attachment A), amending Section
8. 60. 070 of Chapter 8. 60  ( Fireworks,  Pyrotechnics and

Production Effects)   of the Covina Municipal Code

regarding a violation of provisions of Chapter 8. 60.

BACKGROUND:

The City Council requested that staff change the maximum fine for violations of the fireworks
discharge provisions contained in the Covina Municipal Code from $ 500 to $ 1, 000.   Section

8. 60.070 of the Municipal Code currently provides that any person who violates any of the
provisions of Chapter 8. 60 is guilty of a misdemeanor and each such violation shall be
punishable by a fine of not more than $500 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a period of
not more than six months or by both such fine and imprisonment.

DISCUSSION:

The proposed amendment will change this language to state that "[ a] ny person who violates any
of the provisions of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor.  Any violation of this Chapter will
be prosecuted pursuant to Section 1. 16. 010 of the Municipal Code."  Covina Municipal Code

Section 1. 16. 010 states that "[ a] ny person convicted of a misdemeanor under this code shall be
punished by a fine, or by imprisonment not to exceed six months, or by both such fine and
imprisonment.  The maximum amount of fines assessed for misdemeanors shall not exceed the

limits established in Title 4, Division 3, Chapter 2, Section 36901 of the California Government

Code." Government Code Section 36901 provides "[ t]he city legislative body may impose fines,
penalties,  and forfeitures for violations of ordinances.    It may fix the penalty by fine or
imprisonment, or both.  A fine shall not exceed one thousand dollars ($ 1, 000).  Imprisonment

shall not exceed six months."  Therefore, under the proposed code amendment, the maximum

penalty for a violation of Chapter 8. 60 is a fine not to exceed $ 1, 000 or imprisonment for up to
six months or both.

161



FISCAL IMPACT:

The recommended action will result in an increase in the fines that the City may assess for a
violation of Chapter 8. 60.   The fine will increase from $ 500 to $ 1, 000 for each violation of

Chapter 8. 60.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

It can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility the adoption of this Ordinance may have
a significant effect on the environment, because the Ordinance only increases the fine assessed
for violations of existing regulations.   It is therefore exempt from California Environmental

Quality Act review pursuant to Title 14,  Section 15061( b)( 3)  of the California Code of

Regulations.

Respectfully submitted,

61
1(IffA_--

Andrea M. Miller

City Manager

ATTACHMENT:

Attachment A:  Ordinance No. 16- 2055.

162



ATTACHMENT A

ORDINANCE NO. 16- 2055

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

OF COVINA,    CALIFORNIA,   AMENDING SECTION

8.60.070 OF CHAPTER 8.60       ( FIREWORKS,

PYROTECHNICS AND PRODUCTION EFFECTS)   OF

TITLE 8  ( HEALTH AND SAFETY)  OF THE COVINA

MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING VIOLATIONS OF

PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 8.60

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,  CALIFORNIA,  DOES

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.    Code Amendment.    Section 8. 60.070 of Chapter 8. 60  ( Fireworks,

Pyrotechnics and Production Effects) of Title 8 ( Health and Safety) of the Covina Municipal
Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

8. 60.070 Violation and Penalty.

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter is guilty of a
misdemeanor.  Any violation of this Chapter will be prosecuted pursuant to Section
1. 16. 010 of the Municipal Code."

SECTION 2.  The terms of this Ordinance shall supersede any previous resolutions of
the Council or Council policies which may be in conflict or inconsistent with the terms of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 3.  CEQA.  The City Council finds that it can be seen with certainty that there
is no possibility the adoption of this Ordinance may have a significant effect on the environment,
because the Ordinance only increases the fine assessed for violations of existing regulations.  It is
therefore exempt from California Environmental Quality Act review pursuant to Title 14,
Section 15061( b)( 3) of the California Code of Regulations.

SECTION 4.   Severability.   If any section, subsection,  sentence, clause, phrase, or
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining portions of this Ordinance shall nonetheless remain in full
force and effect.  The people of the City of Covina hereby declare that they would have adopted
each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance, irrespective of

the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions of this
Ordinance be declared invalid or unenforceable.

SECTION 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective within thirty ( 30)
days after its adoption.

SECTION 6. Publication.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this ordinance
and shall cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of said City; shall make
a minute passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting at which time the same is
passed and adopted; and shall, within fifteen ( 15) days after the passage and adoption thereof,

Ordinance No. 16- 2055 Page 1 of 2

163



ATTACHMENT A

cause the same to be published as required by law, in a local weekly newspaper of general
circulation and which is hereby designated for that purpose.

INTRODUCED this
5th

day of April, 2016.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this day of 2016, by the
following vote:

City Council of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Ordinance No. 16- 2055 was introduced for first reading at a regular meeting on the

5th

day of
April, 2016.  Thereafter, said Ordinance was duly approved and adopted at a regular meeting of
said City Council on the day of 2016, by the following vote:

AYES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:      COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

Ordinance No. 16- 2055 Page 2 of 2

164



ITEM NO. NB 1

SNI E (

1

i''.  -    `V,     CITY OF COVINA

i' 7,-,
1    `      AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      2015/ 2016 Core Strategies— Goals and Objectives Update

PRESENTED BY:      Angel Carrillo, Assistant to the City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:      Receive and file.

BACKGROUND:

On August 12, 2015, and August 18, 2015, the City Council engaged in Strategic Planning
sessions, which resulted in the development of a Mission Statement, Vision Statement, City
Slogan, Core Values, and Core Strategies, critical to achieving success.   The Core Strategies

serve as the foundation of the Strategic Plan. Within each Core Strategy, the Council established
a list of Goals and Objectives.

Thereafter,  on September 1,  2015,  the City Council adopted Resolution No.   15- 7389

establishing the City' s Mission Statement, Vision Statement, City Slogan, Core Values and Core
Strategies, goals and objectives for FY 15- 16.  It was requested at the time of adoption, that

these items be revisited periodically and another Strategic Planning meeting would be held
during the 2 d quarter of the calendar year.

DISCUSSION:

The attached matrix reflects the adopted six Core Strategies,  Goals and Objectives.   The

comments/ status section provides updates and progress related to the goals.   Progress on the

goals will be updated monthly and recommendations on revised deadlines will presented in the
monthly updated matrix.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact directly related to this report.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

No applicable.

Respectfully submitted,

iZai.,,,,c„.
Angel Carrillo

Assistant to the City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: 2015/ 2016 Core Strategies— Goals and Objectives

165



Ii1  !     -
v ' V O     •-      

c.>„-•.=      `''' O 3      -    5
cin

cd , 2 tO

u v) b O r-"  >  

N cd bA cd E .!---1 O.

O
1- 4

g
D -

0 `,..-.1 - 0,  -  4 Q sa., Q 0 I) - 0—,

Iok

Cl)     oO cd

y O a)     2 a) •   b y
0

y v p  >'  a)  O      __, b I
cd N O

O

0 s,  
V az a,4

I  •'      =

O
c p O U O • x      > •o

cu cd ">

cd

CI)      Z CAE

0 c =      G)  cd
2      ., •    y U y t i,  3      >, r.

O . L"--  U

4:
1r/1      > U O rti C 1—'   0 4.. i • Mi 0

Z N a O c cd O     , 5 et •..,     ,  8 .,_.  ,AU E C  - Q
I

0)
O u,

aet edE 0Q  °  °)W co H U W      > a oQO tio-  g ,
0)a y Ug     

a

Wvv,   cd

oE• w

Q0
vl o

CE-1 0 6
Cl)  

C)cu Enc)  >     I
cC)      0
00mo s'     o0C)      

0Os.
cd

4- 4

y;       

2O
Cid

o a1

1)
U

W0*   
Z

s,

t VO o
O

IU1)  0  '       z     •d
cis a U 4

O G' c ri

zo a)  ii H 0 y+

x
U

U

166



cti

g 0cad •   -  

sU"'      
O ' d -

0tij

0

a)   A o cl
cd O cd

A~      
N

a U     ,

Ou
4°  E0    .-  a) -Qa.

a
CA Q   CU

b '       N O

jU A
Q 4

O O O

F A~    
W

bA•    N Ub Na o
a 4] —      g

a)      
a) A _

NU

V di p •bA ti
cd O n,  a'U-  EI)     cd  > 

p•   p Q"  •,a,,  0 -0
too 4,  

a)      >  5 O . 5 5 y p 0 O u u +

c

015

a cd U ' 3 ti 0 . b • 3 a)      O •    m v  "
5 y 4 a)  bA cd '    

eu

p    - ^ a tai
O

00

y
ri

r^+

jl
a      ° U O

0 1
r  cW0      .     N A Uoo -0v)

CO
O

VD

O N

N 0 N

a)      a)      b°a

CA AwN O rcl o

0 N
Li7e X mai

a)

r • 0 a'     A
0

A
to

V-  a
a) 4 a)      o

a,

W
ruOA 8 Q j AUw w d

W A..     a., if.)     U aA., U W
H

a) ' C a a)      O o tg
a,      

O c cad
i   

d
N a)     4 a c'U"     y„.

Fes]      
5,.,    O Emi E     "

O
4,

79 ..,     A
2 tea)  a)
N      ' i 

U

V a)  OU72 .'  cd

N
r O•,. Q, O

cn

5
U a)      N

t

j Q,. 
8MA.d0,,

Vo a)  

o
0 b O

O
a a

A1, d
p -

0

SO
cd

el)

OA 0 U . O
ii bA. 4 g ' C E O t1'- 0 a)  a

e!"
a)  a 0 S a)  c 3 °  

O

4)

L5
0 •'''  ct 0., 4- 0 71., ""     8

O     +

a:

v

A., W  ,     U g 8 a cd A,    Z W U t)     fli U

167



O b a)      ! OD  ,     4 a) b      +'  dq vl C
a) ..      0 U 4 O O

cg

O . O

toU
cd
Eo a)     b a)

bA a)      >,     
a) °+ U•+  

cd
a)   

a)      
i vUi N

0 f c •
o r"' 

vim..  '      
O Z c.    cA  , 7,

fl g
4-      

N ddU
CO

E.V O < 9   )     ii v)      O

ca)
co) 

Q UQQ+    OOO P.O   rA

0 047. U Or O 0 tiN0  /'  a      
a'     

F- 4 0

04 C0
cd N

r/ O

V`
7: J

oss8V Uf elj •..  v p by• 
c.)     Oct.      U . o v, —  a)  U b t C t1' o    t. 5 ti
5a)  1 m O -ob  -     , oO
O2QLAO rU o En 0 U O s.. O O O O -    -N

p
vO gOa) M O O D a)  cd O

30 o . cug0OW 1

F- 1U     .a: CA v) a)      3aU -a3  V)      d 0, a) '

Ua)
k..     o a O A

az
O

E N

N
a)

0
AN

A     ,.     
ANw N A C)

w c"       xvs " U o cu w
a)  a)      a) y .0

cw 1.  

n U a"

Sad A" 

to„ ct

E a Eld2m O
t till

claa)  0 a)  0 rA     .      

a))  =  0 a)      =  p 0 et cos •^,  cn
W U A W U A  .`    a A d A U

04.
Lv 0 a) a)

0 c       • U i

0 p U ' C +'       O

47

S O

6 t1 S T8
e)

4)  
r:L'

a

U 0 U Tf
040

a;
Q"

p p   a) N 4,     O0 O ,
bcl)  

v)Q
oC

ac,.,  
dcrs U

co 0O

1
O

pUp 0 y U d

CA

A

Op      >0O O cn.     a)  cd

W¢.U U 0 U   )   ,     A A o

168



1:

55
a

02:
3E    -zi -,  

a,,,

11::)
v)

c)  0c     `
V

C

moo
e:4

ami o 0
ej) 

w 0  °' >  v O ' er o

E
4_

o g
cu

0     › 0 x -04,     , .     aCa 3w 2.     u
0 ,.  

o y
a W . b ,      o 4      "     ,    a

464
O r..'  U  '  cd U

c-) .
0 Q

O D Q
O N p0

a 0 +;  o E Q. U b..      
U

cd 5       + 0 v 0 az
cd

Q 0 O O ccdU• 

0Ifi
0     .       A QU QOU

go4
W

Q • cn     ,
O O 0 "0 7, +' 4

U
U

U 0 0 0 U Q

It
bbcdwO 0   ..  t .- 

O N Q.
ft. 

UU     .  0. p     .o ¢, 0U 5,
U Q''.. U.  ti O kr) N U.

O 3 o     ... 0 0 u 5Qa3 xV F- 1 • 5., N , 54QUav)

0.

U

y.0 •,,z,  o Q . 0 N U O kr)

o o 0 A o
N c -  N - C N 0

O

CA6IDA

UCt
a,

C

Q a Q
cur

d00 0
UQ UQ UO

oo

E

0 0 0. ;     a'
CU

P.  
o

g I O

O .:. C to 0 U
ti u O O 6 Q
U O

a 0-
Od   '

4U
Uo0N U o O

otC.)

tra
a)

o

Crn

OU .',      o O O N
N N Q.,     cd cd

U O '" l
4.4

0

d •
cii  -      

ani ,

rad"  ,-

15 g
40 V]  0 Q      4t Qa

169



ra
d

O  °      °  iprg0r-+ Q+     cd U O Q 0 bA     .
s U

N
A.,  a)   p Na)     Q U

vcztal   Q bA 0jal) al N g c v       tel

40 eq

OCONIn O1I1E
i ' '   
vg5

T.
R O T0  `       O

cncnz,  Oc4y ,-. a,  E 3      .  0     p 2       ' v7C-     •

2gOQa+    O
OU

O 4,' ti N ,,  o      .   0 g
Q c QoY      a      

cnc)      
c)     w c     • oE-+  a,      o t cNi 4, ell C.)

C0" CII a) ' Ci a)      3 a3  • 7

p 0     ,      °      a) 710
c Vi CA y  ,  •  O N

yam„  
y0j a,      U • O U V)  VI

Q U '
ncj

c  

a)  5.     .
g •

U
ms a O „  °  . c,..,  g E 1 05 .-  4% 0 - 5 , 2?,

p  °  
3 p'.

Lt     .--' "  
ai

4' c4 !  
y  , O  ,  • , 4 a)  N ,      9  °      O  `' —, Z tA cu i N  "'      a,

E 7,1

ra, E  . E. - ro 0  .- , 1? .lo r.," 4-.
bp wo _  Oa 0 op O  .

flI
cn 4' c'dcd

a       oNn0o U U.
CS

EO   )  aNas  °  2u     ,_,Q N  '  
vaa

cdU b°       )  oao  >      a 0 v

Q ai
c) 2 U a3 o r-,  cn 2 N S U S N U a Q c O O      . .. 0 C w.,

O
an

E
v:,  a k. U —

4-1

N0
L=, N tiN QN 0

0

em

4
UcaUU U
o, 

U U ti•    U
4 V41

U O U0 UU0 d

U O O } "
ti C

bA En O
ca

L" 

ti a)  
cz U a3 a]      

4)

to
U Q,     -      s•',  « 3

Q•'  cd O

dS21 p
a) +, •    ct

fcl•'  oO 5Gv b     (      pc)-      0 A
OQ

Q 0 .       cn 0,)  n vC

SR
a) b  .,     't 0 a)      c)_      ya,U

g

Ill
CZ 80 b
CSg0ob)     C     ,       o 3
ONyOb 0 a)  

sc) 
5     -0 0

LT•      y
O
V0 p

5 m
ts S 0 a) - 0 0. °  O p O b 'd

W vii o 4 '    0      -CoN U < w

170



byO .       .)  I)     N , wcd     . toQO
4. 1 U

C U 7::,__

40)
b

yU
U ..

Q"    .= "
C U " C cd w NCU O O

cC

i,9--
I

O/  bA v  a
4 co

0 u1

5 at g      -  
0 .

0
0

a cC o     •0 U
r U

1     .??,  66% 4

r.T,      a)  J:

Dci)
0

C1     .      °  U y U O N '  cid

U 01 ' d ti b N N U N 1U1

sN
U cid O

O bUA O •-•  a' b ^0

4zr,  
4-,  a)      0

a Oci)  

U C

U N o0 EL.) . 5 Ucda, - a

a
i. cdoa ~     -•  

CI)  

0
Nb o 4v U UN

u CI N o
6, u e.

4' 

ao
3     .     b           E d O 4   ~

y o v      a?     o

0 . n v1  w°   E-i U a, E-, • S 3 a) w ..
74

E cn a. U z U .=  a    .0

E V5
0 in eO

0

QN tiN QN QN 0

CO

yQ Ua)

ct

a Qa a
y

a) • C      i-.

U U U U , U Q
5
U

O i.,2, , 4     ,  p,     a)      U a)  a)      a)  U

a)      ›   
U

ni
o

UoC .      cid •-  cd

U 0 5

fid"  
9 71

3 - d 4. 4 0 0

ai

1

ani  .  

0. ow
ai 5) v cl

U 0  °     
4' a a)  0 a f:1“

U
O ''

U  ;a', 
cid W E r,     •a g 0•qU cn cn     ' C e0

e•  t O 0 '      U cd O     ..+  U 0 +-      U

to
Q.  

Cd

y a)     '.     

illiU •.1

171



5'  v>

O)      >, 

O   )  
U

O      -  .  a)  >  

y
U Cl U

1cC
b t .4 a)  a)  g O v, v

CUO +   "  UiO
O U U

22 U cd a)  U

a g
O

to     ›  gF.      co  >,     . 5UO .      a) WO
cn iX04,

0U

cd .~ 
4UyN  ;     

N  ›,•>  ° 4O 4 U bC

ct
N`   "

a    

c4UO cn 2O     '0 •
8m ,C yWCp . O

CN ' C - 
aHa)  a. y

v

d OE 0O a,     O . O a)    

0 O.  3 0 C  G4cA cd p, g d 0.) 0 Uco

db4     '^ Oa)  a)      
0 co O     -A - - 4.-;  5v-      Ocd to 6' -8 4oa)      E kza. E a

cd        0
ado..      O   )  O       ) o-c "

b

O (

4-'      vi O

U

O
U

O
U

A
40

l  ,

V 4-' 

U O c i U  ',:

l5
a,.vOi E + 4U •2 E O ' U 6 O o

zO v,

NOUbA    • O     ' C - c b.0U 5 ^C

d
61tiOd ti

cd ycf,  O a.     UU

pteO0d
l

aU p •  ' v9a >  bA•    caO b ti
O

O
CL)  O a)      

cd>     GG U

aUa      '
O     -  

U]  U UUC   ..6,  r.4 Is L.) . 0 ..o

goo

A
C

yy c -O a) En

A     .Cd al
cO a

0

tC..)
U

CI

X11

c4,
0

A a

C.)     
El cu

o 1D

E
U U w w

U 4     ' C 2

a?     
C c  >,     

O
p vi

O cw '
O

cd cQ ^

d

O
1

Q>

0 co 0 •E

Vilk
V)

o C U
CD

CA

O O O 3 Nbot  '

4;  vOi c+       v
cO 0 O U

cid U o     . o 5 O

g .
O U•  9 . E     •."      m 4.   
U o

6

Cs •

Ivi

OybU4 a,)       A

U
0 g ;..80) ..05

C0

a,    . d
a)0bo  >CO  ><  °       
Q t+v)  c)     Cr w U b W

cla

172



0

d O cd

O
N .      

C.  c4-4 '   F Ncu z pV
U cA

c=       T     • U s: 1,  t4 0 U
3

0 OA O 4 a)      

u 0 O O s- 4      ••-'      

co•      
bA    ' 7 E,  to UU t-i b

OC O Q
06 2 et

U
ab fl a) 069

12
r     ...4

O      ^".0a)  y 
aU

p

o
E

bi '   c 5baa)  8 b ~      do

0

Cd
coo  .  g a)  

o O O Oto yy 9 U
FU V .       . CC RS

0     " CS•      
UoO O s~      a)      a)  o 8

o 6g 1lCDUo  `'      cu
O o to `  U   Q wa, cn

ch
O CA bA

O a   )      O v v  $.  0 b Q F.  N 4CrO —  bA c)  a)  Cs, .   a) 0 - o -      a)      o     ••       x60O O

Q C.,)     4- 4     .!.-

4.,

o 0     .

t..1

g 0Oo figcct'    cn 0 •  3 too

CU ID4i- 1 . 0 wFdCm)  0 CA V)  > wd ON •00  ). 0L)  ti)    a3
cal

4  ° w 3  . o

S v)     qp VD

i 5 o 0 0 0
0     - 0 N N N N

r      --  
c c c

Q NQ N N 00
4.
0

00

C.)     

UQ
d a)

Q fQ
4

A Q Q a

a

U c.)      U U

40 Gz.   Q afs Q 4.4 Li., Q

N b.

0VcaU a)

Uvi

CI)  cA g
N 0 ' C N

sem.
0 O CAQ

C s.      E
Q

g Q.     a)     .

O 0 as • 5 - 0      ..+
d v,

4- 4
cd cA 0 a)

N V
s'w o o

g 5 C '    V
a)  cd U •.:'     o o 0

a)     4      cid . 5 cd U a)     y
H      "  cd O

P O E Ncdy C3 O b 0
4.
0

v C. a)      a) U o

C.) W 41 w

173



dc      a U +   a) ' C ' O b vi G bA a)  p oU U " c:, U O . 4 b a)     t

O i O 4rmt .  

Ob.0
7 O

W OCci ii;
cn

a.  I)  C O '      0 OA'
d O y O ^ C     ' C     . E U t a) N

Tsa o b,,w0cLU co 0 ( 08aQUaN i it: a) UCNOy     •
Olcd ..+  

O

Q EL,  
oby

U
et

di.
71 ti 4 I . cd

1

08 .Ect ;GI' 
I 2 .

7'  

i....,-,'"  R'''' I) '
5':,,- 

i
c4 "

SU
i t-4-,     I

tU CU

WtiO
4  ,

1.)
O      

pt105  

U     -

C 0 O W O m +   p •-, y 4-  
Q" 

M ' n O OV U     ' d 0,.   1. 0

O o a)  _  U O
W

U

U „.., .,..,  

ea.,     
EuU v  

O U
U

s,  O . i o . d
u

U F.  N i•.       ) a 4-  .   )  

abAc5 0
OO a g        t.    O

et0 o  . O
r- ..

71
r4 O  -v dC     .4O O ' C

CU

C b       )      4      -      
tO

L  „, 

rcd

C 0 CI"'    Zcd

Np+..      
r 0c1Gvi

0

4
c       Ovi    

U N v .4 , 0- C U  ,      pUyO - ••• .z ,  ,

1 i..  -      u4,. ••- •-     •      a)  U .--      4a'
dV  •) U UU .  0 .    bya)  o bnO az OUO

2

W

0O
N

C N 0
a)

O

4
O

a)     U O\

0.0

a0TQ6"    0)

41,. . m. x ; Q

Ur 1: 1- 11-- 1•   
h

1  .

4E1 a)

11 al5E

U a
U.,     E

0 0

e

a.0)
a

o 0O
cA o
0 CUo
O O
0
U y.,  vi

s.

a) . b a>4:  4

a)  °1 a)
N 4•)

Et

174



U N ani to y
Q cd

4 O
V

to    . E p D

O o 5
s O

r +      P.      
IlD N

6i o 0

cw0 fa
o.

OyNkE y E oP.     'v
r Q

E " 0

ya
d p 0cU0a)      gy p.      0 p., ti a

y
i 0 1 0 U>,    •   -      

w
6,  vp40 p

d` c 5 EEa°,  2     •'.  -  ;  5 av00
o 141 174

d y           
o

03 QQ      ;      d]     O     ^ O
O

b
vw  '  

O ` p P.  o
15       , b

O .     b
71-  to 0

cn c)

p UNO
G ti) +      

cN •0-
0 cil 0.   i

cu p. a)      
FL,4

g . ,
p 5

a to•       
Ny3em-,

d p
O ap

O  =  clOUQp4 LO

el cd R
bU y U

t3 ' 4N 5p'  
ctl W N U ..... a)  cu  ,  

0. U OU a) b 6     '
C

S"'.  a) it  .O+ 

7 r,  

U
6

sem, •
E ^ C S."  ,'• 1 y . , y ." ' U O ...      ,,  U  ,„

b U CA b
V ' C o _  .` n.      o U ti .

d•r^"•,  

O •
VI a X -  p "" . a? 42.,

oho     °  o4Ho722  ', Hwp   cdH  >  o3 v) a. :54
v0

r.      

N O~ 
0 N G

0 ENN E0 p

QNB"     QN O

4-,
0

O 0 6.      O

g A a,

1---   

cd

U a

A U A v Q .
61

Q Q A

aaaaaaQQ Q

a)  

0 U     : 3 0
0

a.      2      o w o 0
p;  

0 a., o a

08.•.. ,
7•    ..  .

r to

C     '°  o a o

U i a)
Ccill  >  

by

c aJ to

c". 15 0

0.     003
d

a. 4:

a)      to: 173 3a

i
8 la,'

Q L)      
CA

dam

U 0

a,'       o
L.  3 ,  

w     cn
0

o 0 H 0 0 CS      ¢.     c

y v  p. 3  >
Aa. cn 0 0A oA c: 1 4

175



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

176



ITEM NO. NB 2

1

f,'  -    \       CITY OF COVINA

kr;','
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Approval of Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the
City of Covina and Introduction of Ordinance No.  16- 2056

Adding Chapter 10. 68 to Title 10 ( Vehicles and. Traffic) of the
Covina Municipal Code Relating to Speed Limits

PRESENTED BY:      Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

RECOMMENDATION:

1)  Adopt Resolution No. 16-7470 approving the Engineering and
Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the City of Covina (E& TS) and
the prima facie speed limits recommended to be established on

the highway segments included in the E& TS;
2)  Waive full reading, read by title only, and introduce for first

reading Ordinance No. 16-2056 adding Chapter 10. 68 to Title 10
Vehicles and Traffic) of the Covina Municipal Code relating to

speed limits;

3)  Authorize the Department of Public Works to schedule the

second reading of Ordinance No.  16-2056 at the next City
Council meeting on April 19, 2016;

4)  Authorize the City Manager to execute the attached Amendment
to the Agreement with Willdan Engineering for the completion of
two additional radar speed surveys requested by the City Traffic
Engineer in an amount not to exceed$ 270; and

5)  Adopt Resolution No. 16-7471 appropriating $ 270 in available

Proposition C Fund balance to the fiscal year 2015- 16 budget and

allocating the funds to the Citywide Engineering and Traffic
Survey— Project T- 1501 ( account no. 2405- 2100- 51005-T1501).

BACKGROUND:

The Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey  ( E& TS)  is the basis for the establishment,

revision, and enforcement of speed limits for streets within the City of Covina in accordance
with California Vehicle Code ( CVC) Sections 627 and 40802 and the California Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices 2014 ( CA MUTCD), Section 2B. 13.

CVC sections 22357, 22358 and 22358. 5 allow local governments to establish prima facie speed

limits on local streets and roads and require the preparation of an E& TS.  The E& TS is required

by the State of California to establish intermediate speed limits on local streets and enforce those
limits using radar or other speed measuring devices.  While these surveys must be updated every
five, seven, or ten years to ensure the speeds reflect current conditions as dictated by the CVC,
the practice of the Covina Department of Public Works is to survey all street segments every five

177



years to ensure that City' s traffic speed regulations reflect current conditions.  Surveys may be
extended up to seven years provided police officers issuing traffic citations have completed a 24-
hour radar operator course and up to ten years when a registered engineer certifies that no
changes in roadway or traffic conditions have occurred.  Without a valid E& TS, certain roadway
segments with prima facie speed limits could be considered unlawful " speed traps" pursuant to
CVC section 40802.  CVC Section 40802 provides that "[ n] o peace officer or other person shall

use a speed trap in arresting, or participating or assisting in the arrest of, any person for any
alleged violation of this code nor shall any speed trap be used in securing evidence as to the
speed of any vehicle for the purpose of an arrest or prosecution under this code."

The CVC also requires that the surveys be conducted based on the methodology required by the
CA MUTCD including the consideration of prevailing speeds as determined by traffic
engineering measurements, collision records, and highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not
readily apparent to the driver.

On April 5, 2011, the City Council approved the recommended speed limits from the 2011
E& TS conducted by ADVANTEC Consulting Engineers, Inc. on 77 street segments in the City
of Covina.

On December 2, 2015, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Willdan Engineering (" Agreement") for the preparation of the five-

year update to the Citywide E& TS in an amount not-to-exceed $20,790.

DISCUSSION:

A. Engineering and Traffic Survey
This report provides background and presents the results of the analysis performed in preparing the
E& TS for 77 street segments within the City of Covina. The surveys were performed in compliance
with the current laws and practices of the State of California, which require that an E& TS be
completed to establish radar enforceable speed limits under certain conditions.

The CA MUTCD specifies the methodology to be used for completing E& TS.  This methodology
includes an evaluation of prevailing speeds as determined by traffic engineering measurements
current vehicle speeds), accident history, and highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily

apparent to motorists.

Speed Sampling
Radar speed measurements were conducted at 77 locations during January 2016 and March 2016.
All surveys were conducted in good weather conditions, during off-peak hours on weekdays.  The

radar unit was operated from an unmarked vehicle to minimize any influence on driver behavior.
Typically, a minimum sample size of 100 vehicles or the total samples during a maximum period of
2 hours were obtained for each segment.   Traffic speeds in both directions were recorded for

individual segments.

The prevailing speeds are determined by the speed zone survey for segments representing a
statistically significant sample of current traffic.   This data is then evaluated to identify the
distribution of speeds.  A key element in the evaluation is the identification of the

85th

percentile

speed. The
85th

percentile speed is the speed at or below which 85 percent of the traffic travels. This

threshold represents what is historically found to be a safe and reasonable speed for most drivers
based on common roadway conditions.  State law requires that a speed limit is established at the

178



nearest 5- mile per hour ( mph) increment to the
85th

percentile speed, except as shown in the two
options below:

1.  The posted speed may be reduced by 5 mph from the nearest 5 mph increment of the
85th

percentile speed, in compliance with CVC Section 627 and 22358.5; and

2.  For cases in which the nearest 5 mph increment of the
85th

percentile speed would require a

rounding up, then the speed limit may be rounded down to the nearest 5 mph increment
below the

85th

percentile speed, if no further reduction is used. Refer to CVC Section
21400(b).

In some cases, the E& TS may indicate the need for a further reduction of the 5 mph based on
accident history and roadway conditions occurring on a particular street segment.   If the speed limit

to be posted has had the 5 mph reduction applied, the E& TS must document in writing the conditions
and justification for the lower speed limit. The reasons for the lower speed limit shall be in
compliance with CVC Section 627 and 22358.5.

The specific location of the radar speed survey for each street segment was selected after considering
the following:

1.  Minimum stop sign and traffic signal influence;
2.  Minimum visibility restrictions;
3.  Non-congested traffic flow away from intersections and driveways; and
4.  Minimum influence from curves or other roadway conditions that would affect the normal

operation ofa vehicle.

Accident History
For this study, collision data was used from the latest 3 years of reported accidents from January 1,
2012 to December 31, 2014, as obtained from the City' s California Statewide Integrated Traffic
Records System Reports ( SWITRS) electronic collision database.   The collision rates for the 77
segments are expressed in accidents per million vehicle miles (A/MVM). The segment collision rate

was then compared to the average statewide collision rate. The average statewide collision rates were

obtained from 2012 Collision Data on California State Highways published by Caltrans.

Reported collisions are reviewed for each street segment to determine if there is a higher than
average rate of collisions.  A segment that has an above-average collision rate typically suggests
conditions that are not readily apparent to motorists.  A summary of the collision rates for the 77
surveyed street segments is provided in Appendix B of the E& TS.

Conditions Not Readily Apparent To Motorists

Each street segment is field inspected to identify highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily
apparent to motorists.   A determination is made as to whether any conditions are significant and
warrants the recommendation of the speed limit 5 mph or more below the basic speed limit. The CA

MUTCD recommends exercising great care when establishing speed limits 5 mph or more below the
basic speed limit.

A field review was conducted for each of the selected street segments in Covina with consideration
for the following factors:

179



1.   Street width and alignment( design speed);

2.  Pedestrian activity and traffic flow characteristics;
3.  Number of lanes and other channelization and striping patterns;
4.  Frequency of intersections, driveways, and on-street parking;
5.  Location of stop signs and other regulatory traffic control devices;
6.  Visibility obstructions;
7.  Land use and proximity to schools;
8.  Pedestrian and bicycle usage;

9.  Uniformity with existing speed zones and those in adjacent jurisdictions; and
10. Any other unusual condition not readily apparent to the driver.

Criteria

Survey data was compiled and analyzed to determine the recommended speed limit in accordance
with several criteria contained in the CA MUTCD. Some of the criteria used are:

1.  The critical speed or
85th

percentile speed is the speed at or below which 85 percent of the

traffic is moving. This speed is the baseline value in determining what the majority of drivers
believe is safe and reasonable.   Speed limits set higher than the critical speed are not

considered reasonable and safe.  Speed limits set lower than the critical speed make a large

number of reasonable drivers " unlawful" and do not facilitate the orderly flow of traffic. The
basic speed limit" is the nearest 5 mph increment to the

85th

percentile speed;

2.  The 10 mile per hour ( mph) pace speed is the 10 mph increment that contains the highest
percentage of vehicles.  It is a measure of the dispersion of speeds across the range of the
samples surveyed.  An accepted practice is to keep the speed limit within the 10 mph pace
while considering the critical speed and other factors that might require a speed lower than
the critical speed; and

3.  The collision rate for each street segment is compared to average collision rates that can be

reasonably expected to occur on streets and highways in other jurisdictions, in proportion to

the volume of traffic per lane mile. These average collision rates have been developed by the
State of California and are considered reasonable for use in the City of Covina.

Results and Recommendations

Table 2 of the E& TS contains a complete summary of all recommendations, while the forms
contained in Appendix A of the E& TS illustrate results of a thorough evaluation of the available data

and recommend a speed limit for each street segment surveyed.  In each case, the recommended

speed limit was consistent with the prevailing behavior as demonstrated by the radar speed
measurements.  Typically, a speed limit in the upper range of the 10- mile pace was selected unless a
collision rate significantly higher than expected was discovered or roadway conditions not readily
apparent to the driver were identified. Any segments with recommended speed limits 5 mph or more
below the basic speed limit are fully explained in the E& TS.

The street segments with recommended changes in posted speed limits are as follows:

Speed Limit

No.   Name of Street From To Posted Critical New Comments

3 Azusa Avenue City Limits San Bernardino 35 43 40 CA MUTCD Option 2

15 Barranca Avenue Puente San Bernardino 35 42 40**   Closest to 85th speed

16 Barranca Avenue San Bernardino Covina 35 43 40**   CA MUTCD Option 2

19 Cienega Avenue Arroway Ivescrest 35 43 40**   CA MUTCD Option 2

180



Speed Limit

No.   Name of Street From To Posted Critical New Comments

28 Covina Boulevard Grand Rimhurst 35 43 40**   CA MUTCD Option 2

30 Covina Hills Road Grand Rancho La Carlota 35 35 30

33 Cypress Street Citrus Barranca 35 42 40 Closest to 85th speed

36 Cypress Street Glendora Bonnie Cove 35 42 40**   Closest to 85th speed
42 Grand Avenue Walnut Creek Puente 45 39 40 Closest to 85th speed

56 Puente Street Grand Glendora 40 40 35**

61 Reeder Badillo Cypress 30 40 35

63 Rowland Citrus Barranca 35 41 40 Closest to 85th speed

See " Segments with Special Conditions" sectionfor comments

25 mph when children arepresent

B.  Resolution No. 16-7470 and Ordinance No. 16-2056

The Public Works Department and the Police Department have reviewed the proposed changes

to the City' s posted speed limits and determined the changes to be reasonable,  safe,  and
appropriate for the orderly movement of traffic on City streets.  Staff recommends that the City
Council approve the Engineering and Traffic Survey Report for Speed Limits, March 2016
through the adoption of Resolution No. 16- 7470.  Staff further recommends that the City Council
approve the recommended changes to the City' s posted speed limits and introduce for first
reading Ordinance No. 16- 2056.

C.  First Amendment to Agreement and Resolution No. 16- 7471

Upon the initial review of the data by the City Traffic Engineer and the Police Department, the City
requested that Willdan resurvey two street segments taking additional radar speed measurements on
Badillo Street from Fourth Avenue to Second Avenue and Covina Hills Road from Grand Avenue to

Rancho La Carlota.  These segments were resurveyed in March 2016, reviewed by the City Traffic
Engineer and Police Department, and the results are reflected in the E& TS.

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the attached draft
First Amendment to Agreement Between the City of Covina and Willdan Engineering, a California
Corporation (" First Amendment").  The First Amendment revises the scope of work to include the

resurvey of the two street segments and increases the total compensation to be paid by the City to
Willdan Engineering by$ 270.  Staff further recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No.
16- 7471 appropriating $ 270 in available Proposition C Fund balance to the fiscal year 2015- 2016
budget and allocating the funds to the Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey — Project T- 1501

account no. 2405- 2100-51005- T1501).

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact associated with the adoption of Resolution No. 16- 7471 approving the 2016 E& TS
is nominal.  The City will incur costs to change out the necessary speed limit signs and/or pavement
markings.  These costs will be absorbed within the Department of Public Works fiscal year 2015-
2016 budget.  Conversely, should the recommended speed limits not be approved, the City will no
longer be able to enforce the posted speed limits by electronic means and may experience a decline in
traffic citation revenues within the General Fund.   The cost to have Willdan resurvey two street
segments is$ 270.

CEQA( CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

The project has been reviewed for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA) and is exempt per Section 15061 ( b) ( 3).  The project is covered by the General Rule

that CEQA applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment.  The Citywide E& TS will not result in any significant effect on the environment.

181



Respectfully submitted,

Siobhan Foster

Director of Public Works

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Resolution No. 16- 7470

Attachment B: Ordinance No. 16- 2056

Attachment C: Resolution No. 16- 7471

Attachment D: Professional Services Agreement with Willdan Engineering for Citywide E& TS,
Approved by City Council on December 1, 2015
Attachment E: First Amendment to Agreement with Willdan Engineering
Attachment F: Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the City of Covina( on file in
the City of Covina City Clerk' s Office)

182



RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7470

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA APPROVING THE ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC

STUDY REPORT FOR SPEED LIMITS, 2016 AND THE PRIMA FACIE
SPEED LIMITS RECOMMENDED TO BE ESTABLISHED ON THE

HIGHWAY SEGMENTS INCLUDED IN THE ENGINEERING AND

TRAFFIC SURVEY, MARCH 2016, FOR THE CITY OF COVINA

WHEREAS, California Vehicle Code Sections 22357, 22358 and 22358. 3 permit a local

authority, on the basis of a traffic and engineering survey, to establish prima facie speed limits on
highways within their jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, Section 40802 of the California Vehicle Code requires that the speed limits

be justified by a traffic and engineering survey not less than every five ( 5) to ten ( 10) years in
order to use radar, laser, or other electronic devices for enforcement of speed limits with the

City; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2015,  the City Council authorized the City Manager to
execute a Professional Services Agreement with Willdan Engineering for the Preparation of the
2016 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey; and

WHEREAS, Willdan Engineering completed the engineering and traffic survey within
the City on March 15,  2016,  in compliance with the requirements of Section 627 of the

California Vehicle Code and the standards set forth in Section 2B. 13 of the California Manual on

Uniform Traffic Control Devices, 2014 Edition; and

WHEREAS, the results of the engineering and traffic survey are contained in a report
prepared by Willdan Engineering entitled " Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the
City of Covina"; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer/Traffic Engineer recommends that the City Council
approve of( i) the Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the City of Covina and ( ii)
the prima facie speed limits recommended to be established on the highway segments included in
the Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the City of Covina.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council finds that all of the facts set forth in this Resolution are
true and correct.

SECTION 2. The City Council has reviewed the Engineering and Traffic Survey, March
2016, for the City of Covina.

SECTION 3. The City Council approves of (i) the Engineering and Traffic Survey,
March 2016, for the City of Covina and ( ii) the prima facie speed limits recommended to be

Attachment A, 2 Pages
12011- 0001\ 1454573v2.doc

183



established on the highway segments included in the Engineering and Traffic Survey, March
2016, for the City of Covina.

SECTION 4.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

APPROVED AND PASSED this
5th

day of April, 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7470 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the day of 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

2-
12011- 0001\ 1454573v2. doc

184



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-2056 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE  CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA, 

CALIFORNIA ADDING CHAPTER 10.68 TO TITLE 10 (VEHICLES AND 

TRAFFIC) OF THE COVINA MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO SPEED 

LIMITS   

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS, Section 40802 (a)(2) of the California Vehicle Code states that speed limits 

for streets, other than a local street, must be justified by an Engineering and Traffic Survey 

conducted less than five, seven, or ten years with conditions, prior to enforcement of that speed 

limit, if it is to be enforced by the use of radar; and 

WHEREAS, the most recent Engineering and Traffic Survey for certain street segments 

was last completed in 2011; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to ensure that traffic speeds throughout the 

community are kept at a safe level given the conditions that exist on certain streets; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to use electronic speed measurement equipment for 

speed enforcement on these certain streets; and 

WHEREAS, the Ordinance establishing speed limits must be adopted to reflect speed limits 

that are to be established following the completion of the Engineering and Traffic Survey; and 

WHEREAS, the California Manual of Traffic Control Devices describes the policy to be 

used in the State of California for setting speed limits, which requires that the posted speed be 

established at the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th-percentile speed of free-flowing traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that the California Manual of Traffic Control 

Devices also allows the posted speed limit to be reduced by 5 mph from the nearest 5 mph 

increment of the 85th-percentile speed, in compliance with California Vehicle Code Sections 627 

and 22358.5, if the Engineering and Traffic Survey documents the special conditions and 

justification for the lower speed limit and is approved by a registered Civil or Traffic Engineer; and 

WHEREAS, the enforcement of speed limits by the use of radar is necessary in order to 

protect the safety of the residents of the City of Covina. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA, 

CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  CEQA Finding.  The City Council finds that it can be seen with certainty 

that there is no possibility that the adoption of this Ordinance and the establishment of the 

regulations hereby will have a significant effect on the environment.  The Ordinance is therefore 

Attachment B, 5 Pages



2 

exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act, pursuant to Title 14, 

Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Code of Regulations. 

SECTION 2.  The City Council hereby adds Title 10.68 (Speed Limits) to Title 10 

(Vehicles and Traffic) of the Covina Municipal Code to read as follows:    

“The California Vehicle Code provides that cities may by ordinance establish prima facie speed 

limits.  It is determined, upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey, that the following 

prima facie speed limits would facilitate the orderly movement of traffic and would be 

reasonable and safe.  It is declared, that signs be erected, as appropriate, to provide notice of the 

following prima facie speed limits: 

Name of Street From To 

Prima 

Facie Speed 

Limit 

(MPH) 

1 Arrow Highway Arrow Grand Circle Grand Avenue 45 

2 Arrow Highway Grand Avenue 1000' Easterly 45 

3 Azusa Avenue South City Limits San Bernardino Road 40 

4 Azusa Avenue San Bernardino Road Cypress Street 40 ** 

5 Azusa Avenue Cypress Street Arrow Highway 40 

6 Badillo Street Lark Ellen Avenue Hollenbeck Avenue 40 

7 Badillo Street Hollenbeck Avenue Fourth Avenue 40 

8 Badillo Street Fourth Avenue Second Avenue 30 

9 Badillo Street Second Avenue Barranca Avenue 40 

10 Badillo Street Barranca Avenue Grand Avenue 40 

11 Badillo Street Grand Avenue Glendora Avenue 45 ** 

12 Badillo Street Glendora Avenue Reeder Avenue 45 

13 Badillo Street Reeder Avenue East City Limits 45 

14 Barranca Avenue South City Limits Puente Street 40 ** 

15 Barranca Avenue Puente Street San Bernardino Road 40 ** 

16 Barranca Avenue San Bernardino Road Covina Boulevard 40 ** 

17 Barranca Avenue Covina Boulevard North City Limits 40 

18 Cienega Avenue Barranca Avenue Grand Avenue 40 

19 Cienega Avenue Arroway Avenue Ivescrest Avenue 40 ** 

20 Citrus Avenue Workman Avenue Rowland Avenue 40 

21 Citrus Avenue Rowland Avenue Puente Street 40 

22 Citrus Avenue Puente Street Badillo Street 35 

23 Citrus Avenue Badillo Street San Bernardino Road 25 

24 Citrus Avenue San Bernardino Road Covina Boulevard 35 

25 Citrus Avenue Covina Boulevard Arrow Highway 40 

26 Covina Boulevard Fircroft Avenue Citrus Avenue 40 

27 Covina Boulevard Citrus Avenue Grand Avenue 40 ** 

28 Covina Boulevard Grand Avenue Rimhurst Avenue 40 ** 



 

 3 

29 Covina Boulevard  Bonnie Cove Avenue Sunflower Avenue 40 ** 

30 Covina Hills Road Grand Avenue Rancho La Carlota Road 30 

 31 Cypress Street Leaf Avenue Hollenbeck Avenue 40 ** 

32 Cypress Street Hollenbeck Avenue Citrus Avenue 40 ** 

33 Cypress Street Citrus Avenue Barranca Avenue 40 

 34 Cypress Street Barranca Avenue Grand Avenue 40 

 35 Cypress Street Grand Avenue Glendora Avenue 40 

 36 Cypress Street Glendora Avenue Bonnie Cove Avenue 40 ** 

37 Cypress Street Bonnie Cove Avenue Sunflower Avenue 40 

 38 Glendora Avenue Puente Street Ruddock Street 35 ** 

39 Glendora Avenue Ruddock Street Cypress Street 35 

 40 Glendora Avenue Cypress Street Covina Boulevard 35 

 41 Glendora Avenue Covina Boulevard Cienega Avenue 35 ** 

42 Grand Avenue Walnut Creek Road Puente Street 40 

 43 Grand Avenue Puente Street San Bernardino Road 40 ** 

44 Grand Avenue San Bernardino Road Covina Boulevard 40 

 45 Grand Avenue Covina Boulevard Arrow Highway 40 

 46 Hollenbeck Avenue South City Limits Rowland Avenue 35 

 47 Hollenbeck Avenue Rowland Avenue Badillo Street 35 ** 

48 Hollenbeck Avenue Badillo Street Edna Place 35 

 49 Hollenbeck Avenue Covina Boulevard Arrow Highway 40 

 50 Holt Avenue I-10 Freeway Via Verde Street 45 

 51 Lark Ellen Avenue Grovecenter Street Edna Place 40 ** 

52 Puente Street Armel Drive Hollenbeck Avenue 35 ** 

53 Puente Street Hollenbeck Avenue Citrus Avenue 35 

 54 Puente Street Citrus Avenue Barranca Avenue 30 

 55 Puente Street Barranca Avenue Grand Avenue 40 ** 

56 Puente Street Grand Avenue Glendora Avenue 35 ** 

57 Puente Street Glendora Avenue Shouse Avenue 25 

 58 Puente Street Reeder Avenue Rancho Corto Drive 45 

 59 Reeder Avenue Old Badillo Street Puente Street 35 

 60 Reeder Avenue Old Badillo Street Badillo Street 30 ** 

61 Reeder Avenue Badillo Street Cypress Street 35 

 62 Rowland Avenue Armel Drive Citrus Avenue 40 

 63 Rowland Avenue Citrus Avenue Barranca Avenue 40 

 64 Rowland Avenue Barranca Avenue Forestdale Avenue 40 

 65 San Bernardino Road Vincent Avenue Lark Ellen Avenue 40 

 66 San Bernardino Road Lark Ellen Avenue Azusa Avenue 35 

 67 San Bernardino Road Azusa Avenue Hollenbeck Avenue 35 ** 

68 San Bernardino Road Hollenbeck Avenue Citrus Avenue 30 

 69 San Bernardino Road Citrus Avenue Barranca Avenue 35 

 70 San Bernardino Road Barranca Avenue Grand Avenue 35 

 71 Second Avenue Rowland Avenue Badillo Street 35 

 



 

 4 

72 Second Avenue Badillo Street Front Street 30 

 73 Sunflower Avenue Cypress Street Cienega Avenue 35 ** 

74 Vincent Avenue Badillo Street Edna Place 35 

 75 Workman Avenue West City Limits East City Limit w/o Citrus 35 ** 

76 Workman Avenue Citrus Avenue Barranca Avenue 35 

 77 Workman Avenue Barranca Avenue Easterly End of Road 30 

  
** 25 mph when children are present 

 

SECTION 3. The “Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, for the City of 

Covina,” containing the findings and determinations of the Registered Engineer, incorporated 

herein and on file in the Office of the City Clerk, shall be the official Engineering and Traffic 

Survey of the City, a certified copy of which shall be disseminated to the County of Los Angeles 

Municipal and Superior Courts. 

 

SECTION 4.  Any provisions of the Covina Municipal Code, or appendices thereto, or 

any other resolution of the City, to the extent that they are inconsistent with this ordinance, and 

no further, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 5.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, the remaining portions of this Ordinance shall nonetheless remain in full force and 

effect.  The people of the City of Covina hereby declare that they would have adopted each 

section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance, irrespective of the fact 

that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions of this 

Ordinance be declared invalid or unenforceable. 

 

SECTION 6.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this ordinance and shall 

cause the same to be entered in the book of original ordinances of said City; shall make a minute 

passage and adoption thereof in the records of the meeting at which time the same is passed and 

adopted; and shall, within fifteen (15) days after the passage and adoption thereof, cause the 

same to be published as required by law, in a local weekly newspaper of general circulation and 

which is hereby designated for that purpose. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19
th

 day of April, 2016. 

 

     City of Covina, California 

 

 

BY: __________________________________  

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk 



 

 5 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

    

____________________________________ 

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney 

 

CERTIFICATION  

 

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that 

Ordinance No. 16-2056 was introduced for first reading at a regular meeting on the ____ day of 

______, 20__.  Thereafter, said Ordinance was duly approved and adopted at a regular meeting 

of said City Council on the _____ day of ______, 20__, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:   

NOES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:     

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:    

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:     

 

Dated:  

 

 

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 16- 7471

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA,  TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2015- 2016 CITY OF

COVINA OPERATING BUDGET TO REFLECT AN APPROPRIATION
OF  $270 FROM PROPOSITION C FUND BALANCE TO CITYWIDE

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY  (ACCOUNT NO. 2405- 2100-

51005- T1501)

WHEREAS, the City of Covina is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California(" City"); and

WHEREAS, the budget for the City of Covina for fiscal year commencing July 1, 2015
and ending June 30, 2016 was approved on June 23, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the approved budget is in accordance with all applicable ordinances of the

City and all applicable statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, the reallocation of the appropriations between departmental activities may
be made by the City Manager and amendments ( increases/decreases) to the adopted budget shall
be by approval and Resolution of the City Council; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2015,  the City Council authorized the City Manager to
execute a Professional Services Agreement with Willdan Engineering for the Preparation of the
Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey( E& TS) in an amount not-to-exceed $20,790; and

WHEREAS, as part of the Preparation of the Citywide E& TS, Willdan Engineering
conducted radar speed measurements at 77 locations during January 2016; and

WHEREAS, after review of the initial data by the City Traffic Engineer and Police
Department, the City requested Willdan Engineering to resurvey two street segments in an
amount not-to- exceed $270; and

WHEREAS, Willdan Engineering resurveyed the requested two street segments in
March 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City of Covina wishes to allocate funds for the completion of the
Preparation of the Citywide E& TS.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINA,

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Amend the fiscal year 2015- 2016 City of Covina operating budget as
follows:  $270 from Proposition C Fund balance to the Citywide Engineering and Traffic Survey
account no. 2405- 2100- 51005- T1501).

SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution
and shall enter the same in the Book of Original Resolutions.

Attachment C, 2 Pages190



APPROVED AND PASSED this
5th

day of April 2016.

City of Covina, California

BY:

KEVIN STAPLETON, Mayor

ATTEST:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CANDICE K. LEE, City Attorney

CERTIFICATION

I, Sharon F. Clark, Chief Deputy City Clerk of the City of Covina, do hereby certify that
Resolution No. 16- 7471 was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Covina at a regular
meeting held on the day of 20_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:   COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT:     COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

SHARON F. CLARK, Chief Deputy City Clerk

191



CITY OF COVINA

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

1.       PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into this FIRST day of DECEMBER, 2015 by and
between the City of Covina, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of
California with its principal place of business at 125 East College Street, Covina, California
91723 (" City") and WILLDAN ENGINEERING, a CORPORATION with its principal place of
business at 13191 CROSSROADS PARKWAY NORTH, SUITE 405, INDUSTRY, CA 91746

Consultant").   City and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as " Party" and

collectively as" Parties" in this Agreement.

2.       RECITALS.

2. 1 Consultant.

Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of certain
professional services required by the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.   Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing ENGINEERING AND
TRAFFIC SURVEY services to public clients, is licensed in the State of California, and is

familiar with the plans of City.

2. 2 Project

City desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the CITYWIDE
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY, Project No. T- 1501 (" Project") as set forth in this
Agreement.

3.       TERMS.

3. 1 Scope of Services and Term.

3. 1. 1 General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to

the City all labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work
necessary to fully and adequately supply the professional TRAFFIC ENGINEERING consulting
services necessary for the Project  (" Services").  The Services are more particularly described in
Exhibit " A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject

to,  and performed in accordance with,  this Agreement,  the exhibits attached hereto and

incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules, and
regulations.

3. 1. 2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from DECEMBER 1, 2015 to

JUNE 30, 2016, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Consultant shall complete the

Services within the term of this Agreement, and shall meet any other established schedules and
deadlines.  The Parties may, by mutual, written consent, extend the term of this Agreement if
necessary to complete the Services.

04820.00000\8172285.4

Attachment D, 20 Pages192



3. 2 Responsibilities of Consultant.

3.2. 1 Control and Payment of Subordinates;  Independent Contractor.  The

Services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine

the means, methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this
Agreement.  City retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.
Consultant retains the right to perform similar or different services for others during the term of
this Agreement.  Any additional personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on
behalf of Consultant shall also not be employees of City and shall at all times be under
Consultant' s exclusive direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other
amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this

Agreement and as required by law.    Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and

obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security
taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers'
compensation insurance.

3. 2.2 Schedule of Services. Consultant shall perform the Services expeditiously,
within the term of this Agreement, and in accordance with the Schedule of Services set forth in
Exhibit " B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  Consultant represents that it

has the professional and technical personnel required to perform the Services in conformance
with such conditions.  In order to facilitate Consultant' s conformance with the Schedule, City
shall respond to Consultant' s submittals in a timely manner.  Upon request of City, Consultant
shall provide a more detailed schedule of anticipated performance to meet the Schedule of
Services.

3. 2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.   All work prepared by
Consultant shall be subject to the approval of City.

3. 2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel. Consultant has represented to City that
certain key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should

one or more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel of
at least equal competence upon written approval of City.  In the event that City and Consultant
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate this
Agreement for cause.   As discussed below, any personnel who fail or refuse to perform the
Services in a manner acceptable to the City,  or who are determined by the City to be
uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project or a
threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the
Consultant at the request of the City.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are
as follows: LEW GLUESING, PE, TE, PTOE; VANESSA MUNOZ, PE, TE, PTOE; JEFFREY
LAU, PE; AND NICOLLE SPANN, EIT.

3. 2.5 City' s Representative.   The City hereby designates ANDREA M.

MILLER, CITY MANAGER,  or his or her designee,  to act as its representative for the
performance of this Agreement (" City' s Representative").  City' s Representative shall have the
power to act on behalf of the City for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall not

accept direction or orders from any person other than the City' s Representative or his or her
designee.

09820.0000018172285. 4 2-

193



3. 2.6 Consultant' s Representative.   Consultant hereby designates LEW

GLUESING, P.E., T.E, P.T.O.E. , or his or her designee, to act as its representative for the
performance of this Agreement (" Consultant' s Representative").   Consultant' s Representative

shall have full authority to represent and act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under
this Agreement.  The Consultant' s Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using
his best skill and attention,  and shall be responsible for all means,  methods, techniques,

sequences, and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services
under this Agreement.

3. 2.7 Coordination of Services. Consultant agrees to work closely with City
staff in the performance of Services and shall be available to City' s staff, consultants and other
staff at all reasonable times.

3. 2. 8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees. Consultant shall perform all
Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards

generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of
California.   Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling
necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and subconsultants
shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned to them.   Finally,
Consultant represents that it,  its employees and subconsultants have all licenses,  permits,

qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services,
including a City Business License, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained
throughout the term of this Agreement.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this

Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement

from the City, any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the
Consultant' s failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of
the Consultant or its sub- consultants who is determined by the City to be uncooperative,
incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of
persons or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner
acceptable to the City, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall
not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project.

3. 2.9 Period of Performance and Liquidated Damages. Consultant shall perform
and complete all Services under this Agreement within the term set forth in Section 3. 1. 2 above

Performance Time"). Consultant shall also perform the Services in strict accordance with any
completion schedule or Project milestones described in Exhibits " A" or " B" attached hereto, or
which may be separately agreed upon in writing by the City and Consultant (" Performance
Milestones"). Consultant agrees that if the Services are not completed within the aforementioned

Performance Time and/ or pursuant to any such Project Milestones developed pursuant to
provisions of this Agreement, it is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the City will suffer
damage. Laws and Regulations; Employee/Labor Certifications. Consultant shall keep itself fully
informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any
manner affecting the performance of the Project or the Services,  including all Cal/OSHA
requirements, and shall give all notices required by law.   Consultant shall be liable for all
violations of such laws and regulations in connection with Services.  If the Consultant performs

any work knowing it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving
written notice to the City, Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.

09820.0000018172285. 4 3-

194



Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, its officials, directors, officers, employees, and
agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, from any
claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or
regulations.

3. 2.9. 1 Employment Eligibility;   Consultant.   By executing this

Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements and restrictions of
state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, including, but not
limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended from time to
time.   Such requirements and restrictions include, but are not limited to, examination and

retention of documentation confirming the identity and immigration status of each employee of
the Consultant.  Consultant also verifies that it has not committed a violation of any such law
within the five ( 5) years immediately preceding the date of execution of this Agreement, and
shall not violate any such law at any time during the term of the Agreement.  Consultant shall

avoid any violation of any such law during the term of this Agreement by participating in an
electronic verification of work authorization program operated by the United States Department
of Homeland Security, by participating in an equivalent federal work authorization program
operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly
hired employees, or by some other legally acceptable method.  Consultant shall maintain records
of each such verification, and shall make them available to the City or its representatives for
inspection and copy at any time during normal business hours. The City shall not be responsible
for any costs or expenses related to Consultant' s compliance with the requirements provided for
in Section 3. 2. 10 or any of its sub-sections.

3. 2.9.2 Employment Eligibility;  Subcontractors,  Consultants,  Sub-

subcontractors and Subconsultants.  To the same extent and under the same conditions as

Consultant, Consultant shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, sub-subcontractors and

subconsultants performing any work relating to the Project or this Agreement to make the same
verifications and comply with all requirements and restrictions provided for in Section 3. 2. 10. 1.

3. 2.9. 3 Employment Eligibility;  Failure to Comply.  Each person

executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant verifies that they are a duly authorized officer
of Consultant, and understands that any of the following shall be grounds for the City to
terminate the Agreement for cause: ( 1) failure of Consultant or its subcontractors, consultants,

sub- subcontractors or subconsultants to meet any of the requirements provided for in Sections
3. 2. 10. 1 or 3. 2. 10.2; ( 2) any misrepresentation or material omission concerning compliance with
such requirements ( including in those verifications provided to the Consultant under Section
3. 2. 10.2); or ( 3) failure to immediately remove from the Project any person found not to be in
compliance with such requirements.

3. 2.9.4 Labor Certification.  By its signature hereunder,  Consultant
certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which

require every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services.

04820.00000\ 8172285. 4 4-

195



3. 2.9.5 Equal Opportunity Employment. Consultant represents that it is
an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee
or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry,
sex or age.  Such non- discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to

initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination.  Consultant shall also comply with all relevant provisions of City' s Minority
Business Enterprise program, Affirmative Action Plan or other related programs or guidelines

currently in effect or hereinafter enacted.

3. 2. 9.6 Air Quality. To the extent applicable, Consultant must fully
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in furnishing or using equipment and/or
providing services, including, but not limited to, emissions limits and permitting requirements
imposed by the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) and/or California Air
Resources Board ( CARB).  Although the SCAQMD and CARB limits and requirements are

more broad, Consultant shall specifically be aware of their application to " portable equipment",
which definition is considered by SCAQMD and CARB to include any item of equipment with a
fuel-powered engine. Consultant shall indemnify City against any fines or penalties imposed by
SCAQMD, CARB, or any other governmental or regulatory agency for violations of applicable
laws, rules and/or regulations by Consultant, its subconsultants, or others for whom Consultant is
responsible under its indemnity obligations provided for in this Agreement.

3. 2. 10 Insurance.

3. 2. 10. 1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence Services

under this Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that it has secured all
insurance required under this Section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any subconsultant
to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the City that
the subconsultant has secured all insurance required under this Section.

3. 2. 10. 2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall,  at its expense,

procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the Agreement by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, employees or subconsultants.
Consultant shall also require all of its subconsultants to procure and maintain the same insurance

for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum
levels of coverage:

A.      Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as
broad as the latest version of the following: ( 1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability coverage ( occurrence form CG 0001); ( 2) Automobile Liability:
Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code I ( any auto);
and ( 3) Workers' Compensation and Employer' s Liability: Workers' Compensation insurance as
required by the State of California and Employer' s Liability Insurance.  The policy shall not
contain any exclusion contrary to the Agreement, including but not limited to endorsements or
provisions limiting coverage for ( 1) contractual liability (including but not limited to ISO CG 24
26 or 21 29); or( 2) cross liability for claims or suits by one insured against another.

09820.0000018172285. 4 5-

196



B.       Minimum Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain

limits no less than: ( 1) General Liability:  $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage.   If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/ location or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:  $2,000,000 per accident

for bodily injury and property damage;  and  ( 3)  Workers'  Compensation and Employer' s

Liability:  Workers'  Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California.  Employer' s Liability limits of $2, 000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
Defense costs shall be paid in addition to the limits.

C.       Notices; Cancellation or Reduction of Coverage.  At least

fifteen ( 15) days prior to the expiration of any such policy, evidence showing that such insurance
coverage has been renewed or extended shall be filed with the City.   If such coverage is

cancelled or materially reduced, Consultant shall, within ten ( 10) days after receipt of written

notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage, file with the City evidence of insurance
showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or has been provided through another
insurance company or companies.   In the event any policy of insurance required under this
Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, the City
has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid
by the City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or the City may withhold amounts
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, the City may suspend or
terminate this Agreement.

3. 2. 10.3 Professional Liability. Consultant shall procure and maintain,
and require its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five ( 5) years following
completion of the Project, errors and omissions liability insurance appropriate to their profession.
Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than $ 2, 000,000 per claim, and shall be endorsed

to include contractual liability. Defense costs shall be paid in addition to the limits.

3. 2. 10.4 Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain

the following provisions,  or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or
approved by the City to add the following provisions to the insurance policies:

A.      General Liability. The general liability policy shall include
or be endorsed ( amended) to state that:   ( 1) using ISO CG forms 20 10 and 20 37, or
endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the City of Covina, its directors, officials,
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insured with respect to

the Services or ongoing and completed operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant,
including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work; and ( 2) using
ISO form 20 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage, the insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the

Consultant' s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any excess insurance shall contain a provision that
such coverage shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis for the benefit of the City,
before the City' s own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a
named insured.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its directors, officials,

09820.0000018172285. 4 6-

197



officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant' s insurance and
shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way.  Notwithstanding the minimum limits
set forth in Section 3. 2. 11. 2(B), any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of coverage shall be available to the parties required to be named as additional

insureds pursuant to this Section 3. 2. 11. 4(A).

B.       Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall
include or be endorsed ( amended) to state that:  ( 1) the City, its directors, officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the

ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; and ( 2) the insurance
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City,  its directors,  officials, officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage
excess of the Consultant' s scheduled underlying coverage.   Any insurance or self- insurance
maintained by the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall
be excess of the Consultant' s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any
way.   Notwithstanding the minimum limits set forth in Section 3. 2. 11. 2( B),  any available
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of coverage shall be available to

the parties required to be named as additional insureds pursuant to this Section 3. 2. 11. 4(B).

C.       Workers'    Compensation and Employer' s Liability
Coverage. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the

insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant.

D.       All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this
Agreement shall be endorsed to state that:  ( A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced
or canceled except after thirty ( 30) days ( 10 days for nonpayment of premium) prior written

notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City; and ( B) any failure
to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties,
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers.   Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies
including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officials,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or any other additional insureds.

3.2. 10.5 Separation of Insureds;  No Special Limitations:  Waiver of

Subrogation. All insurance required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds
provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of
protection afforded to the City,  its directors,  officials,  officers,  employees,  agents,  and

volunteers.  All policies shall waive any right of subrogation of the insurer against the City, its
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any other additional insureds, or shall
specifically allow Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these
specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss.  Consultant hereby waives its own
right of recovery against City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any
other additional insureds, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses
from each of its subconsultants.

09820.0000018172285. 4 7-

198



3. 2. 10.6 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any deductibles or
self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  Consultant shall guarantee
that, at the option of the City, either:  ( 1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or

self-insured retentions as respects the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers; or ( 2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and
related investigation costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

3. 2. 10. 7 Subconsultant Insurance Requirements.  Consultant shall not

allow any subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract relating to the work under the
Agreement until they have provided evidence satisfactory to the City that they have secured all
insurance required under this Section.   If requested by Consultant, the City may approve
different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subconsultants.  The Consultant

and the City shall be named as additional insureds on all subconsultants' policies of Commercial
General Liability using ISO form 20 38, or coverage at least as broad.

3. 2. 10.8 Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A.M. Best' s rating no less than A:VIII, licensed to do business in California, and
satisfactory to the City.

3. 2. 10.9 Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish City with
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this
Agreement on forms satisfactory to the City.   The certificates and endorsements for each

insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf,  and shall be on forms provided by the City if requested.    All certificates and

endorsements must be received and approved by the City before work commences.  The City
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any
time.

3. 2. 10. 10 Reporting of Claims. Consultant shall report to the City, in
addition to Consultant' s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Consultant in
connection with the Services under this Agreement.

3. 2. 11 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid
injury or damage to any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at
all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations,

and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the nature
of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.  Safety precautions as
applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to:  ( A) adequate life protection and life saving
equipment and procedures;  ( B)  instructions in accident prevention for all employees and

subconsultants, such as safe walkways, scaffolds, fall protection ladders, bridges, gang planks,
confined space procedures,  trenching and shoring,  equipment and other safety devices,
equipment and wearing apparel as are necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or
injuries; and ( C) adequate facilities for the proper inspection and maintenance of all safety
measures.

3. 2. 12 Accounting Records. Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate
records with respect to all costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement.  All such records

09820.0000018 i 72285. 4 8-

199



shall be clearly identifiable.   Consultant shall allow a representative of City during normal
business hours to examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other
documents created pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant shall allow inspection of all work,

data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three ( 3)
years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

3. 2. 13 Storm Water Management.

3.2. 13. 1 Generally.   Storm, surface, nuisance, or other waters may be
encountered at various times during the Services.  Consultant hereby acknowledges that it has
investigated the risk arising from such waters, and assumes any and all risks and liabilities
arising therefrom.

3. 2. 13. 2 Compliance with Water Quality Laws,   Ordinances and

Regulations.   Consultant shall keep itself and all subcontractors, staff, and employees fully
informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations that

may impact, or be implicated by the performance of the Services including, without limitation,
all applicable provisions of the City' s ordinances regulating water quality and storm water; the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act ( 33 U.S. C. § 1251 et seq); the California Porter-Cologne

Water Quality Control Act( Water Code § 13000 et seq.); and any and all regulations, policies, or
permits issued pursuant to any such authority.  Consultant shall additionally comply with the
lawful requirements of the City, and any other municipality, drainage district, or other local
agency with jurisdiction over the location where the Services are to be conducted, regulating
water quality and storm water discharges.

3. 2. 13. 3 Standard of Care.  Consultant warrants that all employees and

subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the work assigned to them

without impacting water quality in violation of the laws, regulations and policies described in
Sections 3. 2. 14 of this Agreement.   Consultant further warrants that it, its employees and

subcontractors have or will receive adequate training, as determined by the City, regarding these
requirements as they may relate to the Services, and will provide the City with documentation of
training acceptable to the City on request.

3. 2. 13.4 Liability for Non- compliance.

A)     Indemnity:  Failure to comply with laws, regulations, and
ordinances listed in Section 3. 2. 14 of this Agreement is a violation of federal and state law.

Notwithstanding any other indemnity contained in this Agreement,  Consultant agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees and authorized
volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, losses or liabilities of any kind or
nature which the City, its officials, officers. agents, employees and authorized volunteers may
sustain or incur for noncompliance with the laws, regulations, and ordinances listed above,

arising out of or in connection with the Services, except for liability resulting from the sole
established negligence, willful misconduct or active negligence of the City, its officials, officers,
agents, employees or authorized volunteers.

09820, 0000018172285. 4 9-

200



B)     Defense:  City reserves the right to defend any enforcement
action or civil action brought against the City for Consultant' s failure to comply with any
applicable water quality law, regulation, or policy. Consultant hereby agrees to be bound by, and
to reimburse the City for the costs associated with, any settlement reached between the City and
the relevant enforcement entity.

C)     Damages:   City may seek damages from Consultant for
delay in completing the Services caused by Consultant' s failure to comply with the laws,
regulations and policies described in Section 3. 2. 14 of this Agreement, or any other relevant
water quality law, regulation, or policy.

3. 3 Fees and Payments.

3. 3. 1 Compensation.   Consultant shall receive compensation,   including
authorized reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth
in Exhibit" C" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The total compensation

shall not exceed TWENTY THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED NINETY DOLLARS ($20,790)

without written approval of City' s CITY MANAGER.   Extra Work may be authorized, as
described below, and if authorized, will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this
Agreement.

3. 3. 2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to City a monthly
itemized statement which indicates work completed and hours of Services rendered by
Consultant.  The statement shall describe the amount of Services and supplies provided since the

initial commencement date, or since the start of the subsequent billing periods, as appropriate,
through the date of the statement.  City shall, within 45 days of receiving such statement, review
the statement and pay all approved charges thereon.

3. 3. 3 Reimbursement for Expenses. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any
expenses unless authorized in writing by City.

3. 3.4 Extra Work. At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may
request that Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, " Extra Work" means any work
which is determined by City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which
the parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.
Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without written authorization

from City' s Representative.

3. 3. 5 Prevailing Wages. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California
Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770, et seq., as well as California Code of Regulations,

Title 8, Section 16000, et seq., (" Prevailing Wage Laws"), which require the payment of

prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on  " public works"  and

maintenance" projects. IF the Services are being performed as part of an applicable " public
works" or " maintenance" project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and IF the total
compensation is $ 1, 000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage
Laws.  City shall provide Consultant with a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages in
effect at the commencement of this Agreement.  Consultant shall make copies of the prevailing

09820.00000\ 8172285, 4 10-

201



rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the
Services available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Consultant' s
principal place of business and at the project site.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold
the City, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or
liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

3. 3. 6 Registration.  Effective March 1,  2015,  IF the Services are being
performed as part of an applicable " public works" or " maintenance" project, then pursuant to

Labor Code Sections 1725. 5 and 1771. 1, the Consultant and all subconsultants performing such
Services must be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations.   Consultant shall

maintain registration for the duration of the Project and require the same of any subconsultants,
as applicable.  This Project may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant' s sole responsibility to comply
with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements.

3. 4 Termination of Agreement.

3. 4. 1 Grounds for Termination.  City may, by written notice to Consultant,
terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving
written notice to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at
least seven ( 7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant

shall be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to City, and
Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.   Consultant may not terminate this
Agreement except for cause.

3. 4.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein,

City may require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data and other
information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the performance of Services
under this Agreement.   Consultant shall be required to provide such document and other
information within fifteen ( 15) days of the request.

3. 4. 3 Additional Services. In the event this Agreement is terminated in whole or

in part as provided herein, City may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may
determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated.

3. 5 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality.

3. 5. 1 Documents & Data; Licensing of Intellectual Property. This Agreement
creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for City to copy, use, modify, reuse, or sublicense
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications,
studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or works of authorship fixed in any tangible
medium of expression, including but not limited to, physical drawings or data magnetically or
otherwise recorded on computer diskettes, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by
Consultant under this Agreement (" Documents & Data").  All Documents & Data shall be and

remain the property of City, and shall not be used in whole or in substantial part by Consultant
on other projects without the City's express written permission.   Within thirty ( 30)  days

09820.00000\8172285. 4 1 1-

202



following the completion,  suspension,  abandonment or termination of this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide to City reproducible copies of all Documents & Data, in a form and
amount required by City.  City reserves the right to select the method of document reproduction
and to establish where the reproduction will be accomplished. The reproduction expense shall be

borne by City at the actual cost of duplication.  In the event of a dispute regarding the amount of
compensation to which the Consultant is entitled under the termination provisions of this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide all Documents &  Data to City upon payment of the
undisputed amount.  Consultant shall have no right to retain or fail to provide to City any such
documents pending resolution of the dispute.  In addition, Consultant shall retain copies of all
Documents & Data on file for a minimum of fifteen ( 15) years following completion of the
Project,  and shall make copies available to City upon the payment of actual reasonable
duplication costs.   Before destroying the Documents & Data following this retention period,
Consultant shall make a reasonable effort to notify City and provide City with the opportunity to
obtain the documents.

3. 5. 2 Subconsultants. Consultant shall require all subconsultants to agree in

writing that City is granted a non- exclusive and perpetual license for any Documents & Data the

subconsultant prepares under this Agreement.    Consultant represents and warrants that
Consultant has the legal right to license any and all Documents & Data.  Consultant makes no
such representation and warranty in regard to Documents & Data which were prepared by design
professionals other than Consultant or its subconsultants, or those provided to Consultant by the
City.

3. 5.3 Right to Use. City shall not be limited in any way in its use or reuse of the
Documents and Data or any part of them at any time for purposes of this Project or another
project, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this Agreement or on a
project other than this Project without employing the services of Consultant shall be at City' s
sole risk. If City uses or reuses the Documents & Data on any project other than this Project, it
shall remove the Consultant' s seal from the Documents& Data and indemnify and hold harmless
Consultant and its officers, directors, agents and employees from claims arising out of the
negligent use or re-use of the Documents & Data on such other project.  Consultant shall be
responsible and liable for its Documents & Data, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, only
with respect to the condition of the Documents & Data at the time they are provided to the City
upon completion, suspension, abandonment or termination.  Consultant shall not be responsible
or liable for any revisions to the Documents & Data made by any party other than Consultant, a
party for whom the Consultant is legally responsible or liable, or anyone approved by the
Consultant.

3. 5. 4 Indemnification. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the

indemnification provisions of this Agreement,  for any alleged infringement of any patent,
copyright, trade secret, trade name, trademark, or any other proprietary right of any person or
entity in consequence of the use on the Project by City of the Documents & Data, including any
method, process, product, or concept specified or depicted.

3. 5. 5 Confidentiality. All Documents & Data, either created by or provided to
Consultant in connection with the performance of this Agreement, shall be held confidential by

09820.0000018172285. 4 12-

203



Consultant.  All Documents & Data shall not, without the prior written consent of City, be used
or reproduced by Consultant for any purposes other than the performance of the Services.
Consultant shall not disclose, cause or facilitate the disclosure of the Documents & Data to any
person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing
furnished to Consultant that is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has
become known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use

City' s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or
the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio production or other
similar medium without the prior written consent of City.

3. 6 General Provisions.

3. 6. 1 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this

Agreement shall be given to the respective parties at the following address, or at such other
address as the respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

Consultant:

Willdan Engineering
13191 Crossroads Parkway North, Suite 405
Industry, CA 91746- 3443
Attn: Lew Gluesing, PE, TE, PTOE

City:
City of Covina
125 E. College St.

Covina, CA 91723

Attn: Siobhan Foster, Director of Public Works

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight
48) hours after deposit in the U. S. Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the party at

its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice

occurred, regardless of the method of service.

3. 6.2 Indemnification.

3. 6. 2. 1 Scope of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its directors, officials, officers, employees,
volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action,
costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or
persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any
alleged acts, errors or omissions of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors,

consultants or agents in connection with the performance of the Consultant' s Services, the

Project or this Agreement,  including without limitation the payment of all consequential
damages,  expert witness fees and attorneys fees and other related costs and expenses.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Consultant' s Services are subject to Civil Code
Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code

09820.0000018172285. 4 13-

204



Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of the Consultant.

3. 6.2. 2 Additional Indemnity Obligations. Consultant shall defend, with
Counsel of City's choosing and at Consultant' s own cost, expense and risk, any and all claims,
suits, actions or other proceedings of every kind covered by Section 3.6.2. 1 that may be brought
or instituted against City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents.
Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against
City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents as part of any such
claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Consultant shall also reimburse City for the cost of any
settlement paid by City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers as part
of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Such reimbursement shall include payment

for City' s attorney' s fees and costs, including expert witness fees.  Consultant shall reimburse

City and its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all
legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the
indemnity herein provided.   Consultant' s obligation to indemnify shall survive expiration or
termination of this Agreement, and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received
by the City, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

3. 6.3 Governing Law; Government Code Claim Compliance. This Agreement
shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Venue shall be in Los Angeles County.
In addition to any and all contract requirements pertaining to notices of and requests for
compensation or payment for extra work, disputed work, claims and/or changed conditions,

Consultant must comply with the claim procedures set forth in Government Code sections 900 et
seq. prior to filing any lawsuit against the City.   Such Government Code claims and any
subsequent lawsuit based upon the Government Code claims shall be limited to those matters

that remain unresolved after all procedures pertaining to extra work, disputed work, claims,
and/ or changed conditions have been followed by Consultant.   If no such Government Code

claim is submitted, or if any prerequisite contractual requirements are not otherwise satisfied as
specified herein, Consultant shall be barred from bringing and maintaining a valid lawsuit
against the City.

3. 6.4 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for each and every provision of
this Agreement.

3. 6. 5 City' s Right to Employ Other Consultants. City reserves right to employ
other consultants in connection with this Project.

3. 6.6 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on the
successors and assigns of the parties.

3. 6.7 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign,  hypothecate,  or

transfer, either directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the
prior written consent of the City.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any assignees,
hypothecatees or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such attempted
assignment, hypothecation or transfer.

0982(10000018172285. 4 14-

205



3. 6.8 Construction; References; Captions. Since the Parties or their agents have

participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party.  Any
term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days and not
work days.    All references to Consultant include all personnel,  employees,  agents,  and

subconsultants of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All references to

City include its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers except as otherwise
specified in this Agreement.   The captions of the various articles and paragraphs are for

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope,
content or intent of this Agreement.

3. 6.9 Amendment; Modification. No supplement, modification or amendment of

this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties.

3. 6. 10 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other
default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition.   No waiver, benefit,

privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any
contractual rights by custom, estoppel or otherwise.

3. 6. 11 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except to the extent expressly provided for
in Section 3. 6. 7, there are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed
by the Parties.

3.6. 12 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared
invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.

3. 6. 13 Prohibited Interests. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely
for Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not

paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  Consultant further

agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subconsultants to file, a Statement of Economic

Interest with the City' s Filing Officer as required under state law in the performance of the
Services.   For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to rescind this
Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of
City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this
Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.

3. 6. 14 Cooperation; Further Acts. The Parties shall fully cooperate with one
another, and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary,
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

3. 6. 15 Attorney' s Fees. If either party commences an action against the other
party,  either legal,  administrative or otherwise,  arising out of or in connection with this

09820.0(8)0018172285. 4 15-

206



Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the
losing party reasonable attorney' s fees and all other costs of such action.

3.6. 16 Authority to Enter Agreement. Consultant has all requisite power and
authority to conduct its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement. Each Party
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and

authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party.

3. 6. 17 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of
which shall constitute an original.

3. 6. 18 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the

parties with respect to the subject matter hereof,  and supersedes all prior negotiations,

understandings or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by
both parties.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

09820,00000\8172285. 4 16-

207



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINA

AND WILLDAN ENGINEERING

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the FIRST

day of DECEMBER, 2015.

City:   Contractor:

City of Covina,     Willdan Engineering,
a California municipal corporation a California corporation

By: 4.    I   By:   0.:
Name: Andrea M. Miller Name: 

Title: City Manager T' tle: a Chairman a President

Vice President
Attest:

By:
By:    F 44)      Name

Name: Sharon F. Clark Title: secretary a Asst. Sec
Title: Chief Deputy City Clerk o Chief Finance Officer a Asst. Treasurer

Approved as to Form:    Two signatures required for corporations pursuant to
California Corporations Code Section 313,  unless

AI
corporate documents authorize only one person to sign
this Agreement on behalf of the corporation.]

By:
Name: Candic-. Lee

Title: City Attorney

09820.00008172285. 4 17-

208



EXHIBIT" A"

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consultant shall provide professional traffic engineering consulting services for the preparation
of a citywide engineering and traffic survey, as required by Section 40802 of the California
Vehicle Code.

18 HB& K: 9- I0)

09820.0000018 t 72285.4

209



EXHIBIT" B"

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

The project shall commence following the Notice to Proceed. The project shall be completed by
March 22, 2015 per the schedule below.

Project Schedule:

Notice to Proceed December 2, 2015

Task 1 — Kick Off Meeting December 10, 2015

Task 2— Radar Data Collection January 8, 2016— February 4, 2016
Task 3— Radar Data Analysis February 5, 2016— February 11, 2016
Task 4— Roadway Segment Characterisitcs Review January 8, 2016— February 4, 2016
Task 5— Accident History Review and Accident Rate January 29, 2016— February 4, 2016
Calculation

Task 6— Completion of Speed Zone Survey and February 12, 2016— February 18,
Summary of Recommendations Chart 2016

Task 7 & 8— Preparation of Draft and Final Speed February 26, 2016— March 22, 2016

Survey Report
Submit Draft February 26, 2016
City Review February 29, 2016— March 11, 2016

Meeting March 14, 2016

Revise E& T March 15, 2016

Final E& T March 22, 2016

19 BB& K: 9- l0)

09820.0000018172285. 4

210



EXHIBIT" C"

COMPENSATION

Total compensation shall not exceed twenty thousand seven hundred ninety dollars.

WILLDAN ENGINEERING

WILLDAN I Schedule of Hourly Rates
Effective July 1. 2015le June 30. 2016

EN--, AFrANG CONSIRI' Ci; GNMANAGEMENT R[ IU 1N;,. N,; SA1- tTY

Technical Aide I 59.00 Labor Compliance Specialist 105.00 Senior Construction Permit Soedaist 110.00
Technical Aide II 75.00 tabor Compliance Manager 131.00

Supervising Construction Permit
Technical Aide III 93.00 Utility Coordinator 136.00 Specialist

11500

Drafter I 94.00 Assistant Construction Manager 131.00 Building
Inspector 115.00

Drafter II 110.00 C.onstruction Manager 156.00 Supervisor Code Enforcement 126.00

Senior Drafter 121.00
Senior Construction Manager 164.00 Senior Building Inspector 126.00

GIS Analyst I 126.00
Project Manager IV 181.00 Pians Examiner 12640

GIS Analyst II 143.00
Deputy Director 20040 Supervising Building Inspector 138.00

GIS Analyst III 159.00
Director 2° 340 Senior Plans Examiner 138.00

Designer 1 126
INSPLCDON SERVICES Inspector of Record 154.00

Designer II 131.00
Public Works Observer t•  61.00

Deputy Building Official 154.00

Senior Designer I 13800
Public Works Observer II'  8940 Plan Check Engineer 154.00

Public
Senior Designer Ii 145.00

Senior Works Observer I•     97.00
Building OffideI 159.00

Senior Public Works Observer II'   108.00 Supervising Plan Cheek Engineer 159.00
Assistant Engineer I 100.00 Senior Public Works Observer lir 116.00
Assistant Engineer II 119.00

Deputy

Project Manager 190.00
Senior Public Works Observer N 12340

Deputy Dlrortor 200.00
Assistant Engineer III 125.00 Senior public Works Observer V•   131.00 Director
Assistant Engineer IV 130.00 MAPPING AND EXPERT SERVICES

203.00

Associate Engineer I 132.00 Survey Analyst I 110.

00PLANNING
Associate Engineer II 139.00 Survey Analyst II 126.00 Community Development

93.00

Associate Engineer III 146.00 Calculator I 11000
Technician

Design Manager 148.00 Calculator II 121.00
Planning TechPlanner

93 00

Senior Design Manager 156.00 Calculator III 132.00
Assistant Planner 115.00

Senior Engineer I 149.00 Senior Survey Analyst 143.00

PlansPannent
Community Development

115 00
r

Senior Engineer U 154.00 Supervisor- Survey& Mapping 16440
Associate Community Development

Senior Engineer in 160.00 Principal Project Manager 190.00 Planner
126.00

Senior Engineer IV 173.00 LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE Associate Planner 126.00

Supervising Engineer 177.00 Assistant Landscape Architect 110.00
Senior Community Development

Project Manager 1 135.00 Associate Landscape Architect 126.00 planner
143.00

Project Manager II 157.00
Senior Landscape Architect 13840 Senior Planner 143.00

Project Manager III 174.00
Principal Landscape Architect 159.00 Principal Community Development

15940

Project Manager IV 196.0o
Principal P •' tet Mane er 190.00 Planner

Program Manage,       195.00
BUILDING AND SAFETY Principal Planner 159.00

Assistant Coda EnforcementDeputy Director 200.00
Traffic Engineer I 175.00

officer
77.00

Traffic Engineer It 190.00
Director

Plans Examiner Aide 83.00 ADMINISTRATIVE
City Engineer I 190.00 Assistant Construction Permit

Gly Engineer R 200.00 Specialist
93.00 Administrative Assistant I 68.00

Principal Project Manager 190.00 Construction Permit Specialist gg.00
AdministrativeAssistant II 83.00

Deputy Director 200.00 Code Enforcement Officer 88.00
Administrative Assistant Iq 97.00

Director 203.00 Assistant Building Inspector105.00
Project Accountant I 7800

Project Accountant II 91.00
Principal Engineer 221.00 Senior Code Enforcement Officer 105.00

Mileage reimournrumil will t* charged at the curre, t' idem! vurcletkw rate at the tam of Iraecg. Vvnden will hr charged ata Mtmlbly late al SSOO 00.
5138 oar tmx for Prevails, Wage Project

20 BB& K: 9- 10)

09820.0000018172285.4

211



FIRST AMENDMENT TO

CITY OF COVINA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT to the December 1, 2015 City of Covina Professional
Services Agreement  (" Agreement")  between the City of Covina,  a California municipal

corporation (" City"), and Willdan Engineering, a California corporation (" Consultant"), is dated

April 5, 2016 by and is between City and Consultant.

RECITALS

A.      On December 1, 2015,  City and Consultant entered into the Agreement for
preparation of a City-wide engineering and traffic survey.

B.       The parties desire to amend the Agreement to ( 1) modify the scope of work so
that Consultant may resurvey two street segments taking additional radar speed measurements
Badillo Street from Fourth Avenue to Second Avenue and Covina Hills Road from Grand

Avenue to Rancho La Carlotta) and ( 2) increase the total compensation amount by Two Hundred
Seventy Dollars ($ 270) to a not-to-exceed amount of Twenty- One Thousand Sixty Dollars

21, 060).

The parties therefore agree as follows:

1.       The second sentence in Subsection 3. 3. 1 (" Compensation") of Section 3. 3 (" Fees

and Payments") of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:

The total compensation shall not exceed TWENTY-ONE THOUSAND SIXTY
DOLLARS ($ 21, 060) without written approval of City' s CITY MANAGER or
the City Council, as applicable."

2.       Exhibit " A" (" Scope of Services") to the Agreement is amended to read as

follows:

Consultant shall provide professional traffic engineering consulting services for
the preparation of a citywide engineering and traffic survey, as required by
Section 40802 of the California Vehicle Code.   Additionally, Consultant shall
resurvey two street segments taking additional radar speed measurements on
Badillo Street from Fourth Avenue to Second Avenue and Covina Hills Road

from Grand Avenue to Rancho La Carlota."

3.       Exhibit" C" (" Compensation") to the Agreement is hereby amended to include the
additional compensation set forth on Attachment " A" to this First Amendment, attached hereto

and incorporated herein by this reference.

4.       Except as expressly modified or supplemented by this First Amendment, all other
provisions of the Agreement shall remain unaltered and in full force and effect.  In the event of a

conflict between the provisions of this First Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement,
the provisions of this First Amendment shall control.

Page 1 of 3

Attache-ent E, 3 Pages212



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties, through their duly authorized representatives, are
signing this First Amendment on the date stated in the introductory clause.

City:   Consultant:

City of Covina,     WILLDAN ENGINEERING,   a California

a California municipal corporation corporation

By:     By:
Name: Name:

Title:  Title:

ATTEST:    By:
Name:

Title:

By:     Two signatures of corporate officers required
Name: Sharon F. Clark for corporations under Corporations Code
Title: Chief Deputy City Clerk Section 313,   unless corporate documents

authorize only one person to sign this

Agreement on behalfof the corporation.)
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Name: Candice K. Lee

Title: City Attorney

Page 2 of 3

213



ATTACHMENT " A"

ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION

Work Compensation

Resurvey two street segments, Badillo Street   $ 270 ( flat fee)

from Fourth Avenue to Second Avenue and

Covina Hills Road from Grand Avenue to

Rancho La Carlota.

Page 3 of 3

214



EngineeringTandraffic

Survey
March 2016

ENGINEERING AND

TRAFFIC SURVEY

AOF COI,i w . a'mc   . ssCOMMsuw     -

4S 410111117
cawmate ma

fal
iillIIIc

I"""'" I a-   IiUSiuhIIIIICIu
lululllamlhl

Iui. Iw

1111111111110

111111a11111111111    _-
2' 11111111111111111

w111111I1„

FOR THE CITY OF

sof co`!

our

v."    r,.

E, 0

9LIFOR

COVINA

Prepared by:

WWILLDAN
Engineering

Attachment F, 199 Pages215



W UK extendingom x/     your

Engineering    u o

March 14, 2016

Ms. Siobhan Foster

Director of Public Works

City of Covina
125 E. College Street

Covina, CA 91723

Subject:  2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey

Dear Ms. Foster:

As requested, Willdan has completed an Engineering and Traffic Survey to justify and
update the posted speed limits along 77 street segments in the City of Covina.  These

segments were last surveyed in 2011, and require an update to comply with the 5- year
limitation without any extension set forth in the California Vehicle Code ( CVC).

We are pleased to submit the enclosed Report that describes the E& T survey procedures
and contains recommendations for posted speed limits on the City' s arterial and collector
Street system.   A summary of these recommendations is included in the Analysis.
Supporting documentation for each speed zone recommendation is provided in the
Appendices.

The Report was conducted in accordance with applicable provisions of the CVC, following
procedures outlined in the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices( California

MUTCD) dated November 2014, and as required by Section 627 of the California Vehicle
Code. The Report is intended to satisfy the requirements of Section 40802 of the CVC to
enable the continued use of radar for traffic speed enforcement.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve the City of Covina and the assistance and
cooperation afforded to us during the course of this study.

Very truly yours,

VV| LLO^ N

No. 675K m

Vanessa un0Z. P.  ` T. E P. T. O. E.

Traffic Engineer

Enclosure

Engineering | Geotechnical | Erwonmental I o"*^ m° mlity I Financial | *" m" lardnec= ity
562y08.6200 | 800, 499.4484 | sax. 562.695.2120 I o1u1Crossroads Parkway North, Suite 405, Industry, o« o1r ô* wa | www wi/leamzv~

216



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INTRODUCTION 1- 2

Elements of the Engineering and Traffic Survey 2- 3

SURVEY CONDITIONS 4

Survey Locations 4
Data Collection 4

Speed Data 4
Collision Data 5
Field Review Data 5

ANALYSIS 6

Criteria 6
Results and Recommendations 6- 7
Table 1- Street Segments With Recommended Speed Changes 7
Table 2- Summary of Recommendations 8- 13
Segments with Special Conditions 14-20

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCES 21

Applicable Sections of California Vehicle Code 21- 26

APPENDIX A- Segment Data

Street Segment Sheets
Radar Speed Distribution Forms

APPENDIX B - Collision Rates

APPENDIX C - Survey Equipment Used

APPENDIX D — Recommended Speed Limit Map

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

217



INTRODUCTION

This Engineering and Traffic Survey is intended to be the basis for the establishment,
revision, and enforcement of speed limits for selected streets within the City of Covina. This
Engineering and Traffic Survey presents recommended speed limits for 77 street segments
in the City of Covina.   Engineering and Traffic Surveys are required by the State of
California to establish intermediate speed limits on local streets and to enforce those limits
using radar or other speed measuring devices. These surveys must be updated every 5 or
7 years to ensure the speeds reflect current conditions as dictated by the California Vehicle
Code ( CVC).   The CVC also requires that the surveys be conducted based on the
methodology required by The California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
California MUTCD) dated November 2014.

The survey was requested by the City for the proper posting of speed limits and to enable
the Police Department to utilize radar or other electronic speed measuring devices for
speed enforcement.  CVC Sections 40801 and 40802 require Engineering and Traffic
Surveys that verify the prima facie speed limit before enforcement by such a device is
legal. The law further specifies that these surveys be conducted every 5 years.   The

surveys can be extended to 7 years provided the City' s police officer(s) have completed a
24-hour radar operator course[ CVC 40802(c)(2)( B)( i)( I)]. Additionally, some surveys may
be extended to 10 years if a traffic engineer certifies that no changes in roadway or traffic
conditions have occurred [CVC 40802( c)(2)( B)( i)( II)]. These provisions assure that posted
speed limits are kept reasonably current.

The Engineering and Traffic Surveys for the City were conducted in accordance with
procedures outlined in the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices( California
MUTCD) dated November 2014 and as required by Section 627 of the California Vehicle
Code.  The Code further describes three elements of an engineering and traffic survey:

1.       Measurement of prevailing speed;
2.       Accident history; and
3.       Roadway characteristics not readily apparent to the motorist.

Posted speed limits are established primarily to protect the general public from the reckless
and unpredictable behavior of dangerous drivers.  They provide law enforcement with a
clearly understood method to identify and apprehend violators of the basic speed law( CVC
Section 22350).  This law states that "No person shall drive a vehicle on a highway at a
speed greater than is reasonable or prudent having due regard for weather, visibility, the
traffic on, and the surface and width of the highway, and in no event at a speed which
endangers the safety of persons or property."  The posted speed limit gives motorists a
clear warning of the maximum speed that is reasonable and prudent under typical driving
conditions.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
1 City of Covina

218



The basic fundamentals for establishing speed limits recognize that the majority of drivers
behave in a safe and reasonable manner,  and therefore, the normally careful and
competent actions of a reasonable driver should be considered legal.   Speed limits

established on these fundamentals conform to the consensus that those who drive the
highway determine what speed is reasonable and safe, not on the judgment of one or a
few individuals.  A radar speed study is usually used to record the prevailing speed of
reasonable drivers.

Speed limits are also established to advise drivers of conditions which may not be readily
apparent to a reasonable driver.  For this reason, accident history, roadway conditions,
traffic characteristics, and land use must also be analyzed before determining speed limits.
Speed limit changes are usually made in coordination with physical changes in roadway
conditions or roadside developments.  Unusually short zones of less than one- half mile in
length should be avoided to reduce driver confusion.

Additionally, it is generally accepted that speed limits cannot be successfully enforced
without voluntary compliance by a majority of drivers. Consequently, only the driver whose
behavior is clearly out of line with the normal flow of traffic is usually targeted for
enforcement.

ELEMENTS OF THE ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

The California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices ( California MUTCD) dated

November 2014 specifies the methodology to be used for completing Engineering and
Traffic Surveys.   This methodology includes an evaluation of current vehicle speeds,
accident history and conditions not readily apparent to motorists.  The basic elements of
the Engineering and Traffic Survey are discussed in more detail as follows:

Speed Sampling

Existing vehicle speeds are surveyed by a certified radar operator with a calibrated radar
unit in an unmarked vehicle.  Speed samples are taken for each segment representing a
statistically significant sample of current traffic. This data is then evaluated to identify the
distribution of speeds.  A key element in the evaluation is the identification of the 85th
percentile speed. The 85th percentile speed is the speed at or below which 85 percent of
the traffic travels.  This threshold represents what is historically found to be a safe and
reasonable speed for most drivers based on common roadway conditions.  Therefore, a
speed limit is established at the nearest 5- mile per hour ( mph) increment to the 85th
percentile speed, except as shown in the two options below.

Options:

1.  The posted speed may be reduced by 5 mph from the nearest 5 mph increment of
the 85th- percentile speed, in compliance with CVC Section 627 and 22358.5.

2.  For cases in which the nearest 5 mph increment of the 85th- percentile speed would
require a rounding up, then the speed limit may be rounded down to the nearest 5
mph increment below the 85th percentile speed, if no further reduction is used.
Refer to CVC Section 21400( b).

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
2 City of Covina

219



If the speed limit to be posted has had the 5 mph reduction applied, then an E& TS shall
document in writing the conditions and justification for the lower speed limit. The reasons
for the lower speed limit shall be in compliance with CVC Section 627 and 22358.5

The following examples are provided to explain the application of these speed limit criteria:

A. Using Option 1 above and first step is to round down: If the 85th percentile speed in
a speed survey for a location was 37 mph,  then the speed limit would be
established at 35 mph since it is the closest 5 mph increment to the 37 mph speed.
As indicated by the option, this 35 mph established speed limit could be reduced
by 5 mph to 30 mph if conditions and justification for using this lower speed limit are
documented in the E& TS.

B. Using Option 1 above and first step is to round up:  If the 85th percentile speed in a
speed survey for a location was 33 mph, then the speed limit would be established
at 35 mph since it is the closest 5 mph increment to the 33 mph speed.   As

indicated by the option, this 35 mph speed limit could be reduced by 5 mph to 30
mph if the conditions and justification for using this lower speed limit are
documented in the E& TS.

C. Using Option 2 above and first step is to round up:  If the 85th percentile speed in a
speed survey for a location was 33 mph, instead of rounding up to 35 mph, the
speed limit can be established at 30 mph, but no further reduction can be applied.

Collision History

Reported collisions are reviewed for each street segment to determine if there is a higher
than average rate of collisions.   A segment that has an above-average collision rate
typically suggests conditions that are not readily apparent to motorists.

A summary of the collision rates for the 77 surveyed street segments is provided in
Appendix B.

Conditions Not Readily Apparent To Motorists

Each street segment is field inspected to identify roadway conditions that may not be
readily apparent to motorists.   A determination is made whether any conditions are
significant and warrant the recommendation of the speed limit 5 mph or more below the
basic speed limit.  It is important to note that The California Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices( California MUTCD) dated November 2014 recommends exercising great
care when establishing speed limits 5 mph or more below the basic speed limit.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
3 City of Covina

220



SURVEY CONDITIONS

SURVEY LOCATIONS

The procedures described below describe the criteria and methods used to survey selected
streets within the City of Covina. The specific location of the radar speed survey for each
street segment was selected after considering the following:

1.       Minimum stop sign and traffic signal influence.
2.       Minimum visibility restrictions.
3.       Non- congested traffic flow away from intersections and driveways.
4.       Minimum influence from curves or other roadway conditions that would affect

the normal operation of a vehicle.

DATA COLLECTION

Data of existing conditions was obtained including prevailing speed of vehicles, traffic
collisions, visibility restrictions, and roadway conditions within the community. Speed data
and field reviews were conducted at 77 locations during the months of January and March
2016.

Speed Data

Radar speed measurements were conducted at 77 locations during January 2016 and
March 2016.  All surveys were conducted in good weather conditions, during off-peak
hours on weekdays.  The radar unit was operated from an unmarked vehicle to minimize
any influence on driver behavior. Typically, a minimum sample size of 100 vehicles or the
total samples during a maximum period of 2 hours were obtained for each segment.
Traffic speeds in both directions were recorded for individual segments.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
4 City of Covina

221



Collision Data

Collision data was obtained from the City' s SWITRS electronic collision database. For this
study, collision data was used from the latest 3 years of reported accidents from January 1,
2012 to December 31, 2014.  The collision rates for the 77 segments are expressed in
accidents per million vehicle miles ( A/ MVM). To calculate these rates, 24- hour traffic
volumes were collected for each street segment. This information was then entered into
the following formula to determine the collision rate:

Ax1' 000,000
R=

tx365
days

xlxv

year

A = Number of midblock collisions over time period
R= Collision Rate ( accidents/ million vehicle miles)
t= Time Period Covered ( in years)

Length of Segment (miles)
v= Traffic Volume (average daily traffic)

The segment collision rate was then compared to the average statewide collision rate. The
average statewide collision rates were obtained from 2012 Collision Data on California
State Highways published by Caltrans.

Field Review Data

A field review was conducted for each of the selected street segments in the City with
consideration for the following factors:

1.       Street width and alignment (design speed);
2.       Pedestrian activity and traffic flow characteristics;
3.       Number of lanes and other channelization and striping patterns;
4.       Frequency of intersections, driveways, and on- street parking;
5.       Location of stop signs and other regulatory traffic control devices;
6.       Visibility obstructions;
7.       Land use and proximity to schools;
8.       Pedestrian and bicycle usage;
9.       Uniformity with existing speed zones and those in adjacent jurisdictions; and
10.     Any other unusual condition not readily apparent to the driver.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
5 City of Covina

222



ANALYSIS

CRITERIA

Survey data was complied and analyzed to determine the recommended speed limit in
accordance with several criteria contained in The California Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices( California MUTCD) dated November 2014. Some of the criteria used are:
A.       The critical speed or 85th percentile speed is that speed at or below which 85

percent of the traffic is moving.  This speed is the baseline value in determining
what the majority of drivers believe is safe and reasonable. Speed limits set higher
than the critical speed are not considered reasonable and safe.  Speed limits set
lower than the critical speed make a large number of reasonable drivers" unlawful,"
and do not facilitate the orderly flow of traffic. The "basic speed limit" is the nearest
5 mph increment to the 85th percentile speed.

B.      The 10 mile per hour( mph) pace speed is the 10 mph increment that contains the
highest percentage of vehicles.  It is a measure of the dispersion of speeds across
the range of the samples surveyed. An accepted practice is to keep the speed limit
within the 10 mph pace while considering the critical speed and other factors that
might require a speed lower than the critical speed.

C.      The collision rate for each street segment is compared to average collision rates
that can be reasonably expected to occur on streets and highways in other
jurisdictions, in proportion to the volume of traffic per lane mile.  These average
collision rates have been developed by the State of California and are considered
reasonable for use in the City of Covina.

RESULTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The Engineering and Traffic Survey Forms, presented in Appendix A, illustrate results of a
thorough evaluation of the available data and recommend a speed limit for each street
segment surveyed. A complete summary of all recommendations is shown in Table 2.  In

each case, the recommended speed limit was consistent with the prevailing behavior as
demonstrated by the radar speed measurements.  Typically, a speed limit in the upper
range of the 10- mile pace was selected unless a collision rate significantly higher than
expected was discovered or roadway conditions not readily apparent to the driver were
identified. Any segments with recommended speed limits 5 mph or more below the basic
speed limit are fully explained later in this report.

The Legislature, in adopting Section 22358.5 of the California Vehicle Code ( CVC), has

made it clear that physical conditions,  such as width,  curvature, grade and surface
conditions, or any other condition readily apparent to a driver, in the absence of other
factors, would not be the basis for special downward speed zoning.  In these cases, the
basic speed law( CVC Section 22350) is sufficient to regulate such conditions.

The recommendations contained in this Report are intended to establish prima facie speed
limits.  They are not intended to be absolute for all prevailing conditions.  All prima facie

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
6 City of Covina

223



speed violations are actually violations of the basic speed law( Section 22350 of California
Vehicle Code).  This statute states that a person shall not drive a vehicle at a speed
greater than is safe having regard for traffic, roadway, and weather conditions.  A prima

facie limit is intended to establish a maximum safe speed under normal conditions.

Table 1 identifies the street segments with recommended changes in posted speed limits
and Table 2 summarizes the recommendations for all surveyed segments.

TABLE 1

STREET SEGMENTS WITH RECOMMENDED SPEED CHANGES

No STREET FROM TO EXISTING NEW

3 AZUSA AVENUE SOUTH CITY LIMITS
SAN BERNARDINO

35 40ROAD

15 BARRANCA AVENUE PUENTE STREET
SAN BERNARDINO

35 40ROAD

16 BARRANCA AVENUE
SAN BERNARDINO

COVINA BLVD 35 40ROAD

19 CIENEGA AVENUE ARROWAY AVENUE IVESCREST AVENUE 35 40

28 COVINA BLVD GRAND AVENUE RIMHURST AVENUE 35 40

30 COVINA HILLS ROAD GRAND AVENUE RANCHO LA
35 30CARLOTA ROAD

33 CYPRESS STREET CITRUS AVENUE BARRANCA AVENUE 35 40

36 CYPRESS STREET GLENDORA AVENUE
BONNIE COVE

35 40AVENUE

42 GRAND AVENUE
WALNUT CREEK

PUENTE STREET 45 40ROAD

56 PUENTE STREET GRAND AVENUE GLENDORA AVENUE 40 35

61 REEDER AVENUE BADILLO STREET CYPRESS STREET 30 35

63 ROWLAND AVENUE CITRUS AVENUE BARRANCA AVENUE 35 40

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
7 City of Covina

224



a Z a
N N N N    

g z

I- UW 0W w O O O O
W ami C;

C    
L7

C)    
a d Q_    d C)

x
x 0) U

COUD
CO co

U U I-    U

O D 0    *     *     0 j j 0 FU
z M F-  F-    M 2 2 2 F- o

I-    Q I-  I-    Q I - 
z

A co

W Z W W Z Z Z    (n
a)

0 IL 0

0W
CC ft LU z
0 0 0 a)

J    -J J CU

0 0 0 0 0
z

LU

la#   

N
etoO    *     O O O O O O    *     to L.()    *

0 CO
P     ?       T

N M CO c-    N-    CO N CO N-    N-    CO O)    CO r-d 1-    Nt C' 7 NI'   co N Nr d'    V V.

03 0
zr Q

13
c 130 ftp

U)    
14)    

Q
Q

o    •0 M
O O 14)    U)    l[)    O

O12 45 p co

os W    >-   _ Z Q Z Z W Co
w

J W W W        I-    
w

V W W F__    =   U W
Q Z Q W

N
Z      (/)    

I
W

W
p    <    >    <    >    

J
I-
00

00
03

Z mW W W p Q        C3 WUpZ
Q    < C Z Z CD F—

e.
ZQOZQ CL 0    __ I C
w0o   < O  >-    CC O > z a 1w    <0    '-   00 0 U    <   2 Q NI-    N 00 C7    ( 7 oc W a

w

u)  j W w

m

I-   O F-    Z p p
F-   E

p
Z

W    > LU>    W    >    D 2 UZ        J p
Q W    >-   < W      ~    

Z U W    < C Z Q W J

ComC    >    -   
Z Co

W W
W    <    >    

F}_-   o
Q U 0

Ci") J m
Z W U Q 10 Q

V
z..-

3 W Zz O
1)

O Z f-   ma w y   -Wiz  >    Q
Q            W 2

C) ZO  >-    Q O >  
Q        

OC    < C w o c

a 07
0

Co aC 0    _J z a 1-    N m 0 C7
W

00 is o

W 0  _

Q Q I-    F-    F-    F-    I-    F-    F-    F-    Z m
W w W w LU W LU LU LU W W LU O c
D D D LU w LU LU LU w LU LU    >   ( 7O11
Z Z Z CK CC        Ct CK X f a Q a

v~)    Co Co Co co~   Co Co
0

3 0

3 Q    <    <›.    .<    <    <    0 00 z    2

co
0 O 0    (/)    Co Co J_    _J J_    J_    J_    J J_    _J

L C E 3
N Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q c Et

0 Q    <    Q    <C Q m m CO CO m CO CO CO CO up

eNa)
g '     

N M Lx,    CO N-    CO O)    O 1-    N co Nr In I I

225



N N

p p p Z
0 0 0 0 0 Z

ca
W

OLULUO
W LU

LU W LU W W O a> , G

a CL CL a a_   W 0_    0_  W LU
0 oCO 0 m CO 0 U)    (/)    U)  I)    U)    0 1) 0

U i   
0

1-     F-     1-- r p o
a

q7R 00 0 ao ao
0

COccc
Ln
ccCOCO

U cp , 3
E o O op 0 O O O O D aU

t Q F-    H Q H F-    F-  I-    F-    _ Q
m

co m
Z W W co U)    U)    

Z z
V)

1 U)    U)    
O U)    U)    U)  U W N

ii 0 0LLtL 0 0 0 0 0 c
U QU U Q U U U U U Qa

UJU

O

as    'a:
N

2e

Hr
LA to O

5 M M
to O O Ln Ln O O O Ln

ti
Cl-st        M    '    ' Cr CO N COM d'    '    ct M

n

ZZ LU W Z w W Z Q W W Z

a     '_ 

0
p z    >    >    

W W 5 5 p D W

Q J H W F-    Q I-    F-   Q      >    U'     W W Q
g `< Z m 0 Q W Z U CO Z I-

LULU O
m 2 Q Q fn

W Q 2 p Q W Q    >    U)    p
pmp H Z U    - I

Z       mp Z
O Z

QO O O X W O D Q QO O X t-    XF mct U Z U`     >    cc a_    m U) ct U Q U 0    -   w

st:    LU;       

0 j W W E

W
z

W Z ZW

WzLUF-    
W   _

O
Z W W UW p

0    >    >    >    >    W W p W z
ct X      >    Q

Q Q Q tY 0    >    Z Z o
E U)   Z J Q Z p

I-    I-   Q      >    Q W W O
W

m Z Q Q Z
U X m

L~L Q Q
aiW Q W O

IT E z ZQ  >    ce

Oo
Y J m Z W    (/)    a CO

Z p z

T p QO O Q O O p zO  >   Q ow
R

t d U) ce U m Q cc a_    m u Lt

UO
LL U U'   v a

LU LU W Ua
Z Z Z W W v ; v

Z Z D D D 2 D D 23.,%

W W W W W W    >    > 0    >0 u)- 8

0 0 0
Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q m m m vii c

Q Q Q 0 0 U)    CO U)    U)    ( n U)    Q Q Q
a

f.  „       
law i ceW W D D O 2 D D Z

5Z
Z Es

ccct x Z Z Wee X CC CLCL    >   5 rn-.
W WQ Q Q I-    I_-    I-    I-    F_    I-       Ow a

E CO CO CO m U U U U U U U U 0
0 O   =

E4 ,'   a
1.0 co ti c0 0)    CD r N CO    ' Cr L.0 0 f-    00 cn IIN N N N N N N N N

226



O W W Lu ILI LU Li!    

CD

W c
a I d a d a w

oO Cl)    U)    U)   U)    N
Q_ to U

4a

U Ln ltd 0
H I-

CO 00 CO CO 00 CO CO
ci

s -   

3
D    *     

0 O 0    *     0 0 0    *     *     *     *     0 a

v

H F-   H H H
F-    F-    F-   F-    H f-       

H c
W w U)   

w CO w N c'
wL.U)    ( n    ( n U)    U)    U)       n N

a 0 0 0 0 0 00
J J J J J J

0
U U U 0 U U U z

O
n

N

V m-    
co

co co M d

p.      1=      (: 41)
Ln O N tD N N NO    .--    O N

NI-    CD

ri     'C'

g

iia
t w w

Z Z W
H W

WW W W W
W H
W LLI

0 X 0
U W

Q Z Q   >    Ct H W W

Q CO      >    U
O W

Y J Q    -
OWOHZW

Q
Z 0

U
W

O
W 0    (

n m Q
WJD20wD  _,    Q o       w  OJ   O w Q C7 W

LL Z U J J Z Ai 0 Z Z Z Z LL Z      a
Z W

ZZ W Z X J W Q'    Q w Z W Z W 0 W    >    Z WQQO >  H
Q ct J O » >  >    >-    O w

o) <    0 = Q 0 m 0 0 oo < ( 0Q rx 0 0 0 2w
W W m

W W Zw Z
H W W o

W Z W Y Z    >    p    >   
W W W

Lu Lu Y U

w m 0 w    <    
z Q   >      ct H

F_       w    „ 2

z        L Q W m      >    U    >    -   

0O
u)    Y w

Jwco
U o

W 0 Q W cn Q 0
O W w W U cn Q

H

F  ,      E Z Z LL J Z fx Z Z Z Z Z 0 z Zp
W Ct Q W Z W W 0 d    >  - t Q cO W w O >  H    <    C J O >  D J    >    O QO . -m C7 J 2Q U m C7 C7 mQ EL cc U U icc —

cN

0 N

Q D D        
j0 a

To. 22w W W W W W W Z Z Z ZX W W W W w W W W w W W w   ( I) c
p co cc t mct w rx w rx    >    >    >    >    D a

J H H H F-    H H H    <    <    <    <    Z   _
c

c
J    --

I    ( n    ( I)    ( n    ( A U)    U)    ( n    <    <    <    <    U..1   _
3 Em 2 U    ( A co co co co U w w a=    w

cn CO    ( n    ( n    ( n U)    U)    O O O O Q z a)Z Z LU W LU LU LU LU LU 0 0 0 0 0 a
X Ct CC Ct CL CL CL Z Z z z Z E
a d W a.    a a.    a_    W w w W

QL

O O    >-    >-    ›-    >-    >-    ›-    >-    - J    - J J J Q'   
N E

U U U U U U U U U 0 7 O 0 CL

M MMM COMMct CVN COM M M o

227



N N N N

0 0 0 Z

ZaL
p Z Z

W W W O O W O O ami . cW W W I 1—   W
a.    a.      

a.

0_ a o
0 0 0 0 co U

0 0
0 0 U)

CO CO O I-    H co F-
UFU- L -.

O 0 0    *    0 D    *  
I-- ( i

1—    I—    F—      H2 g c
F-    I—     —  H    <  m

r W W W co zZ Z

O O OO c
0 0 0 Q Q J J

QQwfit 3<;    

0 0 0<
C

0
ti

n

O
N

i   
53

O O    ( n    *     ( n O U)    *     *   e
0 d'    d'    co M M d'    d'    O Lo M    ()    O.

cr    (
o

co

o

012,

0
13

aPli        
d'    d'    d co co co d'    d'    d'    co co M d'    d'

a.

rill; W
0 D W

H

W
W

Q W W W W

Q J 0 Q I-    
U 0 W U W    >    

D    >

U

w Q    =    Z.
cc

0 J m Q U Q
03 C)  Z 0 J    _,    

a.    

0
W

a.   
W p

u)    
Q        

Z a'    >    Z J Z ctW'    Z Z

Q0 0 x 0 Q        w Q       0 >  b Q w
0.) Ex 0 Q w CO W Q    >    W 2Q O m 0 C7

a
0

FU-  
z

LLI
E

z

W p
z
wW W   j

a          LU W Y
x w Q J F

Q F- z      >   U W
Q

w c
U)   Z m U Z m

m W w E

Luo
Q U    >   . o

W Q
Ii      0pL

W Q
2 J Q W H Z W Z a)

Z mp Z
F-    

g J z u   > W W w   =    Q       v)

W Z Q  >    D    >    p    >    O
O o J W C rz Q c

D   < 000 0 0 Q 0 T=   CH X 0 >  F_    
Q C    .° w

U a.   cCL U    ( n CL m 0 s U' (n Q 2Q U co 0   :64)

Lu o
w

a
Z22

W LU W W H F-    F-    I—    H   .0 ca
W W LU W LU Qc

Z Z Z Y Y Y Y W Q W W W W W co ,-
t W W W U U U U

p
Z a

LU W LU LU Z
W H H H H H 3 0

4 c
a

CO CO CO m W J

w w w    (

n    ( n

0 0 0
W LLI LI I- U

0 Z 0
W D LU W D W   Q W W W W W W c m

J Z J Z J Z J Z H Y Z Z Z Z Z EQ    <C Q J W --' W J W - JW J w W W W W W   °)
a

g
U 0 U
LE"   LL 02 > 00 > 02 > 02 >  

20        
p        D           < nE
a_    a_    a_    a.    a.

Z

in

Mddd(oDIddOO)    
Or1-    tNMdU)    (Uc-

N

228



N N

0 0 0 0 Z Z

LU LU W LU O O aeric

LU LU LU LU H R j o
v)    U)  U)    v)  0 0 co U

I
c

U

U~)    U)  U)    U)  U U cc ;?•
co co co co F—  F-       1= ( 3
O O    *     *     O O    *    D    *     *     D    *  13
F-    H I—    H C

as

Z Z
5 LU LU LU LUCC OC zCn Cl)  Cn u)      

O N

s 0 0
J

07171 c

U Uto

oti   $   11 N

Un Lo Lo to 0 O 0 0 Lo 0 U)    Lo
co cr MM M

ce) co

f i
N N.    U)    I-    0 0    -    CO U)    CO N CO O)    0

0GI'  
CO    -'    co co Nr d' M d'    M co d'

yam,  

UNo Uo
M

O O O
M

O    O 2
M

O
M M

C!

W W N

c L O w w w w w w w LUro

z H w w r    >    >       
t W O I-    I-    w

Z Q J Z Z U

Luz
Q

W

Q U cn cn up    .% c U
L.    

w      >    U    >
LU 002 H w

Z
a~) LUwW  ¢   L.

ZW  ¢    z
Q

U W Z

10-_       
W Z Z U)      Z Z

s O Z W        d 0 0 W 0, W     -- 1 W r,    0 Q
QCC P Q        F=    <   O > < >  t   O >  '    <    W

Cl)   CC      -    CO 0 U CO WQ -.1Q Q 1 <  U CO CD u

w w D LU 2
D DZ

WD
LU W W    >    ;    w

W LU 0
Z W

W Z    >    W Q Y Z    >   L0Q W O O
I- LI

Q
Z W ULi,      W    -   

o
Q           

Q U
H J Q

m Q U c)

te

Z       MWmW O W        W W
Y U)  JZ R CC in

5ft W LU    w'  Q'     W'    Q'    U J W'  c

i$ £` H Z_    <    
W

o

u.  U`     cc O (n O u)  m Q U 00    >    J Q i2 Q U m a N
o a)

W W W
U °

22
2 w W w D D D 0 O O O O O    _- ,

6.71NHDDDZWZ   _    _    _    _   lac

W LU z Z Z 0                         0 e
st W W W    >    >    >   W W'    W Q'    W W sa

F-    >    >    >    Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q t

in in

W W W Z Z Z W LU W LU W LU a
W W

w w
Dr

z Z                
J J J CO CD CO C) CO C) 00 1: 21 CO CD CO CD 3

w w w w w 5 5 5 zazaz < zaz < z < 
a w w w 0 0 0   < OQO < O < O < O < OcnE

N-    CO O 0 N—    N M LO CO N-    CO 0)    0 co II
e   ' Z Uo Uo Un CO CD CO CO CD CO CO CO CD CO N-     .,

229



N N N N

0 0 0 0

o
0 0 Cl 0 0 C) 4-
0 0 0 0
U U 0 0clIs

A: F—    I—    co F-    F- F= U
x

O
c

Q Q F-    Q Q
n

i

ct w

cv0 0
O

0 0
z

Q Q
tz

U Q Q W
U U U U

co

O
N

Lo o cn x o
M co M M M M co

co

2

jR
1ysp

Nr M M Cr)    Co)    co M
MI    (

M M M co M co co

W11 co

S A

at  '  F-   D F-      
Z 0

LLLI W Z 0
Z

3 CC LU    >,    LU J ()  
Q W

J F-    0 0'   U Q WC.      J
F- 

Uz LU Q CL F— 0
0 0 Z z   (n O w   (n Q
Q c

w 0   < —  <   < 0
i.  m LL 0 W W >  CO W Ctr

a
w m

d

0
F-    W

I-    
F—   Z o

W LLLI ft C Z
LU U`

o
w F-    F J W    <

Z O    (      00i)  Z in
a J J F-    D cc  _„)

D d
w

D c

E,  0    <    >-    <   F_    a   .o
u.  Et m 0 m 0 m c0

W W W 0 a

LIJ
inin0 0 0 o m

s 0 0
Z

W W W aaoi
a

LU LLJ CC L Q Q Q   .,
LW

Q Q   ?      <    <    <    <   °' c
0 0 O w Z 2 2 c o
Z Z J 0 Z

Y Y Y Ea?  0 0 z W CLCL
0 U U Z W z_    0 0 O cn gW W 0
Ca  ( n    ( n   (n Q  >       w 14z   ' .? 

N M In    (

11".
O I .   )

I '    N-    N.    ti ti N-    ti x
x x

230



SEGMENTS WITH SPECIAL CONDITIONS

The following segments surveyed had recommended speed limits that were 5 miles per
hour( mph) or more below the critical speed due to conditions not readily apparent to the
driver.  Each segment is discussed below.

Segment# 1 — Arrow Highway—Arrow Grand Circle to Grand Ave

This segment currently posted at 45 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 22, 549 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is commercial and residential.

The critical speed is 42 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit.
However, in order to maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a higher speed
limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 45 mph for the above

reasons.

Segment# 5— Azusa Avenue — Cypress Street to Arrow Highway

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 23,067 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial. The critical speed
is 37 mph and would normally justify a 35 mph posted speed limit.  However, in order to

maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a higher speed limit is prudent. It is
recommended that the speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 6— Badillo Street— Lark Ellen Avenue to Hollenbeck Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 18,074 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential and commercial with
a hospital. The critical speed is 45 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed
limit.  However, due to high turnover of on- street parking, and various hidden driveways
that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent
street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit

remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 9— Badillo Street— 2nd Avenue to Barranca Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 18,699 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is commercial and residential.

The critical speed is 47 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to high turnover of on- street parking and various hidden driveways that may
not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers, and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street
segments, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit remain at

40 mph for the above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
14 City of Covina

231



Segment# 10— Badillo Street— Barranca Avenue to Grand Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 17,731 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is commercial and residential.

The critical speed is 47 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to various hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers
and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.
It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 20 — Citrus Avenue— Workman Avenue to Rowland Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 26,930 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial. The critical speed
is 35 mph and would normally justify a 35 mph posted speed limit.  However, in order to

maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a higher speed limit is prudent.  It is
recommended that the speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 24— Citrus Avenue— San Bernardino Road to Covina Boulevard

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 16,696 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is commercial and residential.

The critical speed is 41 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to a vertical curve, uncontrolled crosswalks, heavy pedestrian traffic and
various hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed
limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 35 mph for the above

reasons.

Segment# 25— Citrus Avenue— Covina Boulevard to Arrow Highway

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 17, 785 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is commercial and residential.

The critical speed is 45 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to moderate pedestrian traffic and various hidden driveways that may not be
apparent to unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the

speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 30— Covina Hills Road— Grand Avenue to Rancho La Carlota Road

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 3, 546 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
35 mph and would normally justify a 35 mph posted speed limit.   However, due to

horizontal and vertical curves and various hidden driveways that may not be apparent to
unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit be

posted at 30 mph for the above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
15 City of Covina

232



Segment# 34— Cypress Street— Barranca Avenue to Grand Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 9, 136 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
46 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed limit.  However, due to various
hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity
among adjacent street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that

the speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 38— Glendora Avenue— Puente Street to Ruddock Street

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 8,258 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a school.  The

critical speed is 40 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to a vertical curve, moderate pedestrian traffic, and various hidden driveways that may
not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street
segments, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit remain at

35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 39— Glendora Avenue— Ruddock Street to Cypress Street

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 9,536 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial and residential with a
park. The critical speed is 41 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to a vertical curve, uncontrolled crosswalks and various hidden driveways

that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent
street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit

remain at 35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 40— Glendora Avenue— Cypress Street to Covina Boulevard

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 9, 647 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial and residential with a
church.  The critical speed is 40 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed
limit.  However, due to moderate pedestrian traffic and various hidden driveways that may
not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street
segments, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit remain at

35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 41 — Glendora Avenue—Covina Boulevard to Cienega Avenue

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 10,846 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a school.  The
critical speed is 42 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to moderate pedestrian traffic and various hidden driveways that may not be apparent
to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a lower
speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 35 mph for the

above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
16 City of Covina

233



Segment# 46— Hollenbeck Avenue— South City Limits to Rowland Avenue

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 15,288 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
42 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit.  However, due to various
hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity
among adjacent street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that
the speed limit remain at 35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 47— Hollenbeck Avenue— Rowland Avenue to Badillo Street

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 17,085 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a school. The
critical speed is 42 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to heavy pedestrian traffic and various hidden driveways that may not be apparent to
unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a lower
speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 35 mph for the

above reasons.

Segment# 50— Holt Avenue— 1- 10 Freeway to Via Verde Street

This segment currently posted at 45 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 3, 929 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial and residential. The
critical speed is 41 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
in order to maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments, a higher speed limit is
prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 45 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 53— Puente Street— Hollenbeck Avenue to Citrus Avenue

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 8,632 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a high school

stadium. The critical speed is 41 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed
limit. However, due to moderate pedestrian traffic and various hidden driveways that may
not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street
segments, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit remain at

35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 54— Puente Street— Citrus Avenue to Barranca Avenue

This segment currently posted at 30 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 5, 379 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
35 mph and would normally justify a 35 mph posted speed limit. However, due to a vertical
curve and various hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar driver, a lower
speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 30 mph for the

above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
17 City of Covina

234



Segment# 56— Puente Street— Grand Avenue to Glendora Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 5, 699 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a school.  The

critical speed is 40 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to a vertical curve, moderate pedestrian traffic and various hidden driveways that may
not be apparent to unfamiliar driver, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that

the speed limit be posted at 35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 57— Puente Street— Glendora Avenue to Shouse Avenue

This segment currently posted at 25 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 1, 478 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
32 mph and would normally justify a 30 mph posted speed limit. However, due to a vertical
curve and various hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers, a lower
speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 25 mph for the

above reasons.

Segment# 60— Reeder Avenue— Old Badillo Street to Badillo Street

This segment currently posted at 30 mph and has 2 through lanes in northbound direction
and 1 through lane in southbound direction with an ADT of 4,888 vehicles per day.  The
adjacent land use is residential with a school.  The critical speed is 37 mph and would

normally justify a 35 mph posted speed limit.   However, due to a vertical curve and

moderate pedestrian traffic and hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar
drivers, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 30

mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 61 — Reeder Avenue—Badillo Street to Cypress Street

This segment currently posted at 30 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 2, 499 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
40 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However, due to a vertical
curve, high turnover of on- street parking and hidden driveways that may not be apparent to
unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit be

posted at 35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 64— Rowland Avenue— Barranca Avenue to Forestdale Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 9, 101 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is residential. The critical speed is
46 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed limit.  However, due to various
hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity
among adjacent street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that
the speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
18 City of Covina

235



Segment# 65— San Bernardino Road —Vincent Avenue to Lark Ellen Avenue

This segment currently posted at 40 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 15,929 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is commercial and residential.

The critical speed is 45 mph and would normally justify a 45 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to a horizontal curve, high turnover of on- street parking and various hidden
driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed limit is prudent. It
is recommended that the speed limit remain at 40 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 67— San Bernardino Road —Azusa Avenue to Hollenbeck Avenue

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 14,984 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a school.  The

critical speed is 42 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to moderate pedestrian traffic, uncontrolled crosswalks and various hidden driveways

that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent
street segments, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit

remain at 35 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 68— San Bernardino Road —Hollenbeck Avenue to Citrus Avenue

This segment currently posted at 30 mph and has 1 through lane in each direction with an
ADT of 11, 838 vehicles per day.  The adjacent land use is residential with a park and

hospital. The critical speed is 36 mph and would normally justify a 35 mph posted speed
limit.  However, due to uncontrolled crosswalks, moderate pedestrian traffic and various

hidden driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed limit is
prudent.  It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 30 mph for the above reasons.

Segment# 70 — San Bernardino Road — Barranca Avenue to Grand Avenue

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 9,514 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial and residential. The
critical speed is 40 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to vertical and horizontal curves and various hidden driveways that may not be
apparent to unfamiliar drivers and to maintain uniformity among adjacent street segments,
a lower speed limit is prudent. It is recommended that the speed limit remain at 35 mph for
the above reasons.

Segment# 71 — Second Avenue— Rowland Avenue to Badillo Street

This segment currently posted at 35 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 8,443 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial and residential. The
critical speed is 41 mph and would normally justify a 40 mph posted speed limit. However,
due to high turnover of on- street parking, uncontrolled crosswalks and various hidden
driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It is

recommended that the speed limit remain at 35 mph for the above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
19 City of Covina

236



Segment# 72— Second Avenue— Badillo Street to Front Street

This segment currently posted at 30 mph and has 2 through lanes in each direction with an
ADT of 7, 579 vehicles per day. The adjacent land use is commercial with the Civic Center.
The critical speed is 37 mph and would normally justify a 35 mph posted speed limit.
However, due to uncontrolled crosswalks, moderate pedestrian traffic and various hidden

driveways that may not be apparent to unfamiliar drivers, a lower speed limit is prudent.  It
is recommended that the speed limit remain at 30 mph for the above reasons.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
20 City of Covina

237



LEGISLATIVE REFERENCES

APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF CALIFORNIA VEHICLE CODE

SECTION 1. Section 627 of the Vehicle Code:

Section 627.

a)      " Engineering and traffic survey," as used in this code, means a survey of highway and traffic
conditions in accordance with methods determined by the Department of Transportation for
use by state and local authorities.

b)     An engineering and traffic survey shall include,  among other requirements deemed
necessary by the department, consideration of all of the following:

1)      Prevailing speeds as determined by traffic engineering measurements.
2)      Accident records.

3)      Highway, traffic, and roadside conditions not readily apparent to the driver.

c)      When conducting an engineering and traffic survey, local authorities, in addition to the
factors set forth in paragraphs( 1) to( 3), inclusive, of subdivision( b) may consider all of the
following:

1)      Residential density, if any of the following conditions exist on the particular portion of
highway and the property contiguous thereto, other than a business district:
a.       Upon one side of the highway, within a distance of a quarter of a mile, the

contiguous property fronting thereon is occupied by 13 or more separate
dwelling houses of business structures.

b.       Upon both sides of the highway, collectively, within a distance of a quarter of
a mile, the contiguous property fronting thereon is occupied by 16 or more
separate dwelling houses or business structures.

c.       The portion of highway is longer than one-quarter of a mile but has the ratio
of separate dwelling houses or business structures to the length of the
highway described in either subparagraph (A) or( B).

2)      Pedestrian and bicyclist safety.

Basic Speed Law

22350.  No person shall drive a vehicle upon a highway at a speed greater than is reasonable or
prudent having due regard for weather, visibility, the traffic on, and the surface and width of, the
highway, and in no event at a speed which endangers the safety of persons or property.

Speed Law Violations

Section 22351.

a)     The speed of any vehicle upon a highway not in excess of the limits specified in Section
22352 or established as authorized in this code is lawful unless clearly proved to be in
violation of the basic speed law.

b)     The speed of any vehicle upon a highway in excess of the prima fade speed limits in Section
22352 or established as authorized in this code is prima facie unlawful unless the defendant

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
21 City of Covina

238



establishes by competent evidence that the speed in excess of said limits did not constitute a
violation of the basic speed law at the time, place and under the conditions then existing.

Prima Facie Speed Limits

Section 22352.

The prima facie limits are as follows and shall be applicable unless changed as authorized in this

code and, if so changed, only when signs have been erected giving notice thereof:

a)      Fifteen miles per hour:

1)  When traversing a railway grade crossing, if during the last 100 feet of the
approach to the crossing the driver does not have a clear and unobstructed view of
the crossing and of any traffic on the railway for a distance of 400 feet in both
directions along such railway.  This subdivision does not apply in the case of any
railway grade crossing where a human flagman is on duty or a clearly visible
electrical or mechanical railway crossing signal device is installed but does not then
indicate the immediate approach of a railway train or car.

2) When traversing any intersection of highways, if during the last 100 feet of the
driver's approach to the intersection, the driver does not have a clear and

unobstructed view of the intersection and of any traffic upon all of the highways
entering the intersection for a distance of 100 feet along all those highways, except at
an intersection protected by stop signs or yield right-of-way signs or controlled by
official traffic control signals.

3) On any alley.

b) Twenty-five miles per hour:

1) On any highway other than a state highway, in any business or residence district
unless a different speed is determined by local authority under procedures set forth in
this code.

2) When approaching or passing a school building or the grounds thereof,
contiguous to a highway and posted with a standard" SCHOOL" warning sign, while
children are going to or leaving the school either during school hours or during the
noon recess period. The prima facie limit shall also apply when approaching or
passing any school grounds which are not separated from the highway by a fence,
gate or other physical barrier while the grounds are in use by children and the
highway is posted with a standard " SCHOOL" warning sign. For purposes of this
subparagraph, standard" SCHOOL" warning signs may be placed at any distance up
to 500 feet away from school grounds.

3) When passing a senior center or other facility primarily used by senior citizens,
contiguous to a street other than a state highway and posted with a standard
SENIOR" warning sign. A local authority may erect a sign pursuant to this paragraph

when the local agency makes a determination that the proposed signing should be
implemented. A local authority may request grant funding from the Pedestrian Safety
Account pursuant to Section 894.7 of the Streets and Highways Code, or any other
grant funding available to it, and use that grant funding to pay for the erection of
those signs, or may utilize any other funds available to it to pay for the erection of
those signs, including, but not limited to, donations from private sources.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
22 City of Covina

239



Increase of Local Speed Limits to 65 Miles Per Hour

Section 22357.

a)     Whenever a local authority determines upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey
that a speed greater than 25 miles per hour would facilitate the orderly movement of
vehicular traffic and would be reasonable and safe upon any street other than a state
highway otherwise subject to a prima facie limit of 25 miles per hour, the local authority may
by ordinance determine and declare a prima facie speed limit of 30, 35, 40, 45, 50, 55 or 60
miles per hour or a maximum speed limit of 65 miles per hour, whichever is found most

appropriate to facilitate the orderly movement of traffic and is reasonable and safe.  The
declared prima facie or maximum speed limit shall be effective when appropriate signs

giving notice thereof are erected upon the street and shall not thereafter be revised except
upon the basis of an engineering and traffic survey. This section does not apply to any 25
mile per hour prima facie limit, which is applicable when passing a school building or the
grounds thereof or when passing a senior center or other facility primarily used by senior
citizens.

b)     This section shall become operative on the date specified in subdivision ( c) of Section
22366.

Downward Speed Zoning

Section 22358.5.

It is the intent of the Legislature that physical conditions such as width, curvature, grade and surface

conditions, or any other condition readily apparent to a driver, in the absence of other factors, would
not require special downward speed zoning, as the basic rule of Section 22350 is sufficient
regulation as to such conditions.

Boundary Line Streets

Section 22359.

With respect to boundary line streets and highways where portions thereof are within different
jurisdictions, no ordinance adopted under Sections 22357 and 22358 shall be effective as to any
such portion until all authorities having jurisdiction of the portions of the street concerned have
approved the same. This section shall not apply in the case of boundary line streets consisting of
separate roadways within different jurisdictions.

Speed Trap Prohibition

Section 40801.

No peace officer or other person shall use a speedtrap in arresting, or participating or assisting in
the arrest of, any person for any alleged violation of this code nor shall any speed trap be used in
securing evidence as to the speed of any vehicle for the purpose of an arrest or prosecution under
this code.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
23 City of Covina

240



Speed Trap

Section 40802.

a)     A" speed trap" is either of the following:

1)     A particular section of a highway measured as to distance and with boundaries
marked, designated, or otherwise determined in order that the speed of a vehicle

may be calculated by securing the time it takes the vehicle to travel the known
distance.

2)     A particular section of a highway with a prima facie speed limit that is provided by this
code or by local ordinance under subparagraph (A) of paragraph ( 2) of subdivision
a) of Section 22352, or established under Section 22354, 22357, 22358, or 22358.3,

if that prima facie speed limit is not justified by an engineering and traffic survey
conducted within five years prior to the date of the alleged violation, and enforcement

of the speed limit involves the use of radar or any other electronic device that
measures the speed of moving object.  This paragraph does not apply to a local
street, road, or school zone.

b)( 1)   For purposes of this section, a local street or road is one that is functionally classified as
local" on the "California Road System Maps," that are approved by the Federal Highway

Administration and maintained by the Department of Transportation. When a street or road
does not appear on the" California Road System Maps," it may be defined as a" local street
or road" if it primarily provides access to abutting residential property and meets the following
three conditions:

A)     Roadway width of not more than 40 feet.

B)     Not more than one- half of a mile of uninterrupted length. Interruptions shall include
official traffic control signals as defined in Section 445.

C)     Not more than one traffic lane in each direction.

2)   For purposes of this section" school zone" means that area approaching or passing a school
building or the grounds thereof that is contiguous to a highway and on which is posted a
standard " SCHOOL" warning sign, while children are going to or leaving the school either
during school hours or during the noon recess period. " School zone" also includes the area

approaching or passing any school grounds that are not separated from the highway by a
fence, gate, or other physical barrier while the grounds are in use by children if that highway
is posted with a standard "SCHOOL" warning sign.

c)( 1)  When all the following criteria are met, paragraph( 2) of this subdivision shall be applicable
and subdivision ( a) shall not be applicable:

A)     When radar is used, the arresting officer has successfully completed a radar operator
course of not less than 24 hours on the use of police traffic radar, and the course

was approved and certified by the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and
Training.

B)     When laser or any other electronic device is used to measure the speed of moving
objects, the arresting officer has successfully completed the training required in
subparagraph ( A) and an additional training course of not less than two hours
approved and certified by the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
24 City of Covina

241



C)( i)  The prosecution proved that the arresting officer complied with subparagraphs (A)
and  ( B) and that an engineering and traffic survey has been conducted in
accordance with subparagraph ( B) of paragraph (2). The prosecution proved that,

prior to the officer issuing the notice to appear, the arresting officer established that
the radar, laser, or other electronic device conformed to the requirements of
subparagraph ( D).

ii)  The prosecution proved the speed of the accused was unsafe for the conditions
present at the time of alleged violation unless the citation was for a violation of
Section 22349, 22356, or 22406.

D)     The radar, laser, or other electronic device used to measure the speed of the
accused meets or exceeds the minimal operational standards of the National Traffic

Highway Safety Administration, and has been calibrated within the three years prior
to the date of the alleged violation by an independent certified laser or radar repair
and testing or calibration facility.

2)  A" speed trap" is either of the following:

A)     A particular section of a highway measured as to distance and with boundaries
marked, designated, or otherwise determined in order that the speed of a vehicle

may be calculated by securing the time it takes the vehicle to travel the known
distance.

B)( i)   A particular section of a highway or state highway with a prima facie speed limit that
is provided by this code or by local ordinance under subparagraph( A) of paragraph
2) of subdivision( a) of Section 22352, or established under Section 22354, 22357,

22358, or 22358.3, if that prima facie speed limit is not justified by an engineering
and traffic survey conducted within one of the following time periods, prior to the date
of the alleged violation, and enforcement of speed limit involves the use of radar or

any other electronic device that measures the speed of moving objects:

I)       Except as specified in subclause ( II), seven years.

II)       If an engineering and traffic survey was conducted more than seven years
prior to the date of the alleged violation, and a registered engineer evaluates

the section of the highway and determines that no significant changes in
roadway or traffic conditions have occurred including, but not limited to,
changes in adjoining property or land use, roadway width, or traffic volume,
10 years.

ii)   This subparagraph does not apply to a local street, road, or school zone.

Speed Trap Evidence

Section 40803.

a)      No evidence as to the speed of a vehicle upon a highway shall be admitted in any court upon
the trial of any person in any prosecution under this code upon a charge involving the speed
of a vehicle when the evidence is based upon or obtained from or by the maintenance or use
of a speedtrap.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
25 City of Covina

242



b)      In any prosecution under this code of a charge involving the speed of a vehicle, where
enforcement involves the use of radar or other electronic devices which measure the speed

of moving objects, the prosecution shall establish, as part of its prima facie case, that the
evidence or testimony presented is not based upon a speed trap as defined in paragraph( 2)
of subdivision (a) of Section 40802.

c)      When a traffic and engineering survey is required pursuant to paragraph( 2) of subdivision
a) of Section 40802, evidence that a traffic and engineering survey has been conducted

within five years of the date of the alleged violation or evidence that the offense was
committed on a local street or road as defined in paragraph( 2) of subdivision( a) of Section

40802 shall constitute a prima facie case that the evidence or testimony is not based upon a
speed trap as defined in paragraph (2) subdivision ( a) of Section 40802.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
26 City of Covina

243



APPENDIX A
Street Segment Data

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

244



CITY OF COVINA

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET ARROW HWY CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ARROW GRAND CIR TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 50 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 78

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 3 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 1

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 445

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 22, 549 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GRAND AVE
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking N. SIDE OK, S. SIDE RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.273 miles

Width 80 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use COMMERICAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in th- S • e of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ i ej/ ice TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

245



CITY OF COVINA
21

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET ARROW HWY CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GRAND AVE TO 1000' EASTERLY

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 10 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 40 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35- 44 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 81

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 24, 392 Date Counted 1/ 20/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control @ GRAND
Crosswalks?  @ T.S. , MID BLOCK @255 ARROW HWY

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    YES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 189 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the tate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

f
3/ 144fJ

TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

246



CITY OF COVINA 3

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET AZUSA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SOUTH CITY LIMITS TO SAN BERNARDINO RD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 20 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    38 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 40 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 84

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0.333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 187

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 26, 874 Date Counted 1/ 26/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ SAN BERNARDINO, BADILLO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking NO PKG N. OF BADILLO

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 182 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the S ate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

LIla TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

247



CITY OF COVINA i

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET AZUSA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SAN BERNARDINO RD TO CYPRESS ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 45 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34- 43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 86

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 092

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 21, 915 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES-• DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CYPRESS, SAN BERNARDINO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.455 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

I 7if l TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

248



CITY OF COVINA 5

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET AZUSA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CYPRESS ST TO ARROW HWY

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 15 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    33 mph UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.

85th Percentile Speed 37 mph

Average Speed 34 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 29-38 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 87

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2 accidents/ year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 102

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 23,067 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ARROW, MRKT PL, GRONDAHL,COVINA,CYPRESS

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T. S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwaiks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 773 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered i the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

VII  /f6 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

249



CITY OF COVINA 61
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM LARK ELLEN AVE TO HOLLENBECK AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10: 55 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    41 mph HIGH PARKING TURNOVER, HIDDEN DWYS,

85th Percentile Speed 45 mph UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.

Average Speed 42 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 37-46 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0.667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.093

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18, 074 Date Counted 1/ 26/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T,S. @ LARK ELLEN, RIMSDALE, AZUSA, HOLLENBECK
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. , ARMEL

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 1. 091 miles

Width 88 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERICAL, RESIDENTIAL, HOSPITAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

37l i& TE 2341

Dat State Registration Number

250



CITY OF COVINA 7

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM HOLLENBECK AVE TO 4TH AVENUE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10:25 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18, 948 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT- LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ HOLLENBECK
Crosswalks?  @ T. S. AND 4TH AVE

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 273 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, HOSPITAL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

251



CITY OF COVINA 8F

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM 4TH AVENUE TO 2ND AVENUE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 3/ 9/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14:50 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    29 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 33 mph

Average Speed 31 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 27-36 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 84

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18,213 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES+ 2WY LT- LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © CITRUS, SECOND

Crosswalks?   a@ ALL T.S. AND 4TH, 3RD
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 364 miles

Width 66 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3
40"       7 q / 1 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

252



CITY OF COVINA 9

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM 2ND AVENUE TO BARRANCA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 45 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    41 mph HIGH PARKING TURNOVER, HIDDEN DWYS,
85th Percentile Speed 47 mph UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.

Average Speed 42 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36-45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 74

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18,699 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © SECOND, BARRANCA

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T. S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 363 miles

Width 83 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

253



CITY OF COVINA 10

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9:25 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    42 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.

85th Percentile Speed 47 mph

Average Speed 43 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 40-49 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 71

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 17, 731 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA, GRAND
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 83 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERICAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

4—   

Dat1/4/91/ 1 6 TE 2341

State Registration Number

254



CITY OF COVINA

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GRAND AVE TO GLENDORA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 05 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    43 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 48 mph

Average Speed 44 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 41- 50 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 70

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 230

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 15, 898 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GRAND, GLENDORA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking SOUTH SIDE

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

4A

Date
l '
fir  ' TE 2341

to State Registration Number

255



CITY OF COVINA P 121
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GLENDORA AVE TO REEDER AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 20 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    44 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 49 mph

Average Speed 45 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 41- 50 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 69

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 143

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 20,104 Date Counted 1/ 28/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GLENDORA, BANNA, REEDER
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 636 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting ON MEDIAN

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

6/1/67 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

256



CITY OF COVINA 13

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BADILLO ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM REEDER AVE TO EAST CITY LIMITS

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 50 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    44 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 48 mph

Average Speed 45 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 41- 50 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 74

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 17, 599 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ REEDER, SUNLFOWER
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T. S.

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.455 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting ON MEDIAN

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ i 7 1/44,,     TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

257



CITY OF COVINA 14

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BARRANCA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SOUTH CITY LIMITS TO PUENTE ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10: 15 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 87

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 176

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 20,773 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LNS+2WY LT-LN

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © ROWLAND, WORKMAN, PUENTE

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in th- State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

v/' TE 2341

Dste State Registration Number

258



CITY OF COVINA j 15

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BARRANCA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM PUENTE ST TO SAN BERNARDINO RD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9:45 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36-45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18, 801 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT- LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BADILLO, PUENTE, SAN BERARDINO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. , ITALIA

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 545 miles

Width 58 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ i "    /7 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

EE
7259



CITY OF COVINA 161
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BARRANCA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SAN BERNARDINO RD TO COVINA BLVD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9:25 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    36 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 75

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 074

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 20,930 Date Counted 1/ 20/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CYPRESS, SAN BERNARDINO,COVINA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.  BENWOOD, HURST

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 591 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, SCHOOL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the ate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

Air

3/ 1" L/,//     TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

260



CITY OF COVINA 17

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET BARRANCA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM COVINA BLVD TO NORTH CITY LIMITS

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 40 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36-45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 89

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0.333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 106

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 17, 274 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CIENEGA, COVINA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking NO

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

i l 13/1/'    TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

261



CITY OF COVINA 181

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CIENEGA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 25 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 33- 42 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 68

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 3, 920 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GRAND, BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    NONE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, INDUSTRIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: 1, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

A 3f41f TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

262



CITY OF COVINA 19

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CIENEGA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ARROWAY AVE TO IVESCREST AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 05 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    38 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2
85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35- 44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 72

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 5, 899 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T. S. © GLENDORA

Crosswalks?      T.S.

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 182 miles

Width 62 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

f.. Air' 1{-       o TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

263



CITY OF COVINA
2o1

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CITRUS AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM WORKMAN AVE TO ROWLAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10: 35 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    31 mph UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.
85th Percentile Speed 35 mph

Average Speed 32 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 28-37 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 84

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 149

TRAFFIC FACTOR

Average Daily Traffic 26,930 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES + 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ ROWLAND, WORKMAN
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.227 miles

Width 78 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: 1, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

dor 3/./ 6/// 60 TE 2341
D te State Registration Number

264



CITY OF COVINA 21i
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CITRUS AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ROWLAND AVE TO PUENTE ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10: 50 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    34 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 38 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 31- 40 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 79

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 21, 736 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T. S. @ ROWLAND, PUENTE
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.227 miles

Width 76 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

4//// " TE 2341
ate State Registration Number.

265



CITY OF COVINA 22

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CITRUS AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM PUENTE ST TO BADILLO ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 10 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    30 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 33 mph

Average Speed 31 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 26-35 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 91

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 17, 731 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. Ga? BADILLO, PUENTE

Crosswalks?  ALL T.S. , DEXTER, CENTER

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 227 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in t,  State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

00"/    3/ 1111,/    TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

266



CITY OF COVINA 23

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CITRUS AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BADILLO ST TO SAN BERNARDINO RD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 25 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 30 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    23 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 27 mph

Average Speed 24 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 20-29 Recommended Speed Limit 25 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 92

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 12,471 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S.    BADILLO, COLLEGE, SAN BERNARDINO

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., ORANGE, ITALIA, MIDBLOCK
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 273 miles

Width 56 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

Dat
TE 2341

State Registration Number

267



CITY OF COVINA 24

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CITRUS AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SAN BERNARDINO RD TO COVINA BLVD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 55 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph VERT. CURVE, HIDDEN DWYS, PED.
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph TRAFFIC, UNC. XWALKS

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 33-42 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 16, 696 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ BIKE LANE- DIVIDED, 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ SAN BERN., FRONT, METRO, CYPRESS, COVINA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., UNCONTROLLED @ BENBOW, GENEVA
Pedestrian Traffic HEAVY

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 636 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of alifornia as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3//` y 4.6t
TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

268



CITY OF COVINA
251

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CITRUS AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM COVINA BLVD TO ARROW HWY

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12:20 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    41 mph HIDDEN DWYS, PED. TRAFFIC
85th Percentile Speed 45 mph

Average Speed 41 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 37-46 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 84

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 17, 785 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ COVINA, ARROW, SHOPPING CTR
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic HEAVY

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 80 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the Stat- of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE23413// q1/'
Date State Registration Number

269



CITY OF COVINA 26-

ENGINEERING 26ENGINEERINGAND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET COVINA BLVD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM FIRCROFT AVE TO CITRUS AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 50 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 91

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 10, 061 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © CITRUS

Crosswalks?  @ T.S. , CALVADOS

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 409 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

1/4Zit'./ /      TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

270



CITY OF COVINA 27]

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET COVINA BLVD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CITRUS AVE TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13:25 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0.667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 180

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 10, 120 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T. S. @ CITRUS, BARRANCA, GRAND
Crosswalks?  @ALL T.S., FAIRVALLEY, PROSPERO, DEL LANA

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking NONE

Sidwaiks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 1. 000 miles

Width 58 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOLS

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

t t Vi 1-  / R6, TE 2341

Dat State Registrationg n N mu ber

271



CITY OF COVINA 281

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET COVINA BLVD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GRAND AVE TO RIMHURST AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 50 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    38 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2
85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9,360 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © GRAND, GLENDORA

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., CUMMINGS
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 682 miles

Width 62 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in th State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

t'      

e

lj l    '      TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

272



CITY OF COVINA 29

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET COVINA BLVD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14116

FROM BONNIE COVE AVE TO SUNFLOWER AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 30 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    40 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2
85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 41 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36- 45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 6, 972 Date Counted 1/ 28/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BONNIE COVE , STOP @ SUNFLOWER
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. & STOPS , REEDER

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered;• the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

fL4•
00; .      f .      

I // & TE 2341

ate State Registration Number

273



CITY OF COVINA

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET COVINA HILLS RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GRAND AVE TO RANCHO LA CARLOTA RD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 3/ 9/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    31 mph VERT. AND HORIZ. CURVE, HIDDEN DWYS
85th Percentile Speed 35 mph

Average Speed 31 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 28-37 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 258

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 3, 546 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GRAND ; STOP @ OAK CANYON
Crosswalks?  @ T.S. AND STOP
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking NONE

Sidwalks?      SOUTH SIDE

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 1. 000 miles

Width 22 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

f. `           h TE 23414/,/te State Registration Number

274



CITY OF COVINA 31

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM LEAF AVE TO HOLLENBECK AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 20 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    36 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32- 41 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 75

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 066

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 15, 171 Date Counted 1/ 28/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ AZUSA, HOMEREST, HOLLENBECK
Crosswalks?  ALL T.S.

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 909 miles

Width 62 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ 0" 4/03.--/03.--       TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

275



CITY OF COVINA 32

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM HOLLENBECK AVE TO CITRUS AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 40 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 33- 42
Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 84

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 13, 466 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CITRUS, HOLLENBECK
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. , FOURTH

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ I 4// t cam+   TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

276



CITY OF COVINA 331

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CITRUS AVE TO BARRANCA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 40 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 73

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 10, 346 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA, CITRUS; STOP@ 1ST ST
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. AND STOPS
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in e State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3// 61:// 69 TB 2341

Date State Registration Number

277



CITY OF COVINA 34

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 20 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    40 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.
85th Percentile Speed 46 mph

Average Speed 41 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36-45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 75

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9, 136 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GRAND, BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. , PROSPERO

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 56 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the Stat- of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

944177//e/&     TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

278



CITY OF COVINA 35

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GRAND AVE TO GLENDORA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10:40 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 79

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9, 670 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GLENDORA, GRAND
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T. S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwaiks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 58 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ i /1
Ibi

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

279



CITY OF COVINA s

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GLENDORA AVE TO BONNIE COVE AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 15: 35 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 8, 773 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © GLENDORA; STOP @ BONNIE COVE
Crosswalks?  @ T.S. AND STOP
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS
Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the tate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

36// 4/ i TE 2341

e State Registration Number

280



CITY OF COVINA 37

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET CYPRESS ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BONNIE COVE AVE TO SUNFLOWER AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 14/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 15: 10 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 70

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 216

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 8, 452 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control STOP@ SUNFLOWER, BONNIE COVE
Crosswalks?  @ ALL STOPS, LYMAN
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the Sta = of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/2   / 1 TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

281



CITY OF COVINA 38

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GLENDORA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM PUENTE ST TO RUDDOCK ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph VERT. CURVE, HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY
85th Percentile Speed 40 mph ADJ. SEG., PED. TRAFFIC

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 81

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 8, 258 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED+ BIKE LANES

Type of Traffic Control T. S. @ BADILLO ; STOP@ PUENTE, RUDDOCK
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. AND STOPS
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/7I 1-08,0TE2341
Date State Registration Number

282



CITY OF COVINA 39

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GLENDORA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM RUDDOCK ST TO CYPRESS ST

SPEED FACTORS
Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 20 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph VERT. CURVE, HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph ADJ. SEG., UNC, XWALKS

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 3544 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 90

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9, 536 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED+ BIKE LANES

Type of Traffic Control T. S. @ CYPRESS; STOP @ RUDDOCK
Crosswalks?  @ T.S. AND STOP, WINGATE, COLVER
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.409 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

1r

TE 2341

Date f State Registration Number

283



CITY OF COVINA I ao
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GLENDORA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CYPRESS ST TO COVINA BLVD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10: 15 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.,
85th Percentile Speed 40 mph PED. TRAFFIC

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32- 41 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 81

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9,647 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED+ BIKE LANES

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ COVINA, CYPRESS
Crosswalks?  @ T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.250 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting WEST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, CHURCH

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in e State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

j 3„,//,4/
1/

0 TE 2341

Dto State Registration Number

284



CITY OF COVINA 41

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GLENDORA AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM COVINA BLVD TO CIENEGA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 55 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    36 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ, SEG.,
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph PED. TRAFFIC

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 76

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 10, 846 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED+ BIKE LANES

Type of Traffic Control T.S.    COVINA, CIENEGA

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 273 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

4181P I 4/ 16)       TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

285



CITY OF COVINA 42

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GRAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM WALNUT CREEK RD TO PUENTE ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14:55 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    36 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 39 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32-41 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 77

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/ year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 36,098 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. © PUENTE, ROWLAND

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    EAST SIDE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 545 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

377 1 +   TE 2341

13ate State Registration Number

286



CITY OF COVINA 43

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GRAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM PUENTE ST TO SAN BERNARDINO RD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14:30 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    36 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35- 44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 71

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 3 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 1

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 170

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 27,270 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ PUENTE, BADILLO, SAN BERNARDINO RD
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 591 miles

Width 80 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the S ate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3// 1701/
4/( t2 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

287



CITY OF COVINA 441
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GRAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SAN BERNARDINO RD TO COVINA BLVD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 13/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 15:30 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 4 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 1. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 232

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 28,913 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ SAN BERNARDINO, EDNA, CYPRESS, COVINA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 545 miles

Width 69 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3// e/ Ziet9 TE 2341

D te State Registration Number

288



CITY OF COVINA 45

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET GRAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM COVINA BLVD TO ARROW HWY

SPEED FACTORS

1Daa of Speed Survey 1/ 13/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Tinie of Speed Survey 14: 10 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    38 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35- 44 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 81

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 25,922 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ COVINA, CIENEGA, ARROW
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 455 miles

Width 84 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE 2341
4

Date State Registration Number

289



CITY OF COVINA 46

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET HOLLENBECK AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM SOUTH CITY LIMITS TO ROWLAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10:00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.

85th Percentile Speed 42 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 15, 288 Date Counted 1/ 20/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ ROWLAND, WORKMAN
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    EAST SIDE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 273 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/7 7/ At9 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

290



CITY OF COVINA 1 .  47]
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET HOLLENBECK AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ROWLAND AVE TO BADILLO ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9:40 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    37 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.,
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph PED. TRAFFIC

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 3645 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/ year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 17, 085 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ ROWLAND, PUENTE, BADILLO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic HEAVY

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the S to of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

a 3/` 7// 467 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

291



CITY OF COVINA

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET HOLLENBECK AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BADILLO ST TO EDNA PL

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 25 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    34 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 38 mph

Average Speed 35 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 30- 39 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18,408 Date Counted 1/ 20/ 2016

Number of Lanes 2 LNS- UNDIV.S/ O S. B., 4 LNS UNDIV N/ O S. B

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ SAN BERNARDINO, BADILLO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.455 miles

Width 42 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERICAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the.- tate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

jl'Cjtff TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

292



CITY OF COVINA 49

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET HOLLENBECK AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM COVINA BLVD TO ARROW HWY

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    40 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2
85th Percentile Speed 44 mph

Average Speed 40 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36- 45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 75

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 130

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 14, 085 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ COVINA, GROVERDALE, ARROW
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in th: State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE 2341

Date` State Registration Number

293



CITY OF COVINA 76-61
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET HOLT AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM 1- 10 FREEWAY TO VIA VERDE ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 35 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    35 mph UNIFORMITY WI ADJ. SEG.

85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 3241 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 69

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 3, 929 Date Counted 1/ 20/ 2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control NONE

Crosswalks?  @ PARK VIEW

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    NONE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 318 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ 71.Y//e/ Ce, TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

294



CITY OF COVINA 51

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET LARK ELLEN AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GROVECENTER ST TO EDNA PL

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 20 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    35 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 31- 40 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 72

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 16, 475 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BADILLO, SAN BERNARDINO

Crosswalks?  ALL T. S. , GROVE CENTER

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use SCHOOL, COMMERCIAL, HOSPITAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Egineer( Traffic).

4/7/ 4/ ;:
7

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

295



CITY OF COVINA 52

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ARMEL DR TO HOLLENBECK AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 1025 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    35 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 39 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32- 41 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 79

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.441

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9, 132 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ HOLLENBECK
Crosswalks?  T.S., ARMEL, HEATHDALE

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking BOTH SIDES; S. SIDE- RESTR.

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.227 miles

Width 42 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

r 72)

7
3/ i 44/ 16 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number
E
I

i
296



CITY OF COVINA I 531
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM HOLLENBECK AVE TO CITRUS AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10:45 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    34 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.,

85th Percentile Speed 41 mph PED. TRAFFIC

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 30- 39 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 76

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 8, 632 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ HOLLENBECK, CITRUS

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwaiks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 42 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, HIGH SCHOOL STADIUM

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, TIE., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

311/    /

ith TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

297



CITY OF COVING 54

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CITRUS AVE TO BARRANCA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 1110 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    31 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.,

85th Percentile Speed 35 mph VERT. CURVE

Average Speed 32 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 27- 36 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 81

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 340

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 5, 379 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CITRUS, SECOND, BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., SAN JOSE
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 33 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions GOOD

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

r

3/ i/1/16 TE 2341

Dat State Registration Number

298



CITY OF COVINA 55

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 35 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    37 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 43 mph

Average Speed 38 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 33- 42 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 68

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 5,603 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA, GRAND
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., MONTE VISTA, DE LAY
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ i     //1 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

299



CITY OF COVINA 56]

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GRAND AVE TO GLENDORA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 10 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    36 mph HIDDEN DWYS, VERT. CURVE, FED.

85th Percentile Speed 40 mph TRAFFIC

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 33-42 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 75

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/ year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 5,699 Date Counted 1/ 26/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ GRAND ; STOP @ FARBER, GLENDORA
Crosswalks?     ALL T.S. & STOPS

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    NORTH SIDE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ 1 411./C.     TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

300



CITY OF COVINA 579
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM GLENDORA AVE TO SHOUSE AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 25 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 35 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    28 mph HIDDEN DWYS, VERT. CURVE
85th Percentile Speed 32 mph

Average Speed 29 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 25- 34 Recommended Speed Limit 25 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 77

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 1, 478 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control STOP @ GLENDORA
Crosswalks?  @ GLENDORA
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 114 miles

Width 48 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the Stat- of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

40,
3/ i 17/l/ i  ,   TE 2341G1-  

Date State Registration Number

301



CITY OF COVINA f581
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET PUENTE ST CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM REEDER AVE TO RANCHO CORTO DR

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 45 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 45 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    41 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 47 mph

Average Speed 42 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 37- 46 Recommended Speed Limit 45 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 72

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 4, 729 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES+ 2WY LT- LANE

Type of Traffic Control STOP @ REEDER
Crosswalks?  @ ALL STOPS
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      SOUTH SIDE

Driveways?    NORTH SIDE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0.636 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, GOLF COURSE

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

302



CITY OF COVINA
591

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET REEDER AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM PUENTE ST TO OLD BADILLO ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 30 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    31 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 35 mph

Average Speed 32 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 27-36 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 81

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 806

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 4, 992 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control STOP© OLD BADILLO, PUENTE

Crosswalks?  @ ALL STOPS
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking NO

Sidwalks?      EAST SIDE

Driveways?    EAST SIDE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 227 miles

Width 32 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility BAD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

36///
1-40 TE 2341

ate State Registrationeg stratian Number

303



CITY OF COVINA 60

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET REEDER AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM OLD BADILLO ST TO BADILLO ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 10 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    33 mph VERT. CURVE, PED. TRAFFIC
85th Percentile Speed 37 mph

Average Speed 34 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 29- 38 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 75

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 823

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 4, 888 Date Counted 1/ 21/ 2016

Number of Lanes 3 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T. S. @ BADILLO ; STOP @ OLD BADILLO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. AND STOP
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking WEST SIDE- RESTRICTED

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    NONE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 227 miles

Width 50 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

10P, 3/ i TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

304



CITY OF COVINA 61

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET REEDER AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BADILLO ST TO CYPRESS ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 20/2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 50 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    35 mph HIDDEN DWYS, VERT. CURVE, HIGH
85th Percentile Speed 40 mph PARKING TURNOVER

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 3241 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 73

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 2,499 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BADILLO , STOP @ CYPRESS
Crosswalks?  ALL T.S. AND STOP

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      EAST SIDE

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 455 miles

Width 42 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting EAST SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

305



CITY OF COVINA j 62

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET ROWLAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ARMEL DR TO CITRUS AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 25 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)     36 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 40 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32-41 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 73

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 13, 997 Date Counted 1/ 26/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ HOLLENBECK, CITRUS
Crosswalks?  ALL T.S. , ARMEL

Pedestrian Traffic HEAVY

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 727 miles

Width 75 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, MEDICAL CENTERS

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the tate of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

31/11/4/
1/‘‘,    

TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

306



CITY OF COVINA 63

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET ROWLAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CITRUS AVE TO BARRANCA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    36 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 70

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 12, 943 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA, SECOND, CITRUS
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., FIRST, EREMLAND
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 75 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3// f   /( 47 TE 2341

Date State Registrationg anon Number

307



CITY OF COVINA 64

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET ROWLAND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO FORESTDALE AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 15: 15 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    40 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.
85th Percentile Speed 46 mph

Average Speed 41 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 36-45 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 72

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9, 101 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  Q BARRANCA
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 273 miles

Width 77 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

7(

7

3/ i   /(.4, TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

308



CITY OF COVINA 65

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SAN BERNARDINO RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM VINCENT AVE TO LARK ELLLEN AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 40 mph

Time of Speed Survey 12: 45 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    40 mph HIDDEN DWYS, HORIZ. CURVE, HIGH
85th Percentile Speed 45 mph PARKING TURNOVER

Average Speed 41 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 38- 47 Recommended Speed Limit 40 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 115

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 15, 929 Date Counted 1/ 28/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ VINCENT, LARK ELLEN
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

f  /,/       TE 2341

date State Registration Numberer

309



CITY OF COVINA 66

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SAN BERNARDINO RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM LARK ELLEN AVE TO AZUSA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13:40 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    33 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2
85th Percentile Speed 38 mph

Average Speed 34 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 31- 40 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 73

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 2 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0.667

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.200

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18, 225 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES+ 2WY LT-LANE

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ LARK ELLEN, RIMSDALE, AZUSA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in th- State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ 7-V/4av TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

310



CITY OF COVINA 67

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SAN BERNARDINO RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM AZUSA AVE TO HOLLENBECK AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    38 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY ADJ. SEG.,
85th Percentile Speed 42 mph UNC. XWALKS, PED. TRAFFIC

Average Speed 39 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 35-44 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 83

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 112

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 14,984 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @AZUSA, HOLLENBECK

Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., ELSPETH, ARMEL
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 545 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the ;  . te of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

311



CITY OF COVINA 681

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SAN BERNARDINO RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM HOLLENBECK AVE TO CITRUS AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 15 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    31 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNC, XWALKS, PED.
85th Percentile Speed 36 mph TRAFFIC

Average Speed 32 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 27-36 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 11, 838 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ HOLLENBECK, CITRUS, 3RD
Crosswalks?  ra7 ALL T.S.,VALENCIA., 4TH

Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking NONE

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 42 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, HOSPITAL, PARK

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3tDae

TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

312



CITY OF COVINA 69

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SAN BERNARDINO RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CITRUS AVE TO BARRANCA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 35 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)    35 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2
85th Percentile Speed 39 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 33- 42 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 82

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 11, 780 Date Counted 1/ 28/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CITRUS, 2ND, BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the S, a of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

311 L/     CO TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

313



CITY OF COVINA 70

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SAN BERNARDINO RD CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO GRAND AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 14: 55 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    36 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNIFORMITY W/ ADJ. SEG.,
85th Percentile Speed 40 mph VERT. AND HORIZ. CURVE

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 34-43 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 80

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9,514 Date Counted 1/ 28/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA, GRAND
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 60 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in t. - State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

r 3/ I//rC TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

314



CITY OF COVINA I 71

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY
STREET SECOND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM ROWLAND AVE TO BADILLO ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10:20 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    35 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNC. XWALKS, HIGH
85th Percentile Speed 41 mph PARKING TURNOVER

Average Speed 37 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32- 41 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph
Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 79

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1
accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 216

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 8, 443 Date Counted 1/ 20/ 2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S.    BADILLO, PUENTE, ROWLAND

Crosswalks?  ALL T.S., CENTER, DEXTER

Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 62 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES, MANY

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, TX., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

9////   TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

315



CITY OF COVINA 72

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SECOND AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BADILLO ST TO FRONT ST

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10:40 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed (Mean Speed)     33 mph HIDDEN DWYS, UNC. XWALKS, PED.

85th Percentile Speed 37 mph TRAFFIC

Average Speed 34 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 28-37 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 78

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 7, 579 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BADILLO, SAN BERNARDINO, COLLEGE; STOP @ FRONT
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. AND STOPS, ITALIA, SCHOOL
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 364 miles

Width 78 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, CIVIC CENTER

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

31 ,     / l' TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

316



CITY OF COVINA nj
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET SUNFLOWER AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CYPRESS ST TO CIENEGA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9: 00 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    35 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 38 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 32- 41 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 85

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 1 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0. 333

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 192

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 9, 503 Date Counted 1/ 20/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CIENEGA; STOP @ SUNFLOWER, COVINA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., STOPS, BENWOOD
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 64 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in VI- State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

9 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

1317



CITY OF COVINA 74

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET VINCENT AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BADILLO ST TO EDNA PL

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 21/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 13: 00 Speed Justification

50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    34 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 39 mph

Average Speed 36 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 30- 39 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 72

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 18, 871 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- DIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BADILLO, SAN BERNARDINO
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S.
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic MODERATE

On-Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 455 miles

Width 80 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions POOR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in th State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

341/46:,      TE 2341
Date State Registration Number

318



CITY OF COVINA 751
ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET WORKMAN AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM WEST CITY LIMIT TO EAST CITY LIMIT W/O CITRUS AVENUE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 9:45 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed( Mean Speed)    31 mph CLOSEST TO 85TH SPEED

85th Percentile Speed 35 mph

Average Speed 32 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 29-38 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 85

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 10,639 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ HOLLENBECK, CITRUS; STOP @ ALBERTSON
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S. AND STOPS, ARDENVILLE
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking YES, BOTH SIDES

Sidwaiks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 727 miles

Width 44 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting NORTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use RESIDENTIAL, SCHOOL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T. E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the St. e of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ 217/46 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

319



CITY OF COVINA 761

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET WORKMAN AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM CITRUS AVE TO BARRANCA AVE

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/2016 Posted Speed Limit 35 mph

Time of Speed Survey 10: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    34 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 39 mph

Average Speed 35 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 31- 40 Recommended Speed Limit 35 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 71

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0.000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 11, 144 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 2 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ CITRUS, BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  @ ALL T.S., SAN ANTONIO, SECOND, PALMETTO
Pedestrian Traffic MODERATE

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On-Street Parking YES, NORTH SIDE

Sidwalks?      BOTH SIDES

Driveways?    BOTH SIDES

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 500 miles

Width 50 feet

Vertical Curve?       YES

Horizontal Curve?    NONE

Visibility GOOD

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting SOUTH SIDE

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State . f California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

7 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

320



CITY OF COVINA 77

ENGINEERING AND TRAFFIC SURVEY

STREET WORKMAN AVE CERTIFICATION DATE 3/ 14/ 16

FROM BARRANCA AVE TO EASTERLY END OF ROAD

SPEED FACTORS

Date of Speed Survey 1/ 19/ 2016 Posted Speed Limit 30 mph

Time of Speed Survey 11: 00 Speed Justification
50th Percentile Speed ( Mean Speed)    29 mph CALIFORNIA MUTCD OPTION 2

85th Percentile Speed 34 mph

Average Speed 30 mph

10 mph Pace Speed 25-34 Recommended Speed Limit 30 mph

Percentage of Vehicles in Pace 72

Number of Survey Samples 100

COLLISION HISTORY
years

Number of Years Studied 3

Total Collisions 0 accidents/year

Annual Collision Rate 0

Collisions per Million Vehicle Miles 0. 000

TRAFFIC FACTORS

Average Daily Traffic 2, 599 Date Counted 1/ 26/2016

Number of Lanes 4 LANES- UNDIVIDED

Type of Traffic Control T.S. @ BARRANCA
Crosswalks?  @ BARRANCA
Pedestrian Traffic LIGHT

Truck Traffic LIGHT

On- Street Parking NO

Sidwaiks?      SOUTH SIDE

Driveways?    SOUTH SIDE

ROADWAY FACTORS

Length of Segment 0. 364 miles

Width 50 feet

Vertical Curve?       NONE

Horizontal Curve?    YES

Visibility FAIR

Roadway Conditions FAIR

Lighting BOTH SIDES

Adjacent Land Use COMMERCIAL, RESIDENTIAL

Field Study By KC Checked By VM

CERTIFICATION: I, Vanessa Munoz, T.E., do hereby certify that this Engineering and Traffic Survey
within the City of Covina was performed under my supervision and is accurate and complete. I am
duly registered in the State of California as a Professional Engineer( Traffic).

3/ 4"/// 2 TE 2341

Date State Registration Number

321



Radar Speed Distribution Forms

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

322



r

I  _  I
a a a

a P N
M M a

I`

CO5.
CO V

CON
13 C

xia:    

N N

a)     C
d  ^  

T
O1

o 0 0 co a v  -  x vco a       "' r c 0 0o
Q

0
M m CO CO

CI
h j cn 0 O

o m 7
d

U N
a)     ca U
3 cc co

T I-
al 5

c
c

a

a3 N
c

O a)    0)  0 co

p
o

M u)    u)    d 11 To ro

Q Q U
y 9

r

C O O

r

U U U

6 d m

E A 6 aN
9

at)   
d d

to
w

E c a v7 c
4)    t c,     4)  a v   .  N a a a

m 3 e ui d E ar c m

0 N j O C n d V
L L  . c

U J 0 3 0 I- IL I- I--  W
0.     

o 0 o Q a    -  N co
w CL
0 co

a. 4 c) w• • •

CO

Op V N O 8U
C

O u= 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00000C/0 O a CO D M hI7 a M M M N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I

Cl)

aI- 0
c Oz
a x x S
u x x 0

xx

x x x

x x x x

E x x x x x x x

x) C X  > 4>4>4,4,4,4, 4)4 x x

X x x x XIX x x x x x XX x x x x
N

s.)      
I

OL

C

21
Sim

x x

x x x x x

x x xxxxx

x x xlxxxxxx

xx x x x x x x x x x

x xxxxxixxxxxxxx x x

E ii•    ,'v MV.17,
0N10W P0N

uN
3MNN

N5'4 Mh
a

aCMN<
0

M
M

Mu)
M

a MN 3071

NONhNNa
M N N0is.w N U

U.
CR

V

O O O O O o 0 0 0 o P o o OPPO P P 1- v- N N N , 0 M W c0 of N N t1 y- O M N 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

m13 0 0 0 000 O 0 00000O 00 r COIN .* .- . 4 M tO of t V of N ,- P O v- P O .- 0000 P O P 00 00 P P g

Co b 3 2 2 m
O N 3 N N2 N N u1 2 2 d m < < 

V 3 O O T MO 2 2 M M M M 0 N O N N N N g N N g N N w v 4

323



I I I
a a a

C 00 M
M M C

N.

N
CO

2 2 No

d d 3 a aro CS'   ci

N
0

nom+  
e-  01

a o a o U x U LL

O
m

o
ao

rn

Z n m A m
N M

j N 0 O walw N c a   `o

OR
3 UC.;

O 0 U N

as

3 a)_
s C

a

e v 13
0 0

a
c ifs

N
N

N

O c)      O
cr

Q
V V V

0 U Nr
CUU   )

CO d m m m

oa c c c

OO D d     ?:     £ o E    . m a O 5 7 m cdi    .    .   . 0

U 0      - 1 m 3 c F= LL Pt--  wN a o o a'  a     -  N U)
a

U ( C O 5000000C4000000.- 0.- 1-, 1,-• t P( 0'^.,( 0O°  Of IAP a M.- 000 0000000000000 O

NJaF-
I-

13

0Z
a aCC
3

x c7

x

x x

x xx xx xx

xxxxxxx xxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxx

N x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x
1

UN
t

C

S
V;  x. x
w

x x x

x xxxx

xi xxxx

xxxl xxxx
xxxxixxxxx x

x xxx xxxx,xxxxxxxxxx

IIM CMN 001 OOP< 01npQ MN OQI OOP t010 CMN 001 OOP ONC MN 001 OD P1010 CMN 00100 P10 N 7
1312lOt0S Ar; Ot010l0101f1 NC CCC CCC C R C MMMMMMMMt'f MNNNNN N NNNN

R_

CL, 000000a0000000000 0 n v v e n v n w a in m w 0 0 0 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C

m o

C

0 o a o

C

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .- o , .- , o c. . o n u 1.11 n v- N r , •-•   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a o

p

m m n b m 8 $ 2 n n m 322 .7. 244 '444484 ; 4881; 88822 Yl 888 ì,-. 88822 F 8 8

di

N L

324



I

7 -  1
a a a

N CO M
CI C')  a

rb
m V

CO

b

o d a 0 . a Op N

O

O
r

CA
C E

X
Q LLM0 0 o O

co
cr TrN

V
CO co co

N C"    
1

j N 0 OCo
m

N  =  

a

V N
CTSCA

COVccObi

Cll
N

F

J
a

o

d d d
Q 0 a a
Nr T

o N Lo co N co

j N CJ N V M

N O
O 0 V U

co U r       —     —   

UG U

VpO    • 

m m m

C C C
la

Jf
6 o.  U)  

y
v

1 IL V CDG a o.  o.• -
o

rVI

qO
O V A O C d V L L L

U J m O FIL i= I-  W! AdQin coo

Q.
p (0

a a 0 in • • •

i,• CO
13

U CO o 0, 0 0 0 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0 0 0— o— o— Cv u co co colo co m m°“ n“ n— o o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

cocc    -
aH0

O1-

C G
E z

t x a

X X ce0
a 1 xxx

x x x X

xxx x

X  !    X X X X X X

i x x X x XlX x x X X X X X

N X x X X x x X x x x x X X X X x

N

U7.-
g> 

CC

OLx
Gx
z xxxx

x x,xXX x      -    - -

x x x x x x

I x xx,xxxXx

x xx',xxxxxxx

x x xxxxxxxxxxxx

o N32N
9 fi88 r,-,

co4O
N 224 co

Om In KaON 4 4 4 a
Om W P

MNO22
MOmNO fN, 8 2 A21N

Nfico
0f' 00

m

m y
3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , N N N E, N N N M WG F. 0 CC . . ,- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

JU
2 00000o 00000 0 0 0 0 r   .- 0 0 0 0 tOntfIN N00000000000000000000

ry

18 : 8 GANN, NNNNuAgA88883VdVVAA ''; t, t, Cft, NC, CINNNNNNNNNN
m  b '

325



X x x
a a a

an
M cn a

F-CO
CO C.;   CO

C

N
Na a 0 N

65 C
r r Cr)   

0)

Cl)       o 0 o m U .    x o a

0 co m co co p

n
co m 0 o   °

U

o

CO '  a

U N

10Oco R U rn
cc cc

F-
CD aC
C    - 6 a

N NN
Q C N

N N G)

al Cl)   aMNm a O p)

N C V To
N N
U r

0 0 0

ui y d d d

aTi

Y 2.1
A a a 9    • m ami a•   •

co E c a
N

8 8
z      °     

S    . v w a v al cn a a aco

p u 1:1 is):     _ o E x a
O 5  =   d u r r r

a
U cp      _ 1 m 3 i= LL 17. 1..:  w&)     o 0 o 4 a v-  in a,

p CI aac) w

CZ
U CIS O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0 CO CO CO L[ 1 n CO CD 0 CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

cc

0J
H
O

0x r-

c
o x z

i
XXX

5 XXX c7

a x x x

x x x

N x x x x

x xxxxxxx

x xxxxxxx x

x x.x x x x x x x x x x x x
N I

O

C I

JO
L

o
X

0Z X X X

xx x

x'xxxx x

x x.,xxxxx xx

xxxxxxxxxxxx

x x x xxxxlxxxxxxxx x a
E O

a 2&II i2N Iff 2 2 N
caN 4328man m8a M N

O 8 22(%2

MMMN
NaaA

NnNN?
MNNO0)      N

5y
2_3

d

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m , .- ?     CO O V M , O C 0 0 .- .. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 p
I

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0     .- O .- O r O N nl C1 v WOO v M1 C. N d M00 .- 0000000000000000

y11
O O ra' b

fa3 N 3 N N N N N N 4 V O V O d a 0 0 a X O M 4 4 3 2• N N N N N N N 4' 4Vr

326



X x x
0.  0 0

o CO r
M M M

nb
CO C.)   b

2 2 y tc0

d 0 U . 0
N

IS•
o a o v M 0

E x 0 LL

as co
CO

In M 0

L y =  CO R

C13
J

N

U) c
d
oco0

4,

O
7 C0 N

QV
Obi

mr

a";
c 2 a
N

d d d
Q•     

Inu)
m

all
CO a a a

cn N
is

7

co CD 0 CO N N

N•     T T    ( V U U U

Q U U r

U U U

T

di  
CVU

d d d

8dN
co dc E a m a 0   $

4)   E

ULCO NavOJ NO.  a a
c

as

U m 3 o 174 LI:  FF wcn e o  ?  4 a     -  on co
o- 

aaciw

rte. 
CO

Ua

CC
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O SCIN V CO CO

O QCO O
M

V CdN O O O O O O O O O O O

J
H
0r

c 0

Q
L c.

e x 0

M x xx

x xxx xx

x xxx xx x

X x x x x x X x x

x x xxxxxx x x

y XXX XXXXXXXX XX X

N

U

mm I

V

X

2 x x

tr x x x
0

X X x

X X X X

I x x x X x xx

X X X X X X X X

XXXXXxxx

x xx x x x x x x x x x xx

I N Q M N O OI N
fV 1p In Q M N O OI 4 4 4 4 pp P7 N O Ol p P IO In p M N O R g f: g In Q M N O A GO' ID N

cIO{ O t01D 10{ ONNNNIn In In In of vfQQQQQCCQQQMM MMMM MMMMNNNNNNNNNN
Q

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,-  n o n ,- . o m i n v+ n o e  o w o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

M 00000000000000000000003- 01- .- o e n e of Mfg e m  o   o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1121212 4312 „15i nno, 32222 ee244v4See3 2 2 2232 2M 2 Si      a2anaaaa22  44

327



x x I
a a a

tor-Ma a

so

mcic
a)    

4.0

d c1
z d a u v N

O E  .-  V a0e o
N x

0c
a

n
m CN

c co 3 CO0 o
0• 7

a

U Zo
O N

v

V N

a)     cc O)

Occ
N

N

ID-    Q a

c

III0 CO fl CI

To

U U U

T V
3;  y

G

m d m

al dc E a)   4;  a cf)   sd N N

5a
IL

o    ` a   `S    . c w a v 0 ta a
m EE mduO      

d w
E     -  

1E O c t r r

fVJ m O Pei PIWW o 0 o Q 6.     ,-  If))
tri
03

LI a
p V)

a. 4ow . . .

co

U
0

O 000000000000 N N N N N 7 2 m m N to M O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

V)

aI-0I-
o

F-

c Oz
S X a

3 x ct0
x

X LXXX
x x xxx x x

S XX x xx x x X x

E x x X X X, X) C X X X

N x x x x x x x x x X' x x"x x x x x

d
V

I'1

I
S X,

A
x

W
x

xxlx x

xxxxxxxx

x xxxxxxxx

x x XXXXXXXXx

X x x x x x x x x x x x x x x

O71
NQMNiOmOn ONNMN1AOmWh7NQQMNemOMMNMMMMOmA NNQMNN OmhN

mW

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,- ,- .- r m e w m m . LO 0 e , e 0 , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f

m o 0 o 0... 0 0 00 0 0 0 o n c e in CO u+ e e . e H o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

m

Inu u v u n  n n n n n n n aa e e e e e e w nn n n n n w N a a w a w a

4

y V

328



X x x
0.  0.  0.

a CO N
M M a

D.10
M C 140

2 2 N
c osO0

Q_  Q..   V co gg N

z u oma°  oma°  m U --  xU

C m  —    0 0 co

M
m

C N
m O o

a
41 M c0 Cli

c v co
m

N Q aN
Y

N N 0U

ry

0    _
0]   

O D s.  Qac
1n u)    O tl)  N N

O CO N    ( f)  AR  '5(
CS O p p V V U

03

0 U U

0 0) m d m

T 0 A C d N d

i L 2- 0 w 0.       R N 0.  a 0.
po 441;     3

y o E     '_^ m O 5 m m c07i L L L

U J m 3 0 H li I- I--  W co o 0 0 4 0.     -       a)
CD

p o ac) w• • •

7::,
OC

U al O OOOOOOOOOOOOOOO.- O N Oa Na401-.   1010 OOn M.- M•- N.- OOOOOOOOOOOOOO O
CC 4-

to

aFO
ac G

no
R

d C9
3 x x

x x x

x xxxx x

xxxxxxxxx x

xxxxxxxxxxx x

13
I x xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

a

a
x

C
x

x3a. x

w
x xx

x xx

x' x xx x

x xx xxxx

x xxx xxxxxxxx

x x xxxxx'xxxxxxxx x

t N M N O O) CO 1 1O 10 Q M H O OI OD f 10 N Q M N O 01 OO f b N C M N O O) M P b N Q M O Ol to n 1O 10 5
b 1D 10 D 53MER N NN1O El El Na a a a aaa a a a MM MMMMMMMMN N NN NNNNNN

1

1!- . . . 0 . 0 . . . . 0 . .. 0 0 0 0

o0.- 
O N e o, O e e e N 0 0, C.1 .... 01 .   r o a a a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

mi
m

0 0 0   . O N a N N N0 0 0 0 0 000000 r O N   '. O m r 0 0 0 r O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

1a aaa ' Nr- aa O
b b b , O b Y, N N h h v1 1n N N N v r

C tui n M o, M M N N N N N N N N N
a ' aa

N
u

329



I I I
a a a

CO O1 M
N N M

N

5.      lO

NCOC.;
N

S S N
0_  0_   C/ ' O CO

N

2 27 O n N   ..-C r co
Oi

0 0 o m U-     x V LL

O co
c0QO O c7

N
m of

C NN
a)

N j H 0 o t0

CO E a
Oks Z 0 N

Q U NCD'

LIF
C

2
N N

a

7)     g N 0 0C

t0
a
N

O.  

hO

a O O CO R  ! 0 R
0 L    _ N g 1n M V 0 V

03 d-    U ri N M

U U U

y 0
m d w

co
0 E co N a N s w 0 Va

t 2 ca a`,  a.   o g y

as
a a.

O v o     $     d E o E g O 5
3)    r r r

U m 3 0 PLL P  wmo 0 o a'  a    -  0 to

p /-     a < U w

0

U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0I0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0--- O- r M O N 0 O N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

y

I-     J

I-
0

C
OZ

0 Xa

lij x x ccO
xx x

xx x

xx xx x

xxxxx xx x

xxxxx xxxxx

N x I xxxxx...... xxxx x

a

v

OC

a x

mx x x
w

x  ..  x

x xxxxx

x xxxxx

x x xxxxx
I

xx  .. xxxxx

xlx x xxxxxxxxxx x

In MN OOl as NID2O2N O4 as N
4 NQM N OMg NAMQMN ORl+a NtpM Q N OOICONtp U1

tD tO tD D{ ONN N N101C1 Lf1 v> iAN Q Q Q Q QQQ Q Q Q MMMMMMMMI 9̀MNN NN NNNN N N

m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 — 0 0 0 0 - -   n Cl. O n . o N - 0 v fl e 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - 0 0 n   - n N 0 tO 0 Un 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I $ 
e e 3 8 .8 8 33 , o a 2 3 ' 3 a d a e e e e e e e M A ; M M M A M g A P. r 2 r r r 2 A 2 ^ - - - -N

330



r 1

a.  x x
a.  a a

mn
M et et

1CO
m =   m

a a 7
CD

p n N
1

a

OS

N
O,   g),,C

NU =   x V a

N r N
x 0

gbtsco

co0 Cl)  O O w

co E
0 W 7

a

V N
C0 W 0 so0)
CO 1--
m

N a
N

cn c

aaI
0101

O     >   c N Cl)  NQ 7a 0

a    -
oasc

0)    co co o v m A A

m N U 0j

TO
V V V

aa U
d m m

CO
N E a of a

e01
n aj 0 0 0a

m      °     C r Sv m a v m Cl)    a a a

U 0 m 3
3 lei

0 Fii FF wcn o 0 o Q a 01 incoo

a_
pu)  a a c..) w • • •

FFID
U O g 0000000 OO 0 O_ ON,- NN( D( 0 M OD N.- CON-( 0 N- N N.( DN 0 00, 0000'- 00000000000 O

coJaF
0

c 0
J Z
0

aR
x

xx

x xx xxx

1.       xx xxx xxxx

x xxx xxxxlxxxxx

N x x x x x x x x x x x,x x x x x x x x

vm
m

0CJOaNRw
I

x x

x xxx x

X x XIX x

x x xxxxxxxxx

X xxxxxxxxxxx

XX x x x x x x x' x x x x x x x

i 0
b

MN 0(8 3 u

un
3 N RMN

n 0u O
W' 4 ( O

NQMN
a 8 8 M PM AA M

MN
N1 OON ON

Nh
4 gi RMN

N( Ti"     
o

x

m e
3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , 0 N O , N o e , M N O N N M e e v 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i

79,
2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1- .- 0 CO r N .   . n 0 u+ 0 n v. CI 0 , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 gam'

y
e 3 e e G 8 8 8 5 823227. 2344 e 4 < e e e a 8 8 5 8 8 8 M N 5 8 8 r N N N N N N N N 71 5 t

p

331



X x x
O.  a a

r N r
CI a a

r-

5.. 

c co
ua

05
x 2 N co Na a 0 a ao CO

o 0 oo f  .-  a   „_

V-       N v  `
rn

V '    x V
N1`  N T c O

1p

Q 0
m

c N
1:3

v
z N O2 b

cNZ d
7 U cI

0 v O
NU a,

mp r

m
c

N     › a

v  • D V
N d d
ccD

ca
N N

S co to o
as N N N V V 0 0

CO o7 U or a,       

C U C)

N 1N N 2
o

CO
d E m   , 1,.;  a N s 4.,   u ua

cn i°     '    r c     d a V   °  Cl)    a
tu

0.  a
3   • 0 m y c a

O y N O C 7 G7 C1    .
c L L

U m 3 0             w vai o 0 o a>  a     ,.  10 MI0
a

O N a a 0 w. • .

ro
U ( C O p p O O O O O 0 O O O M O N O n O O M N O M D O N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

CC r

U)
I   - __-.._.    _._.- ._-__-___._ -__    __      

JQI-0
a

I-

X Z
ti X

3

IX
X x

X X X X'iX

X XX X Xx

X X X X X X

X X X X X X X X X X

N X X X  ; X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

NNPLd

C

2,
ry
W

X

X X X

X XX X X

X X XX XIX X X X

X XXX X X X X X X X X X X X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

i CR ER 14 001 CD 1A

LT,' UR
NN 001Cp‘ Ni: gg 1RMN O Si;  O Q MN 001 Si S.-, 10NR Fags O W Mts 1010

tO 1D 101010 CR 10 CR N101HNOO

OORR070e0+
1 SR MrfMo'f MMMMNNNNNNNNNN

V

m gr

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,- 0 0 1- O 1- O N w tO d N N O O, n - N O o , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O 0

0

2 0 0 000000000 o N 0 o N N d 3- 0 N O N O 0 0 0 o 0N D -   O O O O P O 0 0 0 O O O O 3

1 NN u u b G N uv1n ovof N of O
O V 44444 ; 488 ,", 887, 2 M M M N N N N N N H  N N

m r

y

332



I I I
a a a

N.  M m
01 eT et

N-

5. CO

m 0 CNo

x x 0

was
a a 7 0 r CO

v r G)   1f1

O o E  '-  a s
a)       CF/  O

o   '

Cl.  
2n U C U

Q
IN N

m C
CO

Es
v g N 0 0

O N 7
a  ()   It

NW
N

200 LO

U
F

75 G)

it
a

a)      d d d
o

Q D a aD a
17 CO N CO

p C
Cl C)       if)    LI)    V

N
N N O N V V V

aa C7 U 0 of

U U U
d v 0

vv 2a a v c c c

co iW
cCi-     

acs

a
a to   '     v v v

l c S t c' O a)  d v rn 0 a a

Off.',
O -0 c10i

3 w 3 E o E H
a

O vC L L L.

U m 3 0 Pa F-F-  wo o o a a s r-       of

w a
OW 0 Q 0 W . . .

U CO 0Ll............_.._ LAI N M V N n CO
0 CO CO

O
D N N CO V N r O N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

toJ4I-0H
1I Z
n l a

3 x ca

x

x X

x x x x,x

X x x x x x x XiX x

2.i. j X X X X•x x X X XX XX

N X X X X X X X X X X X X XIX XXXX X

Si

UZ

C

a
1x

W
xx x

xxx x'

xxx x

xxx
xl

x

x xxxxxxxlxx xx x

xxxxxxxxxxx,xxxxxxxx x

e N? MN O0120P 202002N ER 4;     20Na C') N O01gRn 2020? MN O01 mr 204 A2 O'' P20 N
20102020 tD 201n 2nN N 101/ f 1[ 120N20a a a O a a a a a OMMMMMMMMMMNN NNNNNNNN

C:
m

3 0 0 0 O O O o o O O .- O N N M n 0 .- N n Q v a O . M N 0 , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a
V

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N - , ,- N N 0 n 0 N CON 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0<

qo e e e G e gl gg h g 2 gg < 4e e < < e < e 8, 8 o M N 2 2 N8 N N N N N N N N N N
u n

CO

333



I I I
a a a

co a 0)
M a a

N

5.      UD

CO U NO
C OS

2 2 m
CO Na a 11. 0 CO CO

a)     v ::  . n-  CV

rn
c o o a a,  

o o f K a a

D m c Cl

a) v g H 0 o

y o.       ab

a)     R 7 C)   Cl

CC v O
U rn

F
C

Q2 a
00

u) ES
ami ami ami

O 0 LO C G G

p ZZ 1n U)  U)  U)

m"
O C     , Ti co o c)    V

72 ToC7 U

C)  UU

di  • C m m m

la E m m a y   $     
c c c

C Z d v v v
3      °     %    r c d a v m y a a amn m m m E m     + '     O 5 0 m v    . c  . c r

V 1 m 3     .       a F F iu

cfa.
o o 0 o 4 a     -  Lo co

p ° O. a v w

6 ca O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.- co M 1n M a co
co

N
co N O

a M7 N M N 00 0 0 0 0 0 C. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

I  _.  C0

I 02I-
0

y X

1 X Z
a X

X

X X X

x xx x

x xx x x

y XX XXXX X

X XX XXXX XX X

N X X X X X X X X X X X X, X X X X X
o

VN
L

C

c
2

x

x x x

x x i x
X X IX

X X X X X XXX

xXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

i N QQMN 00101h 810 Q M N 001 h W. W.   MN 0018h 1DNQ MN 001 a0h t010 QM N 001 ash t0"    4
0 l01D ID b10 of of v11nNNv110 of 1nQ Q Q a Q Q Q Q M MMMMMM Ml'f MN NN N NNNN NN SC4,

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N v1 N N 4.000 . 11- , 1- 010 , 000000000000000000000

2 0 0 0 O 0     - N 0 0 N N N 0 A N tO N • D N M c) M ,- 1- r 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I p

m

b b b b b m N
rpm N Y1 N

a
N N N N V

poopp
N b Y1 d M N - O P 8 , N N N N N N 01 N N N N N N N N N 4 a a

Q

Co

334



x x x
a a a

am a CO
M a O

I,

0,1ro Cco
x

cb

x

d o

0 0 0

J
n

Nn
C N

aC d       ° 5
N O O 0

0 u)  O m
C.)   CIA

W U N0)
a) r

Z o

2
c a

U)    <      t d d
O

a)   
o

coa
NANar

co o o_    a
m a)       cUi u u
m 0=    U r N

oU o
cim N

NO 0)   E a ai a en 9!     a)   CD 0C
a 3

S r Sv d a v O N if)   if)  apcn      °     3 m
a' o d     + '     O 5 d v r r r

U m 3 0a ter°  wuaio 0 o a'  a 1-  N o
a

p in
a a 011.1• • •

w CO I

OM O p 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NON M p p G O D O O V N N O o 0 0 0 0 p 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C

1J
I-0

2
F

OZ
n°       x

y X X Ng
3

X x

xx x

X xx X

1 Xxx Xxx

i X X xXXXXxxxxl X

N I xx xx x x x x x x x x x' x x x x

UN
d

N

v
I I

0 1

0a
m I X
W

X

x x

x xxx x

x x xxxxxx xx

x xxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx X

N OMN
O

OMIO N W WO MN
W

OCOMI,  

1OO MN O OOlcaf. IDNO MN f O Ms I, W W O MN N OM MI, WWiOOOO0VNNflNNqNflOOOOOOOOOMMMMMMMMMNNNNNNNNNI
W

O
iI

3 OOOOOOCOONCN •- o d m n to N 0 d . 0 N •- N ., v- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o Q

mw. 0 0 0 0 0 O0 Cl,       0 0 d n N d   , 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 O 0 M N M N M N M N O 0 0 0 o 0 0 0

1NN
e e e Ii, e 4 N oooof od a d d d d d M

m M M M M a,   N N N N N N N N 4'     44u

335



X x x
0.  0.  0.

C.)  r
M l7 R

N..

Ca 6 tNQ

2 2 d G

d d V ' 0 CO
203 N

o092o coco
co

E
x Uco N.  

ooLL
cii a

m
C N

a)
M j N 0 O   ( O

cv
R  =  

d

V N
a

m m Urri
cc co

c
t-

0E
d

Q J
13d 0 CDC)c U co a a a

N    . c to OV
VCO N

fif O

Or.
cnO ToV

m cn U r

0 0 0

ym m w

L 0.     N d  ' 0O O1  ( A d d d
cn      ' m 3 m ai d E d c A d

0 -13 w E o E 1 ',     O 5 m d u    .
c  . c  . c

U m 3 0 PLL  °-  wm o 0 o a s     -  .  co

p °       aac w «

A
1,

O N( 7 O OU
W

O 00 0 000 O' O 0000000,- O N O O—‘ 1- c,,,, 1 co 1 7000 N 000000000000008

NJaH0
9 0
C 0

I 5
oX 0
a x x

X X X x x

xxxxxxxx

xlxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxx

N x x x x x x x x x x x X x X

NN171
N

9 I
c

0

r x

r xx
0

xxxx

xxx'x' xx

xxxxxx

xxxxxx

x xxxxxxxxx x

x xxx  ''.xxxxxxxxx X

s N C M N O 2 2 P 2 N C 2 N O 4 4 4 b 4 R M N O 2 ED fV

A of R
R

N O
R A c

tD N R M O O)( O' fD IA
l0 lD t0 t0 t0 t01( f 1A tf> f/ N(/ V/ Y1NN V R V O V R 770?( 7 l7{ 717 M17 Pf C/ ClMNN NNN N N N N

a
J

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 - 0 0 0 N N n O Wn , n r- . e v e - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 0     -       N N coN coN 0 N N CO0 N 0 0 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

t

112282 G2 8 : : 282 8 22222 ; v 89922 ,789828 742 , 822 _ - -

336



I I I
a a a

a r N
M M a

N.JD
m ti COO

o t
a a U ' C CO N

cc
o o a

c E  '-  a s

O N W u M Uj, c 0
U

CO

O
m ti

c N
COOSw 0 o

to

a`)     

y

3
a

00
N

00 v V tn

0 N etT
o V)      F'

ca>       
Q 2

a

to
c v v

o
e.  aao.IIco o.

co

N N Nro 7-7:     f

ca a U    -       al

U U U
i to 2.   m

1 m S.  ti c c C
0 E a

a N   $     `       uR
y.  J CU O. u

C Z W NNG
r S a a

d
t0.  0.  0.

W 0 u E   °'       v r tru

m tomUc Pa Pi-  wm o 0 o aa
a'

0
Q a a 0 w « « «

0o800. 000000000000. 000- 0.- O M ) M D O
M.   

O n N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J
QI-

I 0I-

1 1
X X 1

t
i

Xcc
xx a

Cl)   x X X

X IX XXX

x i1XXXXX
xX xxxxx

i XXX X X x X X X x

N x x x XX X X X X X X X X

4

m

O

a X0

a X

I
X X

2 X X

x xx

xxxxxx

x xxxxxx

xx,xxxxxxxx x a
x x x x XIX x x x x x x x x x x x

x MN omrortot

322
omwrto'4444 t3AVA AARg  , 9MA RAAR

oaia "°

to tOtDtCotOtAtff N N tAt0t0t to V O V V C R? 70! MMMMMMMMt'1MN N N NN NNN N N

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N N N •- b R Oi lT N N N 0 0 0 00 0 o a a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a a a

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 0 «- ,- O < n N N N O < 0 N ' d N I- I- N 0 •- 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0I

1N 3 b b b O Nr.; NNNNNN288 ' " '   " - " 8  8, m3N ' t•  NNNNNNbN 3888 ::: 88
a

337



X I I
a a 0

l•)  b CO
C)  l•)  d'

N.

T D

m aa)

co
I x N W b
d a,   u ' O co 2 C

a)     7 y I,-  (. 4

o
r-  O)   

0)

CO o 0 0 ca g
E x 0 U.

co r`  in 0 0o
w j CO CU S

o w D
C e

U u) 7
a U 2

AN

co

a)     O U 0/
cc

c O 2

Q
a

N dN dCD

C N ar,  
Cl)  Cl)  Cl)c    CO in

c N V to to M l6 To m
N ca N 7tu u u

CO V)    U rn ai

U U U

ci y m a1 a

pU R 0

p d d w
co

a)    

al_

E a ui a to   
i

D G     $     d
J

a
co y a a ar v d a   `

O v
3

m     ''     E o E    -  1 O  . E m
a))    r r r

U m 3 a i= u.  I-I-  ww o r o at.     CO
CDa

Op CO
a a 0 w• • •

a
U Is g O 0 000000 00000000 0.- 0 io0O)V M'; O W W(. 0'.° O O N M< NCO(  OOH O O OOO O OOOOOO cOr

oJa
I 0

0
I-

C

0Z
x

0 x o

2 X x

x x

x xx

v x xxxlx xxx xx x

x xxx'x xxxxxx x

to x x x x x xlx x x x X x x x x x x x

0

N

a0 x
t

X X x

x X X

1 X X XXX

X X XXX

X X X X x X X

X X x x x x x x x X 5

X X X x X x X x x X x x x x x X

x 2SSMN 0010) 4 g N MN 001 W n lO4?  MN 001 AppPi. A A74
MN O014 F; a? 3CMN 001 W)' 1010 4

t0 t0 t0 t0 t0 t0 of N N N N 1 i 10 lONY) a a a a   a v a e M MMMMMMMC M NNNN NNN N N N

m
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 n .- 0 CO II CI 0 .- n 0' CO r n m , •• w , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

a

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 o m r o - n o a m r uo n .- cl , ! 0 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
l '

b e em 9 2 o 2 2 2 2 2 4 a aa 31 a e w n r• n m    m m  2 a ana aa w r

338



I I I
a a a

Co CO 01
CO CO eT

n

7.      COeg
m V coo

C ob
2 x W c Nd CL f p co NNd

r 01 N

ID o e o o v U •    X U LL

co

d c
00 t•   coo

U Co

N O o
N

C7

3m E EL
ON 3 V N

z

C     >N
N a

CO

7

N N0 4)
O m N 4)   4)

C0
Co a a a

cn o y N  ( I)->     

a)    
v o U)    a m m m

0 O O7 9 N 00 0

CO 0 U r a)    of

UU U

ai y 4'   m v

c c a v

t 5v m 0.   a m to
IV

n.  a.  a.
UI N 3 Aii

d E 0)     N i O C O O)   V L L L

V J m 0 F IL H F W N o 0 o Q 0.     -  ) c[)  W
w 2

U to O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 1- O N M M N.- N O V V M
CO M N O.- O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

CC 1

N

4I-0
a

I-

X 20
I I x a

X cc0
tR xx

xxxxxx

Xx xxxxxx
D

xx xxxxxx

xx xxxxxx xx

N X X X X X, X X X X X X X X

m 1

uL

D

X

2 X X

r I Ix X X

Z XIX  — XX

xx XXX

xxxxxx

xxxxxx x

X X1lX x x x x x x

X' X x X xlx x x x x x x X

a M a M N 0 0) M r g N O M N 001 4 4 4 M C M N 0 0) 00 P M M R M N 0 0 M WA M Q 0+1 N O Q7 00"'

OZ
tD lO to to i0{ OMM M M MMMM1(1 M R O V O a of. a V C V MM MMMMMMMMN NNNNNN N N N

UZ

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , 0 0 v 0 , N N 0 N of N , N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G
J

S' 0 0 0 00 0 00000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o N .- ,- .- N n a N m N N N o 01- 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 5.
m

INN N N N N N u;31AiN NNe

339



X x x
0.  0.  0.

n N

n

5. N
m

m m dod

d 7 a w N
p

N
1-  O)

N

o 0 o
N

V V -  x U V_

c
p

CO c0 CI
o>     T) j m co caio

N H 0 o co
C m E o.   o
l0 0 N

m p0 c C)   

coul
4)     Ncc

F
C c

a
Q Q d dd
O CO

03 C
CO y N N

a in o c m m AN
CO

N N N i.n G V 2

U m U r c 0)   

0 0 0
m a)   m

ii
ii  - 43
m a v;     

aCi aCi aCi

CO
a)      g a d

a y        
0 0

G           C
J

d
N

O1 y 0.  d dr v d v
m

3 1O     .§     g E d •  . y ii'     O 5 m
0

t t t

U 10
m

m 3 0 PLL PI-  UJU)     o 0 o a'  m 1-  1In

COC
a

00 u) 
aac) w . . .

w CO
U CO O 0 000000 0000000000 O.- MMN 0 m N O n CO V T coh N MN N N 00 X000000000 oO

coJaFO1-
11 OZ
oa

m x 0
3 X X',X

xxx x

xx'x xx

x x x x x x X x

x x X, X x x x x x XXX

N C X X X X XIX x x X X X X X X X X

1

vc

s X

R
X

w x

X

X X XXX

x x x xxxxx

x XX X X X X X X X x X X XX

x X X X X X X X X X X X X X X XX X

i O MN S Vgra Va V gg 24°4410117 MN 0010 AA R MN gngt; A w CMN OOI"   N d
101 t0 t0 D t0 of 1n 1n. n 1e lff 101ff 1fl N a R? a a a a a M[• f c'f[•) c7 MMMMMNN N NNN N N NN

V'd
m 4
3 0, 000000000000000001- ,- o. 1- e r 0 0 e Ln N N , N n N 0 0 •- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

m
210 0 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 •- 0 0 Cl)   .. 0 0 M N e N e N 0 0 0 d. M N 0 N N 0 0 — 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ld

16' n
o m u m m8 8 n

vi ' 
oof 2 of o < 4 " e 0 N N e A ; M w n n n .' m 2 2 N N N N N NCoN

Co

340



x x x
a a o.

N CO CO
CO CO R

r.

5.      to

M V CO

C
2

0

y co
CtS

N
a 9 m  .-  a   _

a)       0 0 o m 4 v E x v
d

CO  ^  N CO
cc 0

A co2

N M Ca CI

N N O o
U1 .,  d 2E o

O W7 0Na)
3 V

OLU
N

a)N
C 7 2

C
a

N N N
a     > co G a a
N3 in N N N
C

O N    --      to O co N m m
N N O N V V  .!•,

41
UU U

0 d d d m

v m   °  p
CO

per,   
o

a N
so

P.   u u
rnZ d a

5 d 0.  v m u)    a 0.  a
In

v G'   3
O) E m y O 5 M to   ( 43 s t t

U m 3 c F-a I-1-  •wN o 0 o   >  0.    -  LU co

C a aa0w•

U c0 O g... O O O O'';O O 000000 O.- O N MN CO V N OO,
O O

CO CO tO,- CDa CO CO 1- 1- 0 1- OOOOOOOOOOO O
cc    ' 1

J
I-
0
Z

a°     
a

I
X x x

X X' X X X X

1 X XXXXXX XX

XXXXXXXXX XX XX

N 1 X XXXXXXXXXXXX X X X

uULN

a

00
Ax
w

x

xxx x

xxxxx x x

xxxxx x x x

x xxxxx x xxxx

xxx'xxxxxxxxxxxxxx x

t OR MN OtTOnlDNO MN O W OntDN MN OtTOn tONa MN OtAOA b N C MN OOIOn t0 t0

i tO32tOGS N NHONNNNNN V R a R O4C a 7 of MMMMMt+)MMtO MN NN NNN NNN N

am

3 4 0 0 000000000000 , 0N m N e m e e N m N , N m O N N .- O O O O O O P O P o P 0 0 0 0 0

m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 P 0 0 O O O O N . r a I, IN N . 1 r e N N m ! ! 0 ? 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I g I
p y

ep
y

fit 0 NRNvf NNVIuf ' e < e4Seee   !' lml" 2Mmm2NNNNNN2 V & N °- V  Y2     e

341



X x x
0.  0.  a

PLC)
N M M

n

T
10

m C1 No
15 C

2 S m CO N
a)    

CI:  a 0 • CaD CO

C
v

N
r rn Le,

a)       
o 0 o N m V X V a

Q W M
T C C CD

COC
03N j N 0 o upco C a'   O Ft

o
of  =      

c.))   N

Cm0
a)     

crU a)
a)     r

c
r     >

13:

a)    Q
C

47 0i ami
ca a a a

o o v1 N N
N M to V

O a)     O o V U V
U U

r.

U UU

6 dm m m

o co a  - o c c c

t0 E co m a to S     . m.

C c y J m d a
m m m

r     ••  cv d a o A
w a a a

n      . 1 m m E m    . y S 5 7 m u t s t
Q U p m at 10 E O E a x a

o 0 0
R      o an

U CO 3 o I- U.  PI—  wm o 0 o a 0. Lee m

0  )   a a o w   . .

CO
U (0 O 0 o o o o o o oIo o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o No.- N N"       N" W Nro.-   O 0 0 0 0 0 0 o O

CC

a)

QF-Q
C

O z

Qa x

x x

1 I xxx xxx

xxx xxxx

xxxxx xxxxx

xxxxx xxxxx

N xxxxxxx xxxxxx x

III
U

0

o 1
0Oa
r 1 x

Zi X X

I X X XXX X

xxxxxxx

xxxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxxxx x

X''.,  x xxxxxxxxxx x x

Z

D
CMN

0S
VAI7i00 3MN

1fOOMnV0
Q

7N
a4MVAMMMMMtONNNH

NMN
NO0 " w°

a

m g
3 o a a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , , n n . m " 0 3 u u+ e 5 0 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3
m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 r 0 o " Lel a . n . n . o Ln n M a o w 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i7'a

Ia,.'" oI ee44  Is4a  fAG4444 4444 ; 433 M 3f44g 84n 44 & a m " • oa u
I

342



X x I
a a 0.

Com)  
M C)
a gi

nco

cgc
S 2 y W Na a u a ao co

v •-•  r obi LLei
o E  '-  a u_

N N co Cr)  M V

T C
V

03
m

CN

a) c•-)   N 0 O 4?

Na

V c
a m U rn
m I-

C)     

ca) ac

Q d d m
C CO c canC.

O re
O O O Cl)  0)  0

3 a 41 7.    a o w m

U orr U r
v v v

0 000

6 d m d m

v m a
ami ami a=iE co

a
N

O.  co

G     $    t ca d a 2 m v)    a a a
O 0

v 4 d     : 3 0 o E       $$     O 5  =   d V t t t

U 1 m 3 c i= LI:  I-  wrn o 0 o 4 a    -       co

O (/)     a¢ c) w « . «

W
U as O O 00000c 000000000 c 000.-.- N.- mC N lA

O'   
cO'

M.•" r Lo tO-- a N 00000000000 G
c

NJ4
O

a
I-

g0

x 2
5 x x 0

g xx

x xx

o
xx xxx

xx xxxxx x

x xxxxxxxx x

N X X X xX X  *  X

U

7

9

Oa X

rt x

0z xx x

xxx x

xxxxxx

ix xxxxxxx x

1x xxxxxxxxx

x x x!xxxxxxxxxxx xx

I N ONN
CO ON 2 COrID2

QNN
N OV W 4 4 4 3 R

N
V 4 A A C` AA3MN MONl W

Nn`
A' A V A N Cl"     '

m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 r N '• .- 0 V 0 0 !, CO C N CO N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . O . O ,_ N tel to CO V CD V N N CI 0 0 . . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

24
I 3 3 e 2 N 4 N LI , T, 3 ,2 N N 4 4 ^< 4 O 3 4 4 ; 4 ?•,' A ,':,, gi :.; 74 th t„ Cf CI N 24 N N 4 N N N N N ? 4  4 : 2 t

343



x x
a a a.

Is.  O CO
N CO CO

iD

CO V
N

C O   %

I2
2 CO

d r csi

1f)O)
0 0 0 ani

O E Q LL

00       .—  M
U •—  C U

N O
m

C N
N

O CO

co

0 O to

Co y a0 TS

o m7 a N

N C V O)

m F

v

m a
Q2

d it d
co

N
CD o v)    N N N

i a N V M M R R  < 0

U a U r r r

a a a

U 0 0

cit. 
d d d

N E as ci a Nu0uR
jO 0 CJC

r d   . a  ' o   ,
o

N N

a.  a.  0.

el3 vO6)     15
ii o o

EH
y 5 ar r t

c,  CO

d Pit   -    Wfn o0o  .  a    ._  in

0  ) a Q U W

4, CO

U CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N O— N C) V m m`--
0( V t 0< 0. 1 0 0 0— 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

CC
T

Cl,

I 0
X z
X

xxxxX

XXXXXXX

E XXXXXXXX

d XXXXXXXXXXX

N I X XXXXXXXXXXX X

itU
d

CC0O
0

I X X

X X X X XX

xxxx xx

XXXXXXX

I XXXXXXX

I x xxxxxxxx

X XxXxxxxxxxxx

d 23MN Oma01 N MN 5344 444Q MN Om00Ii D APA g VAPi44 R P) N OCn00) t0 N

Oi Oi lD t0 t0 t0 in Nin n n i in in i[) in as a a OO Q< t RMt') MMP9MMMMMN NNNNNN N N N

A

i0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .- o 0 o N N N N an t0 , 0 01100. 000 4- o a 00 0 00

dy
6

1' 0 0 0 00 000 00 0 0 0000000 0 00000 4- o 1- N .- N m u 0- 10 e to , 4- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I n O1 °    0  nre
e n w r

Nu m o m o u uLer n eea a e e a a in 01 nn en N w N r N N N N N N N N , , , , ,
V

344



I I I
0.  a a

o M P
N N N

P••0CSI
co 6 VD

O t
N

o
d d

co
j y co

o0 cr'

N U£ x U LL

p Lo N co N T c0
C N D m W t0co

N j 0 0 O ro

c ui E n-   o e
0)     N 7 V CV

m O o
c 2 U OfN
V)     

N

0a
c G)

j
a)     N

o

0D   )   
00

I)      d N 01

0
oCO fA N N

7    _     ' al-     
o C

N
o M LP N R i0 o

U cum U r r r

U U V

U C.)  U

ay

ao.      9

d d d

cc c
N E ui m uulC

C Ja y C_      N o
N 0 0j m 0.  v N 0.  O.  0.

Ld Au t t

toaO o   >>o
S  no

roy

U J m D Ca HH 01 co 0 0 o Q o..     
coCD

4-• a

17
U ( C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 NLL1 tD O, co N N N r r O.- O

N

QI-0
C

x Oz
t1

x xx Qce
x xx

g h X XXX

X XXX

x xxx

X xxxxxxx

X x x x x x x x x x x

9
w

x xxxxxxxxxx x

0NU
0d

oC

a°   x x

r 1 xx x

2x x
I

x xxxxx

I xxxxxxx

x xxxxxxx

I xx xxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxx x x

fl CMN OAA Cr, A 53 7; MN 51400 I- 4 N4MN Oo) 00 fi 10 N RAN O W 4 f,1 4 of CMN 5101 c° h t0N 4
101010 f010101fl U1  N 1n f1N77O V V O7 a 7 M M MM M M MMCIMNN NNNN N NNN d'

m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o m o n m m o m CO m 0 n a 0 ,- 0 0 00o

G

2o 0 o a o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 0 o a 0 0 0 o o 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 a m .- . . a 0 co oCn n o . o .- o a

lig uu 2m 85" 2nv
23um

n7nme3ve4' 4ae 'eeA A 2 A A Anmmmaaawawn2nw44 A

345



x x x
a a a

co fs I-

CI M C

F-

CO5.
CO d 1N0

6
N

I I N CO

CI:       
CO

5 a
O)      

Of 0)
m eo o co v U E

x V LL

m o N
o c.,   7 N 0 o ro

U m e n.   o 2
a a 7 C.)   N

m a O

c U 0)
I--

N cC
C O

a

N N G       ' 0

Q E m 4 Si
a)   co a a

i03 In o 0 N N 0

C V In N M i0 R N
V U U

0 cn U r cT
C.)  U 0

6 d d d 51
o

Imo°   
a s d d CD

to °      E a N a 0 si 0
V ry C1 J IVO N a

N It 0
Z t C. 0 d a  - 8

c   .    
a a a

O
m

d     =     E o E    - ii Q.     
O 5 d v r t L

o      $     m m o x a o L
U CO 3 0 i= ce i= 1-  wrn o 0 o a s 1"  co

o aac>w •

c0

U CO o : o o 0 o o 0 0 o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0,- 0 0.-.- R) h 0)     0 0 41 co a o o o o 0 0 o o o o 0 0 0 0 O

coJ
1-
Or

c

0z4
t x
5x x x 0

2x x x

x xxx

x xxxxx

g i xx xxxxxxx

x xx xxxxxxxx

N x> xxxxxxxxxxxx

3,

ac

oa II
0 I

o 1

z xx x

I
xxxxx x

xxxxxxx

I
xx xxxxxx

xxIxxxxxx x

x xxxxIxxxxxxxxxxx x

LI,
I

N 4 c) N 0 0) aO I 2 2 3p 2 N 2 4 4 4 10 1" 4 CS N o W VA 10 1" 4 M N o R cO fVA n A 1') N 8"' N 1"    

1D 1D tp 10 D{ 01" NY) 1" 1" 1" 1" 1" N N 44444444 a 4 P'f Mcl l') f') c') MMMMN N NN N NNNNN

4

1.10 0 n n t1n o n 0 a n N r• 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m
3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a o o c1 5

m
ro 0 m . u m e . n r 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f"

0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 o a o 0 0 o a o  0 0    

aC:

ne $ mm nmu°) 4  ., eg1tn' 4 G 2 < $ e v a 3 N 4 ' 4 442 ,
r; 

2 r, 3 4 4 , 7 , 9, 44 <^,, 4 4 31^. 81 & r 4V::
0

346



X I s
a a a

tow
4 C C

n

5.      to

m V b
C ch

2 2 y o Nd o ' O co co
a •-  r 01   ! OT
O E  .-  Q LL

C M v ro v
CO

V - x

Vma'   CO d A 00

i to O o 0

o o) 6 Cl-
N

Q
O Uco

O1
O

F

d ct

c
3

a

o 4)   4)   ami

Q CO 0 G)   GI

O co
co a a a

C 0 0 0 co N U)

j cisV Nin V To i0 o
O

N N N 0 0 0

U U 0
6.)  U C)

ui dm u v

O a>      E go y a N sa

O y W J Oa N a
N N N

5. O a5̀ O.  - o
7p

cn a a a

O u 3 Iii
4)i     "     £ o E y

0
O 5 7 w g s r r

o d o o x a to o N
U 1 m o Pw HF wm o 0 o Q a O ao

C j
aac w

cs
U fO O g 0 0 0 0 0 0 010 O O O O O O O O N N O n V 0D.-" O n Inn M a 0 0 0 0 O O O O 0 0 0 O O O O O O 0 O O

yJ
I-

I 0

c 0

0
z

L x x
S

o xx 0

O 1 xx x

x xxx x

xx xxx x

xx xx xl x

xxxxxxxxxxxx

N xx x x x x x x,x x x x x x

m

I1

OCJOa
e x

z x x xx

x xxxx

x xxxx x

xxxxxxxx x

x x x x x11x x x x x x x

j xxxxx'xxxxxxxx

x M OMN OMM nOOOMN f0000 BON v MN
a

OOIGD 1, WW V MN
M

OMMI,  W 7 MN N OMMI, ONfO00WWMOOONNNON? aaaaaaaaMMMMMMMMMNNNNNNNNN 3

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N N v N N of C00. 61 , 00104 ••• .- 000000000000000000000 5

G
m O O O O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O N N n N 0M W M , 0 N v a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

l
t0 vO t0 b $   N N N Vn n nN 3 d 4 3 v v v a v v v m  v3 N 3 3 3 Cl N N 3 N N N 3 3 3 N 3

ct
t" 10 N

347



x x x
a a a

Tr r
co co Q

F-

CD
C OS

o o

N N
7 y I.-  N nz
V     —.—  

Q LL
a0 v U =  C V0 Mco c

C m C co

2 15 o
CJ V rn

c 1-

v x
v

mC 0.

m ddd>
Q

O
Cl)      Cl)C NO

V 41 O V

O i N NJN U U U
U it U r

p

U U U

ii
0 m c c c c

CO a ci o y
0 CD

v
C j O y N 0)=1

1 0 N N 07 N

C7    .   v d o,   0
A

a o.  o.

m8.     y d E'  m y '     O 5 w v r s r

U• a)      -I m•    3 c C- LL PI-  wo a'  e    •  0 CO
0.

0 (0
a a 0 W • • •

M
O

1
O 0 OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO,_ N OOO N O.-, N. N ON OO, 000OOOOOOOOO O

NJ4
xx p

O
xx

xx z

a I xx Q

3
xx

x xx

xxxx

xxxxx

d xxxxxxx

x xxxxxx x

a x x x X X X X X X X x X X

Nd
V

0

9

g

fn
xx

xx

m XX

XX I XXX
XX' CXXX X

XX',XXXXXXX

1 X XXXXXXXXX

XX X X X X X X X X X X X

N CMN 001W h 10NCMN 001031` WMC MN 00100A fONC MN OMMfstONC M N OMM 1,. 0 N

i   .D. DtOtOtD 10 N N W OOOOOOO C C C C C C C C 7 aMMMMMMMMMMNNNNN N N N N N g
UII

110000000000000000000000i- i-1

3 0 0 0 O 0 O 0 0 O O O O O O 0 0 O 0 0 0 O O i- i-       O tr, ; 7. 0 N 0 0 0   . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

v.
m

O O O 0 O 0 O P 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . N O O N N d In CO 0 C1 4nr O 0O 0 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S

L
Q.

p2 a . O . p G D
RA

2 N 2 N N N o 7, o C 4 C 4 < d d d d d t. f 2 !'. 1 g N m 2 t, 8 N N N N N N N N N N
0

348



I I I
0.  0 0.

co P
M M

N

5.      
to

m U b
2 2 N

C

N
d d j 03 CCS

2
w  ''  O7

O;1

a o o co
v Ux U u-

m
00

M

0 M
0

0 m
C

m N O O c0

n c a o e
a3 V N

C 130W

12 cc
m co V a

ro 0 i-

0
NC O

o C

d d dCO N

c0 a aaV Q
C N 7,   

O N CO CO

2 m v`      in o v m R m
o d)     N V Ca V

U U U r r

aa U

ai
tm d d

U co a a
03

N E a N 0.  c
N N N

p N
to

C J A N Ol y0.   
0

0.L C O)  d 9   {
0 0.

O
D

00
f

3 N 11 E C H N O C j e V L L L

U m 3 o Pit i= ce wv°i o 0 o a>  0.     -  LO CO
CDa

O 0)       
a a LIU) • . .

vo
V 0 o i o 0 0 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o N M M N a Q) O0 01 0' N O N( O a s MOO,- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01-

I _.... __  CO

I-
0H

v
0
Z

CC

V.)     X X 0

IXXX X

X X X X X

X x x X X)[

lxxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxx x

w xxXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

d

UL01

0
c I

Oa
x

w x

I 1x xx

x  ' x x x

xxlxxxx xxxxx

XXX x' X xxxxxxxx x

XXXXIXxxXxxxxxxx x

N OMN 00100 fr 10 Nn MN O01a0 n COM V MN 001001, WLO V MN ON00 f0N ROM01 O0) Mf` bN

fD c o c o N cO c O N N N 10 N N N N fO M a a a a 0 7 V O R d M M M M M M M M P7 M N N N N N N N N N N
V

0000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 04 v r n 0n fn ( n N . n N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N N V a1 o f` N M n M t, f7 .- 0 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S

L

p
V

p3y
Veefp8AAt;,   NYShof7N V 4OV V V YSA Nt, M . nANNNNNNNNNN

N L.

349



X X X
O.  0.  a

a co co
co co a

r

co C)   
N

2 2 d co

a o:   O CD N
N

v r a)   rn
d

a,  v U •-  xU

LL
oO

00
m CO M

o,„ j
0   (  

coAiel 3
CO O 0 eM

3

sto y c a o

m
C

0 N

aiid
r

O V O O M

YR M

U r N

6 t d d 2

cdi m 5 ti d m m
co

O d d P:' 1d0 N d d d

Y7 r v d a       „ a a a
W      . oi I     ;     :!     d E d y i O 5 d v t t t

U N J m 3 O Pa:  PI-  wm o 0 o Q 6.     r-  N CO
O a
p co

a Q 0 w• • •

M
U CO O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.- N N,-   ,- CD CO 0. 1.,  co N" CONN O N   .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

x

coJQ1- Or
I z

2

y X 0

3 X XXX X

X XXX X

t
X I XXX X

XX!  XXX X

X X XIX X X X XXX X

N X X X X XIX X X X X X X X X X X X

D

N
J

C
I

0 1 X

m x X

w
I X X X

XX X X
1

X    , XX X X X

X XX XXX

X X X X' X X XXX X

Ip
X X X X X X X XIX X X X X' X X X X X

tl

i 83 t2O SI; F. 8O N pp
NNb 11f 3 2A'3 N a a e a 4444 a4 of MM M M M 2324 x M N N n N N N N NN N°'  rNa00

2

ae
319000000000000000 ... 0000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 _ o o a rmnrn e e e r N r 000000000000000

U

d
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 r OP NN n n 0 ( 0 ', 0 , 0 , N1-       9

p.   
o n n m u mi ui n n n n ou+ n

en a ' a `   M eMm m n w n n a g N N N N N N N Nt0

350



x  =  x
a.  a a

to o M
M of X

rsco
m (..icvcia

wC

8,
pco

d a.   V • O co co ee
7 P N

Q C a=.      O)   rn
3

41
o v U •-•   X

4
U

LL

0

n
00

v T
C C co

O

0
D m CI

C
CO

C
r)    

a

0 O cv
V)     N ?  a

V m
4)     

R
N

C
N V inco

1 a

N Q
cu a

o
o>  N UI N
U a S.

C N 7 O U)  U)  U)

O c c6    ' a O to V

V V Vo    _
p co O

U m U r N co

U U U
eiu to a)

hi m a  - o•     c c c
CI E_     a y a y 0 d N

C p y of d N d   .
r Ev m a v R

N a Cl.  a

O d     "     E o E w d O 5 m v s t t

U
o co 3 0    - LL F)°-  tou))     b°  o o a'  a r-  U co

0 a as c) w +

rte• 
0 1

U ( I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N N NN N 01 n',
0(

0 to t0 o to N N N O. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

N

t a

o
1-

Oz
a°     X aC
y X C7
3 x x

x XIX x

xx x x x x

I.     xx xxxx x

XXXXXXX XXX X

N X xxx x x x:x x x x x x x X x x x

d

I I

I

V
1 I

C0on
A x

LI X X'IX

X XIX X X X

XxXIX X XX

X X X x X XXX*

xxX xl.x x X X X X 3
X X XXX X: X X X X X X X X i

1
toQ MN 0012 n t0 t0O MN 00101 104 OMN OOIM f 10 NCM N 24gp1 21g t0 to OMN 001001 t0 to

f
t0{ o t0 tD 10 tONN NN tO to tANM N 7 a O7O? O R? MM MMMMMM MMNNN N NNNN N N

U
0 j
3 0 0 0 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .- o o .. .- 4 W N N b N n .- .- N a c4 ,- N o ' 000000000000coo .      

2m
2coro o 0 o o o 0 o o 0 0 o 0 0 ,- o 0 o .- n a r °Do 61 n w 0 N ,- o .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 005

d '
b n n e en  n n n m o ueaaa a a a e

O  mmon n n N N N N N n N N N N C
N

351



x  =  x
0.  a

mu)

N M M

r-.

N
m C

R I  =    d
0

N
X

3In0
y i.--  N

00 0 0       ^    
C •£  —  a LL

j
M ro co

mCscoi

N j N 0 o   °

o y

7
d

VN
c     

O0
ua

O X
V m

o F.

I o a

c E

I

CD

CD Q
N0 0

C V CO U)  U)  U)

To
o

z    _ N    (, 7j O f t'7 V V 2
o 60 8 N N

0 0 0

iii
II, 2 2 2

v ea aacCLI     )   0CI)m

C c y d m y m d d
Si L v N E L

ni a 0.  0.

3 is     :     o   °'     wd o 5 m v c  . c  . c

U I m 3 0 Pa Pi°-  wai o 0 o a a v-       CO
o-   a ¢ U w .

a

U ( O O LI; 000000000000000000000000I
Q 0)! N to O'' NNN J.- 0. 0. 00000 8

C

J
I

00I-
21O 1

a°   X
R

y x X 0

3X X X

X X X

X X IXX XX

d I X X X. XX X X X X
T   _ - __   ____ 

xxxxxxxxxxx

CO
X X X x x X X X X X X X X X

NC,V
7

yCJ
N

w 1 X

X X! X I X
XX:  X XX X X

X XXXX XXXX X

XXXXXXXXXXX x

X X XX X XIX X X X X X X X X X

1
N? MN

O 00N N
h

NON
Q M N V0Q 44444 MN a FAAM2 N2

MN
M00N NPN N N NN N N00W  "

m

3 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 a a a .. o 0 0 0 a a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - _ v ci n ro v m n . m y n ,• 0 *- o .- .. 0 aaa0 0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 9 01 N U) . 0 0 0 01 v 0 m K   , n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ie3ee .oeN2v"iN n2 ,, u) 2 < 4 ^< evSeesS22 M ., e a . 7M2ararNaaN «   
mr0 ,n

o

352



x x s
a 0.  0.

M mM 3

N•

5.      t0

m U co
C

S 2 Nto

d d V C'
0 03 CO

C:

y h N

r
O • E x Q LLD o 0 o v U 0

to M 0 co

Q

n  •_       

N
m

C N

0
7

fn
id ?

co a VN N

c

9Vco in

O r

as

N
I

N y a

C NN
a N of

N     >   co a a a

N 4
p to O fn CO co

p,   N    —      N M V is N N

U    -. 1 U
N           CV f)   0 U

F3 F3 ae
U U U

ym N

w u m a v c c c
a)      E aui a co   $     0ua
7p JAdCN C a

d d
c e a.  v

m a a 0.
0

EE     _O ca)     o
wn

n m g
t  .c  . c

a.     ,-  oUm 0    LL L o a o 4 to co
4- a
Ow

a a u W • • •

U CO O 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N M N M

100
co Dn IDN V O N N

0
Lo cO     .-  000000000000 O

co

0
F

D c
x z

x a
a

d xx 0

3
Ix x xx

I ix xxxx

x'Ix xxxx

X. X X X x x X X
xxxxxxxx

y XX x xIX x x x x x x x x x x

a Iy

U

1

a
I

oaNN
W1 I X

x x

x xxx xx

xxx

Ix xxxx xxx

xxxxxxxx xxx x x

xxxx xxxxxxxxxxx x x
71

x 1n RMN 001 a0 n2NO MN 001 COP ION e{ MN OOINI t0 MN 003( 0212010 RMN 00! W n" N

F t01D 20 tOb20 N N IONN1010101A IOQ lT 7O
O

Q O V/+1MMM MMMMOf MNN NN NNNNNN

m
0 0 0

i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a e M m w n w o   - - a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ° o 0

m
N to a M oo 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o e o 0 0 0 0  N w w o a a Iv v w a m a o w00 00 0 00 o 0 00 0

r+

g
23333e22  aag3aa44444344 ; 42  , P    Ps Psrsmrrrr43aa &. a   . —

N

353



X x x
a 0.  0.

M P 0
C7 C)  Q

N.

CO d N

2 2 N 0Naa
jN

a)     v r  .-  o)   2

0 0 0 00
N O E K Q u.

0
D O CO

7

N O=  m 0

i C w D o e

0 a =  
a

0 N

C cr
V m

C I-

N     > x

65
Q a

c-oco a))  a)   ami
CO    .•     

0 CO C.  G.  d
N c

o T
o V)  co N

6 o V
Q O N N N N V V V

2 U r r

0 U 0

c 0-Vaat6   .   )  
V N d d

C
L.: a 0

O SIJ R d
Q. O.

a.
L

G. 0 al d  • C al
y n.  a a

O
3 d     °'     E o E     -" '     O 5 m v L L L

U 0      -i m 3 0 PLL i= i-  
mma.     

o 0 o 4 a 1-      m

O a aac w

COv O
U CO O OOOOOOOOOOOOOO•- O N OOOO N.- VIIO       .' mOO M M N OQ 0.- 000000000000 O

0)JQ
I I-0OF

C c
3 I z
aX Qcc
v xx
3 xx x

x x X x

xxxxx x

xxxxxxxx

XIX x x x x x x x x x

N X X XIX X X X X X X X X X X X

Id
U

N
1

D

CJ

DO
I

I X
w x x x

xxxX

x xxxxx

xxxXXxx

xIXxxxxxxx x x

x x xxx'xxxxxxxxxxX x X

t N Q
W

N OOlas f 10 N QC) N OOlas f 10NQ ClN O W as f` AN f7N OOlasfV t0 N QC! N O DOah b N
tylO 1010b{ ONNNNNNNNNNQQQQQQQQQQMMMMC) c'f Cl io ClN NNNNNNNhN

y1
3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .- O N N b h v b nI N C N   .• O N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

13 . 
0 . 0 . . . . . . . . . 0 ,- -- -- -- - N b O b N .- N .- O N O .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

pNb 2 3 b
G

5,' 
b N 3 3 3 2 3 vn e 4

e• 1 N — O aMN N N N M M N N N N NN N  NN A A 3
N

354



X x x
a a a

co P N
M M

IsCO
co V b

C
2

o

N Na a 0 a
ty r cOOo

a)       
o a o

o f.—  '-
x

a a

al
N.

1-
m

C N
co j N O 0 t0

a 0)     d 0
as

0 C t0

N O V N

S
N14 U rn
m

C
r

a)       
2     . a

ca dd d
Cn(
C Q co a a a
a)     CO o O t to N co

3 cif 7 O co

Q    .-•     N N
V V V U

U CJ U

U U U

V       / 0 a V d d da)       iCtS
I

a   °'  a N

C j p N C J d 01 d d

r v i a c m a a a

o y     ::     E a E       §     0 5 X w ccii t t r

U a)    m 3 o F-ii i= 1-  wuai a o a 4 a     ,-  C too

oco a a V w• • .

ao
V o o00000000000000 N N. nc' a2voao< ommco co 0000000000000 0

co

a

0
r

0

a Qy
x C7cc
x

X

x x x x x

XII XXX XXX X

Z X X X X X X XX X X X X X

N X X X X X X X X XX X X X X X X X X X

N

LW

a

0Oa
X

m XXX

X X X X

X,    XXXXX X

X X,,    XXXXX X

X XIX X X X X X X X X

X X XX X X X X X X X X X X X X

I
N a

0ND 023 001 20 fN tO NO IO

IM
N) f10 22 V V

O23
lO O

a
N

O0
M2g 2.44 24

CNCV
Cf N 240 23N1 22 nN b

Ne
N

N
N

0 0is 0 N C

coco

Ci. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .- N .• n 1- I.- n N e N e e r o n e e N CO .- o a o 0 0 0 a

I

2 0 0 0 O O o O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 O 0 0 0 0 O O CO r• e N N e r (0 0 Ln N , e 0 , , .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11

N t 1N
O

N N N

Li'.

1 e e e 2 e N 2 N u u u Ln N of u d
00
e O e e e e e e e A A m ' R "; t. 1 t,   .' f '' l N N N N N

a aD r b N r
CO

355



x I x
a a a

0 0 0
M V R

I...•CO
CO C.; CO

x 2 FL; N
a a V ' p co c°

CO P.  
Oaf N

Ol
a)     

O E
r  <   

ao 0 0 v U  —   X U
m  ( n m  • v p co

Q O
m

C N
z3

M
O N O O 0

co  =  a

0 N

W O
m

U 0

N c

o w a:

Cn d o d
COl•     
a

alCO

COcO a a a

N O    ( C)    O A fn N

Q c6    `       N C".     . a W is o

U c U
N

r r

g O u

U U U

ai dm d d

v m a d d CO
c0

w E a N
iE c a v

ci)      11     $    
r 5.vy a r̀ a v m in a a 0.

0 .0 O
3

0 E O E H al O C 7 a)   U L L L

U W J CO 3 0 Pit F

FO-  
w m o 0 o Q a 1-  N w

w a
0 0. 4 O w   • •

W
OM O 000000000 OOO,- OON N NN f O O n N ONS MM O O 00000000000000 o0

CO

Q

0

CO

o 2

s° xj 2
y XI

a
3 X xi

X x XIX x

xxxxx xx

xxxxx xx

x x xxxxxxxxx

co
xxxxxxxxx,xxxxxxx

id

Ld

C

2 I

WI
w

x

x x

I x x x:  x x

x x xxxxxx x

X XXXXIXXXXXXXX

jx x x x XXXXXXXXXXX XX x

a N RMN OO1pp.( O U OMN O W Ca f. ONQ N O0) aaf.( 0) RMN O W Oaf. 0 N C M N O 0ON( O N i
t0 10 0 a)(o 10 N N N N N( 0( fl U1( f/(a V R a? C R a O O M M M M M M M M!'/ M N N N N N N N N N N O

m d
3000000000000090Ca ... •- w .- .     02v0ea . 047• N1- 00000000000000000000

m

1' 000000000000 .- 0 0 0 — — a 0 a w w a m of m a r     .— v- 0 , 00000000000000

1: 8328G8 °i8Ci1n , n ., 888na : avaaa na88 ,^   m8 m888 `;4a aaa88 4 V
a

356



I I I
a a a

7 CO N
CO CO 7

Nco
m ci CD
COS

2 2 W Na a v p co ca
d r. rn rn

c a  • o o E x 0 LL

0
CD cn co co

T C

gmmg
C j H o O   ,.

CD c a   ò 6
oO m7 U N

cN CS U
CD cc 0L1

F
Q)       

a

d d d
u)     >       C1 d 1u
CO    <   CD a a a

fl.    '
o

N V
U)    

o7.   
CO N CO

CN C)    N o U V V
U C7 U r

V U V

1)  7,- d d d

v R a  ' o
es E a ui a N 1 0 a)   u
C p S d C J A d C)   d

O.r a m a o a a a

O o m     °=     E o E    . a 0 O 5 3 m i s r t

U 0      -1 m 3 c i= u:  1= 1-  wm o 0 o a'  a 1-  s CO'O

O CO
a a 0 w

cic CD

U CO 0 5000 0000000000 00001—0.— 710
O

01j to 0" cx1010 N t0 N.- MOOOOOOO O O O O O OO O

CC

U)

4

O
X

1 X 2
21 X X Q

m 0x x x 0

3 x xx

x xx

x x x x x

xxx  'xxxxx

xxxx'xXXxx x

N X     > 4>4>4>4>4>4>4>4>4>4>4>4 X

d

YLd

7

I
a I

x.

CI
X X

X X X

X XXX x

X X1      > 4>4) 4>4 X X

XXX*   XXXXX XXX X

Xxx* XXXXXXXX XXXXX

s 107 CSN 001COP 10107 MN 0 01 00 4 10 10 7 MN 001 CDP 10107C1N 00/ COP 10. 07MN R'" 1010 ItD 01010 10{ 01010 N10101010101l1107lb777777771'1MMMMMCIMMC/ NNN NN NNNN N

U I
3
l0

M N. N M d , " Q .- o1 .- 0 ,- 0000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 P 0 0 0 O O O O O P 0 0 0 0 0

0 0M17
l

m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

w

0 0 0 0   . 000000 . 0 0 0 0   - N M 1 N .- N N " d M ON of N >- M 0 0 0

1 2 ; 3 3 G 2 ° 2 2 ':;; 2 23 3 3 u11n 4 4 ^ " "' ''' " '' " 4 <", 4, 4 7, 4 4, ;3 4, 4 4 '; 44. 47, 74g1 N N I . .

357



0.  0.  0.

a in r
co co a

CO C.;
N

C

C r  •..  

Ors
NE

UU)
N o 0 o rn v U x U LL

coU
CO co  -  M

d j m to

0 M U)  O

tO

o w
E

o W 3
a

C))   NC

m
co V

N
cc 01

r
c

N N a

n 4 v v
u)     ro a

i.12    - N U)  U)  U)
N4 O uo R R AN co U U U

U C7 U ie6

0 0 0

6  ,- d d d

a U co c  -0
d d d

a
tO

N
0.  Cl)   

G

c'    . c c     ea'  v m y 0.  0.  0.
Ou     ;     d i E o E w d O 5 m   : 35>   

FF.)    
s t t

v
U I m 3 c I-a i= I-  WN o o 4 0.    ..-  in w

p o aac) w

0
U

c
O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 M V 0 Q D O

N N
D a N N O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

cnJQ
Or

c oZ
i x

Q

d X X CD

3I xx

X X

x!x x x x

xx'x xXxxXX

xxxllxxxxxxxX x

y I xxx xx x x x xx x x x x x x X

NNOSN
9

1 x

2 x

n X X
w

xxx

xxxx

xxxxx

x  ; xxxxxxx

i xxx  'x x x X x x x

p

x x X x X X XJX X X x x X X x x u

i 2320 1203 2N E22 b N 3 ca 23 2 a a a a a a a a a 42 M M M M A M MCI MNN N N NN N N NN
a'" tON 1

mi

30000000000000000000 0 N m e e N m m r m e m N a o a a o a a a 000000 c
U

2 0 0 0 O O a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . O .- - N N m , e N a O u, m m . 0 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d
Ii2 $ e frl a e 33 3 3 3 3 m 3 7, A e 1 S 4 a S e e e e A M m m mm m m m N N r A « N A . 0 & N e, CI I- e a
N

358



X x x
0.  0.  0.

2 2 2

N 03 N
CO 0 R

F.

m C)   
N

z7 2•  2 N 2 p

a a d V 17 co pip
N

Q O r  .-ONE Lst
o 0 o m 4 U •,.   X V LL

a

o^  
N jm R co

7 CO M O O
Cl)     0 C d O io

N V O 0 N

7RV
N I-

T.)N Q 2
Q7

a) a

0 dd d
co

m
U d m m

CO co a a a
N cp CO N Cl)

a c
ro    .      o o    .ow m m

y Od b7 U U 0

0 m U r ri co

U U00

d y 2 d d

o c c c

CO °)      Ea d  °'  N

C O y N C J COUN y N N d

O

0.  0.  0.

CD     "     E o E y '     O c j m t t t

U I m 3 a I= 0.  I= I-  wv0 a o o 4
CO     ,-  

to co
O.

O      a 4 0 w • • .

w CO
U

C
O 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 M M 01 LO CD O n N 0 O O a r f N Cr" Cr N X 0 o0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

CO

4

0F
Z

a a2
wX C7

3 X

X x

X x x

XX X X! XXX X X

j
I

x X X X X X, X X X   > 4>4>4>4*     X

X X X X X XX X X X x X X X X x X X X

CON

2V
I

vC

a
A X

w X,      X

x x x x

xx,X xx x

XXX XX x XXX

X X XI,X X X X X X X XXX t
X XXXIXXXXXXXXXXX 0

t N MN OO13pp n N R MN 001 pppp4 c010R MN 001 FR Pi 10108 MN OO1 COPi 1010 RMP O W 0) n 10 N I

IO t01D b101010 N10. 0 N101n 1n 108 R R R R RR R O 3? Fl NN NNN N NN

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O M N O N n N t3 N of 0 1- , N N V N .- ,- N O O O O O 7. O O O O o O O 0 0

ml

wO O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

g 0.  0.

N r N N to _ + 1 011 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 y

0 N 14 N NN

0

N N u1 u. d
y1of N U U R 0 N '- O m pp1

N
N O m ( A 0

1' 1 N
0

N N N N N N N cry N N
m 0 ' b 0

Q

6 b o o o O N
A

359



x x x
a a a

M h O
co co R

N.

T CO

CO ci Co

o t
N

7N r N
6     '-  O)   ofLn

0715co
0 0 co o x U LL

m

co

Z =  m to up

ei5I.0CO

y
CO a o

to.

o W7 0 N

a

W j c
V Obi

cc 1-

cCN
Q 2 a

C 0 d 0
0 m CO c c,  a

u)    CO U)  Cl)

am o o To To ToC.   
o

co

C.)   v

7a U    —     r
U U U

ci oi m d m

V G d d d
0 m a N a N S 0

Z O d d
0-0

L.

0,  a
N N

O.G7 5 v d a o y 0.  0.  a

O u     ;     d     ''     £ o E i /     0 5 n m 0
t t t

U 0      _1 m 3
co

Hli Pi-  wu)     o 0 o a a    ._  CO Co"o
wa
O (     aac) w. . .

4. t6
U o'    O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O M V V N 1n 7"   Q 1D M O M N O O,- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

C

CO

Q

0

C

F

C

Qz
L x a

x 0

a 1 xxxx

x xxxxx

x xxxxx

T Ix xxxxx x
01 X X X X X X X X X X

N
X X xx X X X X X x x XXX X

N

0

a I
Ix

Ix

x

Ix
z x XXX

X XXX

X x XXX X

XX XXXXX X

XXX iXXXXXX XX

X X- X X, X X X X X X X XX

1 10c MN 2Mpp 1` 1010Q MN 0444 f010CMN   . 7AMD P10Y1AM•1N
c9M4

410108 MN ODIMDP 10 N
tp 1010 t0 t0 t0 Vf 1flNMMNMNNNa R V a 000 V V a MMMMM Ml9MNN NN N N N NNN

C

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a 1- 1- o .- . N N 0 o N m N o 1- n N o o .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

m
0 0 00 0 0 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o N n 0

f2
N o io o N o N a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i

V

12322 3 231217,-   :P.. NfMNNNe & e 4aa ae ,e, A ,. lmmvn2N 7, RrYSrNN7cNNNN44 44'    

360



x x x
a a a

M R

N

N
CO C

I I a)  0 CD
C°

0 7 ' p a)  co
N

o mr  °Di v U  £   x U
LL

N

O

D ca Cr 4
C,   co)  0 0 to

m N C G.   O 4N
V N

a.    v O
a)    0 V rn
c F
c

N

Q
N a

as w 0 ami

U))  N N

0p)       O O coM W  .  o
N N V U U U

C7 U r

0 U U

ai d d      

T U N a  ' O N d d
co

w E a m a vJ s'     0 0
C e          4)

cJ m d U)    a'.   m m
L 9 d a 2 N d a

O
3 d     °     E o E H d O 5 m v    . 0  . 0  . 0

U 0      -J m 3 c iii I- I--  w u))     o 0 o  .   a     -      03

O o-    aac) w•

F• CO
U CO O ii 0000000!00000000000OO—MMQ1 tD

00c0'..°N. MO— V•- 000000000000000 O

c

NJaF0
a X X Z
t

xx cc

XX 0

XX x

xxx x

x xxx x

x xxxx> X

xx xxxxxxx x

N x x X',  > 4> 4) 4) 4) 4> 4>4  ...

UN
N

0

a

I'       x

tx x

e x x

zz
xx xx

x.xx xx

xxxxxx x

x,xxxxx x

x xxxxxxxx x

xxxxlxxxxxxx x P.
s MO MN 7.; 2 51 A[ 75 A N QMN Y O W 7 10 4 4: I 4 4 7 0 M M I'M M MOMNM M OM W N n b 4' A MN N OU) CO) N C0 al

8

11000000000000000000000v-0 g,
3 o 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . n e o N m n or m o ? H . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

m 0000000000000000000 0 , N , 000 .1. 000 .4. 000 . 0000000000000000 i
V

I m e m m m m g; u°4 vii , T, 2 in of m G 4v 4 e a a a a a ; e 4 4 m tim m m  M N N N N N N N r 4 n4 ° °
D n or m

Q
Ci

361



I I I
a a a.

2 2 2

CO P 0
M M of

I.-0
m ti Nc

C
x

Ili Na a
7 a

Ioo,  
N

O E Q IL
o 0 0

0N.
1  -   

V .    X V
T co

M

d o CO A
m07 j H O 2
C

o)  =  d

V NW

a     °     
W ci in

c

0
r

a lii
x

d 2 a

a)    N dd0
O y G C

y
c0

a2aTI in    (    co N N

4)   O
7.    CO CO To

N
0.

1O 0LI U
C7 U U r

U U 0

3

ii U Q  - 0

u d m

co
C p EJ

os 6 a.  ( a
5a

ud N

N CN

al
N N N

W cm     °:     ° E d
E. O
y d

w a  ' G A to
O C d U

a.  a.  a.
L L

R a

C aco aaclw

03
13

U CZ O 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O.- N co a N.- CID 0)       N P 0) a a N 0 O.- M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O
CC

Cl)

a

0
y

I-

X Z
tX a
5 xx

xxx x

xxx x

Ix xxx x

00 xxxxxxxx

E x x xxxxxxxx x

M xxx x x x x x x x x X X x

va
u

1

9C

00a

0Z X

x x x

x 1 xxx xx

x xxxxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxxxxx x

X x x XX x x x x x X x x x x xx
5

E N RMbO 0

N33
P/ O N gMN

N0a
4 Ba N

7
MN O0MMOP 44 V g4

MO001NP
b 2222 N 0b P 4N V

m 000000000000000000 .-  NoNoenmrm 00 m e• Ci 00000000000 0 00000
Ci

m a°

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , ,- a 0 1- N m m m 4h < e CI 0 N N 0 0 .- M 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0

V
1 '" 

m m m m   ° i 3 n m m m m m m n v 4 e < a a a e e 4 A 3 .^» M M M 2 3 g 3 3 3 r 3 N N N N N N          av

362



X I x
a a a

N to N
M M  . 1.

r1)

m  •   1Csl
C.)CD

E
x x 0a1 co is

a a:

o 0 a r co
ci

Cg E Qu_a)       eo.°  
N-  

n v U •—   X   .

03

0CII
a m m0 o
c

enc
c a   ò 20

a> V N

U v O
In

0co V cocc
1—

aa>•     >
m a

m
o

tea)   a.)   ° a10

a LO 21 1 co Cl)
N    ']     

N co N N is

o U U
N

rn

oU

U U U
m m m

r c1 a v

c u uca °'      E Ca 6 a y s
C Z p y N J Va N m a

N N W
N r v a a A

y a a a
A a)     °     d E m m '     O 5 z a>   a t t L

U m 3 0 ii F°  w vai o o r a'  n r•  S o'oo

0 o-      aac w•

U
c

O0 . 0. 0c,..:..... 0 0 0 0 0 0 V n..o u) coco N co N M N O O N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S

J
CCI-
I-

1 0Z
o

4
L

0J 0

a 1 x

x x x

x x x x x

Fi xX X X X X X X X X

iX X, X X X X X X X X x X X X

m x xxxixxxxXXXxXX xx x

N
U

N

ac

ao
1 X

c

x

0z x

x xx x

I x I xx xx

Xx xxxx xxx x

Xx xxxxxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxxxxxxx x x

o 3 11 b20N N 1N 8113 11
N

o
2

7 4 r
a

NOaMN V 20MM2.;  2M3

MN'
80N N 2:1 21 21 C MN

N 8
is' 1

17..,

a
5

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1- 0 , N e n n n 1n n n 0 n N 0 N n 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o

m
0 0 o0 0 0 o ', n In r N n n Ln m N a 0 n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 o 0 o 0 0 0 0 0

I b b N N b
CO

N2
m CC C 11

N 2 2 N n 2 '.; n V d V < d O O V ; V 2 Si m2 n n n n n n N N N2 {
n`

1 N N N N N     •- 3
Q7

N

363



x I I
a a a

o to co
M CO M

r

CO C.;
N

II03Ny      

o o u v C Co

m rn

o E Q LL

in co01i
a V X V

N
r`    m ?  m cc gi

CI H O o m

a 3
a`6"  

V fSNW

m
m U
cc rn

N    ¢ i
7

Y a

ami 013 d
Q U d m N
aCO m CO

O.

iTs
c

g

ro
r>      cn o a a m m

0 U N M

V U V

U U U

ci d d m d

cam)       
m a s m

a2
2

e °'      E a m a N   $     o 0

4)    r c.0 d a v m y a a a
O - 0

u     ;     d     "     E
E E y i O 5 m d v r r t

U 1 m 3 o Pti.  HH wm o a o  <  a    -  0,  o
oa

0 a a 0 w • • •

U crs 0 0 .... 00. L.... 0000000001- 0.- 1- 41 C)   4') V'   V, N M co. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N

I-0
O

I-

C 0

la1 X
2

S X 0

2x x x

x x x x

x x x x

x xxxxx xx

x xxxxxxx xxx

N XIX x x x x x x x x x x x x X x x

4)
U

Ld

x

v x

xxI X X

r I xxx

z°       I 1 x x x

xxx x

XX XXX

x X X X X X

x',XXXXXXXX

X XXX!]XXXXXXXXXX

ORMN O0) COl,1 g MN O0) 0410 NOMN   . 7A,
U1A2AMN

OMW,:l
ON R MN O0)" 0 N 110 cD 10 t0) 010 of Nvf 1n 1n u uf 10101f) a a a a aaa a a aMMMMMMMMMMN NN N NNN N N

ci
00

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a m r m t, ., . v O, a v.. o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 020000000000000000000 , 0 •• , 01011,. .; 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
U

1 " 
ee3 .m39 R4i         nn n n ',   4' 44Se3aee4AA4A ) enawA aaannna3AA4A

364



X I I
0.  0 a

o co
i+)  N)  a

N.

m V
N

CC i
N

o La
x
o

o 0 o n 3 V •£  x  <   
LL

Ncon N M

to

0 =  
0

of
C N

aE)
M

y ?  a

U0
S3
Na)     m

O m VCom)
ca0)     1-

a)       

5 a
a)>     

w d dV)       d d

a N N to N
Ca N•     

C'     ifs M O 1I)    o N i0 A
N co V

a a.    5 r N N

V V

U U U

0
d d d

u m a v
CO °)      E a ui a rn   ,     v v v
O O y N LJ

10 N r C)  
O.

d

N L O W a 9 m a a 0.

O p
V

3 d       •   E O E H O S c d V L L L

U m 3 0 Pa Pc--  wo o 0 o a a N co

O a o ¢ U w+

10

U aS O 00000000.0000000000000c401.0nIOn•c -- O" OM.- NN Ma co N 000000000008o

Ja1-0
v c
0

z

rI 50
x x

xxxx x

xxxx x x

x xIX X X X X X

xxxxixxXxxxx x

N x x x x',x x x x x X X x x x x x

m
U

VC0Oa x

r x

z°  x x

xxx

xxxx X x

xxxx xx x

IX x x x x x XX xxxx

I X XXXXXXXXXXXXXX) XX
z

i N 7 E3 E4 0 00N SR 1; 3 N
NEl St re; 24 4 4 4 N

aa
MN a00)

lW
e;

NO
10 ACMtlN

l'{
00) 11N11 N Q 13N N00)   n N e

p'

3

m j
3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a N N 0 m m 0 n 0 N O N I- 0 N 1- 0 1- 0 .. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

P.

l' 000000000000000000000 •- 01- 0 .- v- L00 " 0.11- 0 0 3- N1, 01 ( 400000000000

C

I• e3ugm21iv nu n , nu, v, ug < 4a4aaaaeaMU iPorooAgiPI0NNNNNNNNNNN _ 4  44
N c

365



I I I
a a a

10 n N
M C)  c}

no
CO V ID

t0
I  =    N CO N

N 1... a 0

N   .
j O r  .-  G)   

0)

0 0 0 co v U E  %  V U-m

C
m n CO m m m

co

0,1

o 01=       N 0 o
u) c a o gi
m 7 U N

U 0)
CC

et
1-

a) oc
a

d dc)       CI7 E

a
a)   W fA N Mm O

N C RS CO O O V

N 0 0co
a)    \       M O 0 V V

O U U

ai d

2

v a       

d m N

m

Q
N E aNa N a

m am

0 01: 1 m a 0i
d el el

Sv
m

i a m Na 0.  0.
m t ii 0 0 08 0 5.   U5 oinOp m E oE o  •. x a

m r r r

U cym o P -  PI-  wm o  <  ea a co co

a
O W

a a c> w• • •

U CO
OuT

0000000OOOOOOOOOOOON Nt) G0td V< OO OD
7

mOO N C) a.- N 0000000000000 O
cc    -

J
4
0

I

G X z
X X cc

5o x X 0

4l x X X

x xx x x x

x x x x x x

xx',xxxxxx

xxxxxxxx x

N xxxxx-xxxxxxxx

bdd
7

VC

a°   x

rcx
Z x x x x

xxxxx

xxxxx X

xxxxx xx

X xxxxxxxx X

XXX    '' CX X X X X X X X x X X X
5

p p  

u

A3 fa tN0 t0 t00NN N 3AN SR fgg A?I a r i a 444 a a A A' A A An A A M M MA A N N NN Ng N N" l'""' n

5

m

3 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - .- .- m to N b w m 00 .- 0100000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o m

5N
20000000000000000000 .-   N 0 0 , - 0 0 000100 w- x . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J

I b u b b b b al 4 n rn ubi 3 n b n 4 < 4 a e e 4 O v v v m 4 n M vi n 2 4 01 wi N N N N N N N N N N
d m b b

G
Ci

366



I I I
0.  0.  0.

O co N
M CO O

I,CO
CO 0

N

2 S

0 0 p r

cOD3
Cl

0f a,   0,

as O E Q u.

000))       
o M v U  -   p C.1

s a0 m a o
co

I ie
m co 0 o C

o N E a

V at
N

Q

V in
co

r
co j x
c

a) ac

a v v v
m N 0 N

a m aaa a

co co Cl)
rt1 co O O V To To N

o N M

C.'3 0 U    -       N CI

U U

UU U
ui2m m

2 V RCL
0
CL

a.    

N d

CC)
0 co ID

cn 3 A p;     °' E
E m    . y O E.       m v t r r

U m      - 1 m 3 0       i i-  wo,     e e e a'  a     -  S co
0 a

U
c

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 Oi0 0 000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N   COCO0O co T O  ,- N N N   . N CO00 OO O O O O O O

COO
O O O O Or

co

QI-0
C

asz
z 2
O LI

rR x x

xxxlxxxx

x Ixxxxxx

x xxxixxxxx x

xxxxxxxxxx x

fn
9>9>9 9>9>4>4

0U
0N

CCI
x

e 1 x x

2 i xxx

xxxx

x xxxx

xxxxxxx

x•xxxxxxx xxx x

x x xxx x x x x x x x x x x x x

Co 10 V MN E01 pp ; g{pN QMN O% OD; 4l00MN OMa0A) 0107 MN 001nh A 1f)? M N 00) a0h t01fl
D t0 t0{ 0( 0 t010N1()(UO 1010 00) 101 V 1000? OOOMMMMMMMMt7MN N N NN NNN NN

000000000000000000 v-o00ao0ao000000oaoov- 0 H C vl m 0 vl C . n el  rr 00000000000000000000 5

C

93 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  -  0 0 0 0 0 1- w wl a en r 0 m 0 , 0 C( 0 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g
V

C ep b C o!

3N

z.; 224NNN 2223444 4 43 V 4 ; 4 A nC'iAAt„ tnA 7., A ANNrrrrA & Hg.' °44 _ A u

367



s x I
a a a

M P N
M M a

n

5.      m

Csi036
COc

x x d o ca a v ' p co eo   '
cll

r-  
a rn

0 0 0
o f a s

a>i co v V •-   x U
Oo a w j m A  (

o co g w 0 o   ( o

co

n3
a No

0

R v
c x to
a)     w r

QE
Y J

a

o    -      4)4)       4)
N9 CU cfl 0 0 a

U)  U)  N
N

j N O O N CO y A R

x co U r'  F.
U U U

U 0 0

do 0 0

c,   a

V u uco °)   E

ao
5i a N   '

C c c m rnZ
a m rn a m   ` o a,

n
o S- 0 a  '  - o

m
co a a a

m     ;  o f o

H4 i O 5 m O`,   

co,,    
r r r

U 'D m 3 0 P, i PI-  wto o 0 o a a N COLE

0 u a Q U w

r c0
U C0 O O 000000 o:o o o oO oo0000 oN M0 uOHALO( 4     " 00IA.- O N 1-   ,- oo00 o o o o o0o o o O

J

IO

V
F

z
X X

xxx 0

A xxxx

xx"xx

xxxx

I. x I xxxxx

x xxx'xxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxxxxx xx x
N

4)     j

OLW 1

9C

Oatt X

0z x x x

x x x

xxxxx x

X xxxxxx x

X X) C  ' x x X x x X X x x

x x x x1x x x x x x x x x x XX x

s 10OMN OO, OD,; 223MN OO, o AbN MN 4 AA A OAOe MN
e9 RM:ign

V lq OO," t0 V,    
z

f t0 b D 101D 1010 Yf NCO, O, O O, O Y, N00000 00 V 0 MMMMMMMMf•,M NNNNN N NN NN

CJ
4 N

000000000000090000 0 04 ,- N 0, 04N u a0 A u! M N O O .- 00000000009000

1
Cl.' 0 0 0 0 0 0 00000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N 01011- f I N M A 0 . < I0 i- O 1- r O .- O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

AAS

y

CIC
p

I

m 1 m m ZO m 4 S N VI to a N of NS 4 V < 4 4 3 C Y 73 i g N N w to to w {°`. R N N N N N N

368



I I I
CL a a
2 2 2

N n N
M M 4

n

CO V
N

2 2 y

C
CA   ( 0

d 7 O r N
N

0 e o co
v,   OE x Q LL

O

M co

M d H 0 O   ( O

co c a o T
75

m a o
U

a)O o V 0)
c Cr
a)     a)      r

0 x
Q

a) a

o Q c Na)     a))

c C(   D C.  C.       Q
nYO I.[)    f/)  N co

3 N c)       co.    co co N To N
a)    N V O U U U

U U U
dd d d

T U m a d d
RS °

7 E m 5S a cn s
Z c rn: 71 a   (

m a

r Sv d a v m y a a a
m     ;  d E d H '     O 5 0 d

co)    
s L L

U

U I m 3 c Psi PI-  wm o 0 o a'  a     -  0 coo
4- a
Cco a a 0 w• • •

U ( O 0 50000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0< V co co N coV N O O M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

Cl)

R

0
0

I-

o x

Z X 2
X X 0

g x xx

xxxx

x IXXXXX
IX X X XIIX X X X x x

Z xxxxx,xxxxxx

N x x x x xx x x x x x X

ydUC)d1
I

x

v X

0

x x

a X X
L

x xIr
x x

x x

xxxxx

x xxxxx x

x x x xxxxx x x

x x xxx'xxxx xxxx x

i NOMN OOIGOP( 0 NO MN 001 p f( Du) RMN 001( 0 P( D NRMN OOIMfV( 0 NC MN 001aDf( ON ml
i

0)( 0 b O i0 10 N N N N N N N N N N O V V Q 7?   7 7 O M M M M M M M M(+ l M N N N N N N N N N N

V00000000000000000004 (40001. , 000001-       0 r:

2 0000000000000000000 0 N o N o a. - o a e o N .- .- .- o aeq 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

S 33G222L'i 232 O & O a 'AVeeeeeec':; AbSt„

ly
t`° 3c.71t'INNNNNNNNNN22a22

N
b 1p

369



I I I
a a a

o O•  co
M CO CO

N.

CO 0
N

05
2   •

a

y CO Nd a j L co   -

0 0 o o a°ii V £  k U LL

Oo M  r- c7

O,    
m C

co

N
O c+)    

3 N O O 1D

y c a0 ab

d m 7 U N

C V 0)

w I

Y715
a

O N
d Gal V

N9 Cl)   
0 0.  O.  a

O CO N N
N    =     

c6

T

O cO N N N 74:

La o M

U_   00
To

I CO U r rn rn

p

U U U

d y 4.   N d

0 G)   O.  ay G)   d
E.

03 j
i

a N
a N

N

C j O ry C/ C J
tV0 N N d N   .

G>    L d a.  a   
p a.  a.  a

O 8     ;     m
w

o E o 5 mc m I L L L

o w ns o x a m al o 0
U CD J m 3 0 i- u`.  PI-  LOU)     o 0 o a a CO

0_ aac) w •

10
U cu O g 000000 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N O V 7 u) t0 V 0 LI) n 41 MN 000000000000 O

Cl)JQ
1 1-O

0 I I-

0G 0

0
z

ca

A
x

I I xx x

xxx x

xxxx x

81 X X X X X X X X X

X IX X X X X X X X X X X X

N x rx x X x X x x x X x x x x x

Utl1
m

d

yG

r

0
xxx

j XXX

XXX

XXX XX

XXXXX XXX

X X X X X X X X X X X XX

X X X X X X X X X X X X x x

i N 222 0012 n/ 0 N QMN 24441010Q MN 001MMn 1010p MN RAA[ 74API
R M N 001""    A

3.{
0  • D 1 D tO t0 1 n N N uf 1 n N N 1 n N 1 n 7 V 0 0• G' Q C a R O M M M M M M M M i+)M N N N N N N N N N N

m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N O M N M M 9 9 9 V N i .- M N 0 0 00000000000

2 . . . 0 0000000 0 0 00 00 0 0 0 00 0 O L N N M N O !- M N M 0 0 O N N 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0

12

S

1MN2 u u b N N N N A oou) .7, 
pG

V V V O O pp < 
v < V AA r) M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N N 22 22

co

370



x x x
a a a

N o a
M a V•

ne
m ti co

E
S 2 d

c.

Na n:    o"  CO w
3 N N
O 1-  m NOr

3 0 0 0 0 v U  -   x U a

a
0

2
v v

0

N 0 O e

Nn a
N

4)    Q 7
7 W Vcmcm

O

ca

Y
N a

o O a V

0
m N d

C as co
Ci)  U)
CL

NO.
5 m o CD v m m A

o o N N O N V V V

I 0 0 c m F.

U U U

ai  . m d   .,

0 ( I)       E a ui 0.  N s u u u
C c C m O1  m d   & m m m

c o a c
43-

S a a a

0 -0

m

d     ::     E o E yi O 5 d v t t t

U 0 J m 3 G PLL HH ww o 0 o Q a i-  N CO
0_

0 w
a a v w

c6

OM O 0 OO OOO 0 0 0 0 0 0.- OO.- OM ON V( ON0)     m OO Q V NN<,- C').- 000000000000 p

coJa
I I 0H

0z
x

2

O xl 0

8 11 x

xxx x

x xxx xx

E x xxxxxx xx

X x x x x x x xx

N
x x x x x x x x x',X x x x x x x x x x

U

0

VC0Oar
0Z 1xx

XIX x x
xxx xx x x

xxx xxxx x
I

xxxxxxxxxx x x

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx x

i N V MN O01CO r10N V MN OMOCON WNO MN 0MCO n10NOON O MONNN V MN OMWh O W

t
0(0 tO tO t tO N N N N N N N N( N Q V' V O a 7 0 O O O M M M M M M M M 0 M N N N N N N N N N N

200000000000 , 00
U'

0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o N 0 , 949 99 .n a n o 00 v• 00 00 0 0 0 0000 01.. 1.. 1- 00
1

2 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 O O O O O O O O O 0 0 , . N 0 a WD L111-. . ti-   

9
S

in
b b t0  bN N N N N N 7 7 Q B d a a a a a a a 4 4 m N n n n M M o N N N N N N N N N N V C 4 3'    

N C. i

371



S I I
O.  0.  a

o u>
M CO R

N.

C
0

m CO
x x E - 5.
d d V ' ci co 2 N

00 o co 0j -   x U LL
O

cor CO

N 7 =  m
C N

CO g m 0 0 to

a)     
mo5c a o co

0 9O
C.)   N

cc
V 00)

m 1--

x

N7 p a

m mNy N

0CO C G
y     (

M
in

N m N

rn o
O NN

U
V V V

2 5

U U U

ci 3y d d d

U 1°0   °,  '°     C C C

0
w E CO

m
a m

0)   CO
0

O c
N caJ N N       -    d N 6

n L d O.  - 0
cp

N d a a

3 A r
N

y O C 7 m o L L L

v      $     d m m       °   E o x a m o iii
U a)      J CO 3 0 Hu`.  PI-  wm o 0 o a a e m

w a

U co O0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O N CO a N a a CO a O N° O) a co a M M- CO N O O O O O O O O O O O S

mJ

I o
v

02
n°     Q2O

X

X X X

X x X

X X XXX X XX

I
X X X-  X X X X X X X X X X X X

N X X X X XX X X X X X X X X X X X X XX

4
U

DC

a x

Ax
w x

xx

xxxx

xx xxxxx x

x xX x x x x x x x x x x

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

I
N QMN S VA

LV)
01A MN 244144 V MN   . 7ARARa MN 8MAI R N RMN 8"^ t0' a

10 1 O fO t O tO t0 1fl 1 n N) 0 N n v) n n a a o a a a a a a e M M M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N

g . . . . . 0 . 0 . 0 . 0 . 0 . 0 . 00 — , 1 N N n w n N N N N N o N o 0 0 0 0 0 o a o a0

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o N * - N el 0 N v b of N Cl N f7 .- N t-   t- +- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,
S

ALtO
u u m N N N to N N N to N 0 N < • Q a e < a a d .. 0 0 0 m 0 0 M 0 0 N N N N N

Nel. 
N N N N -     .. .

N
b

372



I I I
a a a

M M

N

5•.      tD

m U to

d N
d d 7 y N

a r Of

N ee e P V VX V LL

ro N N
n

c0d c m A m
m C H 0 o00.

JJ m 3
d

0 N
m

O R VNccOi

2 r

in
Q a

0•     
c d d d

d

0WU CO(O a a 0
U pCO N N

Y     >     i5N O to VTo
N N N C'7 0 0 0

J 6 U r r

U U U

0 0 U
E13; d m d

u m a  - o c c c

lQ
N E 6 a N S

C c rn     
d

m m
0°  

ma
um U u

7 9 da VD7- 
O vr r

rOOu y Ec E m

OVJ m oPu.  PI-  wm eeeQ a     -  w CO

0.  0.  0.

w a
0 co

O. a U w • • •

O
U CO O 0000000'O O O O O O O O O O O O Oa N P M N O) 100-_ 0) 0)10 c0 a N,-.- N.-.- 00000000 00 O

J

QrOI-
c

0Z
t x

5 x x c7

2 x xx

x xxx

x xxx

x x xxxx

x xxxxxxxxxxx

rn
x xlxxxxxxxxxxx xxxxx

OI

O

1

9G0
Lx

x x
O

X x

x xx

x xx x

XX x xxx x x

xxxx x xxxxxxxxx

xxxx x x x x x x x x x x x x g
I   )

07 MN 001/ ID P10 N O MN OOI ODP t01OOMN OMCDP 10 tf1R MN OOI COP 1ON V MN OtT 001 t0 Yf
I

f tOlOtOtOtO/ ONNNN( OU1( OtOt/ ltff aeaOaaaaa OMMMMM MM0 MNNNNNNNNNN24

11
4

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N 0 0 , Cl Cl CO N N CO N M M N N 0 . ,- . . . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S'

m
O p p O 0 0 0 0

W

2 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O   

Op
O O N N n- M O M •- M M O) N M N < N N O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

Ib b N 27, 2122 N W v) u) N M M N a
M n tO N a M N - 0 a 2 in 2 M M M M M M N N N N N N N ( V r, 2 " " '"

co

373



I I I
0.  a 0.

N N O)
M M M

r

CO C tO
2 x y co   < p

a a o V 03 co
N

N
o 0 o t0 x Q a

C N Q>  O)  M
V U U

pppp
Q)   N =  m 2   ! O

a o iii
a

y 0
W  =      U N

v o
7)

4:,!

a

o I-

a")    2 2

0 a

d d t
mLI C n a a
C75 Lt)    < L)    CO CO N

N R1 O N V c)    To To o
CV O O U V 2

d Q U r
U

U U

ui y m m m

co °'

p N
J

ui a N   $n
N

o u

y Le d
m

n     N N co
O.  a O.

OD 0

V J m 0 F it FF wM o 0 o Q d LI

a
0 a a U w. . .

w CO
6 cr.;    O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.- O O a O M d N< 0 h CO

CI
h T Co co O V M N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 p

cc
T

NJQH
1 I-0

C 0

a X
2

y X 0

X

1
XX X X

XXXX XXX

1 XXI XXXX XXX

X XXl
XXXX XXXX

N X X XXXXXXXXXXX xx

NdU I

y 1

2 I x

m x

w xx

I xxxx

x x x X x X x

xxxxxxx x

x x x x x x x x x x X x

x x'xxxxxxxxxx xxx

N eMN iO

VArz N
N MN N 844444e MN

e OM wc%M M M
MN

o ggInigNAn N N
O W  " N 3

I

V. 003 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 .- 0 ON o M M 1- m . n a . n .• e CO e N o .. , 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 a 00000 E

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 o N o o ,- ,- .- N e 0 w e e o M N N o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 22

d
a

n
tn

e e c n u Mi ui w n N n nn n e   "     
e M N - o

M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N N   " " "

co

374



X I I
a a a

c
V)  V1 a

N

cu
MI U 0

C
2 S N 03 of

t0

d I,  N

0 o 0 o co
m O x Q U.

CL)  LO
Q

0)  ^       [ r)

0
l0 co

V)
C m . m O o   . 1

v
6-=  

a

0 N
o

m U rn

m
r

92 Q o

U d0 N
N 1]   0 C0.       C.
C c7:::f)    O in N y N

d
O V M l0 R

7 O N N p V U U

CL 2 U r r

0 000

0 0
N N N

t4 ( 1) E ua
Nas0vu

C EEd c1: 71
a

m N N t
s 5- o aa aa 0.  0.

CO 1 3 TLd E m

v
o

s  w

aUm P .  P-  .; T: n o ui co

0 co
a a OW . . .

U a O w 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

lI
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0,- N O O Q V) LAI 1.- M M

c'
co n CO O n, rV M,-.- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 x 0 g

1

J
a

01-
aa

a a

v C5
3 1

xxxx

I xxxxx

x X xxxxx x

X x xxxxx x

Z
x X xxxxx x

N XX XXX!  X X X X X X X X X-  X X X

mv
0N

c x

ox
a I

m X X

m xx X

xx x

xx x x

x xx x x x

xx  '  xxxx xxxxx x

x xxxxxxxxxxxxxx xx

ggp
1

2 b 1N0 43t00 ggNNnhN2Ntfl N a a4 o v3 v4 a a tgn n M M cl Mg M to M N N N N N N N N N N OD r tow

1f

3P. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i- /- 0 0   , 0 0 ,-   VI- 0 w u m 0 0 0 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ? 0 0 n N 1- 1- N N w n , 0 N m N 0 0 0 1- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 d

C Rb N b of

y
V <

t'

2i M 2,  

I

13 3 3 3 b S N N 2 2 n n V V V d O C ; < 0,'       M N N N t7 N
tVV0

N N N N N N N N N W 0 r 0
7
V

375



I I I
a Oa

N.       tO
N M CO

n

m ci co
up

O t
CO N

d a j a rs 01
C r r CO

OLA
a)       

a o e
O E  ''  ¢   w

N m C.) = C 0v nCOCi

nN H O O Q
co m 0.

c m 7V N

ro p O

co
itic V co

H

N N
N m a

d-  d 0
0    •

t

CO
CONN

O.

N O LOO

N z l6 O co.    M i0 a N
N N0 U U

d U U r

U U 0

ui d d-   d d

v m a c c c

coNa ii;  0.  
0v v v

cC
C 01•= 1 y d a

d d 0)
r Ev i a

Si y a a a.

O
0

d     :!     E o E N '     O 5 d v r s r

V
o d o x a s s
J m 0 Pu.  F- F W q7 0 0 0  ¢  a O CO

w- 0_

Oco
0. ¢ 01a• . •

W N
U O g OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO. ONINNOaMtONNO O)  OON, N000OOOOOO8

if2

1
CO

i_-      _  __.. JY—       
4

0
v

oz
2

d X 0

X X

XXX>
X x x> XX

1 1 XXX x> X>> X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

NX,X X X X X X X X X X X x X X x

N

U0)m

a

0
X

Al x x

xxx x

xxxxx

xxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxxxx x

x

xl'
XX xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

i OOMN OMW 1` OOOMN O0) W1` WOO MN O M M NWOO MN OMM1, WOOMN O0) 001• MO
a°

f
tO tD 00 1 O 1O tO O O O O O O O O vff O. 1a e a a a a a a v M M M M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N N

m 0 0 0 0 0 00 000 0 0 0000 00 0 0 0 0 0 , ,   0 N N O COQ N , b 0 0 0 0 1- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5
Co,

2 . 0 . 0 . 00 . 00 . 0 . 0 . 00 . 00 - 0 ._ _ .- O N ,- N N N 0 b 0 Q n N N) , ,- N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G1bb b b b b
p  N b b N b b u  e

b V V O O O O O P m CM M N N N Ob N N N N N N N N ab 4 4 4
0

376



S x I
a a 0.

N N.  M
M M v

N.m
mti e
13 COS

x x d
0

N0 d 7 p Nr2     ''  Of g
N

O E Q LLa o o m
N

X
CO 03 M

v

2 C U co

M
m

C N
CIg H 0 o   •

c
cod

coON 0 N

C7 U N
N

U)

f

a)     c

0N a

Q d d 0m0

a a
cc0u)    O O M N to

Cl)   Cl O M r V m N To
0 N

O N T V 0 U

CI_    m v r r F.   -

0 UU0

uid
N d 4'>.      

0
ii

10 o. C C C

CO
N E co ui a N

f0.
1

0 0

E E rn     
a

d

co
a s-am a y A y a a a

N 3 W N E N
N d O C 0 y0

t tL

0 -C)      o m d m
Eo E o Ra A S g

O I CO 3 o    (- ii P f-  w m o 0 0  <  a in CO

a_

Oco a a 0 w • • •

U
c

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 M M a a Nco co co
N

N n co WN N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oO

J
aI-

I O
I 1-

oZ
a x Q

y X 0
3 x x  -

x xx x

x x x x x

X 1x xx x x x

x xxxxxx x x x x

N X x x x X XX x x x x x X X X X x x X

Ua
m

I

OC

1 1

w
X

xx x

x x XXX x

x x xxxxx x x

x xx xx'
I

xxxxxxx xx

x X x x x Xx x x x x x x x X xx

i 2322 O ONN,%,%N O MM fOOv:; 44' 4
MN aO WMA

MAglMMN
M8RVi. 

ANXMN
N

OO!" O N 4
l:

10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a e-  v. , o m o a . n N m CO N  m , e , n o N .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CO

jJ0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N 0 0.1 . 1 ..- NC3 e n e 0 0 N   , 0 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a

n m m m m3 n om m umm of aee e e e e e e w gn n m m n m w N N N N N N HHN w m n4 v%

377



x x x
a a a

ID 0
M c)  a

n0
m ti 0/

2  =    0
0 ab

N

r
N

W

o 0 o t0
N O

VI •

E  %  Q LL

O
0  ( 0 N c•)

C 0
l7 coo

0)   
O N 0 O tO

1coZ
0o 4 7

d

V N
C

CD C cn1-
151)     a)

S

N     = a

0 00
m

Q  

a
E'    - 0 T

o in o v)  ( I)  N

Cl)   m 0 ch v A m
7     •     0 N N

r 0 O 0

o C7 UrF.  F.

U 0 C)
ui0 m 0

T V A Q.  9 C C C

co
N i 01 0

d N yq     0 0 0
C Z O     $    2

CC_ I 0a   $       `+    0 0 0
7

0 C v a 7̀ a  " O
O

y a a a

p CO m

y     °:     £ p E H O 5 0 0   %    t t t

U m 3 0 1= It i= I-  wu))     o o s a'  a    -  0,  Cl)
a

0 c.o
0. 4 0 w• • •

U CO O 00000000000000000000.- 00).- 0 O)   CO O)° d N CO 1O M CO- Csl O N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

1

coJQI- 00
v

GZ
o

x

d X Cg

3 1 X

X

Xx xx x

XXXXXXX XX X

XIX X X X X X XX X XX X

e) X XX X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

d

ULN

OI
aI
m X

CO
X X X

iX XX X

X X X X X X

xixxxxx x x

X Xix x x XX XXX X

x xxxlxXxxxxxxxxxx x

i

1N
CMD N0 0 O88to"8NCMN

oOR a 4 4 4 4 N
a4 44 fsoMM 4Q M4M44N A 44' MNNc9c °".'

V"
m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  o 0 N n < eel N  CO e N N 01-  0C'( 1 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1U
2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 r V m N .- r CO N CO v- N O ! 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OPm
m m COm m imn ti N m n in in m u) m O

m Y Y v COv V V d N COC) n COCOCOCO01 C, N N N N N N N N N N
N

CO L

378



x x x
a a a

co N
N N M

rcD
m 6CD

C
2 2 Wo

05

co N
a a o ' C ao co

0 h N

C =  
1—  rn rn

c
cD Q o o a

d o f  %  a a

Q
co r  .U-  N

a1J

N '  
0

W
W

r g
W N j U)  0 O l0

W  =  
a

Co
coN

co
oVco

O)

N7C
a)     > a

Q d d d
at

m o 0 a a   .
c 0 in In U)  N U)

N a)     ro N M N
N N N N V V V V

d C7 U r r

0 0 0

ci 7) m d d

1v m a m ami ami
co °)      E a d

0.  to sii

S r Cary m a v m m a a a
W 3 A m W E W

W $

0.     
O C 7 N 0 s L L

U
0

00 0 Pit M- H•  W U)     o 0 o Q C.    .  .  CCD

Q

Ocp S Q 0 W. . .

D)

U N O LI; coo 0000100000000000000000000.-.- MMd a OGD     ( 000to co MM N 00000 Or

CO

aF0I-
2

X Z
0 X S
y x C7
3 x x

x xx x

x xx x

x xxxx X x

i x x x x x X X x xxxx

N X X X X X X x X X X X X X X X X X X

mdu

0Ci

a X

LI
x

w
xx X

xxxx

xxxx x

x xxxxxxx

I X X X X X X X X X X x X X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X x X

I
N CMN OOGD ; 2 W MN OO W 44444N OO W fA

A2 MN ORW. ANA PP
OOGD" N

D. D101D1D ID u1 N u1. Dvf iD. D Yf N R a d' O aav a a e MMMMM MMI'1MNNN N N N NNN N

m a
2000000000000000000000000000 0 0 .- N * 0 . n m 0 0 to , , . Y H of N 0 0 0 0 0

V

mX 0 00000000000000000000000000 .- o .- n a m n m u u. m o. M v n r 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

y

2 0 e a a a a e e a o on m n n n. n m a a N 2 n a N naNbuo 0 to to 0 0000m0 e
v

379



x x x
a a 0.

on
M a a

n

Ca

0

d No
c

x x 00 0 to

a)     

cb

d o u - a co QO
c11

O E
rn

O o 0 o N V 0 .-  X V LL

CO N O 7

O
r

N D m A ItU M co O o

Eo
C c a o   ° bo

C 7  =      
V N

cr
cc

w
ca

m
r

N C

N c a

U)    <      dd  . 13 d
co

Cl)  N Cl)

N    N•     N O Cr)    O V N A A
c a)     N N V'    N V 2 2

d CC U N

U U U

U
CD Ca

A a i C C C

t0c
E a y a N   $     d w m

5. ,      o t t d a 2   §  yCD a a a
O . a 0 I 0 E o E    !' d O 5  =   m u

t t t

a rel
V m O i= ii i= H wm o 0 e  .:  a    .-  111 coo

a

UU    (-       O
N O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0( 0( D CO a CO d' 7; GD(- N N V)  CO CO 1() O O.-• 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

coJQ
i H

0c

Z
a
J

Nce

y 0
3 xi

x xlx x

x x xlx x

x x xxxxxxxx

xxx x xxxxxxxx x'

N x x x x x x x x x x' X x x x x x x

d
D

11
dI I

I

9

i

oH
Aw x x

xx x

x xx I x x

xx xxxxx x xx x

xx xxxxx xxxxxx

xxxxxxxxx;  xxxxxx x
u

s   ( 0 RMN O0) 2  ( O( 0 MN OO) W 4( O( 0Q MN OO) 2 f( O( 0R MN OO) 4Ii bHQ MN O0) W I( 0 N 3
t0( 0( D( 0 t0 t0 N N V1( 0N( 0N N N R O? V da C OO RMMMMMM MMf MNN N NN N NNNN

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N M N v   ( n M . Ln M M in M •- N 0 1. 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3m
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ai
2 . 00 . 00 . . . 0 0 0 0 0 M •- M e M ( o n ,- 0 v N w M N M 0 0 0 .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a
2 2 2 e 3 I r 3 3 E3 3 G 3 4 4 4 < < < < < 4 4 m 3 m M 3 3 3 3 M 3 N 3 N 3 3 N « 3 N 3 4 3 3.    t

380



X x x
a a a

r1n
N O)  M

Is.

Ca V
N

C
0

N
CL d 7 a a N

a) w r'  O)   
Ocf

N o o_  o O E  '  a LL
N M U •

c
x UN co M

co Qco

n
m

C N
o N j N O O

INra-    a a.

mm 7 V N

m 9

cc 0)

a)    O r

ca)    a) a

Q i
d a a
a)   a>   N

a7̀ a)   co a a a
N N N

C N N O O O 0 R A A
N a)    N c a_   a_   a

d U r N N

U U 0

ai d
ac v

m d 2

c c c

c0
a)    

c E3
o y a co

a o

2daw
m m

g. o a A N aa a
O

a;     
0     `     Eo a S s r r5 a)   e.)

a

u)  03Um 3 cPaz   -I-  wm o s aa     -

aaciw «

w 0
SV c o 0000 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 v M CO n n CC'

v min m m m o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

cc    -

N

a

0
I

cz
tI x z

x 0

g x

xx x x

xxxxx xx x

xxxxx xxxx

1 x xxxxx xxxxx

N x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x

Um
m

u

I
x

J x

Oa x x
L

x x

z x x

x x

x x x x

x xxxx xx

xxxxxxxxx xxx

xix xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

i 10 MN 001 a0n mN ppMN 001 con mu) a M N 001 aA 10 N OMN OOf O) n m N O MN 001 aan t0 N
O

Z fO3mm10m 10Nmm1n 1n In1n1010 V Q 7 V Ria V 00 C) P) MMM(+)2l•9C)MN NN N N N N N N N m

O

al 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 •- a 0 M. 0 “0 . 7. 0 .- 0 v 0 v. 000000000

a
m o 0 0 0 0 o m o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0   .- o .- w a a m a         a n r I- O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CI

Ie $ eme2mi3tu^ mn2of272444443344422g223 227; 24, 2g2232 € 3244g4 - J
0

381



S x I
a a a

to Co r-
01N Co Co

CrCO
CO d

coN
C

2 2 Nto

d d V . 0 CO CO
C.

3 0
14..  

N Ff

C

or.  
as   : 17,,

E  '  a a

e.

75r
d m m as to

01

O N j N 0 O t0

m e.  a v e
cc W N

CO W V 10
CC C)

to to r

C
2

N Cl) O:

Q O

IIIToo

6ym
d d

n% 
N E 0 d a N N 0 i

C j c C y c=     
a

m d o  a
a>   m m

t C a`  a  ' o
m

N a a.  a

O -0 u 3 y E o E     '_^ 0 O 5 D m u s r r

U
v O m COm o x a m S

CO 3 0 PL P  win o 0 o a a to co

O Q
C a. at Q w• • •

COU
U CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 V co co O V r co N. co co co co e' co O - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SI

co

0 i
O

1
o

G2
t cc

X x 0

a x xx

x xx

x xx x

E x xx xx x xxx

xxxxx xxxxxxxx

m xlxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

d I
U

N
1

a
I

aC
0O
z

0i 1 1 x'      x

I X x

xxxxx x

xxxxx xxxx xx

xxxxx xxxx xx

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx X
3

i NQ MN OO1 O t` 10 X00 PlN 001 W tr tONR l'7N OOl CO tr O 1f7Q MN OO1 OD t` b N Q MN OOI a, r bN m
i   {

O{ OOt{ONN N N NNNNNNN V O• 70 ee e R R 7MMMM f+1MMMo MN N N NNNNNNN

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 t M N N M N O N b N M N M M e .- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.
30000 . 00 . 0 . 00 . . 0 . . . . . . . . . - - .- b e e e b - e M M M .- M M <- O .- O O P O P 0 0 0

1
a1b

b b b b b N    N b N b b b N C m v Ce e e e V M mm MMu4 M M M M N N N N N N N N N N
bb

VN

382



I I I
a 0.  0.

N co
M M V•

A

N.
m

to

V
N

co

N
d d U 0 co CD

30 d  '"  
O°f

OCA

0 0 0 A U -  x v LL

r)  CO CO 0
4)   A N =  m CO 100

el H O o
0 u)     I.  

C.)   

49,

2 v o
a V 0)

m 0 r

2

aa

Q 2 a m m

o
co nc a

0)  U)  N

N 2 N O 0 V)    CO To A N
N U)    _ N N V)    c?   V V V

CC m U r N M
UU U

uiwm m m

co
d E as

y
0.  N   $     

m m m

o y ad 0°  1.)'-       
a

ia-
m m d

Z 5• e a a a> 
n lir 3 m ad E m H $  

m
vs t r

m i

wO
5 m

g-  SwU1 c FiPP m 000a a
w m
CCO

d.  a a V w .

w CO
U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O N O N h M, n N M CD GD O CD d M N O N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oO

N

r JQf.
0

V

x z
t
5

x

x 0

g I xx

xxx x

X XXX X X

X XXXXX X

X IX X xxxxx x x x

N I XX X X'.X X X X X X X X X X X X X

N

L
I ,

VC
JI

a°sraz I

X XXX

X X Xx0X

X Ix X' XXXX x

X X XX X X X X X X XX X X

X XXXIXXXXXXXXXXXXX X

i N pMN EMSACDu) O ag OOIGO A 10I 344  ? AAc%AIRARgi O W GOA 44 RMN R GOA   '     i
b 010 t0 t0 t0N1f1N N q 1/ f 1AN1AN 7 a C V O aR 70 V' MMMMG•) G") l'f MMf'1NN N NNNN NNN

m
e• 0 0000000010001- 1- 0000000000000000000000000000 •- 1- 0001i- Not

m
41

0 0 0 N 0 N N e 0 0 in 0. m a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o a 0 a 0000 0 0 0000000 o e N 0 N 1

C

Ie 0   "  9a a 0 S a CI 1

4no
n400000 nvinininu ofe 00 V N00coN .hMNNNNN NNNNNNN . .

383



x I I
a a a

o  / o o
0 C   ?

I.-

5.m V
N

2 2 1p

CL CS_   i -aco Cp
N

Ol

0 0 0

13

f0 c...) .

0t.  
x V

I!.

CO P1

N N
en Of SN

M N O O 10

y 0-  

V N
a t0

U
m 2w
z 1-

v
0 a

a m o•   v•  v

oC 0 co 1t1 Nb
o

Ste'   d O      t!)   4 o A R
O E N N 7 V C1 G

GC    ¢    0    .=       0)    ai

0 0_  0_

v

3

Aa  'o
ea °'      

cc C

r

E

v

CO j3;  a 0)
a

vddvAo     °   °
d

aEd
CI.  a

CO
a N E d s rr0 -0

v N s Eo E o xa
m v

U odm o Psi PI-  

wuam
a s

o tri
LII CO

1 a
0 en

aavw. . .

O
U fO O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N N N M' W V N 0 00 OD Op M N N a N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

r

NJa1-
0

C O2
oo x

I':  x 0
3 x x

x xx

x xx x

1 x x x x x x xx

xxx x1xxxxx xxx x

n
xxxxx xlxxxxxxxxxxx x

1
U

u I

at
c

A x

10
x

xx

I xxxxx x

xxxxxxx x

Ixxxxxxxxxx xxxx

x  ! x x x x x x x x x X x x x xx X x

Z ul C M N O Ol aD f l0 10 y M N 0 0) 00 1 10 10 M N O M M f 10 10 C M N O Ol OD f` 10 1ff C M N 0 0) a0 f 10 N
1010101D t0 t0HN N N101/f 10101A 10C C C C aC C COC MMMMMMMMMMN NNN N NNN NN

CJI

Ci?- O O O O 0 O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , 3- 0 C10 0 N M b M t0 v1 .- 0 V N .- N 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I

20 . 00 . 0 . 00 . 0 . 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N N V V N 0 V fl V 1, . C•101 ( 0 N 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

p

C

a. e    FAzE, 4 ° f4NNN10' 24 123' 4
tp T y

V e374 V V
p

tPsOt'ICfCI33PsF., g NNNNNNNNNN44 . r- .-

N
1'

384



I I I
a.  a.  a.

th
Co
o)  v

n

5.      t0

M V

CON
13 C cb

2 x a)       to

d d 3 ' p c0 N
N

V .  r-  OI
O0i

or--   N d j m 27 A
M

7 0 O O
al.as C n-   O to

N 0O O 0 N

w C13 CC V rn
7 CO I—
CC x

a

a     >•     

C

d v d
w a a>

C    ¢   to o N NN
M 7t

3 2     < u a)      o o co

O N O c."!   0 V 0

CC
5 U-       

a) 

U U U
dd N d

aa)     
v

aci aCi

COC
E

a 0

co
a)   0

G N C J R N a.   al a)

m     ;  V E 0 •   n E.     O 5 d v t t t

V •      J 0 3 0 Pei H!°-  W CI)     o 0 o Q a    -  10i co

4— a
0 0. 4 v w• • •

t6 1
O

U tI$    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O 00000.1 O N? V LLY co 0co co O co O co M M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

i

co

I F

0I-02
aR2
d 1 C7

3 X XX

XX xx

X X.  XXXXX

xxXI,XXXXXxX

X XXXIXXxxxxx

U) 
X X X X',X X x X X X x X X X X

It I

V IC
OSIm I

mW X

x

XX X X X X

I 30X X X X X X X X

X IX X XX X X X X X X XXXX

I X X XIX X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

a N QMN 00) Eo 4310107 NN 00144! 047 MN 3884 A2a MN 00l Eo410 N7M ny 00l Eon 10 M

bt0{ 0101010N N N N1010101010107777777777 MM MMMMMMMMNN NNN NNN N N
m

I 0 0 0 0 0 0000 00 0000 00 0 N 0 0 e M e N b b a b b M O O o .- O •• 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I

I20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 N O r 1- N N a a N b N e N a .- In N a N 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

C

I. 2 b b b b bN  h b b N N b v1 43 Q b < 
aaaaaea

q  
l llC  M , . NNNNNNNNNN .   4 _ _    ti

N

385



I I I
a 0 a

to o  . O
M v v

N.0
m ti

C OS
2 2 N o Nd d U - 0 CO

7 7 0 P N

0 0 o N O  £_  %  Q lL

N N.

CB
CD ,

C 0=  
CO co COO

c t4

a c    N 0 0 b

N N ?  d 0 N
o m

m 00 rn
j 1-

a)     
c 2

D

Q     >
d d cl

C
N 0 0

N a N
N    ,_           O

o N 0 N V C2 V u
CC 00 U r ri ri

U U U

d y d d d

v m a m ami ami

c0
0 E a m a N   %

C Z E
C

CAJ 0 N 0 a
N d N

3 cm w a 0
A

m a a a
n      •     3 m     ;;     d E m H '     0  . E m m 0 t t t

U 0 3 m 3 0 i- ii F-i--  w v>     o 0 C 4 a    -  S ro

W
U CO O

ul 
0000000.00OOOOO N L d M< tV to OD;

IO
OO) N co N M M O N O O- 0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

c

co

4I-
0

v 0

O
z

ycc
0

I

x x l
xx xxxxxx

XX XX X X X X X

X X X X X X X XX X X XX X

N I X X X X X X X XIX X X X X X X X X

d
U

N

O

OaN
L11 xrx

x.lx x
xxxxxx

XXXXXXxx

x X x x x x x x x x x x

XXX x x x x x xLx x x x X x x x x 1

I
N M N O OI OC fV t0 N O M N 2 4 4

f4

4 N y M N O OI CD f; A N M N O A R 4 4 a M O OI( O n 10 Lo i.O 1 O 1 D 1 O tO tO 1 o N N O N Uf O N Y1 N O a O a a V a? e a M M M M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C V N N N V LO tit e v v , N N v- N 0 1- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1' 000 00000000000 N .- .- 0 .- N N .- M 9 9 9 of V O CI N O 0 _ 0 0 _ P 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C.    3

1 O 3 3 3 43 ONN1nNNNVNNNO4444474 A ,'      1t.1olt'1t'14ANNNNNNNNNNAA . t

N

386



x I I
a a.  a.

n 0 0
CO Q Q

is.

COCII

C
2  =   y 0

Na:  Q o - 0 co
N

2
r r p0j zg

a>       o 0 0 a V -  X U LL
Tr

d
u.>  co  -    T C C

co

C co
m NC

w yc a 0 CD
Tat A

1nrn
o I-
C a>

x

O Ca

as e

m

Q
e0

fn fn
in o

RS C N CV       ( NIO V V V

U U U

0 CO G d d  '' E
p

m E a a/  a N   $        °

C c S d O1-  m a 1̀ a m ar m
r Sv d a v       („)    a a 0.

m     ;     m w w E w a i 0 c C a>   o s t r

U 1 m 3 0 i- u.  I-1-  w co o 0 o a a    -  n co
p /)      aaciw •

N
U

0C
O j p 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N M h O n n O d N n 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O p 0 0 0 0 0 0

NJ
I-
0

I
c aZ

2
d XX U'
3 xx x

I x xx x

x x xxxx x

x x xlxxx x

I x xxxxxxxx x x

N 1xxx xxxxxxlxxxx x x x

y
U 1

0NJ

ac I

y01 X

x x
w x x x

I x 1 x x

x xxx

xxxx'xxxx x

xxxxxxxxxxxx x w
I XXXxxxxxxxXXXXX

ysN 3 2 3 b 3 3 N nIs N
N MN0 ! OQ 4 4 4 4 Q M N

V OM MoM

M0
3 Q MN

M ON N nN 3 3 N
N

N
O0n 0

5

m 5o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a o o  < 4 < 4o . 4 In n a n n • o a n .- o r 44oe a o o  o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a a o 0 o a o

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,- a 0 0 e 0 m 0 m .. n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4

I
v'

g3mgn •o3'iuRuni • nr, n nSnz; 2eBa4a 4 4 4ee AAimmmRmmmmwar4i « wwaaw44 4 V t

387



x x I
O_  a a

co co CO
N CO CO

N.

CO V
N

p C W
2 2 y NCL o:      a 03  [

O

N

C a o o a V U -  K  ( Q)   LL

N coM  &  Co 0 co

Q m
C N

c0 M O O

N y a

UM•    a 0 UCC
co in

o 3 I-
C C x

a

C•    

C

III
ai

m d d

ui m S.  ' o    ' d  ' d  . m
z p y d co J

as N 0 N N N

Cn
N t v d Q 2   

p a a a
C)     3 A 2

C)     
m N O S.  7 N V L L t

U N J m 3 C H) L Pt-  W o o 0 o Q a     -  N ro
o_

0 co
a a o W • • •

L-

amM
6 ai 5.... o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o c‘ i NIa co N CO MO) O° t NMN a s N. 00O0000000 O

Cl)

Ct

JQF
D

F`

c

a Q
2

3 xx

xx xx

xx xxx xx

2 XX XXX XX

4x xxxxxxxxx x x

N x xix x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x

NNO

x

V;       
I X

W 1 X X x

I X x X

X X X

X xxx xx xx

xx x xxxxxxx xxx

XX'IxxxxxXXXXXXXXXXX d

I   {
N MN

0 @ M CN1N( OOO MN
O

OOW 4
V

4. 1 MN OMMAAP,
AMN' O W V

NMA
MNN(9'"   N m

3

O O P o 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 O P O 0 O 0 —  N o Q Q N O N Q N u. N r , N  04 , 0000000000 4

m • 
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O ,, 1- N W r- N .- N M b M N .- N M N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 A

G
O N 3 2 2 u b mi N N N un n ii 2 Vm O 4 e dQ ; 4    m oM 2 M 2 N M 4 N N N N N 1 14 N

Nm
D f`

388



x x x
0.  0.  0.

as N
M M V

N•

T  •   
CO

CO C LO
2 2 N N

6.

a a o co

n O
ti)  

r-  Of

Ob
aa>       o 0 o m I V E X 0 LL

Q
0 0 c•-,       p

U co
7 N O 0 co

Q E m O m
c0

a>     m  =      V N

O 13

CC o V
cccoo    =      F-

2

m a
0•     

a)      NN TI NC

N

Q
N a)   N0.

CO 00

OD

Lo N  ( n Cr)
C z<     0    \       O    ^    M R R A
N N N O V V V

V)    <    U    -       N N

UU U

ci d d m m

U a7 C 2
N al

co
a)       E m m a y   $     

4)   0c rnZ
a

m y m a
a+   m m

W i
010 C)     

2a)
2

L_ L•

yO
a)  a 0   ( 0p y a 0.  0.

L a1 r
a7 E a)    .

y N O C N fdt L L L

V J CO•    
3CO

Pu.  i- F W( A o 0 o Q d to-Hcoco

0 u-    a Q U w.

a"+ cC

0 c0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O-   O/- N N V N- 710- O V CO CO 1- Cn N 7- 1-.- 0000000000000 O

I co

F
O

v X I-

X z
a°  XX Q

VXX 09

X XX

xxxxx

XXXXXXX

X X X X X X X

j X X X X X X x X

CO
x XXXXXXXXXXXX x

y I
V

0C0Oa
I
w I I X

X XXX X

X x x x X

x x X x x X x X

XXXXX,XXXX XX X X a

1 X XX x x x,X x x x x X X X X X X X

FA 32Pll O
OOO12NNN s7,2 7124 a

r ON 4MN

744lMln' C0
Y1RMCMN

Fogg/ CN nN1N0 H Q MN NOm n A I

c9 5a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 0 .- c. .- 0 u 0 e v , 0 0 0 0 0 ,- o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 4, 0 In 1— 0 0 0 0 1— 0 1— .— 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m

cll

Iu u n n 4; 22
0)       0) 

e        7       

00000
00     < 

eeg    

M3RMMMr00000a0  
0

0000

0

389



X I I
O.  C.  0.

nCD
CO M M

PDN•

13 C
csi

I I m 0 Nd d V - 0 co

a)     v rr a)   Lo
Of

o 0 o N
CD G £  

x
Q LL

Q
o  `

D co

m j
0

a7 co

i
co co O O

CD

co U W 0
a

C))   N
o v 0

CC co ea inV rn

o s=     I—
c a)

v Q a

c CJ

N N of m 6)
a a a

m    C
CO

U)  U)  N
a)     (     

If)    O co

ccs O N N Ch Cmi Cm7 0
U)    I U r co co

U 0 U

ii t N d d

0       ` Ua a v d d a=i
RI

a)       E a d a N

o      °     d'    r c.,     d n v rn 0 0.  0.  0.m

0
13

u     ;     
ami

ii     £ o E a O m v t r r

vId
U co      - 1 m 3 0 Ca`  PF wy o 0 o a a    -  m co

a

U Mt O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 V7 M r N )       W V O n N M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CC

NJ

0
a

0c 0
o 2

3
x.  o

x x

x x x

xxxx x XX

I X) CXX XX XX

X X X X X X X X X X X x X

N
X 1 X X X X X X X X X X XX X X X

y1
U

N

vc

oa
m X
w

X
1 X X X

1 x xXXX X

X XXXXXXX XX

X XXXXXXXXXXX g

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X x i(
x

aVag
0 0) as P g 2 3 M N 5 4 4 4 4 Vl M N OCT as

A A A A C• 1 N 8 R V R 10 O M N   , 9"  tD N
O) D D t D) 0 tD o f u) of n N O N O N 0 7 v v e Q O e a a M M M M M M M M C) M N N N N N N N N N N

S

m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000 e N r n N o e o N a 0000000 0

4x
m mW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1- 0 0 0 0 Si m e e 0 r N I. N CI t7 N v- 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 o

1 e 3 2 3 e e 3, A A A 3 3 3 3 ' 4 4 ê e e e e e e S A A m NA A 2 M, R g A N NN N N N N a uN

390



I I I
a a a

N N 01
M co M'

rco

x x d
CO

a a 0 y"  CO CO N
7 N I,  N
OOI

O0i

v E X V u-

C

ao U m y
M N I.0 01

co

M
m

C NQ
M j N O O

a w ea o i
O 2 10 0

U N

O m
H

C

a
t0 C C  ' O  ' O
c

N Q D a a a
m y y N
C i N    -       Lo 0 co TO
CU     ••     N N M to 0 0 0

C/)    - C3 U r N N

0 U U
m d d

T m ami a'iE a u a N   ;

m      °   r c.     a  - 0   ° 7 y a a a
O 3 m     ::     E o E    • y E O Z.  0 N   €

5

t t t

U J m 3 o i= ii  1-  wrn o a'  a     -  LO  : 00
CD

s a
p a a U w • • •

1• 

CEIU
COC

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O N C V P DC‘i P M V N O M N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

IA

r Q

OI-
0z

a x x 4
x x 0

3 x x

x xx

x x x x

x x x x x x x x

XIX x x X x x x x x x x X

N x X. X X X X X X X X X X X X X

dULN

P. xP.
A x xx
w

x xx

xx xx

xxxxx

xxxxxx

xxxxxxxxxx x

xxxxxxxxxxxx x x x

m

I00 MN
D 00fl NPY1023MNf1 O7 G7P7777 MN

V 0M MPMM

M0O
MMO0N 4 4N N Q

NMNNOT
P0

V

01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 v N  N v N w N m 0w CO N 0 0 n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
3000000000000000000000v-7

0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0  , N 0 O -     .- 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0O O O O o

pOH 
o O O o o

pp mm1 b b N N N 4 N N N N of of 2 N N of V V d V V V V 0 0 0 4 M tll of 4 of N N O N N N N N N N N N . 4 4 4 7

391



x I I
C.  a a.

N CO 0
Co)  M R

40

5.      O

m C NO
x 2 N o N

05

a a V ' a 03 ro
15

41 r 001 N

o 0 0 0
o

G E  .-  Q u.

N
CO M

T , CCO0

U

O
c.)   j N O O t0

a
c N =  CL o e

O U s o
V N

c V CO0
OC D N

C 2
4:

as Q o  - o v
C

0 m aa a
Ca

m
Cv)  CO N

cn

N cC
d N N 7 V  : Ti V

CO CO U r N M

U U C)

ai d d   .,   m

U CO.  V C C C
lC E a d

a.  
Ni u 2

z      °   r c d a
LI)   '

a a a
c

3     `°     °'       ECD is d    . N °'     c
d

s t t

U 1 m 3 0 LL 1-  •
Lova)     O s  ?  a'  a 03

O a

Fc CO

1UCa O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N O 0 a O N h M V N M M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

Cl)

QFO
v

aZ
i X

X

XXX

7

1 xxxx

X     > 4>4>4>4 X

X XXX  > 4>4>4>4> 4> 4> 4*     XX

N X XXX  >4>4>4>4>4>4> 4> 4 XXX X

1LNJ y

0

rn
x

wxx
x x x' " x

x x xxxxxx

x x xxxxxX

xxxxxxxxxx x 5
x x XiX x x x x x x x x x X X X

N QMN OOI Ate 2IAQ MN OO114( O4 MN OOlA
f`

An? MN OR41 b N d MN OO/ OD' tOIA
O D 1 O D D( O uf N N N vf N 10( f1 1 f1 N a C R O R a< V Q M M M M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N N

m

3 . 00 O o 0 0 P 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N O O N N O o N u WO 0000000

9

m1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O .- a N N O N 40 v 0 .- N - ..-     O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

ini
I e 2 b N b b N 7 6 N v tii n a 0 e e a S e e e n 2 M M Y A M ng

P r r H r N N N N N       ' r•    

CO

392



X x x
0.  0.  0.

N u')
M M O

r-

T 10

CO C
S 2 1

O to
d d 0 - 0 co go)   N

o E V LL0 0 0       .   x

Cr)   

M

N
m co

C

0
C' 1

p N 0 O t0

y =  a0
N

CY1 0 o
W U
m co

00 C

N
C

a.) a

Q G 10d dd43
C

C 0 a n n
OO O m co N N

U 3 N N 7 CO To
U O N

O O U U V

Cn CC U

U U U

0 E

Oai
w d m

L

co
Na N

N00
d

avrn 0.  0.  0.SF. C Cl)
m

L ilai N E W Ut LLQ

0 Eom
06       ,1)   (.. 1 ScoUU)     000a0.

p o-   aaclw«

UCC O 0000000000000000000 COM[ O D D p W  ' tOo N m 000N O N 0000000000 O

N

aHO
af'

a Q
5 x a

pl xi x

x xx xx

x xxxx x

x x xxxxxxx

F.     x xxlxx xxxxxxx
o x xxxxxxxxxxxxx x
M

N
U

7

9

O
1 x

cx
z I x

xx x x

xxxx xxx x

xxxx xxx x

xxxxxxxxxx x

xx xxixxxxxxxxxx x x

a nCMN
0 SSM N

N0
N OMNf N

2444aNOMN VO AAPiAg M MM W RM°4 4g N
MN N0W'"    I

0,

m

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o n o w n ) o , n on 0 0 N n Vn ,- 000 .- 000000000000

a'

l' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 et 14 In N m a Yn a C 00 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

p p p   p

O O O

IbpbuoONNp N NNNUNNd4p VCp V34Vedm 4l 2Cy

nnn2424, 2432422 ' " b4

393



x I x
a a 0.

a0 co 1,-
NN M M

P

m5. 
c toto

13
y 10

d d V mi 00 W
N

ON

0 0 o v U =  x U LL
O

c0 co co co

CO
m Cr

C N
N j N 0 O 10

Cl)     W 7

a

0 N
O 1a U

cc T
N LL F
7 2
Ca)     5 a:

Q
m

d v d
C Cl)   

CO a n n
O

N co NO O o

OU    - o a>      V O co

N N N    ,—       
O U V U

U)    CO U r r UU_  U
ci  ) m m m

R
m m a N S CD CD

c c c

c c a

c r r t

U a)      J 00 3 0 P. LL I- H W co o 0 o
0. 

4 0.     .-  01 03
w a
0 a Q U w • • •

U
CC

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N 0 0 0 0 0o 0 n N M Oco p CON N co 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

NJ
H
O

0 H

d x 4
rcc

X 0

a x x

xx X

x x x x x x

E xxxxxx x X

XIX X X X X X X X X X X X

y xllx x xxxxxxxxxxxx

U
Yd

x
O

t
X

c X X

z X X X

X X X X

X X X X

X X X X X X X

X X X X X X X X X X X X

X X X X x X X X X X X X X X X X

N 3, 2 3 O
0 0 2 3

N
N OMN

3'
3 4' 4 4

o v
M N

a
0

M M
3

M M M 3' 3 M
0

N1
N

is:,

N
N

N 3 3 N

N0W
P a) 10

LL

m
I

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O 0 O O O O 0 0 0 0 N N 0 .. O e R 01 in v 0 N N m •- n N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9

2 O O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0O O N 0000 0 0 0 ! N . . N N N ,   mb ON NO O O0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

11
1e2222222N2222 r.' z.7, 2 24 44442444 286) 

882
2 8 NNNNNNNNNN

UI . a a

394



x x x
a a a

l+)  d)  M
N m

r

T
b

CO Ci ICO

2 2 y CO Nd d 0 . 0 W OO

co
d  .-  

Off N

m o 0 0 v E
x

GE Li-

0
C V 1n M Z 0

N
m C N

01
co) EN

CO

W

a  ()   

N
C

N W ()   t()

C
U

r

al
0

N 05 I d d N
w

0 a c.  ° a
L U)  N N

Q N    -      O    ^    Co R R  ! 0

Cl)    0 U r m of
o U U

U U 0

ci y m m m

o m a O w

ao)   ao)
CO

a)      E a N a 0 s 0C c u

ci s
co

d a v g m a 0.  a
O co     ;     

w     ::     E o E y 5 m 6.>   o    . c  . c  . c

o d o x a m o r
U CO 3 o PcL PI-  wo o 0 0  ¢  a N co

p i aac) w • • •

U
E

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O 000000N0,-,-.1! C7(. 0 r O T
N O o

N M N V O

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Or

N

F
0

o F
I

a

n°     4
X X cc0

g X X X X

I X XXX X

xxxxxxx

xxxxxxxx

xx'xxxxxxx

rn
x xxxxxxxxxxxxx x

mdUC

I

xr
c I x x

x xx

xxxx

x xxxxx

xxxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxx x

x xx'ixx xxxxxxxxxx x

x N M N 0 01 2 1 10 N O f N O OIC 4 4 4} M N 0 01 W ; A gi A c)
N 2 M K t.1 N N Q M N V"" IO N

t 0 t0 IO IO I O N N N N N N N N N N O R? O O O R O V O M M N M M M O] M M M N N N N N N N N N N c,,

0 00000000000000000000 , 00 O N R n a to to n R C1 •- •- r •- O v- O O O O O O O O o 0 0 0

m
3

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O r- N O O (• 1 0 N W n C N M 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

co n 3 2 2 8
O

N VI
m N N 3 2 2 V1 N V C t• 1V O O C C O O O N N In N 3 2 2 17 N N tVN N N 3 N 2 3 2 2 2 2' 3'    

395



i

I I I
a 0.  0.

Of 0 01
N 0+1 c.)

Is

5.      tO

m 6 coo

2  ±    m 0   , o

0 0 V ' a co  ( p
3

N
3 o r N

00 0 CO 0 £   x U LL.

0 co

0
m

C N
0CO 3 N O o CO

w c a
m

o
n 7 U N
co m U rn

O w r

c
2

N y a

d a,   a,Q
Cr)      N m

0

c co a a a

N O
j co 0 N

U    =
p NO Cr)    M m m m

m 0 r O    —   U U U

U a U

ci d m m m

d A a a 11%     N 0 0
RI E E

E
a v

N   '

t'    r S-0 m a v rn m a a a
O ( n 3 0E 0    ; $  ••  O 5       ` m

0 t t t

U 0)           CO 3 0 F-LL`.  I-F--
ii wu))     o 0 o a'  0.     ,-  al CO

w• a

yam+ 
CO

U O 414 00000000000000000.-.- 0,-.- 0 N N V m O•- c0 ph N N a.- OOOOOOOOOOOO O

coJar
I 0

C 1-oO
a as

X
cc

a xO
xx

x xxx xx

x xxxxxxx x

x xxxxxxxx x xx

n xx X X X' x x x x x x X x x X X X x x

NdY

0C
O
0x

r x x

z x x x

x x x

xx xxxx xx

xxxxxxx xx

xxxxxxx xxx

1 x xx xxxxxxx xxxx

s N 2 N 001 2 h l0 10 M N 001 0) 410 10 0 M N O O1 0) :
i

O M' 0 P9 N O OI as n b N 0 A N 0 O/ 0a r to N
w bml ID wa,a, 01010 Yf NNN N 0000 0000 a OMl' O1 Pf c'f c7 cl rf c' 1 c'1N NN NNNNNN N

m I
3 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o O o o O a 7, 7, v ti o CI n v o cl lv ,. w 71 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 d

OA,

m

q

o 0000000 0 0 0 0000000  00 >      e m m v V . 0 < 47 714- 00000000000

u,  ao n . o u,    
e e e e IA N a , v, 75 S e 4 < < a d 0 a 0 M A M A A M M M M' A A N a a a a gi A a N

0

396



X I x
0.  0.  a

co  ,-  NNNCO

a)7Ca)
CO

V ND20 13 C

d d 0 a CO CO
N

V ._  r cn
Owl

Y

N

to

ate')   
V • E

X V LL

E_       Cs!  LC)       CO 0 CO

rn
CO ci

C
co

N 3 H C CO

N
co

E
a       `°

N

N

CO w 03 0 rn7 CC
CI—o) r
a)     _

E a

T 0 0Com   )CO

13

a a aE U
p Lo N N Cl)

O
N f6 C'       U)    O M

R A A

U    —       -
a- o u

UU U

ui d d d w

T c Ep
el Z I m ci a N   %     c°i cia
C

2 E9 0)  a  - 0       .    0.  0.  0.

p -0 0 m    :!     
III,    .

E y0 o 5 m y t t t

U J m O F li Pt-  W M o e o Q d     -  v.)  ro
Q0_

a< Q W • • •

U co o g 0000000000000000000000000.-. d
Ncs,

7 n O a) aD ooQ o 0000000000 O

x Cl)

X Q

X O
v X r

2 j x
z

3X
0

x x

x xxx

x xxxxxx

xx xx'xxxx x

z xx xxxxxx x

N 0       > 0)0>0> 0>0)0 X X

da
v

vC

a X

x
LT,      

XX X

XX X X

I xx x x x

1 x x X x xx X x x xx

0>0)0> 0> 0 x X X x xx

xxxxxxxxxxxx xx

z N MN OCI) aD f tO NQ MN OCI) aD f` l0NQ MN OOI OD f taNQMN OO1 ODPt0N Q MN OCR OD 1 t0N 2f   { 0 3 2 10 10 3 N N N N N N N N f)N Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q V Q M A M M M M c•) M f')M N N N N N N N N N N
3

m200000000000000000000000000 o .- n a e o
V

n n a n o 0 o 0 o a o o o o o 3

S' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1-   en n 03 n 0 .- en n 0 0 en a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
1r2—.1 u m m $ m 2 ^n 2 n 3 m n 3 3 4 4 4 & 4 e e e Q < n n n n n a n n n n N r ar N H r N 3 as " 4 4 4 4 4

397



x x x
a a a

N A M

N.

T toot
m U to

C
S Z N Nn:  n:   5 - o"  0o co

v :%•  r QNi rn
a)     o E  '-  4 a

o 0 o too„   

V  _   X Vc CD CO 0
n

m
C

N
m

s co O O

icci

C
d

VN

W

c
ro i v cx

c

m

1-
a)       

m

Q     = a

C a>      a)  ac a)
a     >

E    <   co
a)
G O.

Y N T

O O o N N N

O 2 N O'      O N ca To 7.
O O U V VU U

U U U

ci d d m 2

C
c c

E
a u

a N s
rn  to a g g

22
r 5v d a v y a a a

O -       U G N r E O E    !^ i O C d V L L L

p 0)   R O R G t0     '  O NV J CO 0 1= it FF Lo u)     o 0 o 4 a N CO

0.
O co

0. 4 0 W • • •

0
6

U CO 0 0000000OOOOOOOOOOOOON.-.- t0M tp t0tn M Otp V O V N ON V N O 000000000 O
CC r•

N
i  __—____ _.__.._.._..     ...  .._. _. _._..   _.___.._____   —  --  _.__     J

I-
0
0

i 2QCC
x x

0

x xxx

X x XXXX x

X,  xxxxxxx x X

xxxxxxx x x

M 0<0<0<0<0<0<0< 0<0<0<0<  X XX

f

VC

W

XXX X

xxx xx x

x xxxxxxx xx

XX X  ' X' X X X XIX X X X X

X XX X X X X X X X X X X XXX X I

i N R MN 001 MI7tO N Q MN 244444Q MN   :? A   : i AA MN AMM! AN eMNt   00100' t0N N
tD tD 1 LI tO tO tO N N N N N N N N tff N 7 e e e V V 7 7 R e M M M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N N

A'

2,m

3 o a a a o o a o 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - - e - o n e n e ht,  004- 001- 000000000000

l' a o0000 000 0 0 00NNOt0 _ mLe, . LOc, u+ e1oenro .- 000000000 1

g113 7O O rO t0
b

O N N N f NN N Y N V   ^<N e e e e e e e e 1 Cf 2 N N N N N 2 2 V N N
0

398



x x x
0.  0.  0.

ca M v
N N M

2

2eg
a m
C

o
co

o d 0 V - 0 OD sip
N

C .
d..      a N

o 0 o O z.j V .    x  • V LL

W 0 co

co?
N co 0 O b

as m  =  

a

0

e.

45)
a)    

w
j InM

j F

1
C

Q     > a

c    ¢  12  ' 0

It co N       °
1

E 0c D a a a
c

p 2 c0 a1 O V co N i6 N
Sa m U r       —    —r

0 0 0

ui ym m d

T G A a N
as Z daNg' 

d d
cZ

a
ogiOaaa

O tw     ; Si o y0

a.
d a

p O C 2 d t t t

U m 0 Pit Pi=  wm 4 m a-;  
u-, coo

as

p w aat w

r• c0

U CC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.-.- 0.- 0 0 0 V M.- N N N N( O C M M tD M   ( D V M N.- M 0 0 0 0 0 p

N

I

I-OI-0C
J

ZQcc
3 0

x x

xxxx x
D

xxxxxxx x

x xx   >6>6>6>6>6>6>6>6>6 x x

y xx x xx xxx xxxxxxxxxx> xx

NdV
1

9

J I

Oa i

y
w

xx

x x x

xxxxxxxx

xxxxxx xx

xx xxxxxx xxxxxw
xxxx xxxxxxxxxxxx

iNO'MN OMM1, lON OMN OMMI,( ONOMN OM M N tONa MN 001121, W W R MN 00, WI, WM 1
N N N N b b N N N N N N N N O N a a a a a a aa a a M M M M M M M M M M N N N N N N N N N N

J
V300 “ 900000000000 0 0 ••  o , o 0 o n , o  r w a r e YIP u+ m m e n ... CA , m o 0 0 0 0

gy0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o w a o v VI , Wet e . b e N N n 00000000 1
p u u g z m m 4 ui U U 3 2 of . n of a 4 n ( e in e m a - e m 3 e'i m m m m am a a a a n w a w a

Ip* 

u
a

399



APPENDIX B
Collision Rates

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

400



II
cm
to

m

c
41. 4"'    0 0)    0)    O 0)    O O O O c)    't O CO O ti     -

O r O    —    O 0 O O O N r O r O O    —   W
4_,•,     ,  O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

t
N

k

F>1

M CA N Ln M r M M O O Cfl Ln O Ln r 0
N-    O CO Lf)    N.    CA N -    CO O O O M to 0 O)    0
N r r    -    N .    O N M M Lf)    Ln CO Nr.    Ln Ln Ln Ln

e O O O O O     -    O O O O O O O O O O O

1 Cit

i 0)    N in h-    1'    CO CO 0)    r CO 0)    M r O

Ni-    O)    N r CO N-    0)    c')    O)    O Q)    N-    O co N-
Ln co co 0)    O O O)    N CO N-    co r Ln N-    co a)    N

i N to r CO CO CO CO 00 N.    Ln 0 N-    O CO 0 N-
3 ;  N N N N N r r r r r r N r N r N r

co 0 N N O 0 O 0 N N 0 N 0 I-

k

O W
U) O F-

z w w F- z

1--- J a

I.     H a m 5 w D D Q    >    <    >    - I F-   a J H

m
Z

U)    2 m Z Z U a U)   Z
mQ

Q f
Z W W

a

a

0 W    ~    
W C

2
Z

W
m

Li
O J Q a Q'    Z Z a I-    Z m Z F-

a m a o Z d CCJ
2 0 CL a W W U)    W Z      >    f

cc O a0  >-    o O H Z    <    OC J W Q    = 3 as O O
O     -  U) w 0 a I I m 0 0 W W Nl U) CC 0 Z

ZZ

Q a 2 z
x

0 W W a a w w a

N.E.     
c H Z

U)    
W W a    >    a

a    }—   Z
J

a U
Z

LLIz
z a

0 0
m

05 za 2 W
CO

W W
I- LI><    ,    

Q Za Q W 2 ZH W a

Y
O z F-    m        

Y J a a cz z O    -    z m Z

CCa D Z a.    C[    J
i a CC a W W D W z    >

W C 0    <    >-   0 F-    z    <    Nr J W 0 D    <    0
a CD m OD U J I N m 0 0 CL m a CO U

Q    >Q

2 2    >    >    >      
U)   U)    

U U U U
roa Q a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 z z z z

Q Q Q J J J J J J J J Q Q Q Q

CtCCD D D 5 5 E 0 5 0 5 5 W'    eccrct
w a    <    a a    <    <    <    <    <    <    <    a
Q Q    <    <    <    m m m m m m m CO CO CO CO m

N M d'    co CO N-    co C))    
O r N Cr)    d-    Ln CO N-
r r r r r r r r

401



m c

r N N N N d U
N N N N O O N N O CDO O NO 0 CD O O

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

c

a m
m

a 4. 0>  O O L!)    0 0 0 0 0 0 CO 0 0 CO N-    0 0 0 p,
0 O    -    O O O O O O r-    O O N O O O O

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O
W

C3

C7
O N N N'    N M CO O O)    O N O O

OM
O O O

k C O O N N N N-    M O O O CO O O O O O O

0 O    .—    N N N N CO U)   O CO In O O)    In In Lo

O O O O O O O O O    ,    O O    —    O O O O

a

co O O CO CO r O
O N CO

CO CO
O

M M M I—    O CO CO N CO
N C

ti CO M4,      -  

O CO
O r-   V CO N O    '    

M O)-    U')    —   
Ce)

i z,' CO    .-    I    CV CO ti O O O CO M
in M O OM

r r

a;. 1x

O O r O O O O O 0    (N1 0 0    —    .    0 0 0

vet'  0
111111118

0 W
W

W
W

Z
W    >   

W

Q    > CC      v w
Q

w

Q w Z U)    U)  

zz m i Q Q    ( 
a

Q m Q U Q
W O W O OF-  Z Z

W 1—    J W Q M       
J   =  

3
Z 0    -,    z

J m Z p 0 Z    =    u.  UOJ J W z
Q S w o z      >  Q z zWW a

t   
1       W w O D Q Q   O W I-    W 2 Q O    ,_

i

Q W
C7 W W 00 U) W o Q U o W U)   oc o 2 o m O

0
CC

O w

s W
W W W

Z

W
Q Q LU

Q    >    >    >  E1W Ye Q W        >  Q
F  Q z

Q u)    Q    _i Q        >    
o    >   w    >    Q

u.      U v)    cn Z m H V w CO Q U
z

a    ¢    z
w o W Q a Q

z z

Y J I—    J W Q O Cn Q w        Q W Q

wry
CC W W w b-    Z    >    0 C Q z Q Q rI w
Q W    >    O 2 Q Q O 0!   W O W w p    —I—    Q
m Q5 W oL m U)    C)    LL U 0 00 0 J 2 U m

W

I-
t      >    >    W W W W W W    >    >    >    >    J U)    U)    U)    w

Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q CO CO CO CO 2    (/)    U)    (/)    ( J)
1),     

U'     0 w U)    U)    Cl)    Cl)    Cl)    <    <    <    <    <    WW W W
W W D 0 0 D D D z Z Z z Z

W W W CC

w w I-    F-   I-    I-   O O O O O
0 0 0 0 0 0 U U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

co C)    0 r-    N M    ' t U)    CO N-    CO CA O    —    N M
N—   N N N N N N N N N N M M M M M

a.,, sem

402



u
U

J d v-   d d'    10 N N N d•    d d•    Cr)    d•   0
O o O O O O O d-    N N N 0 0 N 0 N 0   - 0

N N N N N N N N N C N N N C     '    N m,?

ti-  c

a..,...
TI N

CD 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 ti d O O O O co O O a,
O O N O O O Co O    •-    N O O O O N-    O O

W
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

4 oN

O O O O
O)    Oo M    ( na)   n Cl)    O LIB O CC O

Ln in IC)    In 1-    N N t!)    u)    IC)    Nr.    N in Nr.    10 Cl)    In

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O Oa 

Sup-  

ti

sai, 

N
O N CA-    C))    N O CO

d

2 '  <I1IIC)    06COCO CO O O
O O 00 Ln    ( n ti 00 d•    (.,j    (O

M N N N e-    1-    N-    N-   N-

q .     O O i-    0 0 O 0 CD Cl)    d•    0 0 0 0 N-    O 0

N,    w O

w Q    >     z

Lu    
Q    > 0 111

W j Q E

wcOCm>    Q
U Ycip Q

N Zm    =        m

O w Q U m QOww Q ZO J.

Z Z u..       
Z w Z m Z Q J Q O    >    Q

W Z z        W    >    Z W Z 5-    W Q Z cC Z
J Q    >    D    >-    O W D Q   O w O Q        0CQ    

O M w W 00 U W m W U Q W m w    <    >    w

w O

Fes.
w    <       Y ZW

w
W W

w Q Q 1—    
m w J W 1-    Q    >    }    Q E—    >    ¢    Z

W U m Y m
U CA Z m m W W

Q O w w w O wL1 O W
Q j W Q    =    Q J Q W

Z Z Z Z        W
Z Z Z m Z I J Z CC

L .    >
Q w Z w 0 W    >    

J
w Z    >    >   p    >    o

O
CC

O 0
Ce

m a.    a 0 0 5 d a)    0 OU W m OU i 0

W W W W
W

Q Q Q Q W W W W 0 0 0 0 Z

fn w w W W'    W W
Q    <>t'    <>t.    Q m m m m

W J
W W W                                    

Z Z Z Z
Q W

W W W w w w w    <    <    <    <    J J J J J
ctU 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

e 10    ( fl N.    co O O        N CO        In CO        CO O 0 x---

M Cr)    M Cl)    Cl)    Nr d•    d•    d'    d'    d'    Nr d r d'    LC)    LO

ti

403



m
c

z o
d'    d'    .-    a)    r-    h-    T'""    N d-    N d'    ( N d'    

U

N N N 0 0 N N N tO N N 0 N 0 N 0 N o
N N N N N N r-    N N N N N N N N N m

U

c
m

a     :     d'    O dO 0 0 O        ( N O O O    .<:::...3 N O r-    O   
d'    OMOOOO00OD O

1 13,   CD CD 0 0 O O 0 0 0 0 CD 0 O CD 0 CD 0
co

3,      oN

a

1I1i$
N-    O

O
O O

C)
D IN N

o I-    O
N-    

O O tO O

N to to t0 tO    -    CO N N d,    N-    to N U)    tO UC)    to

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

N to M a)    t70 O N O O I`    M    ,-    O tO 01 00

M I--    O O)    r-    N O tb O
O d'    p N N 00 M,    

CO M CO CO dr I    O)    00 d_    
O O)   O N O 00

r O Cp U)    1.      Ir e—    d'    d'    1 N CN CS

c       `.'   O r-    O O O CD 0 CD CD 0 r-    N O

amat CK

0w w
MOM 0 F-       

a w wW w    <    <   a
w Z Y

r
U W Q w a

O    -I u.   w
a a LLIJ w W    >

t is 03

Z
a Z a O W O 0 O vii

a Z I-    -I Q Z a

0 0    (n 2 a J w a cn w a w
m

w Z Z D 0 m J CL
D CL w Y U)    J

O
L

Q    <    J
O Za 0 0 0-    '   6

N2
J 1

2 0 m 0 0 0)    w O m 0 0 m Ow g a Oi U

W W

I-      W
a w w

m
w a

ra U W
a

W
a w O

W
a    >    

Z U

W
m Q

a
L     <    --,..>    1--

U)    
J    (n Q

a a W w

m0 Z
a

O w w 0 O 0 Z    '    J a
sus J

Z
D a J J Z W    <    W

J W c    <    Z w w 0 0 2 c Z CC 0 J

CL O W J W J J a a O
a I 0 m 0 O cC0-    0 m a 0 m    >    - J Q I

0
z    _zz z

r

D D D D
w w w    >   ry w

g
a>    a a a a a

R
u,        v,    u,    m        <> a a 0 a- 0 z z z z

w w w w w w w W CLCL Z Z Z W CL CL EL

2        
r.  

I-    E-    i-    I-    f-    I-    I-    w w w w w w w
m m m m

w w w w w w w Lw Ow WW    >   Z Z Z Z
3    : 3    : 3    : D    >    >    w w w O O O aoaoaoao

N M Tt tO CO fss 00 O O    •-    N M d'    tO CO I--    00
U)    tO tO tO U)    6O tO to CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO

404



ago

O O O O O N N N 0 o
N N N N N N N N N co

Asa'  :"   N

N

4.    1
ON OOO CoO O O
O O0 0 O O O O O Lu

F
y a

cr At:     ON

c __      
O O O Nr O to N-    O NI-
O O O O O lA N O O
In to In M to r to M

aO O O O O O O O O

are;   
to Lo    ,    co O

F    '    O co-    N-    O c Od    '    N

0 2 a*
0 3 O O    '—    O    '—    O 0 0 O

a

sr
t LL

O
as, 7,    w w w 0

Q
w

2z Q z
J w W

UW

FU—    F-    
Q

Q Ow Q J 1— 
QU J

QwQ0 JF-    O a v (
QZ J z w Q F- 

D  „   F- 0

Q0Q wo a    oa Q a
m C7 m w 0 w w U w w OC

m

j j

U 0 U)   U)
R

z Q O U)    O 0 Z

D c J J w J F-    )    ri
Ct 5 a.    5 W w

z U    <    w    <    >-    <   0 m

Z Z

Q w w w

w
Q Q

Z Z      <    <    
w

Q Z Z z
Q Q

te
LLJW 9 YY YY m m• O O W W

0 CC CC CC
Z Z 0 U Z

Z O O O
u) cc  ce u)    U)    U)    >

O O    ,    N M vt to    ( 0 N-
co N-    N.    N-    N-    N-    N-    N-    N.

405



APPENDIX C
Survey Equipment

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

406



SURVEY EQUIPMENT USED

The radar equipment used to collect speed measurements for this survey were Stalker
Dual SL or Stalker DSR manufactured by Applied Concepts of Plano, Texas.   The

calibration of the units were checked before each series of measurements were taken.

Tests of the unit were conducted in accordance with the manufacturer' s specifications.

The Stalker Dual SL or Stalker DSR radar guns were last calibrated on April 8, 2015 by
RHF Inc.

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

407



r . i

0C IncRH
War Repair

TRAFFIC RADAR CERTIFICATION
TES IL ID 10 NII ISA SPECIFIC ATIONS I LACP CRITICAL PERFORMAN5, E SI ANIFARDS

MUSA) National Highway acid Traffic Safely Administration.
1ACP) International, Assnetatiors of Chiefs of POIlte.

16202 Keats Circle 15. 11. F. is a certified independent testing and repair futility.
Westminster, Calif. 92683

I ic ceisedFIT '      fEST 1.0 11 Ccarticanogro,pla
1--

M Model StalkTyer-       pe(. 1. I Vi Directional radar Same direction
1

1 k DEivier, 0     _
Applied Concepts  „,.     _    Dual SC or DSR IV 0 Yes   ... geNo

Csimbpg unit. SiN 13r0-Antenna- 1 i      , i(ya i;i Antcrirt4-2 SIN
i

2.4 i§ 5 4
Low speed link SOS Last date cairn Erect i Ilm   ( Speed( spphi Measuresi( Hz)
Zi X-   Z IS.

cALuIRA.r N.,,N tile„.11 speed Kirk Siti last date calib.     ' Emu ( it Izi Speed irtipl)   Nleasurpd 0.1z)

fork speed( mph)     25 40

Stationary mode
5 2 5 I-5 55 Disp Speed( mph)    Z' 5-   0

RADAR DEVICE
PASS     .

I

1 Displayed.  LAIL
TUNING FORK Moving mode TARGET SPEED

r'31cc154   ,

TESTS Opposite Direction    ( 1. li fork- to fork)     ( 111PIIII I'   mph)      
rr° (

mode
TARGE r SPEED Expected Displayed,     .....*

Stomp Ilt fork r to fink      ( mp)     65 illiPh)     e (
Same f) IIWIlarl       . -

ILI Pl.&- Lis fork     • 115
I-

i

Standard supply I Arirtla 1.   , A44011142

r 5 5 6 I Volta  ( VI 1E6 V Freq. GHz , 5". V- 7 is r"     Freq. GH,     
TRANSMISSION Standard supply Antenna I Antenna 2
3s

FREQUENCY Voltage- 2011.( V) 10i8 V fret5, Olt  .,74"/ - 3 if 7-     freq. Gliz CrLj MIL

STABILITY Stamford supply Antenna I Antenna 2

voltage+ 20%( V)  163 V Prot,.Gila 3',/ IIN 7--     Freq. 01 izNiA

icy2. 6 51 5 5 6, 5   ; Mfg( Spec Antenna 1 Antenna 2
6

POWER DENSITY   ( max( 11Whicar S, 2 Miser( mWreisu   : i r-r Power( mWrcri)

mis2
g' i 51 Mfg. spec LVA activates LVA deactivates

LOW VOLTAGE    .
61 5 14k14    ( V)   

3 0
IV)       

Irl
MS FAIL

I

2 9 1 i 5 5 9 1 A Mikio tang correlates with reed Doppler signal

TX) PPI,ER AUDIO B.  Functiortin, audio solead ustmerst

controlerrYm
c No

AILtIIilly P

5 212,4/ 1 5, 12.4 Mfg. Spec.  fest results

INTERNALr MSPASS 27 S SFAIL

CIRCUIT i

2 1265 r§      A Selects only targets moving towards radar c Yes c No segN A.      I
10 5 12. 6. 5 13 Selects only targets moving away from radar n Yes    ( s. No  '( elIN A PASS FAIL

DIRECTIONAL

Soar
Low speed spec.   12 Lo speed disp     / L-

y mode.
target ebannel( mph)  Hi speed spec 200 1 lir speed drip ra

2 i2.7152128(
5. 12 7 512 11 Moving Mode

Low speed spec 20 Lo speed dim 2.0
II IOW AND 111( 113 target eturinselratillii

diAZiSS FAIL

SPEED DISPLAY 10 speed spec.   200(C) lit speed( hap,      •" rdc.,

FEST

Mode:       
low speed spec 15 I.o speed strap

1 Moving
patrol channel( mph)

Hi speed spec 79 lit speed disp.       7

ri 1,      
4 2 13'§ 5 13     :( 4.ISIFIll'°.',1* Tirstsvii4g(IiiryLC,   0*(...„(prigtgropprigggs- Yr(v„ 4-,giggs", c..krigTir,yxristleopitrm,', via pAg k FAIL
RH TEST r‘ s.1 sittri:;;:pe'rui1.(

g1i%2ISIgeeLIMIii4i(or041151111113071," •/ 1V.,,t('i(,;..2',
4I,‘"

I'.','" cii,IIN-24,s",' U'I;211471i* Aiikk.I.I0   , I-'
LAIWRATORY

13
COMMENTS 4

This radar device meets or exceeds the minimal operational standards ofthe iVatIo5al traffic
Highway Safety Administration. California Vehicle Cade Section 40803 ZPASS 13 FAIL

1 t 4
NILLSAIIACP

c'Earir CA rtoN

Certified byt Date;   (...    ,.: 5(2.... 1
1 OL.440, 11,1444.0m

15 i INVENTORY
LI "

I"''

al i Manual      , u 2" Ant n Remote c Flattery I i

ci CAUSIII. CMC u Other( lease list

I
I
1

408



iTRAIV CERTIFICATION

IffRH?        iESTED TO HOTS t.SPEC1h4CA°fiO iS I LActa CRITICAL PERFORMANCE STANDARD

Rada* R apr€r
iNIT aA) National Ifi hMry entreTraffic Safely Administration.

itAtli Internattunal Aeration ofchief%+atF ǹllce.

16202 Keats Circle RILE, ix a certified-independent resting and repair facility.
Westminster,[ blit 92613

1
TEST 10

DateDate it s' d
s—  

i"crii2iai  pye r

ty

RM
Model Stalker-     fylx( l- 1 V}'      j Isirc° radar Same direction

IIlaillil
DEVICE

toUuaI SL or titin IV V as^Alsa rf V̀es   , c} No

Cesc,,,4,  
it

s
Antenna• I SIN 0 "7a` Vit'/   I Antenna- 2 SIN

2.4 1 9 3 I
Lo s+••• dfor; S:"N1Gast deet walih I rey, € It)     S}  d{ kph}   Mc

z

tsr ' #  c)

3 tower)FORK       . 
r      '    7'

r r`' 

9 FAIN
Ire d hark d d ReyGana e DIrl Speed( mph)   treasured ilio}

C' : l.if#RATIt I
i I ti iddr° e

3.
a et  <•x f  ., ...;, 1;

736.   ,...,.,,, I. 0fork lir. fork

SSSS
i

Fork spt ed MOD2S 40

Summary mode
Si I 3. 5 Dsp Speed ini,ph)     e!

RADAR DEVICE
71X21 V{, FORK Moving to sle I MOAT blPEED

i_epectcd Irisplayed 1' AS FAIL  •

TESOppositeDirection 11h fork tratph)     t S tntplt)     , r tt

Moving
modeTARGET SPEED Expected Displayed  .. ,)-'"       

Ili fork a Lo fork      ( mph;)    65.  mph)
Same Direction

Ili fork- lo fork IS

Standard supply Antenna I Antemrra

226€ 1 S 6 I Vol in Of, 3.6 V Fr Cilia    ?' d. -' Z 7 F"tc, Preis

TRANSMISSION Standard supply Antenna I    „,,   „,,.. Antenna 2

FREQUENCYENC"Y Ve31ti.*      r _
w

7 PAS FAIL
Yu-Riot- 2 %. 0') limit V Frei title    - /     Pry 0117,

STABILITY Standard supply Antenna I     ,      , Antenna 2
whale s 20% V'  10, 3 V Frei, GI Is   •- i  ' * a.. 7 Fre flisN/ A

1111   § 2 6 3,  3.6 5 Mfg..Spec.  Antenna I Antenna 2

POWER DENSITY ima~6 mW,'cm)     S 2 Power tmW/ rm)   A Z,..      Power( mwicm)   
PASS`    FAIT,

12$/  511 hltg spec LVA activates EVA deactivates

LOW VOLTAGE    (
V)       5 1011    ( V)     

7 'I       (
V)    

t-'*       AS.'i FAIL

112 g 1/
9 8

7. 8. 1 A.  Audio tone cnrreliim with reci'•eel Doppler sr z6l e r"es 3 Na
kS,'    } AIG

DOPPLER AUDIO ti.  Funerooln. audio vultune. ad' ust mrnt comrot eyes r; No

I
22. 12 411 5. 12.4 Mfg. Spec.  est result%%

9 STERNAL PASS dr.'' r E' A.ì..°  '  FAIL
CIRCUIT

d_.

r 212.6.5 I§      A Selects only targets mining Eiwards radar a Yes   ,€ 7 No   , er NSA
ate..

Ili 5 12. 6 3 B Seleets only targets moving away from radar Q. Yes a No grN,A.     PASS F611€..

DIRECTIONAL

Stationary mock
Low speed spec.   12 Lo speed dtsp     ,,,

target chart set t,mph)  II r speed spec.   200 Ili vett.'drip.
12.127112. 1287

512,713128 Moving Mode
Low speed spec,   20 to speed dish.      7 41,

yt LO}},. AND 111011 rat ) channel( mph;) t
1 J' A FAIL

SPEED DISPLAY Ili speed spec.   200(11 I ti speed drsp 414, I
TEST

Moving wl It:       
Low speed spec.   IS to speed drag,      ,..-'       1

patrol channel Itnph)  
let speed spec.     79 Di speed di

1.      
kICIIBi§ 313

t ) xr

si  ,'       H f`x
yx

SSSS

2     ”    ltill

11
LABORATORY'C3MR

tTN
51Y

This radar device meets or exceeds the minimal operational standards ofthe National Traffic
Highway Safety Administration. California Vehicle Code Section 40803 MASS 0 FAIL

I NIITSAiIAC:P
14

CFR FIFI( AI'ION  '

Certified by;       
rT       -04.4.,14,....,,       

hare:    
f

fff''" 
1

l%      INVENTORY
0 Fork Cat u Manual o 2*3Ant r Remote       .: Li Battery
o Carrying 0 Other( pirase last)__  

A
409



11111111morrelionmprok

F Inc
TRAFFIC RADAR CERTIFICATION

FES f ED TO SHISA
S

spEct FICA TIONS i IACP CRITICAL PERFORM,ANCE STANDARDS

I( RTS. ) National Highway and Tffirac Safety Adinatmistrion.
Radar Repair LACII toternatdonal Association of Chiefs of Polices

I
16202 Keats Circle WILK Is a certified independent te.: ing and repair Utility.
Westminster, Calif, 92683

i Date Receives(
d 1 TEST ID 5?— 1!

r .    Make Model Stalker-     Typc( I- IV/ Directional radar  ! Same direetidwro      '

a 1 APIltd Cilt/i Dual SL or DSR IV 0 Yes  ./ e7o Nu AYei  ,, e/ No
d 1 2 DEVICE ID     -   

itd   ° 4ct

Counting urtjt SaW Antenna- 2 Sdi'N
05/0, cdt i Aotinum- 1 SIN  . addk '", /

j  ,fi ,      l'

Low speed fork SIN Last rine calih Freq, illzd Speed( mph)   Meartned OD)
7._e

1    ..  
PAS,'    FAIL

1 CALIBRATION
t ti WI wee/ MM sTra

j_2•7' i? 7.../''
Last date califs.     Ere+ Utz)     Speer0

lIpiph)   Measured( 1,121

r,,f,:,:.4,E4%,  ..%•..41,u4„ i,,,i-t-1,,,sda, Lo Mrk High fork

d Fork speed( mph)     23 40

d Stationary mode
1 2,5/§ 5, 5 Disp. Speed( mph)
1 RADAR DEVK'E

Expected Dm:dared,      PG,    MIL
TUNING FORK Moving mode TARGET SPFED     ,!" 

k,     ,,,  

TESTS Opposite Dtr4:014.41    ( k Irk- Lo fork)     ' 1111/"/     ''   Imph)      i 5

riTARGET
SPEED Expected Displayed,  

4- ,,;--
1

s.iI1 e
Hi fork+ to fork      / mph)    65 011P11)

1 Same Dumdum
iii fort- Lo fork 15

57--

4
Standard supply Antenna I Antenna 2

2,61,/ 15 er 1   , Voltage( V)       I3.6 V Freq. Calf  .. 7(// 79 t Fast Glit
rRAT NSMISSION Stamford supply Antenna)     Antenna 2

d 5d    - GPAS.'    FAIL
FREQUENCY Voltage- 20% 01) 10.8 V Freg Gila   /

7

ddi - 7 q\—    Freq GI la
d 1 STAIIII.rry Standard supply Antenna 1 Antenna 2

Is voltage+, 20"1/ i Cs)  163 V Fre GI le 2. 5/(,..._      _ tu11111aN/ A

r
I

11    , 2. 65 i'§ 5 o 5 Mr8d5PeT Antenna I Antenna 2

f.5.0i    "     POWER DENSITY   ( roudux lViem)     5, 2 Power( mWddrin)   4 fd/x 6:       Power( roWicm)    
FAIL

2. 8/§ 58
Mr.1474' d LVA activates LVA tkattiVatet

Low vlx,A617 co 5, 10. 8 IVI 7 f" v)  t?, t FAILDA•S d

2 9 I 26 5.9 I A Audio toot eitrrelatt.5 with received Doppler signal trYes u No
XMS;9/    FAIL

DOPPLER AUDIO B Turictdoturig audiu volume-adjustment control ri"Yes o No
i

6 2 OA i§ 5 12,4 Mf Spec. 7 den results

9 INTERNAL PASS 4,4s-r MS FAIL

CIRCUIT

2, 12, 6 5 i§      A Selects only targets musing Inwards radar 0 Yes n No   „ daar' N A

10 5 12 6 3 II Selects only targets inuring away from radar a Yes ei No NI N A PASS FAIL

DIRECTIONAL

I
StationarLow speed spec 12 La speed/ top      / 2--

y mode:

target channel( mph)  Hi speed met 200 10 speed disp.      si 0csF
2, 12, 7 01212 Si

5 127/ 5, 12 8
satosing/ Mode

Low speed spec 20 Lo speed dim,       7 a
FAILII tAP51 AND Illtill t,,,,gct du,„,,,ci( mph) POS

SPEED DISPLAY 1- li speed spee.   200(C) IIIspeed disp,      Z/0 0
TEST ki

Low speed spec.   15 Lo speed disp 7

Moving Mode'
patrol chrome/( mph)  

Hi speed spec.     79 th weed disp 7 7
d 17 dr/ ••  ' 5'

d

it-,7/1157,C4dP7' d"/-''  

t64§5:' 404,a7e54'
7d-WrI....5" di1dada,., asat, vad,addlvd./-- 4155.4T/v7disr4s PAS 1- Alt

RTI FEST id/..-/ redd/'42, d!!:

d'-.../

7- 1.
7.

ddx.47'
2d •    +

oald//' 55/movdroe odd• dmre-fid/0 ,,,,,,_ A,Aa...,,,,,, ,,4,..1,,,,,,,,- -, ;<", 1-,t4

LABORA TOR Y
11)

COMMENTS

This radar device meetor exceeds the minimal operational standards of the National Traffic
Highway Safety Administration, California Vehicle Code Section 40802      , ifPASS 0 FAIL

t
i 14

Mid SAilACP

CERTIFICATION

1 Certified hv: Demi
5/„..

s2...../ 
1----7,-5- 55/   5174.0.40- vddesdardaw---

n Fork Curt 0 Manual 0 4.
54

Ant g Remote 1
15 INVENTORY

0 Battery
c Canyhio Case c Other dplemie list)

1."       

raisi

410



APPENDIX D
Recommended Speed Limit Map

2016 Engineering and Traffic Survey
City of Covina

411



a,/ r€/ro AP, Da ' s• nrden a- w: s\ d^. c. dsVaa slot wvm- wcsoiR?uai\:,: aw kwon

1,..'      " r,    1:" r,-,,,',:',   ",,,.....;-.•  i   '-  \    -
0

1.,,'".,

0 Lu

I    _ f W

I
V a3MOldNn Ilf r z

U
N

@.'     

d11   (     
0 Z LL1..._

x;
ro

1

t

l     '  '

tza;•  .
s

fl F— W
r E"'

L'
f 1 l'<   /   O

1

7`

tU
N
OU3AVa3033aRC.15''''-      

f

jmet

a3033a" '     
Y

4
cL•

iki
tra ' ill li )   :

1 t::::.;.,:r.,„,)r-,-.    ''Ill 1 L     , '   ) .   1t

A i

1,....    ,    z,; 1 3nv. Vao0N3O t4_ 5.711111, 3 , 1e. .. I ?     _ , i. 1J t; 
gam '::_ \     

N,>,       h
3

3nV Va00N310Ia, 1 1•

41   :!`     

I[    1   ,  : A r

I r    ,,  ''     fes;

a k(    m H 1 ti

ro
til    ,   _       _    1li .       .

R0. 
r still

3AV ONWO       „ 1 3AV ONVtl0 4c'       

I 1 i x jV ONVa0 \-,+, 5   ,    ...1,••]..,•,:::::::', V,  li I       is Ii
5    t` S .       \     \    /

1111 F--][ lif A       !! 1:,,,,./

p
3.rt ii

x     , 1     ,,  
of      „      R. 11

I

I,•....,,,,,.........,--
I j

5 t O J m4 t

1ki'    ,  w
f

e

f  ._     ii 3n v Nraare
1

F '—1

3AV VONVaaVB 3

j
r knV V3NVaaVB

1.  1 1l

U

3AV Snall0, 199991[    ,.      i     { I 1 k' l
III I

u,. aifi,4a     ;..   
r

is
3AV snavo

ba

3AV NO3RN3TON
m,   14 A      ;     -   "`, n

1
s  ...

i.;,-,...   dWYT § mss+     
i$   ( '

j

L    ,_   
1'   -=',..'

7i, R
ms,) ? r    , 

F
of

1,
J€       w.    l     "'   :

i

Y"__    
3nv vsnzv' N 11  ..  1  , '

I8 (§,(   1 _    t v.

I,   ut      ' 3AY VSnZV' N

f
i„..,.  ...

w 

11,.
i$      i til  : I 9 a

al
i, ra'a      k L-

I J11 M

n.       ...._.   ._      
J

y   (    
3AV N3113 Na'/ 1 I 1'     "'  a_  t( 7 0 ,() 0 -

s e

1

i
11,   

3nv 1H30N   , t  ,

i t o    -. )    ..   
v n>.a.,`` J

r a

412



fwi LLD   
Engineering

413



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

414



ITEM NO. NB 3

ox (!)
1,

14  '  :.   '

1': .    

CITY OF COVINA
6

4/ 1 ok,:,' AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      2015- 16 Adopted Budget Mid-Year Review.

PRESENTED BY:      Dennis Swink, Interim Finance Director

RECOMMENDATION:      Approve the Revenue and Expenditure adjustments listed
on Attachment C of this Report.

BACKGROUND:

The City Council adopted the FY 2015- 16 budget on June 23, 2015.  The total budget

was $ 68, 818, 207 with a General Fund budget of $33, 198,207.   During the first eight
months of this fiscal year, the Council has approved various staff recommendations for
budget modifications to both revenues and expenditures.  This report reviews the current

status of General Fund and other budget issues.  The report also summarizes additional

revisions to the FY 2015- 16 budget.

DISCUSSION:

Last Fiscal Year Estimate.  Although the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report from last
fiscal year won' t be completed until mid-April, there is enough information to make a pretty
reasonable estimate of how the General Fund fared last year.  An unaudited statement of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund is presented as
Attachment A. This was prepared based on all the adjustments we know of at this time.  It is
likely these numbers will change somewhat when the final audit adjustments are posted but
the final numbers should be pretty close to this.  The schedule shows last year' s General

Fund revenues were $ 35, 481, 151 and expenditures were $ 32,740,267.   There were other

financing sources of 28,425 for a projected increase in fund balance of$2, 769, 309. There are
several reasons for the projected increase.  Higher revenues, including one-time increases in
miscellaneous and donations and a one- time adjustment to sales tax due to a reallocation of
taxes from another entity.   Lower expenditures, due to reductions in general government,

community development and capital outlay.  There are also some significant costs related to

labor force reductions that were expected to hit last fiscal year but due to the final timing of
those actions, were not incurred until this fiscal year.

Current Budget, year to date.  The 2015- 16 Adopted General Fund budget included overall
revenues of$ 33. 3 million, expenditures of$33. 2 million and a projected surplus of$ 95, 700.
Total revenue and expenditure adjustments as of March 9, 2016 included $ 1, 582,000 of

increased revenues and $ 2,346,000 in higher expenditures resulting in a deficit of about

415



668, 000.  The expenditure adjustments included the one-time purchase of the Banna Park

property which used $ 1, 641, 864 from the General fund.  These changes are summarized on

Attachment B.

Mid-Year Adjustments.  Staff conducted a review of general fund revenues and expenditures

for the first half of the fiscal year and are recommending a number of budget adjustments for
City Council consideration.   These include an additional $ 500,000 in one time sales tax

revenue. There are also $ 1. 3 million in General Fund appropriations for a net increase ofjust

under $ 803, 000 in spending.  The revenue increase is due to the one-time bump in sales tax
payments caused by the unwinding of the State' s triple flip mechanism that is being
eliminated because of the early repayment of bonds approved under Proposition 57 in 2004.

Expenditure increases were the result of several factors.    Costs associated with the

elimination of 22 positions include one- time leave and severance payouts of $434,000,

unbudgeted personnel costs of $44,500 due to delayed layoffs of some positions and

unemployment claims of $97,000 this fiscal year.  Because the layoff process took longer

than originally anticipated, these costs were not incurred last year as originally anticipated.
There is also a$ 353, 907 adjustment to the annual Fire contract with Los Angeles County.  A
number of legal and consulting increases totaling $ 325, 703 were the result of various work

related to personnel issues,  conditional use permit actions and document preservation

activities.  New programs including establishment of a 5 year tree trimming cycle, staffing
the new central reception desk, locking park restrooms at night, training for the Munis
Finance system, additional legal notices & training amount to $ 48,665.   There are also a

number of non-general fund appropriations recommended on the schedule including $77,000
in IT purchases, $ 41, 622 in Measure R Transportation funds for various street projects, $ 887

in Volunteen Web Berger Grant Fund and $ 553 in the Grandmothers Club Fund.

FISCAL IMPACT:

If these changes are approved as recommended, the General Fund Balance will be reduced by
802, 775 and the 2015- 16 Budget will more closely match with anticipated revenues and

expenditures for this fiscal year.  An additional $ 77,000 will be appropriated from the IT

Fund, $41, 622 from Measure R, $887 from Volunteen Web Berger Grant and $ 553 from the

Grandmothers club Fund. The proposed adjustments are detailed on Attachment C.

CEQA (CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

None.

Respectfully submitted,

Dennis Swink

Interim Finance Director

416



ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A — Unaudited Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances

Attachment B— 2015- 16 General Fund Balance detail Adopted& March 9, 2016

Attachment C— 2015- 16 Mid-Year Adjustments

Attachment D—2015- 16 General Fund Balance detail Adopted, March 9 & Mid-Year

417



Attachment A

crl•Y OF COVIN A, CALIFORNIA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended lune 30. 2015

UNAUDITED

General

Fund

Revenues:

Property taxes 12. 812, 809

Sales taxes, intergovernmental 6, 509. 382

Transient occupancy taxes 348, 14b

Property transfer[ ayes i 59, 795

Business license taxes 325, 219

Utility user taxes 5, 038, 078

Franchise taxes 1, 549, 731

Licenses and permits 965, 527

Intergosernmental 839. 182

Charges for services 2, 427, 359

Fines and forfeits 559,409

Special assessments

Investment earnings 128. 262

Miscellaneous and donations 3, 758.250

Thud revenues 35, 481. 151

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 233, 912

Public safely 25. 030. 125

Public works 2, 073, 284

Culture and reereation 4, 570, 191

Cummmnity develop neat 832, 75.5

Transit

Redevelopment and housing,

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures 32. 740, 267

Excess ldeftcien5-v) 01 revenues

over expenditures 2, 740. 884

Other financing sources( uses:
Gain on sale of property
Transfers out t350, 3311

Transters in 375, 7111

Total other financing sources( uses) 28, 425

Net change in tend balance 2, 7n9, 309

Fund balances at beginning of fiscal year 9, 167, 076

Pr ion period adjustments 085,23D

Fund balances at beginning of fiscal year
restated 8, 781, 845

Fund balances at end of tiscal tear 11, 551. 154

Sceat ruwpun sing notes to the( n. mh 9rtl statements

418



a1 0 0 0 0 0 CU N o 0 0 N
0000000 0000000

co 00 0 0 000 coM o 0 O M

o LLo LD1 v a o v4-
Ln Lr)  M Lrl oo
Q1 O1 cto mrnL

0 0 0 0 0 rn 0 0 0 rn
r. O M N N V Lrl O 0 Lr1 0

c "ctc O m N 0
rp 00 N N 00 ra N O N N N

CO
f0 O u1 Lr) rl N

N M LSD L m M

0000
C Lr)     LD ei C C LO O

7 7 4

LL LL

00 00
c C

O
C C
W W

O O O O O N O O O N N nO O O O O o O O O O O O O O O O
o O O O O O O O O O0 O O N L6
N N Ln 0 Ln N 0 0 M O1
oc00 D1 Ln LD

0o O O ' aN

u,     m a 0 N N Tr
L Ln     `" L m

N M M N rl L/ 1 N NM m M M

7 7

C C
aJ CU
0. a
X x
W W

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 LD
O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O 1

N 0 0 0 Ln O co 0 0 0 Ci co ONi rn QI

00 00 O O O     <- 1 O '- 1 r t

m M LD O LD N O N N LJ

N N rn O 000 Lir)    

O co
LW E

c rn m c m ri 1 i r-i
v-

j
m m m m 0

a) 0
CC CC

ro

a
a

m

LL

00000

0

00000

0 0

C 0a1 m Ln Cf C Oat rn LA

TO Ti.

CO c- 1

N     <- 176Ln N epi

m O V .- 1 ,-- 1m O     . 4 i-1 I- 1
7

N m
LLn C

N

M

LLn

C L"•    i'<-i'       C
Lr)•     lD

e.{

7 i 7 ri

U. LL

00 00
CC

C C
C C

6-0 m
CU CU

CO m

aa
co

Ln Ln

Q
O N

0

vC
c a) N` a a)  

r0
Cu

12 v
CU L v z

C o t     .
c°  u 0J

1:311 N V lL a Ll U Ly N
a

L
4.4

CCUaD
00 ra

m

N ' O1 GJ     ° N
al

000 0!     v Y h vw

aci a CU
v

c y y
v

@ p Q 0.1 r3 L. o aE
O v) W L7 0 0 La W • 7, L7

cp

u CO
oN L.

D: o C
L.

o Ln CD

O O

CI 13 0 0 Lrl r0 73
LD 01 C

O,
1 LD 01 C i     .+ O 41 L C C Li - G

Z co O co t 7 O 3 a ' L^'
Q Q     <-tr     .- 1 0 H Q O O O O O O

1 '- i '- L 0 I-     H V CL 0 CO LL.     0

419



It

0LL

aJCL
00

0 0

C Ni

c cc

a
oz O"

v,

4 Y
Q

a 0 ao
a
ro ,_

s

Q u C
p o

E c     •} 4-  v E
N

c NI E co
w"     

0 C 7  >    
1..       Y

as u O O

vCO
0

VI - NC

C
17

N C O L L
T

4-, N

3
ao c'
Eli OA Y

Ti     "    c . s
v

aJ

OJ

C C o p 3 0 w
C

E c
E

45
C '° "

O C C O     ( 0 0 L VIW
ro Tis 47.

c     ( n v •.  0 +  c  (0  ( o 0 v     '-    u E v Easo aJ L H     •`-'  aJ O o_ E L ao a

O
vUi u  `  aJ O  (  L

a

023
0 ' p

C
OZS aA

CU Na.     
a

C N aJ U aO YO C
cLI O coCU

7 d'  "     D O V .0 ro C.    ' 0 p aJ aJ  ` O +-'  f0

a a C.       L
o

C v a 0 v, v, C c
an o     . Y C a N v 7 a c a

j V? CU O  " a+  
CU N N O

4-,     O o C .- 1 co` LM 7 . aJ

c E v v  >  ( 0 u E v  (o aJ c
a •7,  v aO • E o ca

o

v a -D     > 7 <  EJ
Y     `°

OD aa u S n v

f6 rn

v C c
cu • E v ,°c° '0 00 ao u  (0ao 32

0

0 C a '
N O  ,-     aJ N o F-  aJ E O- [ . 0 M a c c ' D  "   1 aJ u —O

V? C
6 Lrl

ao ? to +-,  001 aO
cs0 y O 0 C x u

Ln

0

LI1 VI

O O v
C

C p ' p C +-' K O O u 0 O O f9 a C
0 O a

7 -
O• 

F- ' •  C O F- 1     a C < a- I L! 1 L( 1 L

E76 L O ! 0 O  " co 7 p aJ aJ m M M o C E
h

y N 7 o  "  E     _ 0 N vi ';_, b O ' E O U OD C vui C 1N 01 01 C N Y
as LJ     ( O C v O

0)  >  
O  >  O aJ aCJ   

7
0 cv aJ C  > C OLi 0i al

in
al O O

N 0 C     >  ( 0 J U D O Z Ln u W u i/? G .-( m Z O J O N N N 7 x

O 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 M LO u1 0 0 0  .•i 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 N M 0 M 0 Ln O N

C O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 u1 0 0 0 to 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 00 0 tl1 v1 N 0 Ni
O 0 01 0 0 0 0 V1 0 N. LO 0 0 u1 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 00 vsL(1 Oi d: tO

0
M

cos
00 1: O O t0 .--1 N 00 LA .-- 1

Nm
O O N O LJ1 1      Ln tt e- I .- 1

O M vs 01 01 LO N e- I     .- 1 0 M N .- i .•-1 N.      00 00 al Ch

E4-i00' ui 
a 4

N

CcaJ u ro

Q E ' E
CL v ILO v

L
0v

CZ v v a>J c o m o o -2

a+ O O

as as 0
O I-       v N     "  "  "

C
c  "  

C 3 8 aO _     Y 7
C N CU CU

yL.,     ` 
Y Y

CV CU c aJ
p O -'

s_ -' s_  (

0 0     ._  Ly
O c O O OCC O

C , C C aJ M 3 C)  
0)  

no     '( 0
o 0 ...1),     06 06 E

U O. a"

J43
O

E a E u°  (co '
u u u . .-  (

ca u u u e C u •u ' u  ("
o

C aJ C a C O LL 1-  ( o C C aaJ f0 CO 7 0 7 0 C 7 .'.' ."'' '  7 C U CI)     4- C  O 0 O 0 0     ( 0  ( 0 7 7 7
C G to     > ' u x U x U ' u. a U U D a i Q co E x a ct a a >     a a 0 a a a .e

LU 15
0

0101rN

as

01Tr Cr Cr

CLL U. LL LL LL U. U. LL LL U. U. LL U. LL U.

Q L.I. l7 C7 O U'  O CJ O O C9 L lD L C9 O C7 F- F- F- F- F-

420



el 88888 m8888h.0m8 8888 8
C000e

Mg
00m QQ00       ,.. i

0Ln
Ln

r1 Cl
m vi cci

l0
vi V1 N N

m 0. 0 o m v 2
7,

88888 r:7188821 gl888cn
uc ana O m N O U Vi S O Ul 090

W N N co
GI

A
p

N O N N N N O O N 01a
m Q1 a

10 N a CO
n vi    , 1 01rn UI  -

N m I m m co
m am a N.0

c it c v o c rn

m m

o
U.    U. LL
to to
C C 00C

W UJ W

88888 88880 N. 

8 8 08880 8
Ln00000 m 000 pp00a

N N V1 Q l! 1 Nol l0 9 O m N O N I
00 00 O1 V1 p c0

pO
O a N

a
1 1 a .

01 e- I Ni VI fag a~e}} O n N a n .Ni CO en
y1 M M y1 a e- 1 V1 N l0 ... - .' 1 M

N VI .- 1 lO    ,
m M 01 M v j m M

7 7 0 I
M y

Cl

c
U

a a c. 1;

W
p p p

W
pp p pp pp pp

W
p p

E

8 0 8 0 0 8 8 8 8 8 8
ci

IA8
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 ON

WO O O

cotri
O

8
O

O O

O N

N CO

SO .-
1 e-

icn
NT

O
8

tri ci

O

O O

O

8O
0,/ N N 7 M V1 CO UII1 V1 v.   w W V1 M N1 3
d M 1M d M ,-     

1

fa'
1

N N 1

N
M N V1 00
M M U.

C ixC

88888 88888 888
O1 m

u m O m  •1n a• V O p m  •
8  •8
N VIeo N N N

rl n
N V1

1 N N N

m O a ri ~    m 8 v
N-

1
it(

f70
O v .-i `-'-

n)

i
N M N N CO Ln N M v.

C
ut 1a    . i C L 4 C ul ti

U.     
e--1U.     LL

00 00 00
C C C

CC C
C C C

To To 0o

m m m

VI

aator.  

a

In 1n
v

vii

a O
o a Ea

rg N
C

HN

Ca)      C1CC Ca,• 
zWLL LLf0 0

J eu

C aJ• z C C CU C C O
L

O Y h Q CU n

u O c 0
0 U L C C C C 0t0

LL LL O LL
aJ V 0.     

rc d O    . 2 0IL 4J
li cto

c m i

421



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

422



ITEM NO. NB 4

H  (  < „

CITY OF COVINA

I ,       :      AGENDA REPORT

MEETING DATE:      April 5, 2016

TITLE:      Covina Senior and Community Center Update  —  Consider

Refinement of Possible Sites Location Alternatives

PRESENTED BY:      Andrea M. Miller, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:

1)  Review and discuss the Community Workshops held to date
and verbal and written input received regarding the Covina
Senior and Community Center;

2)  Review and discuss the site location alternatives being
evaluated by City staff and give direction regarding the
possible location for the placement of the Covina Senior and

Community Center; and
3)  Direct City staff to continue the systematic assessment of

multiple sites as the possible location for the placement of the

Covina Senior and Community Center,  continue to solicit

community input on the possible sites, and present the results
of the site location assessment and community input to the
City Council as soon as practicable.

BACKGROUND:

On September 15,  2015,  the City Council received and filed the Joslyn Center update,
authorized the City Manager to issue a Request for Proposals ( RFP) to provide community and
internal outreach to ascertain facility-user needs and Department of Parks  &  Recreation

programming needs, in addition to obtaining City Council input in the design process for the
Covina Senior and Community Center project and directed the Departments of Parks  &
Recreation and Human Resources to identify temporary locations to accommodate Joslyn Center
programming requirements and initiate negotiations with property owners.

On November 10, 2015, the Department of Public Works issued the RFP to Provide Planning,
Programming, Architectural, and Engineering Services for the Initial Phase of the Covina Senior
and Community Center Project.  Consulting services for the initial phase of the Project include
completion of user and programmatic needs assessments, community and internal engagement,
site evaluation and recommendation, visioning and conceptual designs,  cost estimates, and
project timelines.

During the City Council Study Session on December 15, 2015, the Department of Parks &
Recreation reviewed and discussed options for the relocation of senior programming from the
Joslyn Center to another facility, including the Valleydale Park Community Center and a
possible co- sponsorship agreement with Los Angeles County for Valleydale Community Center.
The Department of Public Works also updated the City Council on the status of the RFP process

423



for the Initial Phase of the Covina Senior and Community Center Project,  indicating that
proposal review was underway and that the department would return to the City Council on
January 19, 2016 with a recommendation for contract award.

Thereafter, on January 19, 2016, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Gonzalez Goodale Architects to Provide Planning,
Programming, Architectural, and Engineering Services for the Initial Phase of the Covina Senior
and Community Center Project in an amount not- to-exceed $ 100,000; adopted Resolution No.

16- 7454 appropriating $500,000 in available Special General Fund— Rule 20A Swap balance for
the Initial Phase of the Covina Senior and Community Center Project, topographic survey and
soils geologic analysis, and seed money for subsequent phases of the project; and directed City
staff to evaluate various locations for the construction of the Covina Senior and Community
Center, including Covina Park, and to ensure neighborhood and community support for the
project.

At the City Council Study Session on February 16,  2016,  representatives from Gonzalez
Goodale Architects updated the City Council on the initial Client Team Meeting held with City
staff on January 26,  2016 and reviewed a working draft of the Community Participation
Workshop # 1 presentation, scheduled for February 22, 2016, from 9: 00 a.m. to 11: 00 a.m. at the
Joslyn Center.   During the Study Session, Gonzalez Goodale Architects also reviewed and
received feedback from the City Council on the following:

1.  Draft Project Guiding Principles;
2.  The facility program; and
3.  Initial site utilization/ location studies.

On February 22, 2016, the City and Gonzalez Goodale Architects hosted Community Workshop
1.  Approximately 100 persons attended the workshop.  Following the presentation of the items

listed above, attendees offered numerous comments, largely focused on the concern of the
possible placement of the new facility in Covina Park.

On February 23, 2016, Amy Hall-McGrade, Parks & Recreation Director and department staff

engaged users of the Joslyn Center to gain a thorough understanding of their needs and
expectations for the Covina Senior and Community Center.  Joslyn Center users expressed the

desire for windows, fresh air, and access to outside spaces, wide hallways, large restrooms, a
design that fosters intergenerational exposure, and possible space for weight equipment and

billiards, among other items.

At the City Council Study Session on March 1,  2016,  City staff and Gonzalez Goodale
representatives presented an update on the following:

1.  Community engagement efforts;
2.  Concept of increasing open space in Covina Park should the facility be placed there by

eliminating/consolidating obsolete uses and moving softball activities to a refurbished

Kelby Park;
3.  How the City plans to address current parking deficiency and provide sufficient parking

to support the new facility, if placed in Covina Park; and
4.  Comparative architectural vernaculars consistent with Adams Park neighborhood that

could be reflected in the new facility, should it be placed in Covina Park.

Extensive public comment was received at the March 1, 2016 City Council Study Session.  The
majority of the input expressed dissatisfaction with the possible placement of the Covina Senior
and Community Center in Covina Park and suggested possible alternative sites, including the

424



Covina Woman' s Club and other parcels.  Public comments of a similar nature were made at the
March 1, 2016 City Council Meeting.

On March 21, 2016, the City held Community Workshop # 2, from 7: 00 p.m. to 9: 00 p.m. at the
Recreation Hall in Covina Park.  Multiple City department directors presented information on
project chronology, site location alternatives, project funding, the draft space program for the
new facility,  and answered questions from the community.    The majority of the City' s
presentation focused on the systematic assessment of eight possible sites for placement of
Covina Senior and Community Center, including ( in alphabetical order):

1.  Badillo Street/Downtown( 135 E. Badillo Street);
2.  Brunswick Bowling Alley ( 1060 W. San Bernardino Avenue);
3.  Civic Center/State Building (233 N. Second Avenue);
4.  Covina Park( 303 S. Fourth Avenue);

5.  Covina Woman' s Club ( 128 S. San Jose Avenue);
6.  Hollenbeck Park ( 1250 N. Hollenbeck Avenue);
7.  Kelby Park( 815 N. Barranca Avenue); and

8.  K-Mart ( 1162 N. Citrus Avenue).

Uniform criteria are being used to assess each of the possible site locations, including ( in
alphabetical order):

1.  Adjacent land uses;

2.  Economic impacts;

3.  Environmental review (CEQA);

4.  Location;

5.  Lot size;

6.  Other site consideration;

7.  Parking;
8.  Project funding;
9.  Property ownership; and
10. Traffic safety.

Approximately 100 residents attended the workshop with many participating in the public
comment period.   Residents expressed concern with the possible placement of the facility in
Covina Park, provided input on the alternative sites presented, and conveyed the need to move

the project ahead swiftly regardless of site location.

DISCUSSION:

City staff will continue the systematic evaluation of multiple sites as the possible location for the
placement of the Covina Senior and Community Center, solicit community input on the possible
sites, and present the results of the site location assessment and community input to the City
Council as soon as possible.  The review of the site location alternatives will be the focus of

Community Workshop # 3, scheduled for April 11, 2016, from 7: 00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers.  The City is considering the addition of a fourth community workshop. This
would ensure outreach to and engagement with a wider array of the Covina Community.

Based on the community input received to date, the City Council, at this juncture, may want to
consider refining the possible site locations being evaluated by City staff to eliminate Covina
Park and/or other potential sites. The impetus for considering the possible placement of the
Covina Senior and Community Center in Covina Park is multifaceted and includes the
following:

425



1.  Funding of up to $ 6, 873, 000 may be immediately available which would allow the critical
project to proceed without delay, including approximately $4.8 million in Successor Agency
Project Area One funding available for projects within the boundaries of the Project Area
from 2002 and 2004 Public Service Bond Funds issued by the Covina Redevelopment
Agency( CRA);

2.  Create synergy and shared development opportunities with other projects in the downtown
area; all of which would work collectively to speed the redevelopment of the downtown core,
enhancing aesthetics, safety, and economic vitality of this key locale;

3.  Proximity to and partnerships with Citrus Valley Inter-Community Hospital;
4.  Addition ofpositive energy and vibrancy to downtown area, especially during daytime hours;
5.  Opportunity to redesign and refurbish the entire Kelby Park site to maximize active

recreational and open space benefits to the community, including the possible development
of a lighted multi-purpose field and practice area that may facilitate the transfer of softball
from Covina Park to Kelby Park and expansion of organized Citywide sports activities;

6.  Chance to address existing parking needs for Covina Park to lessen impacts of overflow
parking on adjacent residential neighborhood;

7.  At approximately ten acres in size, Covina Park is large enough to accommodate Covina
Senior Center construction and the continuation of unique park activities, such as the aquatics
program and performances in the bandshell; and

8.  Opportunity to increase open space in Covina Park by eliminating/consolidating obsolete
uses and moving softball activities to a refurbished Kelby Park.

While the benefits listed above are compelling, based on the lack of community support for the
possible placement of the Covina Senior and Community Center in Covina Park and the viability
of one or more of the alternative sites, the City Council may want to consider directing City staff
to discontinue the consideration of Covina Park as a possible site for the placement of the new
facility.  This would allow City staff to focus on a smaller number of site location assessments
and gather input from residents on those possible sites.

At the conclusion of the community engagement process, City staff will present the results of the
site location assessment and community input to the City Council and recommend a site( s) for
the City Council to consider for the placement of the Covina Senior and Community Center.
Once a site( s) is selected, Gonzalez Goodale Architects will commence site evaluation and
recommendation, visioning and conceptual designs, cost estimates, and project timelines.   To

support the development of the conceptual site plan by the architect and facilitate the design and
construction phases of the project, the City will direct the completion of a boundary and topographic
survey, soils and geologic analysis, and arbor assessment, ifneeded.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact associated with the Covina Senior and Community Center will be determined
during the Initial Phase of the Covina Senior and Community Center Project, wherein Gonzalez
Goodale Architects will develop conceptual designs, cost estimates, and project timelines, following
the completion of user and programmatic needs assessments, community and internal engagement,
site evaluation, and recommendation.  If the project is sited outside of Successor Project Area One,

approximately $ 1. 5 million in project funding is available, consisting of $600,000 in Community
Development Block Grant( CDBG) and$ 900,000 in Los Angeles County Grant funds.

CEQA( CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT):

The project has been reviewed for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA) and is exempt per Section 15061 ( b) ( 3).  The project is covered by the General Rule

that CEQA applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment.  The discontinuance of the consideration of Covina Park as a possible site for the
placement of the Covina Senior and Community Center will not result in any significant effect

426



on the environment.   Once a project site is selected, an Initial Study will be conducted to
determine the level of environment assessment required for the project.

Respectfu submitted,

1 A(..     1    /
Andrea M. Miller

City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A: Community Workshop# 1, February 22, 2016, Summary of Public Comments
Attachment B: Focus Group Meeting with Joslyn Center Users, February 23, 2016, Summary of
User Comments

Attachment C: Community Workshop# 2, March 21, 2016, Summary of Public Comments
Attachment D: E-mail Comments Received Through March 29, 2016

427



i C 0

C CO O
e>,     E.I.

o 7 f0     , n O 7 V
Qv     +,

Ca

C

E E cc0 CO U

0 c ,-
C

eZ

03 ' E E a)       0
v v 'o ° o C U C E Lap p a`

313 v  ` - a o v s o C U     =  cocv c

o      
C V a .° E 3 a)     v oY a

ON O
u ra

CO,
1 C o2S

O 0 3     +
L,

c co a c  ° W
ca —  

C a o     +. a 3
co v o OD DI

m
CO

E C  >. c     >•
CD

Y C u Q
Q

CL)     c fa v
C v p

L.     =  ea o z c     ' c     `.-     oa co

E Y CO n.
co a ' p v, U j 7 co N c c O O v o

L y v,     _°  c Y a O.
E  °  u 3 v 0 4-,     -

0

o 7
c a To ° a 0

ra CU a)

O .,_,     aa° 0 v C c 3 s CU 0 3
u 0 Q _0 n 0 N 0

F     -0 c a`     o

y  ° 1 v c No v a c o N ' o c c     >,

0 t a)     a)  160     > C O 0 s U
O,     

C   .  co E NN y +L,  c co O O. U     '‘. 7) 

N

c     °  o c _o 0 co c  ,     o U     _ c o 4 3
a

N c9 O a) •       C  ' co     + L'     

C10 `}' U T
I..     

v - o -0

aa))  
v o C m     +° c a

co c
n. 5 v v L     +, . v v n p. 0     - a c a o

avc  °     
c  ° 

a;     E o  "     7 ,.     ° v

YC
3 Cna  °     o  °  0 C      >     

o     
s°,     }'

Q)    0
f0 u E U

h L 0 4- 

N

C
L O L }'  

C
v)     C ' O     +

O-,  
L     ° F_1C E 3 3 u o o o     °' Y w

0.
v

c°

U     *
k y     >  a) j L 0 C C

4v)     
0O E

i0 i C C
CU

co

C o 0 a, +, r-I m 3 Y
E a co co L 11..).     c

E O)  ° ko 0 u f9 ' o >- N Y 3 0 0 c°  
c°     

a +`-,     +=

s c i-     '    c     >   oE
v, 

No
L  >  

o. 
a

c co a, a
0 • L 3 o U

C cu N  -  a)  a  ° 

CL i_+ 
C

aO,  
O a) +,     Cl) C

o u°  ° 
rsi
C1 ou C  >'°  3nc 3 c m ,     > c v °     

E
47 ami co

C i o     } y - c -0 =      O. a)     O t0 c a)  u v= ca Cl)

E E v a z E
a)     c>'o

1i ° off  > °  a u Jn a)     
O)  

co

c a, a u

Vra
fa

I o f "" o
E E to c a) Y c v °     ar     +  o  •- t u

co , n o a
E .  c o ,"  c0 E  >     c u co , e v)  

E
v o Cl)     co

c
U o o _0 m  ` a a cu ap t t cep += , e O aJ

n3 CU
Ev u

U0
L

U
C C y a)     v,     C y al co co O O

C '
C

a) T a)  co ' O L O.     o. co ' Op 0 v,  c v,     C t_
C p to 7 1—c QCU

in =     
u a

cpop c t!     
U

CWD O io v 0
Y a)     -     '

1.  co G)     y a ^     a) +
C—, '

ao Cap +,  fl- U 7 c o

L E O
Q

O_ C
L O_ iD C

7
C u C V'1

d o c
o —     

Eo a)  ar  >     i
vvc

4,     '    

v
c C
poEC o

VI. 
CD'' o  > c coc

o  > 63  °  v °  co
uo0TCUc E E to >     a -a u co0

Eoc     °  ° °    c00
0 a *

a  °     c c..C vts c0     ° o   , >o2S ai     
4- O

Q
vOC a) 4-  o s  >  >4 a!  

C ; 4C1'  O` O w
O

6 co

vc J     °  cu     = cE o u 7 v
4-, - o

c
T w CI)  COev 4-, Y +_,     _

co
Xv oLC C ;  °  C

NV ma)  U •
cv ' aT,     v co p

N
C

Oa

o o
4-.,

a s
a)  a 0 O N C 0  > la i  ° t a)  L o a)  O- 7 w- _ Ca)  C  `  v
i s a LL -° O acv Q U 3  > U c a a U 0 0. o U o p v

O
c°  

u  , n t

L 0-  I i i I I I I I a`,  
cu

CU 3
0 +,  a)   L C U Cl)

C

u cnH O

e- i C N C

a.., o 0

CIC)     
a)  coa)       N coo

E 5 C E SI

cC
E co_       E     , moi,  0.

U0
a w Ua w

Attachment A, 6 Pages

428



bb
C L

0
a) 

Y

jro -Uy ai
a

03 C N ++     O ao 4--,,     
CU L t40

L! Y 7 U L

aL     
Q C Q O O

co L v
N L

7 471.     

TA
TA . 0 Cry C.

3 Y
a >.    0 .° 0

a N . E  ° -  a
O C

7 Co 0 a v
a a,     2

aCo

a a E c
C

E
j E Y C

CO
Y O O  ( 0

v- L
Q Q O CU  ( o L

C 1-'
O CD J  `  O

O
O L CD

0 Co aJ
C y .D 30 0 - C Q O
0 00  >  A 0

o fa
Y Y

01)  O V aJ     ( 0  ( 0

a a) a 0o c u 0) o a)      Lao 'L E t
v

L.  T 3 v  >  > .0 on ' v =  v)  a)
C v,  L o c c 3 L  °-

O>    
o `-  

C
O

v' C +> 
F-  2

u y
a)  N

x Q

UO 0 a) 17 C 0 •"O E =     a)  u U ,+T+  >.
L 0 CO v- 40 . E

vt   • 

as,,, -
0 -
ra

F...     (o
U O

a C a) • C
a)  aJ 0J -° Y' 

ti-  CUCC
03

aJ O f10L.    a   .  E  >, C L 3 In
40

C O a)    ro C co
co

N o  (
o a

co C co

C LE v ut

u as a)    3 s a) U c L o
0 0-

0 0O
co v V N N -     a  ( a O t c

a) co k-    a - C , e  >. - 0 c U 0  ( 0
M1•  

00 CU CU

t o O  >     
O

a0
N a a)     =

O 3 0  (

Lo
Q, 4,a) C O

u
I_  a)c c  °     E     _     L y Y 3 v v y a
U N L4.,     

O

m  >       
u

u -   a C Ea coE e L o vi a no to U - 0 N
U ' v' 0

a)     
O  ( 0 C Y  °  h 0.1 C C  >' a) , N

CO
U  •  

c a
u0 to C c 0  (0 0     • C

oo .` 
C C L

C a)  ( 0

VI

0

c +0+  ?     

00.
0 - O O U p,     C ++

0) ' 0 Y CJ 7 O Q L1 c to U C aJ E
to

3
f0

N  ;  
L

Y L Q
CU C i-+ L co E C 4,L

a) 'O a J C Y of '>     v  >  O Y C

c 7 M1•  `  `°  T C 3
c '

O - Fa-     
0  °     N N oZS Qar o Y m o . o o -°     toC c - 0 E ns CUU 3 0 aJ v '++  aJ n  ( 0 N Y , vf ++  >. Q U  ( o L aJ

8 L a L Y U w=     a)  Q ++     o m N v-     Y ca)     T EO
Y

V co

0
a)  Q O  ( O i   •  00

tio

c
Y N CU f,4

0 a!    a)     
O• -

0 _o -    I a)  c c °-  a)  E c U N  (*'a  ( 0
U Y C N a)  0 N

L o o L
a) Y E f0 c0 a)

o
vi O o

co -°  O aJ ,  C V .
0 moi'     E  ( o >  U c

a) •C  > 

OQ ++  
ON C Q`+-  ( 9 p 7 v>i C-

C°) •`-^  O - 1:3L..

E s u     `1 v c
cu o c

o
a  (Co o4 v a,  f0 Q °c

E r v c

C v v  °  C ar c c 3 a,  a,  ( v v D C o° v  ( o Q
L 00

0.  
3 o v v C

r

E
a- "

cO a) a "O ' F'     0 E. c f0 ca  >> 0 a) O C Di Z  _ 4..-

O o0 t x c u u c°•      l7  > v C L m    ,+_  oE
aci v o_  x     ;

co o a;  3 0 0
v C c o

co C U c a +    co  ` a

c
c  (co a o o u '+,  r0̀ ° o

a) ,c ?   t O ( n Q to
O  >, oc0

4C.,  
v O- U ; a+ t  (o '>  Q o 7

o  > To o
C

00 L v'  
C 4- C Y '++  t.0 a)  ti4

Li u C v I I I go C u o v a moo U  ((0 •-  7 C

o z a Cca).

sa o s E a,  a, a)     x o
F-  a) 3 O 0 2 F-  Q v o

FL-     =  
axi ' E v

m C 4 C C tii C N C
0 o o 4-,     0 Y 0

acJ O N 4JJ a) fa aci a)  ( 0

aa)  
4  ( 0 N a) c

E - 0 c E . 0 c E 70 c E -0 c E C

E t41  (
0

E 7,  (
v 0 o

Q Q E     ' a E v' 0. E v' a
O o x o o x o o x o o x o o x
U a w U a w U a Lu U a w U a w

429



CIO
C

co o a,     c C v)
E

ai Op OD O

CD

i'-
L C 4-'

c .=    
c - p0 u L y cu
aQJ  )7 OD u L

F  >. C ra Y O     O O

C O N al
OA n p `'_'  G.    o CD O

C7
N

Y
7
CE0

O ca N O

E a1 c
L

1.

0 a 3 O L O
CI)     raIV

O L
4.4

C a/ y, V ;•' a+    
L-'     

C
3

U +     u co  >, 5 CO ro 3 . 5 a)     0

tS Y C a0 c 0

p

ro
03u C     ( 00 i C

pJ C alT,    
p      ,  

N
a! r0 ra - p

L ca L
C 3 CU c o o. 3 ' E .•    sa a s
y OO aJ

u—  
O_ c L

N

L

O_  r0
C

CL
C'     —  O 4. O.0

Yo x 3 C u
C

cbDa
0 a u

C
4-,     

N E a+  = c L C r0
aJ

N r0 m CU w ca E
in ' O

in
f0

s a0̀ t .0 c v) o o.
5

O O 4=    40

CuU
a. uu L O. a!     L —

u
aJ     +,

C to
0. N ' O co C r0—  

u 0.    L N L
6

Y     '
n  =  2

O_ ca N
4- M1•  a!  c

i 0 . aQC0.3 • C u C v
aJ

cc a.   L s va u CLa
CI. CaJ C - 0 o o v 4--'

ro a

ov     °    
E 3 a  °0cQ u

i= Y
C u

cu •

43

0 al 0 ° C CU

aL+  =  
O_ fa

u C " o x an C p _a ria
E

c`a L O L O C C  > 4-, i p 7

O. +'' '    al a+  co
4",     E aJ `     L1 O OA a! u uu E a

ca
13 CU a u L ra

rti•     E =     E p E uco"

O E u  =  O_    a1 C E     ' w a1
rnC . Y 

O
aJ N Ca 0)  p i u O 0 - p UU O

y
N O O E

y, L via)     .+     
N

C N  +...- O.
c

v 3     °;  c Co o L v v ai  >. o a,
u E *'     O a rnO  `^  '    O. .>, +> O to O co N cu 4-.  

aQJ
cl  =    C vOi L

ra 111 ca
CD O .•     •

t'     v •u v n. e N +_ N 7 a >, . 0 C o
c 4-  u O. ra  ,  >, as

O  > p o Y  `0
0. L

o +>' aN'  3 u

rcaJ
o 3 ea O

v E  (

ijy
o 0.

vci

u
L L C  ,_     >    i L 1,    

O  > 
GG C CV 3 a!  CON ro co aJ a1 " C " O

O0
a+  O

M1. + L+  
t9

ap (,    
a   .  co a

N     +   
ro

0 u al O C.
O

C L C 7
CO QJ

v C
ca

t     `~    L
C

C U
ar N u N

E u *'     v Y
o

c o L C
p
C

co C
0 = 

o C C
0

ar
C

uO
f0 •-  > •>     3 .v a u

U .  0.1
41CUN
L  > .-

i
N 0.0 C -  v C L

O O
ca> +•+  p aJ LEu

r  >a u
v o o ¢     

3 co

FIE, 
L 3 v o m     •  > +-'

c-

o CO ,     ' u u

LEvI
E 3 C  ,,;  c L     +j c 'a

U
v)  o

ro 03

a
QJ
vs o E °  >  C E z 3     _  

in N v

O 3 _

Cs
L C  •  O U L L p C 3 N C aJ L c

O 0
C i .• y, .+ C p[     7  ( 0 .

L., co v C
co u ' NC U O. ca co 0.0 Y U

0.) `
40 =  C a

Hm ro . n O c CO >
0. 

Y p
c

0 .`-, 

jL•,  
v+'i 2 4'  

O C *'  
u '

CU a i t- Y vi a) —  Q C c u '
E

N
L L al

c _c co co ra cu  >  co 0 7 p O r"'  N
N

0 +'  33_  i x
a >-  ar 4-  N m u a a E u 3 !- Q ai

O 4 AN
CO     ..     CO C Ol C a- r C 1 C 1 C
4-,     0 0 4.,     O r O y., O
C
N p

ca''
o CU al C0

C
O as aa)  cu co v N co'''

E . O  =     E L  = E     = E C E si c

E N  (
0

E N
ra

E N
N

E N
N

E N fa
O o x o o x O o x o o x o o x
u a 1. 0 u a w u a w U a LU u a w

430



a a
L

a

a
E 3 x_xi

a

v a a v--

j O a pQ Ou O 0 C
Oco

o a 0
L^ +L, '

V N
a)L

coo co •

yT+    
p `-

a)

ro 43 L 7
w

Quct.
in E  =

ca c " 0

Q
5

cc v o 4 }O_. ,  CO> m E

y co a t lJ L
13 -

CI p CO e Ui j vi 4-

I--•-
O a a,,  a L to c MD tr;

u L Y v c
Cean

O L C a

Lp a 40 " O a. OL a L 40 v
L c>6 p

ny
O C N CO v GO

VI p
lJ to

L

M a a n.>. - o E O C
L

a a a 7 v'i O
0

H c 3 8 •   
3 T avl C

T
a p  ,  O E p A

O 0 aU 0 T C
O u u

a C
CO  _ •

V f9 E  '  O a co
E o CO  '     

aco

o co a c o 4'  o
CU C a 1 3

a•, O co
L 4. +,

E a COca s eL.  aai
O o c

CO Y
L.  co

C 7 C O N O
a a

cts '> 
ar co o

4-,c _
c

c N a
E co o t o v  , 

ro

E o  -
c o c a co n 3 E o

0 9-     0 0.    
5. ' C 0    

a=      

00
Iaif C

CU c`'     
fo

U C E
a)  s cn L

aa,
u

on a co Q1 to L p ..

Em
E O

OD L C O C O c0 4,
F U +' 0 `   C

3

NO
0.0 U 1

14 m
a 7 L

E O p v,     
a

o a v C  >, a
0

Ou 4 00 io a u
o

E c O aa)  
o L,     c cu a  = o. a s

It, 
v1 ar of a C

0 p a E C N 7     . iJ vi N v N aco w '  O

C a VI a to O L o c F, U i-    v

co T L -  E c C  ,,, +'  o o u L
a E c ò a  >O O a L T L
L a

C
Q u L u y

aco
L Q E

H E 00 a

C O 41 Y
a

a O i
a-, C

X
C M1•  a

41 i p coO
L

a Y 0

CD oG
n' 

L , m p t c a
C  `

1 L a 4+  CO C

LO
O 7 L

L c p_ O C '-' v) +
L,     oA a Lp

4O
u co c a vai U

C CO c c     '    s a v w v T
co O. $ .. ...

7.

O L " O
a. " v C u o c tca a)

cu0.
o a

ai c'

La •
C ° ti

o
a

o o co     >
a u co 0

0 C a cv O fl-
p C

a
O a o L a u 0

a a E L
L ''  5

p  =  a' LO a U c O 2 - 
L

p
a,  >'    

L O E C a o'
v-  7 T L

a L
C +_, C co C i T O a p L a

a Gl L

rL,  
u N u co co O

a
u t 0

t  )0 O c
L a -0

3 L 0
L O C co  +._ L a

a •L E  ,  ° na a as v E a v a co _ o - o

a cuL..)°

a° .

mac—,    
u Y E O E u 0  ° c

a
o

ii, 
v LA a p E •° o E

u
a

L U a In ,  o

3 OD

aCIJ
lap,- CO c  ° 1

L O
co LJ• '

3 0   •  c Y Oci) v C a L C a ' fl- vii O
00 c_ v- Y y Y o vc O. L C

CO L u o

LO
C " O E cuo • 5 Q T C 16 = a-

T'
a0 .- j, .+—

T,  a C O

L co
a..      U c 3 T m c L

L!  a s . vc 3 a c ••— a) vi L a s
co L a . ca c: 

IL-  
7 CU

IL-  
o v° H

IL-  .
n H ' V/

6,6 ciri4 c c c c c c
f.,     0 F,     0 0 0 y.,     0 0
C     ; r C     ',.,     C     +,     C C     }, C     .+ 7,     C     . 4.7,
a v co a v co a v co a) a s co a v co a s co
E . 0 C E . O 2 0.   C E

mc
E   

me
E   

ccn

0 0 x•  
a 0 o x 0 0 xx

E 0 0 xx 0 0 X 0 0 xx
U a w U a w U a w U U a w U a uw U a w

431



L

n

3 L .-
L

L of Y co J' 1
CE OcO     ( Lo 0 WO co

CO +-,
c

0

L p  -
O O 4_,  > CU vvi p C of

a)    O +'   O
a)     0

a C
N

O 17 O L N c - O p

O
1- l7 O L $  ,,,  C p a 3 o

v   .CU CO U
N

n i u

cO
C

C Y

O L G 0 Op ti c
o OO

Co •  OD
41

of C
vi .

E E C
L N 3 C  ` p C Y

u O 0  >,       n L v '
a) N O

aJ C ur  •" X L  ' n
C M1.  7 to O

v)    
O U a) a au aJ u

N • n
C c v p

a
u' :

L +,     C H

u  ( o +-+
a   +'  E

6
N O c9 O

7°

7,    0 a,)  C

4C +
Ul'  

x

E
E

O
CJ aJ

ate,    
O'

o +_  ( 0
o

O aJ o r4C a

0. L 7)  E
Co F.   a)  u T C

17 7 0 CO 0 0 U
L O - p N CO 3 C of O.    aJ w

n .
L

CU L7 O L O

7 co in

LO
X C C C co c I-

n v 0 C. y a a,' 0
O

p '       aJ CU

C 3 aJ n L

p v)    O .
c vi 0 OO +' U-.  

dp

vi

Q O_  a1
p aJ  = U  > w.,  aJ Co a o N

C
C

O n aJ O co E p O
Q1

co

4-    0A aJ L N U Oa O 0 O aJ n  (o
0 0 O

0 0.0

o E X c o M1• '      6- ,E - s c v aa)
to

al O 3
L aJ p s L 7 X of Y C n

op c n as
C CC O o j  °++'     aJ C 0  °

c 3 a v Use C      antic •      

ar C

Co
CIO

c p • c L . c aJ -    n     =  aa)    

o u E c o - o E *'  E oaJ F,
L c

ut o E u u _c V u aJ c •u Co 0 o L
CIO O Ou 0 U L 0J

aJ
Co '     0ro 0 O

al U +L,

C

Lt)

Co

n  >  O
a 13s +

L'  

LO CU a 0 v C n -0

17

CO
aaJ 4' 3

4,3

L CU C CU - C co O. n c cu coC
co 0 CO VI I-

v o u     ( 0 ' c 0.)     L

La3E
ai ab ( 1)  W n +-'' 

4- :°

M1•  EJ C '
p     >     aJ aJ O 0 p  '  a O

L 0 3 •,  O. v
v O p•, •y On - O C  ( o c +' 

v ._     tCU aJ y
s+ 

U O
CI C

C
c

O cu O vi vs U L

Nci_     i v -o c O
L

C 0 y C  ' J' 

c 0
0 ra + O' =

O y v u a
O C 0  ( o X u 3 E N u 0 +' ++

COCIJ
m C c V 0 ~ t C T, ,    

L >- a)  
C 0 F -0 '1_+

C C aJ
c p

of
On aJ Co

C
v' t 4= t' 3C

O
Co 0 1=  

O CU CI E - c u of OO LJ o a Y
p aJ

VI
m o u

co
c

u +
v',    w  (0 X s

aJ w N     +-,
C

C
X CU p +' f0  ( o U • G p C o 4,  r-4 QJ C E C

ai E 4 t'i
vs

c n. -,  o v cc ai c E _,  E
GJ Y QJ U .>  

00
CU aJ co L p 7 .  C c0 a1 aJ cid

0 QJ CN U Q. Q O
Vf U Q CU C Co
CoC10.1

f    
O C  `     aJ n .O XsOpC

CU CU 0
p

N O O aJ aJ  > QJ L O.a cu 00 In
L O

4-, 
Q -

0 +., aJ Q  ( o
On

QJ U C s QJ S d C +-' " 0
c L 0 aJ 13 O c0 p«   On

Z'     u to O  -  
c 0  _c c n

0

v O 0 a a)
cu +'

C•'  (

O

C C

C CO C '
O     •- 7 " a 7 N l7 aJ aJ aJ c N •  

O 0- L 12 CO C  ( LO
co VI C 0 CO 0 VIaJ

V-  co
u +

0., •" 3 U OL n
aJ

L t of
O N

a-,  
C S C

4M "
p

L o •
c E t cu 0 . e 0 U N

Tv
n a

cu 4.  '^  c(0 O cu L c0 aJ
co 0  ( 0 U n t co cu •

c C C C cu H CU Cl.)  CU
1' 

U c0

E F- F- Q axi51= 4_, o- 

LoL
s C O 0 Co . 0 a L L L

n o O O s
u U H co Q F- +., 0 Z L of

O 1 N M 4 u1
N C N C N C N C N C N C

0 0 0 0 0 0

aJ N co cu 0 co aJ aJ f0 QJ CI)  c0 CU N CO CU a!  c0
E 43 c 0.   

mc
E   2 E   2 E   EES

O 0 x 0 0 x 0 0 x 0 0 Cl. 0 0 x-    0 0 x
U 0. w U a LU U a LU 0 a LU U 0. LU U 0. U)

432



a-,       
L of

ru

to
3a+ ?

C a,
Cu

aL
C C C
a)       co 03

7 to
E v no o 0 C
QJ v :..

N-2 N y u

c O L
QJ Y 4-

COLQ. aN
wO a,

Cu j O

S •a a E

C
OD C C +' +.'     a, L

VI
Y     > a, N
i Q L ++ aJ O
co L O C

ch CL 7  ` N p
tea,     N ofEOU C L
m a

v  (..».+,  c
o

0L p N ++     N oA U
1 4 N O U U C

Cu a) as
C

tp  >. Y 3
L C in rl +- CoCN

E 7 M E L' L
fl.     C U a,  E
o O v a L O 3 v
L O.       u L p • 7
a)     O a i ,  0 C C

4" CU YCU c c o

co 0 co cu v°1i Q c

u. O L NCr
O.     

al
o p i +

L, O0° Cu
L

O ° Q  ` O a,O
M1   , C NaJ i0 co

O

Ca
Ca Y N

C O " 0 . 111
a U

Cu 9  >, L
O O CO C

a 76 OJ o

v y+  U 0 L a,  
p E >     a

cu : t•-•:, O Ta ,"     
C

O
a W

N

N C O C U L y C
Q o

O
co

U
C +L,  

p w CO l0     ` o U
U U

fCa
O O

7 0.,  
a,  aJ L +' Y

co_     
V)

t;  C O z .0 a•  ci v c ro v QJ

y
a, u  >. U ++-,  O 4 C N

x a co E o  > . o E CO L
QJ

U O
a)=  ' O

4- .

c c . 0 1., 
J

L U

N u o CU . a cA  '^  
ay

a O C
13

L.—)  v,  co
C

o  >     H
COCN U

C11 2 a
O

aJctJ =  
4J E

a
v,     v>

L U a,  ,  c CO  > +(,  C a,,  
a,     ti

0L

C
a1 , aC c •  0 •

NQJ

f6
a., co  > y.,  O

@
y E

L L

o -
p o C aJ a,  C y)  C CO C CO

3
a N Q

Cu
v v u E co  ,,

2 O tla o.     O
U p  >  C

C C v+ c -p =p +;    o  > . 00CC  > `     C cu aJ N ,    U p
Z ' O d Y y O 4 E N +O O l7
C .`_^     

a

COC .= 
U

ice, +
Q,     

o N

p v N O 7 ro C a,  o a,

Ca
O. •+-  

a o
cy c O C }     a,     O N

os =  
CO

E 2 N L

aa, 
a)  o v o

N C C i A

5     = . c x° au  > •S 0i---  ° r

is N 00
N C N C N C

CC)     
a, CO v a, n7 N a,  Cu

E Q C E 70 C E a C

E 0 a
03

E vî a E v'î a
pw awawUaU

0

433



Covina Senior and Community Center
Summary of Comments

Focus Group Meeting with Joslyn Center Users
February 23, 2016

Topic:     Senior& Community Center Project Draft Guiding Principles

No requested changes

Topic:     Billiards Room

1.  Want 3 tables

2.  Want the room size to be 25 x 44

3.  Want good lighting
4.  Need space for tall pool chairs and racks to hold equipment

Topic:     Beauty Salon

Assign an area to handle haircuts for seniors

Topic:     Dining Room

1.  Lots of windows

2.  Fresh air

3.  Access to an outside space to have meals

4.  A small stage area

Topic:     Gym

1.  Light weight equipment

2.  Treadmills, etc.

Topic:     Hallways

All need to be ADA accessible

Topic:     Library

Want a working library—do not need a separate room for a Library, seniors agreed it could be on
shelves located in the dining room or lobby area

Topic:     Lobby and Entrance Areas

1.  Create a larger entrance than the current building
2.  Have sliding automatic doors—do not want doors that automatically open out or in

Attachment B, 2 Pages

434



Topic:     Miscellaneous Suggestions/ Recommendations

1.  Avoid placing a flat roof on the new building
2.  Install security cameras inside and outside the building
3.  Install security lighting for building and parking areas
4.  Install state of the art electrical systems and PA equipment—along with adequate storage areas

to eliminate the cords and equipment from being left out
5.  Install an intercom system

6.  Lots of natural light through large windows

7.  Open floor plan, higher ceilings

8.  Good lighting throughout the building

Topic:     Parking— How will the parking be handled?

1.  Need adequate ADA spaces

2.  Do not like the current long parking lot forcing the seniors to have to walk a long distance
3.  A senior mentioned that comments were made the previous day regarding San Bernardino Road

and Badillo Street being very busy. It was noted that the current senior center parking lot exit
onto a very busy street

4.  Request for underground parking— staff out that this would probably not be feasible due to the
available funding and the high costs associated with subterranean parking

Topic:     Restrooms

1.  Larger restrooms— the width of each stalls needs to allow space for a walker

2.  A minimum of( 2) ADA stalls

3.  At entrance into restroom, provide a ADA Push button that will automatically open door
4.  Automatic flushing toilets
5.  Automatic faucets

6.  Automatic soap dispensers— the seniors like current ones at Joslyn Center
7.  Have higher toilets

8.  Have hand rails that are appropriately placed to the toilet height in each stall
9.  Dressing room for senior who have accidents or wish to change out of exercise clothes

10. Installed panic button in case senior is having an emergency inside restroom that can be
connected to the front office to alert staff

11. Requested separate restroom facility for kids

435



Covina Senior& Community Center

Summary of Comments amd Questions/ Answers
Community Workshop# 2

March 21, 2016

Input received on site location alternatives ( listed alphabetically):

In Favor Opposed

Badillo Street/ Downtown (135 E. Badillo St.)      

Brunswick Bowling Alley( 1060 W. San Bernardino Ave.) 1

Civic Center( 233 N. Second Ave.)   

Covina Park( 303 S. Fourth Ave.)    2 13

Covina Woman' s Club( 128 S. San Jose Ave.)      

Hollenbeck Park( 1250 N. Hollenbeck Ave.) 2

Kelby Park( 815 N. Barranca Ave.)  12

K- Mart( 1162 N. Citrus Ave.) 

Other 1

Note— not a scientific sample. Data represents summary of input provides by speakers; some speakers offered
several thoughts on site location alternatives; other speakers did not offer input on site location alternatives.

Summary of comments received ( in chronological order):

If funding were not a consideration, Covina Park would not be a site location alternative
There is not neighborhood support for Covina Park

Do not care where facility is placed; just want it constructed now

Covina is now the only City is LA County without a senior center
Valleydale does not meet needs for special event luncheon programs

Start construction of facility now in Covina Park, since funding is available
Everyone wants to see the new Senior and Community Center constructed

Parks are for children; others sites are for the facility

Majority of people do not want facility in Covina Park
Project should be result of partnership between City Hall and community

If facility is constructed at Hollenbeck Park, there would be good synergy between the Girl Scouts
and senior citizens

Kelby Park is a great option--tradition

Want facility to be centrally located

oi cot.

E M      ., CITY OF COVIN,

AttacYment C, 5 Pages

436



Summary of questions asked and responses provided ( in chronological order):

1.  QUESTION— Is the new facility going to be a senior center or a community center?

ANSWER— The new facility will offer programming for both seniors and the general community, as
the existing Joslyn Center does, with an emphasis on intergenerational exposure and interaction.

2.  QUESTION— Is the City still considering Covina Park as the site for the Senior and Community Center?

ANSWER— The City is currently assessing multiple sites as the possible location for the Senior and
Community Center, including Covina Park. Site location alternatives include( listed alphabetically):
Badillo Street/ Downtown ( 135 E. Badillo Street), Brunswick Bowling Alley( 1060 W. San Bernardino
Road.), Civic Center/ State Building (233 N. Second Street), Covina Park( 303. S. Fourth Avenue),
Covina Woman' s Club( 128 S. San Jose Avenue), Hollenbeck Park( 1250 N. Hollenbeck Avenue), K-

Mart( 1162 N. Citrus Avenue), and Kelby Park( 815 N. Barranca Avenue.)

3.  QUESTION— How is the City assessing the site location alternatives for the Senior and Community
Center?

ANSWER— The City is assessing potential sites using uniform evaluation criteria, including( listed
alphabetically): adjacent land uses, economic impacts, environmental review, location, lot size,
other considerations, parking, project funding, property ownership, and traffic safety.

4.  QUESTION— How much parking will be required for the new Senior and Community Center?

ANSWER— Parking needs will be determined by the overall size of the Senior and Covina Center and

the types of rooms contained within the facility. Conservatively, 150 parking spaces may be
required, which would equate to approximately 48,000 square feet of parking or an area three to
four times the size of the Covina Senior and Community Center footprint.

5.  QUESTION— How much on- site parking is currently available at Kelby Park, the location of the
existing Joslyn Center?

ANSWER— Kelby Park currently has 100 regular and 18 handicapped parking spaces.

6.  QUESTION— If the Senior and Community Center is constructed in Covina Park, the facility could
displace the softball field, tennis courts, and/ or other uses. Would these facilities/ uses be located

elsewhere? If so, where would the funding come from?

ANSWER— In this scenario, once Joslyn Center is demolished, the City would redesign and refurbish
Kelby Park to maximize active recreational and open space benefits to the community, including the
possible development of a lighted multi- purpose field and practices areas that may facilitate the
transfer of softball from Covina Park to Kelby Park and expansion of Citywide sports activities. Los
Angeles County has expressed interest in funding this project. There is no anticipated impact to the
tennis courts.

t : art OF COVINA

II Ot',"

437



7.  QUESTION— Will the Boy Scouts be displaced from Kelby Park?

ANSWER— No; the City has no intent of displacing the Boy Scouts.

8.  QUESTION— If the Senior and Community Center is constructed in Kelby Park, will the City address
the site' s current hydrological issues before construction?

ANSWER— Yes; to support the development of the conceptual site plan by the architect and the
design and construction phases of the project, the preparation of a boundary and topographic
survey and completion of soils and geologic analysis will be completed for whichever site is selected
as the location for the Senior and Community Center.

9.  QUESTION— Is the City of Covina " park poor?" Is the City' s per capita ratio of parkland of 1 acre per
1, 000 population? Is the industry standard is 3 acres per 1, 000 population?

ANSWER— With the recent acquisition of land for the new Banna Park site( 1. 96 acres generally
located on Cypress Avenue between Banna and Kidder Avenues), the City has approximately 1. 05
park acres per 1, 000 population. This compares to the Los Angeles County average of 3. 3 park acres
per 1, 000 population. Additionally, 40% of Covina residents live within/ 2 mile of a park, while the

County average is 49% of the population living within 1/ 2 mile of a park.

10. QUESTION- How much funding is available for the Senior and Community Center project?

ANSWER— The availability of funding varies by the possible site location for the project. Up to
approximately$ 6. 873 million is available for construction of the facility in Covina Park;$ 4. 873

million of which is available for projects within the boundaries of Successor Project Area One from

2004 and 2002 Public Service Bond Funds issued by the Covina Redevelopment Agency.
Approximately$ 1. 5 million is available for other possible sites through a combination of Community
Development Block Grant( CDBG) and Los Angeles County grants.

11. QUESTION— How much will the Senior and Community Center project cost?

ANSWER— A number of variables will shape the total project cost, including but not limited to site

acquisition costs( if applicable), site preparation and improvements ( parking, lighting, landscaping,
hardscape improvements, etc.), and facility size and composition. The industry average cost for a
public building of this type is$ 350 to$ 400 per square foot.

12. QUESTION— How large will the Senior and Community Center be?

ANSWER— Parks and Recreation Department staff, facility users, and community members are
providing input to the architect in terms of programming and user requirement for the new facility.
This input, coupled with necessary space for circulation, will influence facility size. The facility will
likely be approximately 15, 000 square feet.

0 t0/

x ! WY:Of"(MINA

438



13. QUESTION— How can I provide input to the City and the architect regarding amenities I would like to
see in the new facility?

ANSWER- You may participate in the upcoming Community Workshop# 3, scheduled for Monday,
April 11, 2016, from 7: 00 p. m. to 9: 00 p. m. in the Council Chambers. Community members are also
welcome to submit written input to the City at the following e- mail address:
srproject@colvinaca. gov.

14. QUESTION— Can the identified$ 4. 873 million funding available for public projects within Successor
Project Area One be expended outside of Successor Project Area One?

ANSWER— Unfortunately, no; redevelopment was created in California to" jump start" economic
development in blighted and economically stagnant areas utilizing a financing tool called " tax
increment".

Under the law, cities were able to create Redevelopment Project Areas. Once a Project Area was

established, the level of property taxes that flowed to all the taxing entities (such as school districts,
the County, etc.) was " frozen". As new economic development occurred in the Redevelopment

Project Area, property values would increase resulting in an increase in the property taxes. The
difference between the " frozen" tax value and new property taxes was remitted to the
Redevelopment Agency and is called " tax increment". Tax increment collected by the Agency was to
be used to finance other new economic development activities or activities that support new
development.

The State laws governing the use of tax increment required that Redevelopment Agencies only
spend the tax increment within the boundaries of the Redevelopment Project Area. The only
exception is that the State also required Agencies to spend some of the funding on affordable
housing. Over time, many California cities added " new" Redevelopment Project Areas to further
stimulate economic development. Each new Project Area had to conform to the same State

Redevelopment Laws requiring only the spending of tax increment money within the boundaries of
the corresponding Redevelopment Project Areas.

Because the purpose of Redevelopment was to spur the economic revitalization of blighted and

distressed areas of California, the California State Law required a City that wanted to form a Project
Area to make Findings of Fact as to the blighted conditions existing within the boundaries of the
desired Redevelopment Project Area. In addition, an Environmental Impact Report and an Economic

Study was required and had to be approved by the State of California.

When Redevelopment was eliminated in California in 2011, any potential to create new

Redevelopment Project Areas, or make adjustments to existing Project Areas, was also eliminated.
Only existing projects and agreements that were approved prior to 2011 are allowed to continue to

be funded and completed using tax increment funding. Agencies are required to regularly report to
the State Department of Finance on the status of approved projects and agreements, and the State

Department of Finance approval is required for expenditure of any funds including funds being
expended on an approved project. Any funding that is not used is expected to be remitted to the
State; however, this process and the timing has not been established.

otccs

CITY OFCOVINA

439



15. QUESTION— Can the City use eminent domain to take private property to be used as the site for the
Senior and Community Center?

ANSWER— Yes; as a " public use," it is possible for the City to use eminent domain. However, there is
a very rigid process involved.

16. QUESTION— Why isn' t the City pursuing the acquisition of the Clippinger site or other vacant

downtown parcels to be used as the site for the Senior and Community Center?

ANSWER— Currently, there is an approved land use entitlement on the " old Ford" site( southwest
corner of Citrus Avenue and San Bernardino Road.) The property owner would need to be willing to
sell the entire site. The Clippinger site( northwest corner of Citrus Avenue and San Bernardino Road)

also is privately owned. The property owner has expressed a desire to develop the property and has
filed preliminary development plans with the City. Although, the property owners of both those
sites could be approached to ascertain their willingness to sell a portion of that property to the City
for the Senior and Community Center; at this stage that option is problematic.

17. QUESTION— Can the City contribute$ 250/ month for two years so that the Senior Club can meet at a
church since the Recreation Hall at Covina Park does not meet the Club' s needs and is not available

for fourteen weeks during the summer?

ANSWER— The Senior Club has been able to secure a meeting location at a local church. The City will
provide staffing support to facilitate the set up and tear down for the Club' s Friday activities.

18. QUESTION— How long will it take to construct the Senior and Community Center?

ANSWER— It is premature to speculate on a construction timeframe. City staff is continuing the
systematic evaluation of multiple sites as the possible location for the placement of the Senor and

Community Center and soliciting community input on the possible sites. Once the community
engagement process is completed, City staff will present the results of the site location assessment

and community input to the City Council and recommend a site( s) for the City Council to consider for
the placement of the Covina Senior and Community Center. Following site selection, the architect
will commence site evaluation and recommendation, visioning and conceptual designs, cost

estimates, and project timelines. At this juncture, the City will be able to better estimate the
construction timeline.

QUESTION— What will be the format of Community Workshop# 3, scheduled for Monday, April 11,
2016, from 7: 00 p. m. to 9: 00 p. m. in the Council Chambers?

ANSWER- The review of the site location alternatives will be the focus of Community Workshop# 3.
Attendees will also have the opportunity to provide input on the draft space program for the new
facility.

oc < o t.

r t;      OF CQYI

440



Sharon Clark

Subject: Petition on park info

From: DaveandKathy Blower [ mailto:wfonecrazy(agmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 9: 44 AM
To: Covina City Clerk
Subject: Petition on park info

I see a petition is on social media and they are signing against a building being built in Covina Park.   I am

from Covina but now live in Nor Cal .

My question is do signatures count that are NOT Covina residents.  Seems people that don't live there should
not have any say.
Thanks for a reply ASAP I have a disagreement with a friend about this.
Dave Blower

Willits Ca.

1

Attachment D, 17 Pages

441



Sharon Clark

Subject: Covina Park Development.

From: mppadilla3 [ mailto: mppadilla3Cayahoo.com]

Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 2: 41 PM
To: Covina Information

Subject: Covina Park Development.

Hello My name is Maria. I am writing because I am a past resident of Covina and still live in the neighboring
city of San Dimas. It has come to my attention the city of Covina is planning a development in the Covina Park.
This is not ok. Our family has enjoyed this park for many generations and plan on future generations to do so.
Honestly it disgusts me at the mere thought of the consideration of the city doing this. When will it be enough?
When parks become something we talk about being existant in the past. Its sad. Leave the park alone. Its a
beautiful asset to the city.

Thank you,

Maria Padilla

1- 626- 277- 7069

Sent from my Verizon Wireless 4G LTE smartphone

1

442



Sharon Clark

Subject: Joslyn Center

From: rickeyw@ca. rr.com [ mailto: rickeyw@ca. rr.com]

Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 1: 37 PM

To: City of Covina Administration
Subject: Joslyn Center

I have lived in the city of Covina for more than 20 years and have used the programs at the Senior Center regularly. I am
dismayed that you would even consider relocating the Center to one of the few green areas that are left in the city. I
don' t know who is in charge of all those changes that have made Covina downright ugly.
You dissected and paved over the Civic Park, for what? The Farmer's Market that used to be fun, is not even worth

attending anymore. Who approved those townhouses that are not only ugly but do not fit into the historic picture of
Covina. Surely, you could have done better. Look at other communities like Brea and Pasadena. Building stores, mostly
empty, without back alleys for deliveries shows how little thought went into this plan. I am just one of many residents
who are disgusted. So, for heaven' s sake, tear down Joslyn Center and rebuild it in the same location. How can it cost 6
million dollars when all the utilities are there already? We deserve better! Thank you for letting me have my say.
Rickey Windfelder

1

443



Siobhan Foster

From:  twheelers < ann@twheelers.com>

Sent:   Monday, March 07, 2016 3:02 PM
To:     SRProject

Cc:     Jack Milliken

Subject:       Senior Center

I am writing to voice my opposition to relocating the proposed Senior Center to the Covina Park. I am a third generation

Covina born former resident and consider this one of the outstanding assets of Covina. Over the years my family has
spent a lot of quality time at this park. Whenever I come back to visit, I still use the park. I urge you to reconsider this
proposal and find another location for the Senior Center.

Sincerely,

Ann Milliken Wheeler

444



Siobhan Foster

From:  JackMilliken < jmilliken7@earthlink.net>

Sent:   Wednesday, March 09, 2016 12:13 PM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Save the park

As a second generation Covina born and life long resident, I have very deep roots in the area. My grandfather
came to the valley from Texas as an orphan with his 2 younger sisters at the age of 12 brought by his great aunt
in 1868 in a covered wagon. My grandmother arrived with her father and mother and 3 siblings in 1879 by train
from Wisconsin via San Francisco, then south to Los Angeles and then coming to Puente and on to here by
wagon. They were married in 1881 in Pomona and settled ( as did her parents and siblings) in the area
surrounding what was to become the town of Covina. All were very active in the community through their
lifetimes. After Joseph F. Phillips the land and laid out the town of Covina, J. H. Adams eventually became the
owner of the acreage between San Bernardino Rd and Badillo and Hollenbeck and Fourth St. This was planted

in citrus trees. I believe in either the late 1910' s or early 1920' s he subdivided that property and dedicated the
area east of Valencia to be a park and the rest was divided into individual lots to be sold. With that bit of

history, I want to voice my opposition to the relocation of the Senior Center to the Covina Park. The Senior
Center is a great asset and must be brought back to an active existence, but not at the expense of losing precious
green space in the heart of town. I spent much time in the park as a youngster and still use it as a place to walk.

Regardless of the 4 locations proposed, the footprint for a 15, 000 sq. ft. building and parking for 100 cars would
take up way too much space in the park and create more traffic problems than there is now. It would require the
removal of many of the nearly 100 year old trees and large expanses of green area that is consistently being
used for recreational purposes. Find a way to keep the Senior Center in Kelby Park or another location.

Jack Milliken

i

445



Siobhan Foster

From:  ben@net2uinc.com

Sent:   Thursday, March 10, 2016 1: 59 PM
Subject:       Voting NO! On Tearing Up Covina Park

XLadies and Gentlemen of this city counsel of My City Covina. I grew up here in the 60' s 70' s and 80' s and all
during these times from a child up until now as I am an old man. I have fond memories of being a child and
attending the many events at this park. I learned to swim at the swimming pool, I learned Gymnastic and tap
dancing at the small building next to the swimming pool, I even performed in our Glen Aoks school band at the
grand Music stand to a large crow of attendees.

For you to decide to encroach upon this lovely gem of an area, that is truly toughed by God and loved by so
many is shameful and disrespectful and honestly selfish on your parts collectively. Even though my family and
I live in Chino Hills Mrs. Williams and I take our children there and have done so as my parents did so with
myself and my sisters. As I said I am now an old man but Covina is one city my heart will always call home, if
you plant your civic center on this park this will uproot all feelings I have for Covina and leave me and my
family devastated.
Please respect the history, grandeur, and majesty of Covina park. Please
on behalf of my family, on behalf of those that I grew up with as a child and on behalf of those that in the
future would and may benefit from this lovely oasis Covina Park.

Most Sincerely A True Covina resident ans supporter of all things Covina

Benjamin A.G. Williams

CTO

Net2U

1122 E. Lincoln Ave.

Suite 110

Orange, CA. 92865

866) 477-2911

www.net2uinc.com

1

446



Sharon Clark

Subject: Voting NO! On Tearing Up Covina Park

From: benCanet2uinc.com [ mailto: ben@net2uinc.com]

Sent: Thursday, March 10, 2016 2: 10 PM
To: City of Covina Parks & Recreation; Covina City Clerk; City of Covina Administration; Finance Department; City of
Covina Environmental Division; City of Covina Building & Safety Section
Subject: Voting NO! On Tearing Up Covina Park

Ladies and Gentlemen of this city counsel of My City Covina.
I grew up here in the 60' s 70's and 80' s and all during these times from a child up until now as
iI am an old man. I have fond memories of being a child and attending the many events at this

park. I learned to swim at the swimming pool, I learned Gymnastic and tap dancing at the
small building next to the swimming pool, I even performed in our Glen Oaks school band at
the grand Music stand to a large crow of attendees.

For you to decide to encroach upon this lovely gem of an area, that is truly toughed by God
and loved by so many is shameful and disrespectful and honestly selfish on your parts
collectively. Even though my family and I live in Chino Hills Mrs. Williams and I take our
children there and have done so as my parents did so with myself and my sisters. As I said I
am now an old man but Covina is one city my heart will always call home, if you plant your
civic center on this park this will uproot all feelings I have for Covina and leave me and my
family devastated.
Please respect the history, grandeur, and majesty of Covina park. Please
on behalf of my family, on behalf of those that I grew up with as a child and on behalf of
those that in the future would and may benefit from this lovely oasis Covina Park.

Most Sincerely A True Covina resident ans supporter of all things Covina

Benjamin A.G. Williams

CTO

Net2U

1122 E. Lincoln Ave.

Suite 110

Orange, CA. 92865

866) 477-2911

www.net2uinc. com

1

447



Siobhan Foster

From:  judyaward@aol.com

Sent:   Thursday, March 10, 2016 5: 56 PM
To:     srproject@covinaca.gov.

Subject:       save the park

I live in NC now, but I remember the swimming pool and softball game, Let the park stay. I use to sit under the big tree
ans just relax whenl use to live in Covina. Now you are taking the park away. Shame on you. These kids have no where
to play or swimming or just sit and chill out when there parents are up set with them or they can read a book . There lots
of things you can do in the park. Just remember that tomorrow the future kids will have to see a tree in a building, all
because the city had to tear down the park. And the blame will be on you. So shame on you and think about the children
to come.

Judy Ward
Use to play and grew up in Covina

1

448



Siobhan Foster

From:  Steve Taylor < ste.tayor@icloud.com>

Sent:   Friday, March 11, 2016 9:57 AM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Covina park

Attachments: covina- community-senior- center.pdf; ATT00001.txt

Leave the park alone!

Move the street fair back there. We used to have a great street fair, not anymore.

Leave one of the last parks alone, once it' s gone it' s gone for good

1

449



Siobhan Foster

From:  jgmaust@gmail.com

Sent:   Sunday, March 13, 2016 9: 13 PM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Covina Comm Center

Hi,

I think this is a great idea. I propose for the center to be in the vacant shopping area of the stater brothers lot on grand
and Covina. It is a great size space with plenty of parking.
Sent from my iPhone

1

450



Siobhan Foster

From:  Ken Linden < ccbbone@verizon. net>

Sent:   Wednesday, March 16, 2016 5:40 PM
To:      SRProject

Subject:       Comments on Community and Senior Center Relocation

I have heard comments that the City is looking into rebuilding the Senior Center in the Covina Park between San
Bernardino Rd. and Badillo St. I think this is a bad idea. This park is already heavily used and another building will take
away from space that is already being used on a daily basis. Another problem with this location is the lack of parking. If a
parking lot is added then even more green space is removed. If the present location can no longer be used, then put the
vacant space off San Bernardino between Citrus and Third. This is the old Ford Dealership which is no longer used and
has been an eyesore for years. Put this space to better use with the Senior Center and Community Building. As quoted
from Covina Today" Communities with abundant parks and quality recreational facilities thrive." Use the facilities at

Covina Park as they are used today and don' t remove what little green space remains with another building.

Ken Linden

227 N. Armel Dr.

Covina, CA 91722

ccbbone(@,verizon. net

1

451



Siobhan Foster

From:  Al Contarino < aj.contarino@icloud.com>
Sent:   Monday, March 21, 2016 3: 59 PM
To:     SRProject

Cc:      Kevin Lee; jack rallo

Subject:       Community & Senior Center Mtg ( 7p at City Park ' s Recreation Hall)

Since I will not be at the meeting tonight I would like to submit the following : After 3 meetings, 2 Tribune Articles and
over 750 signed petitions I know you are aware that the consensus is overwhelming opposed to moving the Senior
Center and Community Center to Covina Park. My hope is that if other locations are not viable at this time, you will not
as a last resort still consider the move to Covina Park. In my opinion this would be a bad plan and most often No Plan is
always better than a Bad Plan. Hopefully, you would wait until a better location is possible, Thanks for allowing my input,
Al Contarino

1

452



Siobhan Foster

From:  Lorraine Perez Madden < lorraine.perez11@verizon.net>
Sent:   Monday, March 21, 2016 5:08 PM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Covina Senior& Community Center

To Whom This May Concern:

First may I say I am all in favor of a new Senior Center just NOT at Covina Park!! I walk daily at the park and so enjoy the
peacefulness and camaraderie shared with park regulars!

We are so blessed to have all this green space as there isn' t much left existing in Covina. Now that East Valley Medical
Clinic is across the street from the park, after 9 am the parking is Terrible!Parking is already terrible from the hospital over
to the Kidney Clinics, we have to park on residential streets. Downtown is already a mess with that housing please don' t
mess with our park!! I think every parcel of land has been taken over by some medical facility. This is embarrassing but
my daughters and their friends who grew up in Covina and graduated in the 90s have all but moved away— they refer to
Covina as" Shanty Town!" S0000 Sad!! SAVE OUR PARK that is loved by so many!

Sincerely,
L Perez

453



Siobhan Foster

From:  Nate Placencia < nplacencia@gmail.com>

Sent:   Wednesday, March 23, 2016 8:56 AM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       keep senior center at Kelby Park

Dear Covina City Council and Managers,

I am a resident at 345 E Reed St. I live in the Kelby Park neighborhood. I would greatly prefer that we keep the Senior Center in Kelby Park.
Although I myself am not a senior, I believe a new center would raise the quality of amenities in our neighborhood.

Also, we should keep as much green space as possible at Covina Park.

Sincerely,

Dr. Nathan Placencia

1

454



Siobhan Foster

From:  STUART SCOTT < basicscott@mac.com>

Sent:   Wednesday, March 23, 2016 8:00 PM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Covina Senior Community Center

We were told there was an online petition we could sign to oppose using Covina Park as a location for the new
Senior Center. We could not find that petition.

We would, however, like to voice our opinion in that we would NOT like the historic Covina Park land to be
carved away to use for another senior center. There are already enough trees that have been removed and this
would just destroy what we have held dear all these years. We have been Covina residents for 45 years. As a
child, I went to Covina Park to play. I took my son to play there in the 1970' s, and my grandchildren as well. It
is a very unique park with lovely mature trees.

We would NOT like a senior center there. Please build it elsewhere.

Thank you,

Stuart and Carol Scott

Dexter Street

Covina

Scotty& Carol

CJ- Studio.com

455



Siobhan Foster

From:  Richard Stoney < richardstoneyl0@gmail.com>
Sent:   Wednesday, March 23, 2016 11:52 PM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Senior Center

I didn' t want to take up time at the meeting last night but one item is very important to communicate with your
architect when time comes to start laying out plans.

The Handicapped Van Accessible parking should be two or three times the normal amount that is required in a normal

situation. Handicapped parking was always a major problem at the old center especially if there was any kind of event
taking place.

The obvious reason extra handicapped parking is needed is the clientele you are serving have far above the general
number of handicapped placards/ plates. I don' t know if DMV has statistics of the number of placards issued to those
over 50 verses the total numbers of placards issued, but if they do, it might be helpful to determine the numbers of
parking spaces required.

Just a thought, if the final decision is to rebuild in Kelby park I for one would have no opposition to using a much as three
fourths of the land for buildings and parking. From personal observation I have never seen more than about a fourth of
the park nearest the road in use for" park" activities. If the remaining park became a " pocket park" so be it. Maybe the
front part could be made more desirable by building restrooms as part of the total project.

Richard Stoney

1

456



Siobhan Foster

From:  AJ De Leon < allisond56@yahoo.com>

Sent:   Monday, March 28, 2016 1:29 PM
To:     SRProject

Subject:       Historic Covina Park

Hello,

It is sad to hear that the historic Covina Park will be removed to create more buildings or a community center. I am opposing this plan
because of the rich history of this area as well as for environmental conservation. Also, for a city that is an" urban
forest" htto://www.covinaca.gov/services-a-

programs/ urbanforest http:// covinaca.gov/images/ webuser/CommDev/covinazoningmap. odf there should be a balance and respect
for the nature already existing in the area.
Please view the video below:
https:// voutu. be/ 62moJandvrc

Thank you for your time,

Allison De Leon

1

457



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

458


	Agenda
	CC 1.  Minutes of the March 22, 2016, Special Meeting.
	Minutes

	CC 2.  Payment of City demands.
	City Demands

	CC 3.  Payment of Agency demands.
	Agency Demands

	CC 4.  Second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 16-2054, to prohibit the cultivation of marijuana in all zones in the City.
	Ordinance No. 16-2054

	CC 5.  Participation in the 2015 Continuum of Care program grant for the Transitional House in Fiscal Year 16-17.
	Transitional House

	CC 6.  Amendment to agreement with All City Management Services, Inc. for school crossing guard services.
	School Crossing Guard Services

	CC 7.  Extension of Covina’s Parking Enforcement Service contract with Inter-Con Security Inc.
	Parking Enforcement Service Contract Extension

	CC 8.  Agreement with Pacific Parking Systems, Inc. for Parking Machine Maintenance at the Metrolink West Parking Structure and Civic Center (Downtown) Parking Structure.
	Parking Machine Maintenance Agreement

	CC 9.  Acceptance of an easement on an existing alley associated with development at 642 and 656 E. San Bernardino Road.
	Resolution No. 16-7469

	CC 10.  Approval and recordation of Tract Map No. 73397 "Lark Ellen Villas" at 501 Lark Ellen Avenue.
	Resolution No. 16-7472

	CC 11.  Amendment of the Fiscal Year 2015-16 Capital Improvement Budget for Project P1502 Resurfacing of Grand Avenue Project funded by CalRecycle.
	Resolution No. 16-7473

	CC 12.  Confirmation of Mayor’s appointments to intergovernmental agencies and appointment of representative and alternate to the City Selection Committee.
	Appointments to Intergovernmental Agencies

	PH 1.  Municipal Code amendment regarding violation of provisions of Chapter 8.60 Fireworks, Pyrotechnics and Production Effects.
	Ordinance No. 16-2055

	NB 1.  2015/2016 Core Strategies – Goals and Objectives Update.
	Goals and Objectives Update

	NB 2.  Approval of Engineering and Traffic Survey, March 2016, and Introduction of Ordinance No. 16-2056 Adding Chapter 10.68 of Title 10 (Vehicles and Traffic) of the Covina Municipal Code Relating to Speed Limits.
	Ordinance No. 16-2056

	NB 3.  2015-16 Adopted Budget Mid-Year Review.
	Budget Mid-Year Review

	NB 4.  Report on Covina Park Option for Community and Senior Center.
	Covina Senior and Community Center Update


